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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Aged 73. Appointed as the Chairman of the Bank in 1983. Chairman
of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”), Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited (“DSBG”), Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah
Sing Life Assurance Company Limited (“DSLA”), Dah Sing Insurance
Company (1976) Limited, Macau Insurance Company Limited, Macau
Life Insurance Company Limited, New Asian Shipping Company,
Limited and various other companies. Currently a member of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of both DSFH and DSBG.
Honorary President of Hong Kong Guangdong Chamber of Foreign
Investors and Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors. Member of
The Hong Kong Association of Banks, The Chinese Banks Association
Limited and The Hong Kong Shipowners Association. Vice President
of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. General Committee Member
of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies. Mr. Wong has over
45 years of experience in banking and finance. Father of Mr. Harold
Tsu-Hing Wong, the Managing Director and Chief Executive of DSBG,
Vice Chairman of the Bank and DSLA, and an Executive Director of the
Group’s other key operating banking and insurance subsidiaries.

Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Aged 61. Joined the Bank in 1977 and has served and managed
various departments before appointed as a Director in 1989 and was
promoted as its Managing Director in 2000 and Vice Chairman in April
2011. Appointed as the Managing Director of Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited (“DSBG”) in 2004 and promoted as Vice Chairman in April
2011. Appointed as Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”) in 1993 and promoted as its Managing Director in January
2002. Currently a member of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of both DSBG and DSFH. Chairman of Dah Sing Bank
(China) Limited and a director of various major subsidiaries of the
Group. Director of Great Wall Life Insurance Company Limited, and a
non-executive Director and Vice Chairman of Bank of Chongqging Co.,
Ltd. in which the Group has a 17% equity interest in its H shares listed
in Hong Kong. Associate of The Institute of Bankers (U.K.), Founder
Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and The International
Retail Banking Council of the U.K. Mr. Wong has over 35 years of
experience in banking.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

FHEEE Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong

BIERE Vice Chairman

44 5% ° 2000 F I AZERTT - A2005 FEZ T A Aged 44. Joined the Bank in 2000, and appointed as an Executive
WMITESEWNR2010F3ARZHEAEESEE Director in 2005 and as the Vice Chairman in March 2010. Appointed
& - 2004 FREZER/AFRITERAR LA K as an Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”)
IRITEE DRITES U201 F4 A A in 2004 and promoted as the Managing Director and Chief Executive
BRBEEBEFRITHEE - BRITARKTASZSRE in April 2011. Currently also a Vice Chairman of Dah Sing Life
BRAFRERE - RFIRT (P E) BRQ A SR Assurance Company Limited, and a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China)
PFIRERITRODBRARZES - HEENMEE Limited and Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Qualified solicitor in
B ARBBZABIREM - BAKTERER England and Wales and in Hong Kong. Son of Mr. David Shou-Yeh
BRARERKMBTEEEESEFITELE Wong, the Chairman of the Boards of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Z5RTF e Limited and DSBG.

FRELRE Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang

EFBICTEFTIHABR Managing Director and Chief Executive

53 5% ° 1995 F I AR 1T T £ B B A5 AR B Aged 53. Joined the Bank as the Group Financial Controller in 1995
—B MMM FBEARESE  LTFEEEEER and was promoted as a Director in 1997, responsible for the overall
MPHRERRED  ZEREREAZARE - financial management and control, operations and IT functions of the
201165 ABEA ARRITEFLLIERITHR Group for a number of years since then. Promoted as the Managing
E o R2004 FEZERFRITEEBRAEH Director and Chief Executive of the Bank in May 2011. Appointed
TEF - BMARKNEMEEERAF - RMAHE as an Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited in
HIRITRODBEBR AR ~ KFRTT(FRR) BRAF] 2004. Also a Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited, Banco
RAFABRBEBRAR ZEE - BXEGA - Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited and Dah
BESFARETMASERLERBEGEAD Sing Life Assurance Company Limited. Qualified accountant, Fellow
NEEE - TRERAB 25 FUBEERRITE of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K. and
B o member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Wang has over 25 years of experience in financial management

and banking.

BEEEE Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew

HITEEFREBTTHARE Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

46 5% ° 1998 FIARIRTT + FA2007 FEZ T A Aged 46. Joined the Bank in 1998, and appointed as an Executive
HITESW N 2011 F8 AR (T ARITTHAEE - Director in 2007 and as the Deputy Chief Executive in August 2011.
BARTEREERERAFMITES - FIHAK Currently an Executive Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
MASRBRERAR - BFRBRERARE « B Limited. Also a Director of Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited,
ASREBR AT RAFHRIT(PE)BRAFZ Macau Insurance Company Limited, Macau Life Insurance Company
EF - BAXRBTHEEMPEREDEE @ 8 Limited and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited. Head of Treasury and
BRITVERDGERMERE - EXREHEB245F Corporate Finance of the Bank, responsible for its treasury and
W BB & RIS corporate finance activities. Mr. Mayhew has over 24 years of

experience in financial services both in the U.K. and Hong Kong.
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Mr. Eddie Shing-Tat Lau
Executive Director

Aged 51. Joined the Bank in 1992 and was appointed as an Executive
Director in May 2012. Head of Commercial Banking Division,
responsible for overseeing and supervising commercial banking
business. Currently also a committee member of SME Standing
Committee of The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong.
Mr. Lau has over 25 years of experience in commercial banking.

Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Executive Director

Aged 47. Joined the Bank as the Head of Retail Banking business in
February 2012, responsible for the development and management
of overall retail banking, bancassurance, retail brokerage, wealth
management businesses, private banking and vehicle financing.
Appointed as an Executive Director in May 2012. Ms. Wong has over
25 years of experience in retail and personal banking business with
other banks operating in Hong Kong, including Standard Chartered
Bank and CITIC Bank International.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hau-Tak Li (Gary Li)
Chief Credit Officer and Head of Group Risk Division

Aged 53. Joined the Bank in 2005. Has been the Chief Credit Officer
since September 2009 and assumed the role of Head of Group Risk
Division since February 2013. Graduated from the University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor of Science degree and the Chinese University of
Hong Kong with a Master of Business Administration degree. Member
of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. Mr. Li has over
25 years of experience in banking.
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BFEERE Mr. Edmund Yue-Yeung Poon

EER B Chief Operating Officer

545% ° R2013F 7 AMARIBITH AL ENME Aged 54. Joined as the Chief Operating Officer of the Bank in July
Bipe 25T BEESENEARK 2% 2013, responsible for overseeing operations and IT functions of
RMEREHEAZEHZELTEMARHE(E the Group. Graduated from the University of Waterloo in Canada
ERIE)E L8 - BEENTSEENRTCERTT with a Bachelor Degree of Mathematics and a Degree of Master of
ZEE BRI NEEEE T EHAIIFLE Mathematics (Computer Science). Mr. Poon has 30 years of extensive
S8 WEFHEER  BHEBEEBIRTES experience in operations, IT and project management mainly covering

EME BB mEsR

o

retail and corporate banking. He has the experience in managing
both operations and IT functions of banking in Hong Kong in a senior
capacity for many years.

EAREE Mr. Yat-Kung Tam (Elton Tam)

AEASTE G 5 B RS AR General Manager and Group Financial Controller

525% ° B 20065 2 H AN ER1T 424 IR K £k (B A1 755 Aged 52. Has been the General Manager and Group Financial
BE ZEUBER  c RENBAERBEHEHR Controller of the Bank since 2006, responsible for financial control.
BEt s  EER T ASBELRSIESEELS Graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor of social
- BEARTASEIREHEEHELIS2UN LE science degree, the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a master of
K BREESELTEMN - FAESSHIA science degree in finance, City University of Hong Kong with a doctor
GRABFTFARSHMAEEREE  LURF of business administration degree and Shanghai University of Finance
Eafesriine  BEEHREBTST SR and Economics with a doctorate degree in economics. He is fellow
e ZEFMestimre kineXEmestam member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Hees - BEAHARS E2H RIEEIREL and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K.,
B o and also qualified member of the Chinese Institute of Certified

Public Accountants of China, the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of England and Wales, the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants of the U.S.A. and the Certified General Accountants
Association of Canada. Mr. Tam has over 25 years of experience in
accounting and financial management.

TNEr+ Ms. Florence Siu-Wai Lee

AT R EFAN T ERETE General Manager and Group Head of Human Resources

49 5% ° 722000 F M AZRERTT + F52005 G H{E Aged 49. Joined the Bank in 2000. Has been the General Manager
BIRIBNEBMANERBREE  BEARITAN and Group Head of Human Resources since 2005, responsible for
BRE - RERBEBRINREEXZELEMR human resources management of the Bank. Graduated from the
HEMBABEIREIREELTEN - T/ NEAEE Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts degree
w25 F A N ERES ° and obtained from The University of Hull, U.K., a Master degree in

Business Administration. Ms. Lee has over 25 years of experience in
human resources.

6 ArRiTARAR | 20134 |



NTEENSEEEABGN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

RERE
BPIBRRITRBRAFITTHABHAFREE

5175% ° IR2012F 7 A MAZRIRTT RAE Z T AR
PEEBITRM AR D E (FRPIEMK ) 217K
BHRES IR EREB 25 FRITRUEED
e BEBRDBEEMRITRIEAMRIT BT
RITRAEBEBRRIT(BB) BRARZHBIT12
FEIPERMBIRITERERE

RERLZLT
AFRTT (FE)) BIR L Al TR ABHFREF

555% c R20MF AN EZERARITEREE
B ARAFRT (R E) AR AR ZITIEER K
B HEPEAMIRITEBRER 21782
RERR - REZTHA® 26 FREFBRRITELL
gﬁ °

Mr. Eddie Yiu-Fai Kong
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

Aged 51. Joined the Bank and appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (incorporated
in Macau) in July 2012. Mr. Kong has over 25 years of experience
in banking and finance business with other banks in Hong Kong
including Daiwa Bank, Standard Chartered Bank, and with particular
focus in corporate and institutional banking business management for
the last 12 years in DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited.

Ms. Lin-Ying Chan (Kandy Chan)
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

Aged 55. Joined and appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and
Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, a key operating subsidiary
of the Bank, in 2011, responsible for the banking development, and
branch supervision and management in the Mainland China. Ms. Chan
has over 26 years of banking experience in China.
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EEEWES
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EECEREEHE2013F12A31HLEFEZR The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
H RS EZ 2 B statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.

FEHEK PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

RFBITARRAR([AREIT]) 2 T BEK HRHE The principal activities of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) are
BT M REMBERE  HWEBARZETEE the provision of banking, financial and other related services. The
58 BB ISR 5E 33 © principal activities of the subsidiaries are shown in Note 33 to the

financial statements.

XERBHROEm RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
RRITRMB AR ([AREE ) BZE2013412 A The results of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
1B FEZEEHNE13EZLEEREER - ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 13.

EEgERPHKREER2208 T HIK The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$2.20 per share,
110,000,000/ 7T * B 201349 A 25 HIRE S totalling HK$110,000,000, which was paid on 25 September 2013.
f&H -

EECEBZREAEREFTR5.008T A The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$5.00
250,000,000/ T © per share, totalling HK$250,000,000.

@S SHARE CAPITAL

KIBTRFERA 2 BB BH NI REM T Movements in the share capital of the Bank during the year are shown
45 - in Note 45 to the financial statements.

f#E RESERVES

AEBEARITRFE 2 HEEEESFBIHNIE Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Bank during the
HwKMIFE46 © year are set out in Note 46 to the financial statements.

B DONATIONS

REERFE 7 ZEERHEMIBN1,318,000% During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
JT ° amounting to HK$1,318,000.

BEEEE FIXED ASSETS

AEERARITREFEZETEEZEAFIHN Movements in the fixed assets of the Group and of the Bank during
B TRERMIZE34 - the year are shown in Note 34 to the financial statements.

8 ArRiTARAR | 20134 |
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice-Chairman

Robert Tsai-To Sze*
Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung*
Lon Dounn”

Seng-Lee Chan*

Yuen-Tin Ng*

Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Managing Director and Chief Executive

HEEE Nicholas John Mayhew
HITEEFREBTIHARZ Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive
BipkiE Eddie Shing-Tat Lau
B3 Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
#ER Po-Fung So (Francesca So)
(R20134% 11 A 18 HEFF) (resigned with effect from 18 November 2013)
B INITEE * Independent Non-Executive Directors
AR ARITZAGERABTEEEAREBESTE There being no provision in the Bank’s Articles of Association for

ZRE  MERRAEREERT -

retirement by rotation, all Directors continue in office.

. DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2013 9



EEEWES
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EERARETE 2R DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

BRARIT I REERATATcREBRGER Pursuant to the Share Option Schemes (the “Schemes”) as approved
AT RFEa) REBEIZERARANMIRITEES by the shareholders of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”)
BARI(TKFIRTER ) IREBBZRRET and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), the Bank’s ultimate
2 ([#ZEsTE)) RIRTETEZERTIREN and immediate holding companies respectively, certain Directors of
REEIABTRETRBERNERIAKRTRITE the Bank were granted options at a consideration of HK$1 per option
B2 2R o ST TR (TEER to subscribe for shares of DSFH or DSBG. The exercise price per
TEER UM SERREBHARIMERA option share varied by tranches of grant, which was concluded on the
Al A LR AN ([ EmRAIL) £ 17.03(9) &4 E basis no less exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of
T B PMERUA T =B 2 ESE&5EEE ()E the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
AROERTEREBHARIFBRAR([H of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) being determined as no
BRG] EE 2WHE - (i) BBERMNERER less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the relevant shares
THAIRERXSBEBREERHAEE 2 FHKM traded on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”) on
B ~ B (i) KT M AF R TEBRR AR 2 the date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the relevant shares
EE o (FKARNER) (BEEMF622%F)ERN traded on the SEHK for the five trading days immediately preceding
2014 F3A3HAM  AMAREBFMEKLE the date of grant; and (jii) the nominal value of the shares in the capital
A RRSI AEHEEESE - BERAMEES of DSFH and DSBG. (The new Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
NEMROEENHES - 8201453 A3HE - which came into force on 3 March 2014, adopts a mandatory system
RIS RMAFTFETEB 2RO WERE - )ZE of no nominal value for all Hong Kong incorporated companies having
R E— AR FE 1 EZEE 5 ERR AR RNIE R a share capital and abolishes the concept of nominal value for all
EREITE © shares. With effect from 3 March 2014, the shares of DSFH and DSBG

have no nominal value.) The options can be exercised in varying
amounts between the first and fifth anniversaries from the date of
grant in general.

10 ArRiTARAR | 20134 |
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EEEHES
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(Continued)

Directors’ interests in the Schemes during the year are described
below:

(@) Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Share Option Scheme (the
“DSFH Scheme”)

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”), the Bank’s ultimate
holding company, operates the DSFH Scheme whereby certain
directors and employees of its subsidiaries were granted options to
subscribe shares in DSFH.

During the year, Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, Director of the Bank,
had outstanding options granted under the DSFH Scheme. Options
granted to Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew under the DSFH Scheme
lapsed during the year due to expiry of option period.

During the year, no options were granted to Directors of the Bank and
none of the Directors had acquired shares in DSFH (or received their
equivalent cash value) by exercising options granted under the DSFH
Scheme.

(b) Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Share Option Scheme (the
“DSBG Scheme”)

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), the Bank’s immediate
holding company, operates the DSBG Scheme whereby certain
directors and employees of its subsidiaries were granted options to
subscribe shares in DSBG.

During the year, Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang,
Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew, Mr. Eddie Shing-Tat Lau and Ms. Phoebe
Mei-Chun Wong, Directors of the Bank, had outstanding options
granted under the DSBG Scheme.

During the year, no options were granted to Directors of the Bank and
none of the Directors had acquired shares in DSBG (or received their
equivalent cash value) by exercising options granted under the DSBG
Scheme.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Bank, its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Bank or any other body corporate.

I DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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EEEWES
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BEEREEN DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
BEFERNRITIERBZTEMRBEL The Directors do not have any service contracts with the Bank.
EENEGH kR DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
NEE NN EER - NIE1T - EMBAT - BER No contracts of significance in relation to the Bank’s business to
BB A B E AR N BV R R AT (E R A R AN R 1T which the Bank, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding
ZEBMARTESHEENMESIERER companies was a party and in which a Director of the Bank had a
BEEH - material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.

BEEEN MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
REFA » RIPITWEGL DB E P E KI5 No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
BRI FBTMAEIRELITHRAH ° whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered

into or existed during the year.

BEXS CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
HZE2013F 12 A31 BIEFEHHE - AEEHEE Details of transactions with related parties of the Group for the year
FEAT 2R G EEHN T HRERMIFE49 - ended 31 December 2013 have been set out in Note 49 to the financial
statements.

BEiEcI B STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

RIRHEHZ2013F12 31 B I FEFHHRE In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
B AT EREESRERRNIRITE 2013, the Bank has fully complied with the requirements set out in
&0 )R S 60A KA 2 GGRITE(WE)RINZ & the Banking (Disclosure) Rules issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
HERK - RFTE T2 BERZWEE LK - Authority under section 60A of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The Bank has fully complied with such disclosure requirements.

BBED AUDITORS

AP ERRO LR LR KBS R ESTEZ - The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
ZREEEREE - BRRFEERET - who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
AEEREMm On behalf of the Board

T5E David Shou-Yeh Wong

TE Chairman

B 201453 H25H Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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irB Ik
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

HZE2013F12 A31 HILFE
(LAPS ¥ T 7ThL57R)

LB
5T Restated
Note 2013 2012
FEHBA Interest income 4,363,880 3,866,588
FIEZH Interest expense (1,562,212)  (1,663,671)
BRI E WA Net interest income 6 2,801,668 2,202,917
AR & K AR WA Fee and commission income 935,902 741,696
fRi5E ke Fee and commission expense (233,989) (211,146)
FIREERASBKA Net fee and commission income 7 701,913 530,550
FEERA Net trading income 8 242,172 178,167
Hin&E A Other operating income 9 53,109 44,964
EEWA Operating income 3,798,862 2,956,598
HIE Y Operating expenses 10 (2,008,276) (1,788,877)
MBRFE IR R 2 & EHF Operating profit before impairment losses 1,790,586 1,167,721
EFREBEREMEERE Loan impairment losses and
other credit provisions 12 (309,806) (143,689)
HBRBEFER ZEEEF Operating profit after impairment losses 1,480,780 1,024,032
HETEREMETEEE Net (loss)/gain on disposal and revaluation
RTEEHZF (BER) s of premises and other fixed assets 13 (2,715) 2,959
KEMERNTFERAEZ Net gain on fair value adjustment
F s of investment properties 14 18,415 130,799
HEBHFREZFER Net loss on disposal of investments
in securities 15 (100,341) (64,128)
RELEEE QA RIRE CEE Loss on deemed disposal of investment
in an associate 16 (56,971) -
JE(EEE SN A 2 48 Share of results of an associate 578,556 490,806
FEAE ERIERIEEE 2 ¥ 4E Share of results of jointly controlled entities 17,311 13,385
BRBL RIS F Profit before taxation 1,935,035 1,597,853
BiIE Taxation 17 (235,558)  (155,098)
R 1T IR SR PE AL 5 B R A Profit for the year attributable to
shareholders of the Bank 19 1,699,477 1,442,755
BE Dividends
B IR HA AR 2 Interim dividend paid 20 110,000 96,600
BURARERRE S Proposed final dividend 20 250,000 240,000

F20EEF 228 E 2 MEF v

2B e

I DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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consolidated financial statements.

The notes on pages 20 to 228 are an integral part of these
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rectElaX

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZE2013F12 A31 HILFE
(LAPS ¥ T 7ThL57R)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

LB
Restated
2013 2012
FERA Profit for the year 1,699,477 1,442,755
FEHMEEmRE Other comprehensive income for the year
TEENHDBEERE Items that will not be reclassified to
e ARA9IER - the consolidated income statement:
= Premises
REEFHBETER Reserve arising from reclassification
WEMEZFE of premises to investment properties 122,248 =
Higngeesmois Items that may be reclassified subsequently
A WEERMIER ¢ to the consolidated income statement:
BHFEE Investments in securities
RN 2 A EF S Fair value gains on available-for-sale
N EYE securities recognised in equity 47,691 814,060
BB ETEREERKR Fair value gains recognised in equity upon
FEUGRIBEARI T 2 BHZRE reclassification of certain investments
Z A BRI ERR in securities included in the loans and
a2 N HERE receivables category to the
available-for-sale category - 54,621
AFE (W) EBEEE KR Fair value (gain)/loss realised and transferred
% E Wik to income statement upon:
—HERHIEEES — Disposal of available-for-sale securities (107,287) (75,737)
—HEREREAHEE — Disposal of held-to-maturity securities
HRlREH SRS and investments in securities included
REINHFLFRBIEE in the loans and receivables category
B R EWGRIBRE R which were previously reclassified from
ZEHIGE the available-for-sale category 135,647 87,025

—RERK AT SR T
BN BERREENRR
FEUGRIR SRR E IR E

— Impairment of investments in securities
included in the loans and receivables
category which were previously reclassified

ZRE from the available-for-sale category - 3,723
1B E (R B = 8 Deferred income tax assets released on
ZIRERIBE E movements in investment revaluation reserve (19,998) (149,300)
178,301 734,392
BREBIMEEIM S RRAEYZR Exchange differences arising on translation of

the financial statements of foreign entities 105,918 28,040

MERBIEE  FEAMEE R Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 284,219 762,432

NBRHEEFEEERREE Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,983,696 2,205,187
E2p) 28 B 2 MisE I A bR e gk 2 — The notes on pages 20 to 228 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

okt
=
)
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e MBIRAR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2013
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2013412 A31H
(PAB R TITALTR)

LB
P Restated
Note 2013 2012
BE ASSETS
R e RIERITHA Cash and balances with banks 21 8,270,012 13,472,376
TESRITHITF SR Placements with banks 22 4,101,293 3,990,627
T%f’ﬁi'éf%;ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ’ﬂﬂ Trading securities 23 6,335,788 5,797,742
EENATFETFEBEEZETA Financial assets designated at fair value
Ta Eﬁﬂﬁéﬁ through profit or loss 23 4,248 23,525
TESRTE Derivative financial instruments 24 687,069 643,246
ZEERMEMER Advances and other accounts 25,36 108,202,738 97,307,850
f,\tH%a’iﬁ Available-for-sale securities 27 27,119,818 21,905,648
FFE 5 H Held-to-maturity securities 28 5,669,289 7,047,540
/N T&éﬁ Investment in an associate 30 3,304,993 2,437,031
HEZEHFEBIRE Investments in jointly controlled entities 31 59,657 54,246
EES Goodwill 32 811,690 811,690
m A E Intangible assets 32 66,242 73,320
TEREMEEEE Premises and other fixed assets 34 1,705,350 1,315,763
wEYF Investment properties 35 600,540 735,502
BNEAfRIE & = Current income tax assets = 51
FREFRTEE = Deferred income tax assets 42 22,975 18,876
BEA Total assets 166,961,702 155,635,033
=L LIABILITIES
|ITIER Deposits from banks 1,995,297 2,645,620
PTESRTE Derivative financial instruments 24 1,117,256 1,498,692
HIEEERZMNAE Trading liabilities 37 3,362,473 2,278,044
BPIFH Deposits from customers 38 129,945,133 118,081,166
B BITHFRE Certificates of deposit issued 39 6,132,561 5,752,462
BEITHERES Issued debt securities 40 775,385 2,712,907
‘IEETS Subordinated notes 41 3,762,471 3,979,470
HAbR B kAR Other accounts and accruals 2,602,907 3,170,931
BT IR B (& Current income tax liabilities 200,072 102,865
BELEFIBEE Deferred income tax liabilities 42 21,268 3,934
8BS Total liabilities 149,914,823 140,226,091
FEZS EQUITY
N Share capital 45 5,000,000 5,000,000
i Reserves 46 11,796,879 10,168,942
BUR AR HAE S Proposed final dividend 46 250,000 240,000
ERE Total equity 17,046,879 15,408,942
EaRkaEas Total equity and liabilities 166,961,702 155,635,033

EE2N 201443 A 25 Bt/ RIFREE -

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25

March 2014.
SESES FEE David Shou-Yeh Wong Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
EE EZE Director Director
HEHE FRE Hon-Hing Wong Gary Pak-Ling Wang
EE EEEATE Director Managing Director

F20EHEF228 A ZMEANAEEUBRERZ —

consolidated financial statements.

The notes on pages 20 to 228 are an integral part of these
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M IEAR SR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2013412 A31H
(PAB R TITALTR)

As at 31 December 2013
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

KE5
BT Restated
Note 2013 2012
EE ASSETS
e MERITHE R Cash and balances with banks 21 6,277,902 10,026,938
ERITHTFER Placements with banks 22 4,067,212 3,697,744
FFEBERBRIES Trading securities 23 6,335,788 5,797,742
EENATEF=Z=EESE Financial assets designated at
AN EREE fair value through profit or loss 23 - 21,743
PTHESRTE Derivative financial instruments 24 710,805 671,941
ZEERMEMER Advances and other accounts 25,36 89,945,740 82,912,683
AHEERS Available-for-sale securities 27 27,064,108 21,856,104
B R HES Held-to-maturity securities 28 3,017,495 5,174,189
ik /NI g Investment in an associate 30 1,213,057 883,057
HEZEHIEEIEE Investments in jointly controlled entities 31 20,000 20,000
M EE Intangible assets 32 1,000 4,000
MB A mIRE RER Investments in and loans to subsidiaries 33 3,501,138 3,480,656
TERHEMETEEE Premises and other fixed assets 34 1,232,737 937,136
B Investment properties 35 598,456 733,559
FREFRTHE = Deferred income tax assets 42 = 6,623
EEAE Total assets 143,985,438 136,224,115
=i LIABILITIES
RITIER Deposits from banks 3,149,653 2,738,461
PTHEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 24 1,109,217 1,489,287
HIEEBERZMNEE Trading liabilities 37 3,362,473 2,278,044
BRER Deposits from customers 38 108,410,652 100,576,332
BEBEITHFRE Certificates of deposit issued 39 6,727,134 6,217,110
BEITHERE 5 Issued debt securities 40 775,385 2,712,907
‘IEETS Subordinated notes 41 3,762,471 3,979,470
HAb AR B &TaR Other accounts and accruals 2,294,433 2,865,559
BENEAT IR B (& Current income tax liabilities 153,879 86,583
BELEFIBAE Deferred income tax liabilities 42 19,934 -
8EE5 Total liabilities 129,765,231 122,943,753
Em EQUITY
f& 7S Share capital 45 5,000,000 5,000,000
i Reserves 46 8,970,207 8,040,362
B S Proposed final dividend 46 250,000 240,000
ERZEE Total equity 14,220,207 13,280,362
EnRaEas Total equity and liabilities 143,985,438 136,224,115
EEZEN20144F 3 A 25 A#bAERIRRELA - Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25
March 2014.
Ep¥ TS David Shou-Yeh Wong Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
EE o Director Director
EEE =)z Hon-Hing Wong Gary Pak-Ling Wang
BF EFiw Director Managing Director

E20EHEF 228 H 2 W IARGEMIEHREKZ — The notes on pages 20 to 228 are an integral part of these
2L o consolidated financial statements.
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GARREDE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2013F12 A31 HILFE
(LAPS ¥ T 7ThL57R)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

ZRERITIR R PE(h =
Attributable to the shareholders
of the Bank
[N Hit ks REZF EEEF
Share Other Retained Total
capital reserves earnings equity
201341 81 H&ER - Balance at 1 January 2013,
Al 2 3R] as previously reported 5,000,000 2,512,079 9,519,136 17,031,215
BETBR 2 M — Change in accounting policy -
VARK AN A B EE R E 51T EE Restatement of premises on
cost basis - (1,576,478) (45,795) (1,622,273)
20131 A1 B&ER - Balance at 1 January 2013,
KE as restated 5,000,000 935,601 9,473,341 15,408,942
FEL2EREETE Total comprehensive income
for the year - 284,219 1,699,477 1,983,696
LARR # 2 A5 LARR 19 1E 7% Provision for equity-settled
ELRE RN > B share-based compensation = 4,241 - 4,241
2012 4 R EBAR 2. 2012 final dividend - - (240,000) (240,000
2013 FHHR B 2013 interim dividend - - (110,000) (110,000)
2013412 A 31 H& R Balance at 31 December 2013 5,000,000 1,224,061 10,822,818 17,046,879

BZ12A31HILEE

Year ended 31 December

2013 2012
BIERREAENA Proposed final dividend included
2R R ERRR B in retained earnings 250,000 240,000

I DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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EEREBR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2013F 12 A31 BILFE (&) For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued)
(LABETTh5IR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

ANERITAR R FE (G i 2
Attributable to the shareholders

of the Bank
[N H A RE&BF A ET
Share Other Retained Total
capital reserves earnings equity
2012F1 A1 B&6R - Balance at 1 January 2012,
LAl 23R as previously reported 4,600,000 1,239,537 8,266,939 14,106,476
EETBER R — Change in accounting policy —
VARK AN A B EE R E 51T EE Restatement of premises on
cost basis - (1,066,498) (29,353) (1,095,851)
201241 A1 B4 - Balance at 1 January 2012,
& E5 as restated 4,600,000 173,039 8,237,586 13,010,625
FEL2EREETE Total comprehensive
income for the year - 762,432 1,442,755 2,205,187
LARR # 2 A5 LARR 19 1E 7% Provision for equity-settled
ER RN < B share-based compensation — 130 = 130
BITE B Issue of ordinary shares 400,000 = = 400,000
2011 F R HARR 2 2011 final dividend - - (110,400)  (110,400)
2012 FFHARR B 2012 interim dividend - - (96,600) (96,600)
201212 A 31 B Balance at 31 December 2012 5,000,000 935,601 9,473,341 15,408,942
F 208 EF 228 B 2 MFF A GRE MR 2 — The notes on pages 20 to 228 are an integral part of these
& o consolidated financial statements.
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meRenEsE R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

HZE2013F12 A31 HILFE
(LAPS ¥ T 7ThL57R)

4B
FfaE Restated
Note 2013 2012
RETHZHRERE Cash flows from operating activities
LEEBFTRAR S5 Net cash used in operating activities 47(a)  (4,935,250) (655,563)

RETEZRERE
RHIME & PR B & A A

Cash flows from investing activities
Additional investment in

associate company (330,000) -
BETE REMER

Purchase of premises, investment

HthEEEE properties and other fixed assets (227,923) (189,118)
HETE  KEMER Proceeds from disposal of premises,

Hth [EE & EFT1S 50E investment properties and

other fixed assets 2,897 8,263

KEEBFTARE F5E Net cash used in investing activities (555,026) (180,855)
RETE2RESRE Cash flows from financing activities
BT Certificates of deposit issued 6,188,416 4,670,092
fEEE T &) Certificates of deposit redeemed (5,381,332) (2,273,000)
BITRERE Issue of subordinated notes - 1,403,052
BLEKHE S Debt securities redeemed (1,938,463) -
BRGERR Repayment of subordinated notes -  (1,163,535)
T EBETREER RER Interest paid on subordinated notes

B LA E and debt securities issued (258,211) (292,715)
BATE B Issue of ordinary shares - 400,000
k2 BB AR B Dividends paid on ordinary shares (350,000) (207,000)

BEEE) (FTH) HAREFE Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (1,739,590) 2,536,894

HERZERBLEE OBL), Net (decrease)/increase in cash

1N

FORERERFELIAR

EREE R

FERRERERREEE

F20EHEF 228 B MR ERE M IEHREK 2 —
i

and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents

at end of the year

47(b)

consolidated financial statements.

(7,229,866) 1,700,476
16,501,531 14,773,931
33,459 27,124
9,305,124 16,501,531

The notes on pages 20 to 228 are an integral part of these
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B FSRR PoE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABREFThzgI7R)

1. —REH

RFRITAERAR ([ARTT]) BEMBERF (5
BIAEE)DERE  BFARPEEHTER
17~ MERITREMAESBRS -

RNIRIT T —RAEBBEMAO SRR - st
REBEFELITE108 R AT SR O 3642 °

KBTI ZHRBRERABDARFCREBRBERAE R
BE—ELETRA]

BB AERN - IR A PR IRER LS E T iz
PR > WER2014F3 A25 HES T2 %

AT RREAMBREAFEN EREHBE
BB AR - BEBEM B FEPRRE B -

2.1 mEEXE

REBEZGEVBERRZRELSAMAE(EH
BEFEAE]) EM 2 BB BHRE LA (TEH
BMBmEER | REEABENERNEE
MmEEL - BEGFER (TSR ]) AR
HREZRRE) BALERMZEARAIRE
BRRNEGI MRS -

ERAMBRRDBIBEELKATRERE - A
I (BRKEDE)  JHEECZSREE
ARFEEH 2 ER R EWFIR - FIEEE RS
ZERMEERERMBBEMEEARFEFEAE
gt A BENeREERERBB(BEITE
TR)ZEBAEHAR - WA FETIRR -

REFRITAERAR | 2013FF

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) provide retail banking, commercial banking and related
financial services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s Republic of
China.

The Bank is a financial institution incorporated in Hong Kong. The
address of its registered office is 36th Floor, Dah Sing Financial
Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The ultimate holding company is Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited,
a listed company in Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 25 March 2014.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
properties (including investment properties), available-for-sale
financial assets, fair value-hedged loans and receivables, financial
assets and financial liabilities held for trading, and financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) designated at fair
value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.



(LABREFThzgI7R)

2. FEEHBEBEm@

2.1 wEEXE@m)

REN BBV BRELN M BHRACHE
TEEZEHE NEAEEECEAANEEE
SRR ZBETELHE - RAZKRREBREZE
MIE BRI EHERHBR M BERREKEAT
- -EEEREARENBRFEBRERAKE
ZHBmER NP2 H BB BN R R o 5
RSB D REE 2 I - R M ER
FHEBRZBRRAEET - TIRKTE4 P HE -

(FF) FEEEXERFTBRZARE

FA AEBEERTERBZETHE -
RESF HEVERPAEI 2L RELE
AR RZ R 5 2 (A8 0 & L3 KISy
MESBMNERE AMBREREHEE
BRI MR A HERRF T EIR

EZRITISER RS ZERBRIT R EHTN
ZBEBER  AEEREH2013F1H1H
REETERESHEERBFELKANEE
ESERE - AEBEWEBHEAL SR
BURZ B o

RAEZ SRR EER  AEEEE
BEEEHERIE8HF(EABR - Sl
AHRERZBEIIBZRE o BT HMR
ESN BAGFERFRAT - HEW
BEAVEER—EREERAMAE
MBife HZAR B B i 2 #ERIRIA B S5 %E
A2 BRI MAFR ST ERREE - ZK
BUBAERALEEKERENERERE
IR E - At FERAIER LR Z F iR
o MBRAXRESROTE - et s
REZHEBER - RRDZERBEBIBE N
ARR  AEEREZSITHRZEET
B UNEBRBSTEUF8H

P

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions
may have a significant impact on the financial statements in the
period the assumptions changed. Management believes that the
underlying assumptions are appropriate and that the Group’s financial
statements therefore present the financial position and results fairly.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(@) Change in accounting policy elected by the Group

During the year, the Group has elected to change its accounting
policy in respect of premises. In the past, leasehold properties
comprising land and buildings held on which a reliable estimate
was not available on the split of the carrying value attributable
to each of the land and building elements were accounted
for as finance leases and shown at fair value less subsequent
depreciation.

In view of market developments, and a review of the relevant
accounting policy adopted by peer banks in Hong Kong, the
Group has decided to change from revaluation to historical cost
based accounting for its premises with effect from 1 January
2013. The Group has also applied this change in accounting
policy retrospectively.

In assessing this change in accounting policy, the Group has
considered the requirements set out in HKAS 8 “Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”.
HKAS 8 specifies that, amongst other things, for an entity to
justify a change in accounting policy that is not mandatorily
required by a new accounting standard or amendment to an
existing accounting standard issued by the HKICPA, the entity
must demonstrate that the change will result in the financial
statements providing reliable and more relevant information
about the effects of transactions, other events or conditions
on the entity’s financial position, financial performance or cash
flows. The Group is satisfied that this change in accounting
policy is justified by the relevant circumstances and therefore
complies with HKAS 8.
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B B sk P o
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. FESTHEHEHE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

21 mEEXE @) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(FF) XEFEHNSH KR AE (&) (@ Change in accounting policy elected by the Group
(Continued)

""""" B RS MBI R RS W AR A The effect of the change on the relevant items in the
EE’EIEHZ%; TSR consolidated statement of financial position and the

consolidated income statement is shown below:

AT 2R
As previously KE SE
reported As restated Change
e MBI R Consolidated statement of
financial position
201341 H1H As at 1 January 2013
1TEE Premises 2,818,955 1,004,418 (1,814,537)
TEEHREE Premises revaluation reserve 1,619,476 42,998  (1,576,478)
20131 HA1H Retained earnings as at
2 IREB BT 1 January 2013 9,519,136 9,473,341 (45,795)
EETIAE = Deferred income tax assets 12,253 18,876 6,623
RAETIE A & Deferred income tax liabilities 189,575 3,934 (185,641)
20121 H1H As at 1 January 2012
1 Premises 2,142,793 915,196  (1,227,597)
TEEMARRE Premises revaluation reserve 1,109,496 42,998  (1,066,498)
20121 H1H Retained earnings as at
ZAREBRAF 1 January 2012 8,266,939 8,237,586 (29,353)
FEEF T & 2 Deferred income tax assets 51,984 183,730 131,746
fra W iR Consolidated income statement
HZE2012F12 A For the year ended 31 December 2012
31HIEFE
e Depreciation 150,391 99,322 (51,069)
IR Taxation 150,944 155,098 4,154
MAEER 2013412 31 B 2B AR In respect of the Group’s financial position as at, and results
RHZE2013F 12 831 BIEFEZ¥EM for the year ended, 31 December 2013, the impact from this
T RS TBREE R EAROINES change in accounting policy is a reduction of depreciation charge
1 66,736,000%8 JT M 3 hn & & 7% 18 7 by HK$66,736,000 and an increase in deferred tax charge of
8,532,000/8 7T ° HK$8,532,000.
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2. FEEHBEBEm@

2.1 wEEXE@m)
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P E

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentations of Financial
Statements”

Amendments to HKAS 1, “Presentations of Financial
Statements”, regarding other comprehensive income (“OCI”),
require entities to aggregate items presented in OCI on the basis
of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss
subsequently (reclassification adjustments). The amendments
do not address which items are presented in OCI. The
amendments do not have any material impact on the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 “Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities”

Amendments to HKFRS 7, “Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities”, issued in December 2011
requires disclosures about the effect or potential effects of
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities and related
arrangements on an entity’s financial position. There is no
material impact to the financial statements of the Group as a
result of this amendment.

HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements”

HKFRS 10, “Consolidated financial statements”, builds on
existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the
determining factor in whether an entity should be included
within the consolidated financial statements of the parent
company. The standard provides additional guidance to assist
in the determination of control where this is difficult to assess. It
has been assessed that there is no change in the consolidation
status of entities within the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
2. FESTHEHEHE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
21 mEEXE @) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(Z) REERR T RASIEETER (4) (b) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)
BB RE LR ZE 11 55 A Has ) HKFRS 11 “Joint arrangements”
BB EEDNE 11 5B E HZE ) E HKFRS 11, “Joint arrangements”, establishes principles for
EmRZ S REMERENRA - B financial reporting by parties to a joint arrangement, and
EXREBEHBET AR EREBIBET requires a party to a joint arrangement to determine the type
P2 I H) R 1| B 25 75 4F B 5T A T 7 56 1hh of joint arrangement in which it is involved by assessing its
ZHER o It AERE Sk K [F &8 AR EE A rights and obligations arising from the arrangement. The
RNETEE - BE WARZHEZH Eﬂ% standard requires a joint operator to recognise and measure
B REEER R EER B the assets and liabilities (and recognise the related revenues
EZEBEENBRE LA&%F%ZH&U\&&M and expenses) in relation to its interest in the arrangement in
MIEEEKRBERAREERE ST accordance with relevant HKFRSs applicable to the particular
Fo8G(HE NI R EECERE IR assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. It requires a joint
5% BEFAREBEBR BT ER|FE 28 venturer to recognise an investment and to account for that
SRR AR LR E R E - AR investment using the equity method in accordance with HKAS
SRS ARIER S AR Rt 28, “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”, unless
FHEHIEE 2R E  ZERSAREE 7B the entity is exempted from applying the equity method as
TERRWELE o specified in that standard. There is no impact to the financial

statements of the Group as a result of this standard as the
Group has adopted equity method of accounting to account for
the investments in associate and jointly controlled entities.

BAENIEIREAELF125FCH EM TR 2 # HKFRS 12 “Disclosures of interests in other entities”

T Z B )

BB HREERF125FRCHE M TR 2 #E HKFRS 12, “Disclosures of interests in other entities”, includes

WZWE)BEHEM TS SERERAE the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other

BREK BEBEAWHE  BeEAR %m entities, including joint arrangements, associates, special
BEHNEERHMWEEREERINZEE - purpose vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles. There is

AREBVERGAZEBIEETSE aZ/ﬂ%,ﬁIJ no impact to the financial statements of the Group as the Group

HAREE 2 BRI w2 has no unconsolidated structured entities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
2. FESTHEHEHE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

21 mEEXE @) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(Z) REERR T RASIEETER (4) (b) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

BEUIEIRE AL FE 135 A FEAN =) HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”
BB HHREEE13FCRFETENR HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”, aims to improve
HAFEBENTESE  UREAFEd= consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise
BE-—RREBEENER  EEREEE definition of fair value and a single source of fair value
B BB EREELH — B R D EE measurement and disclosure requirements for use across
FEME o WERIERIWARIBEBRAFEG 2 HKFRSs. The requirements do not extend the use of fair value
A BERREBMBREEI AN 2 B accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied
EAIE ERK A TEARATEEIRMHES - where its use is already required or permitted by other standards
RIS ANEE 7 B SRR WS K2 o within HKFRSs. There is no material impact to the financial

statements of the Group as a result of this standard.

7R20134F1 A1 BB ZHRERRE Hit There are no other new standards and amendments to
AR RS RT R B R ERK standards effective for the first time for the financial year

beginning 1 January 2013.

(A) UTABEREMER2013F 151 HE (c) The following new standards, new interpretations and
152 B FEIARLINZ FTER - #7 amendments to standards and interpretations have been
PEE  ERIRBEZIEAT - issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning

1 January 2013:

BEAgERERF(LHECHMEERE Amendments to HKAS 32 “Offsetting Financial Assets and
BIZMERT Financial Liabilities”

AEAgERERF(LHECHMEERE Amendments to HKAS 32, “Offsetting Financial Assets and
BEYZIEETN 201155 12 A - EEEY Financial Liabilities”, issued in December 2011 clarified the
HEMTAVHERGERBERESS requirements for offsetting financial instruments and addressed
FTERISFE2F( SR T A — 27)E %R inconsistencies in current practice when applying the offsetting
B2 T o ZIER] E2014F1 A1 HEE criteria in HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation”. The
BRR FEHBREN - EINAREHK amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
MRVBRBMER - ZIEFTHAEE 28 after 1 January 2014 with early adoption permitted and are
MR EERNTLE - required to be applied retrospectively. There is no material

impact to the financial statements of the Group as a result of this
amendment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAEREFThzgI7R)

2.1

REFRITAERAR | 2013FF
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) The following new standards, new interpretations and
amendments to standards and interpretations have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning
1 January 2013: (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets — Recoverable
amount disclosures for non-financial assets”

Amendments to HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets — Recoverable
amount disclosures for non-financial assets”, removed certain
disclosures of the recoverable amount of cash generating units
which had been included in HKAS 36 by the issue of HKFRS 13.
The amendment is not mandatory for the Group until 1 January
2014. There is no material impact to the financial statements of
the Group as a result of this amendment.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”, addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities and hedge accounting. HKFRS 9 was issued in
November 2009 and November 2010. It replaces the parts of
HKAS 39 that relate to the classification and measurement
of financial instruments. HKFRS 9 requires financial assets
to be classified into two measurement categories: those
measured at fair value and those measured at amortised
cost. The determination is made at initial recognition. The
classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow

characteristics of the instrument.

For financial liabilities, the standard retains most of the HKAS
39 requirements. The main change is that, in cases where the
fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair
value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in
other comprehensive income rather than the income statement,
unless this creates an accounting mismatch. In December 2013,
HKFRS 9 was further amended when the requirements related
to hedge accounting (other than specific accounting for open
portfolios on macro hedging) were added.



B RS R R ML
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
2. FESTHEHEHE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
21 wmEE%E @) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(A) UTHBEFEMER2013F 1A 1HFH (c) The following new standards, new interpretations and
162 B FEAIAR LR FTER %7 amendments to standards and interpretations have been
2R CEAIRZEZA(EET | (8) issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning

1 January 2013: (Continued)

AREBECHBTEESTE  EEHER The Group has already commenced the assessment of the
BT e HE $%Zi&ﬁ7ﬁ5‘ﬂkﬁ&)5§ full impact to the Group but expect the adoption will not have
REE o material impact on its result of operations and financial position.
AR (AR BHREREZER) F215% HK(IFRIC) 21 “Levies”
(EE)
AR (BRI BREREZEG)E21 ?F(%Z HK(IFRIC) 21, “Levies”, sets out the accounting for an obligation
B HAEBIERBENHEREZN e to pay a levy that is not income tax. The interpretation addresses
BRIE - Z Rl E F S35 %ﬁl what the obligating event is that gives rise to pay a levy and
BN RMAKERRABE ANEEBRFIL when should a liability be recognised. The Group is not currently
EEABERE  WEHAEBTESRY subject to significant levies so the impact on the Group is not
2o material.
BB EMANRAER 2 BB MR EZERIK There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC) interpretations that
B (BRI BREREEER) 2B are not yet effective that would be expected to have a material
BEHAEBEEATE impact on the Group.
2.2 ZJEMBEHE 2.2 Consolidation
BEMBRREERARITREMEMBRARTEE The consolidated financial statements include the financial
12 A 31 B L Z %k - statements of the Bank and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
December.
(F) HELA] (a)  Subsidiaries
MEARRASE A 2t 2 B (BEEHE A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
HERE) AEEREHZERBREEELRSE which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
B35 A2 B % B RS I F ) sk B R X A] & when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
E’\] B3 BHRENFE %ﬂ&ﬁﬁfZ%ﬁ 157 from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
2250 - gzl ¢g$§$y%$% 2E those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
?LW%L\ AMEFRETE - WHZE %‘JTEE%R consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
IEZz AT EiEFEETE - the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(@) Subsidiaries (Continued)

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the statement
of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less allowances for impairment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Bank on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(b)  Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity holders of the company. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit
or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s investments in associates include goodwill (net of any
accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates.

I DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2013

28



30

1 ¥

BRI
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(c) Associates (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the
income statement.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, the investments
in associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for by the Bank
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

(d)  Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is
subject to joint control and none of the participating parties has
unilateral control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share
of the results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and
the consolidated statement of financial position includes the
Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all instruments measured at amortised cost, available-for-sale
securities and certain financial assets/liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit
losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Loan syndication fees are
recognised as revenue when the syndication has been completed and
the Group retained no part of the loan package for itself or retained
a part at the same effective interest rate as the other participants.
Wealth management, financial planning and custody services that are
continuously provided over an extended period of time are recognised
rateably over the period the service is provided.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
2. FESTHEHEHE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

25 BREWA 2.5 Dividend income

A BB 78 B2 1B A BR AT 3R o2 R ) e S By 1 i e R Dividends are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s
R o right to receive payment is established.

26 THREE 2.6 Financial assets

26.1 7% 2.6.1 Classification

AEBBESRMEERANUNTER : LAFEST The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

SRHEEH T ABENESREE  ERREUGK financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and

B BRI ERAHEESMEE - 2088 receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale

BURMBAZKREZER - RINERERAEER financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for

BEENNTEZEEEERIELENEFH DL - which the investments were acquired. Management determines

ZESEREERBELRERFHER - the classification of its investments at initial recognition, except for

subsequent reclassification meeting specified definition of relevant
asset reclassification.

() URFEFEAREBF;ABZNS (a)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
FEE
RIS AR/NVE : BIEEERSEZ This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
SRHEERNRBEAREEUATLEER trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
HEEBT A BRNEREE ° at inception.
WETBAZ CRMEETERIERHEERER A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is acquired
RN MEBEEENREBARNLIETE @ B principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so
HAKEEERS - MTETAKRIEETEE designated by management. Derivatives are also categorised as
AR AR  BRIMBEEAZEES AR - held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
REBBRFTE N ZIEHER - RUIARE The Group designates a financial asset upon initial recognition
REETCEREERAEEUNATFEFER as designated at fair value through profit or loss (fair value
HEshst AB2E (AATFETIERRE) ¢ option) if the following criteria are met:
()  BEEBREKIREHRIR AR ER = (i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
SERERE - iiERE B M LR T recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
— B ZER(EA [2tEEh ) accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from

measuring assets or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases;
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Classification (Continued)

(@ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

(i) A group of financial assets is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the assets is provided internally to
the key management personnel such as the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive Officer; or

(i)  Financial assets with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are
not closely related to the host contracts.

Financial assets for which the fair value option is applied are
recognised in the statement of financial position as “Financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss”.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market, other than: (a) those that the Group intends to sell
immediately or in the short term, which are classified as held
for trading, and those that the Group upon initial recognition
designates as at fair value through profit or loss; (b) those that
the Group upon initial recognition designates as available-
for-sale; or (c) those for which the Group may not recover
substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of
credit deterioration.

(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. Available-for-sale investments are those
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may
be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest
rates, exchange rates or equity prices.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
2.6.1 Classification (Continued)
(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity.

2.6.2 Reclassification

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial
asset out of the held-for-trading category if the financial asset is no
longer held for the purpose of selling it in the near term. Financial
assets are permitted to be reclassified out of the held-for-trading
category only in rare circumstances arising from a single event that
is unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the near term. In addition,
the Group may choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet
the definition of loans and receivables out of the held-for-trading
or available-for-sale categories if the Group has the intention and
ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity at the date of reclassification. The Group may also reclassify
financial assets that no longer qualify for recognition as loans and
receivables to available-for-sale if the financial assets become quoted
in active market.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date.
Fair value becomes the new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and
no reversals of fair value gains or losses before reclassification date
are subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial assets
reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-maturity categories
are determined at the reclassification date. Further increases
in estimates of cash flows from the financial assets will require

adjustment to the effective interest rates prospectively.

On reclassification of a financial asset out of the “at fair value through
profit or loss” category, all embedded derivatives are re-assessed
and, if necessary, separately accounted for.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
2.6.3 Recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The bases for the determination of fair value of financial assets are set
out in Note 3.5(a).

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated at fair
value at inception are included directly in the income statement
and are reported as part of “Net trading income”. Interest
income and expense derived from and incurred on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are included under “Net
interest income” in the income statement.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost less any
impairment loss. For loans and receivables that are subject
to fair value hedge arrangements, the hedged elements of the
loans and receivables hedged are carried at fair value.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.6

2.6.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Recognition and measurement (Continued)
(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at
fair value which is the cash given including any transaction
costs. They are measured subsequently at fair value with
gains and losses (except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary assets classified
as available-for-sale) recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity until the financial assets are
derecognised.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
equity is reclassified into the income statement.

Interest is calculated using the effective interest method and
recognised in the income statement. Foreign currency gains and
losses on monetary assets classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in the income statement. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the income statement
under “Other operating income” when the Group’s right to
receive payment is established.

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognised at fair
value including direct and incremental transaction costs and are
measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. They are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows have expired.

Interest is included in the income statement and is reported
as “Net interest income”. If a held-to-maturity investment
is determined to be impaired, the impairment is reported as
a deduction from the carrying value of the investment and
recognised in the separate income statement as impairment

charge on held-to-maturity investments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset

or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is

objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

o Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or
interest;
° Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (for

example, high debt-to-equity ratio, low net income as a
percentage of sales);

. Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

o Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position;
° Deterioration in the value of collateral; and

o Downgrading below investment grade level.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes that asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to
be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. If
a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable

market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and
selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Group’s grading process
that considers asset type, collateral type, overdue status and
other relevant factors). Those characteristics relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by
being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the assets are considered.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group
and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the
period on which the historical loss experience is based and to
remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do
not currently exist.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment
status, or other factors indicative of changes in the probability of
losses in the group and their magnitude). The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss

estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowances for loan impairment. Such loans are written off
after all the necessary procedures have been completed and
the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the
amount of the allowances for loan impairment in the income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in

the income statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.7

2.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(b)  Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered in determining whether the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the income
statement, is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of
a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

(c) Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment
assessment or individually significant and whose terms have
been renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due but
are treated as new loans. In subsequent periods, the asset if
past due again is considered to be and disclosed as past due
loans.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial

liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception and

recognised initially at fair value. The bases for the determination of fair

value of financial liabilities are set out in Note 3.5(a).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

(@)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial liabilities held
for trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or
loss at inception.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It
is carried at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in

fair value are recognised in the income statement.

A financial liability is typically classified as fair value through
profit or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring liabilities or recognising the gains and losses
on them on different bases; or

(i) A group of financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the liabilities is provided internally to
the key management personnel such as the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive Officer; or

(iii)  Financial liabilities with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are
not closely related to the host contracts.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
include the Group’s own debt securities in issue and deposits
received from customers that are embedded with certain
derivatives. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are carried at fair value and any gains and losses
from changes in fair value are recognised under “Net trading
income” in the income statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Financial liabilities (Continued)
(b)  Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
net of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently carried
at amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the other financial liabilities
using the effective interest method.

If the Group purchases its own debt, it is removed from the
statement of financial position, and the difference between
the carrying amount of a liability and the consideration paid is
accounted for as a gain or loss in the income statement.

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. The bases for the determination of fair
value of derivative financial instruments are set out in Note 3.5(a). All
derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as
liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, such
as the conversion option in a convertible bond where it is not settled
by exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of own equity instrument, are treated as separate
derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract
is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement unless the Group chooses to
designate the hybrid contracts at fair value through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value
of recognised assets or liabilities. Hedge accounting is used for
derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(Continued)

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment,
both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective
in offsetting changes in fair values of hedged items.

(@)  Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income
statement under “Net trading income — Net gain/loss arising
from financial instruments subject to fair value hedge”, together
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset that are
attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for
which the effective interest method is used is amortised to
profit or loss over the period to maturity and remains in retained
earnings until the disposal of the hedged item.

(b)  Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in the income statement under
“Net trading income”. For derivatives that are managed in
conjunction with designated financial assets or financial
liabilities, the gains and losses arising from changes in their
fair value are included under “Net trading income — Net gain/
loss arising from financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss”.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

2.11 Sale and repurchase agreements

The liability to counterparties in respect of securities sold subject
to repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to
other banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals,
as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell
(“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks
or customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of
the agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent to
counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchases and
sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income.
The obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading
liability.

2.12 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the statement of financial position
with appropriate amounts of impairment allowances made. In the case
of delinquent loans on which collateral assets have been foreclosed
and repossessed by the Group pursuant to legal arrangements or
court orders, and with the legal title of the assets having been passed
to the Group, such loans are derecognised. The foreclosed assets
held for resale are included in “Other assets”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group of persons that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
and members of the Executive Committee as its chief operating
decision maker.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on
an arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs
being eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly
associated with each segment are included in determining operating
segment performance.

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8, the Group has the following
segments: Personal Banking, Commercial Banking, Treasury,
Overseas Banking and Others.

2.14 Foreign currency translation
(@)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation
currency and the functional and presentation currency of the
Bank and major part of the Group.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the relevant entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are recognised in the income statement.
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All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the income
statement are presented net in the income statement within
the corresponding item. Foreign exchange gains and losses
on other comprehensive income items are presented in the
statement of comprehensive income within the corresponding

item.

In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as available-for-sale,
a distinction is made between translation differences resulting
from changes in amortised cost of the assets and other changes
in the carrying amount of the assets. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the
income statement, and those related to changes in the carrying
amount, except for impairment, are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items,
such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets,
are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c)  Group companies (Continued)

(i)  income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the above processes are
reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.

2.15 Premises and other fixed assets

Premises comprise mainly offices and shops. Leasehold land
classified as finance lease and all other fixed assets are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may
also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying
cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of premises and other
fixed assets.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Premises and other fixed assets (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its
intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Premises Over the shorter of 50 years or

remaining period of lease

—  Furniture, fittings, equipment Over the estimated useful lives
and motor vehicles generally between 3 and 10

years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.18).

Gain and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within “Net
gain/loss on disposal and revaluation of premises and other fixed
assets” in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating lease and
buildings held under finance lease.

Land held under operating lease is classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a
finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in
accordance with the guidance issued by the International Valuation
Standards Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by
external valuers. Investment property that is being redeveloped for
continuing use as investment property, or for which the market has
become less active, continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Investment properties (Continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises
and other fixed assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
income statement.

2.17 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised
separately from goodwill when they are separable or arise from
contractual or other legal rights, and their value can be measured
reliably. They include core deposits, contracts and customer
relationships intangible assets, and trade names. Intangible assets
are stated at cost less amortisation, and/or accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated based on estimated useful life
ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing balance method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicated that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels (cash-generating units) for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s financial statements, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary or associate is also required upon receiving
dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the Bank’s share of
the total comprehensive income of that entity concerned in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of that entity in the
Bank’s statement of financial position exceeds the Bank’s share of
the carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its
consolidated statement of financial position.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
In such case, the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income

within the corresponding item.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Bank and the subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
and that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income tax
losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
these losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to investment properties is measured
according to the tax consequence on the presumption that they are
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-
for-sale investments, which is charged or credited directly to equity,
is also credited or charged directly to equity and is subsequently
recognised in the income statement upon the realisation of relevant
investments.

2.20 Employee benefits
(@  Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by
the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.
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The Group has the choice to pay the intrinsic value of the share
option or to issue new shares to a grantee at the date of exercise
under the share-based compensation plans. The total amount to
be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value according to settlement type.

For cash-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
the fair value of the options granted, with re-measurement at
each reporting period with any change in the cost recognised
in the income statement, with a corresponding credit or
adjustment to the “Liabilities”.

For equity-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
measured and recognised based on the fair value of the equity
options at the grant date, with a corresponding credit to the
“Shared-based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’
funds. The total cost, which is fixed based on the fair value at
the grant date, is charged to income statement in accordance
with the terms of the vesting of the options over time. When
the options are exercised, the holding company will issue new
shares to settle its obligation, and transfer applicable amount
from the “Share-based compensation reserve” to the “Share
premium” account, in addition to the booking of paid-up capital
at par for each new share to be issued upon the exercise of the
option.

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

(d)  Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period are recognised when the Group
has a present or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when: the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

2.22 Leases
(@) Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases, assets
leased out are included in fixed assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position. They are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on a basis consistent with similar owned
fixed assets. Rental income (net of any incentives given to
lessees) is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

(b)  Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included as liabilities. The investment properties acquired under
finance leases are carried at their fair value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Leases (Continued)
(b)  Finance lease (Continued)

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, the amounts
due under the leases, net of unearned finance income, are
recognised as a receivable and are included in “Advances and
other accounts”. Finance income implicit in rentals receivable is
credited to the income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment
outstanding for each accounting period.

2.23 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of
individuals, trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded
from the Group’s financial statements, as they are not assets of the
Group.

2.24 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the
financial statements in the period in which they are approved by
shareholders.

2.25 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity
from the date of acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks
and other financial institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and
certificates of deposit and investment securities which are readily
convertible to cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities, and to other parties in connection with the performance of
customers under obligations related to contracts, advance payments
made by other parties, tenders, retentions and the payment of import
duties.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the amount determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised. Any changes in the liability relating to
financial guarantees are taken to the income statement.

2.27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the

control of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (Continued)

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and
those activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and
management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking
risk is core to the financial business, and operational risks are an
inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group’s aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return
and minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and
up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy
and policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Executive
Committee and the Risk Management and Compliance Committee
(“RMCC”) under the authority delegated by the Board oversee and
guide the management of different risks which are more particularly
managed and dealt with by the Group Risk Division and different
functional committees. In addition, Internal Audit is responsible for the
independent review of risk management and the control environment.

To further enhance the risk governance and risk management
standards, the Board has approved a Risk Strategy framework that
also covers the Group’s Risk Appetite Statement in 2013. The Risk
strategy sets out the core values and high level risk management
direction of the Group, taking account of the overall business strategy
and direction. As for the Risk Appetite Statement, it sets out the
tolerance for the assumption of risk by the Group in the pursuit of
return and key corporate objectives and covers the areas including
target returns to shareholders, earnings volatility, solvency and
other key risk measures. The Group Risk Division is responsible for
the ongoing monitoring of the compliance with the Risk Appetite
Statement and the regular reporting of the status to the RMCC and the
Board.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market
risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risks.

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing and lending these funds in a wide range of
assets. The Group seeks to increase these margins by consolidating
short-term funds and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while
maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its
lending to commercial and retail borrowers and to charge customers
appropriate fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk
and market conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance
sheet loans and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees
and other commitments such as letters of credit, performance and
other bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions
in exchange-traded and over-the-counter instruments, including
derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market movements in
equities and bonds and in currency, interest rate and commodity
prices. The Board places trading limits on the level of exposures
that can be taken in relation to market positions. Apart from specific
hedging arrangements, foreign exchange and interest rate exposures
are normally offset by entering into counterbalancing positions
(including transactions with customers or market counterparties), or
by the use of derivatives, thereby controlling the variability in the net
cash amounts required to liquidate market positions.

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in
interest rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate
assets or increase in the fair value of fixed rate liabilities. Part of
these financial instruments are designated as fair value hedges, and
the terms of hedge including hedged item, amount, interest rates,
hedge period and purpose are determined and documented at the
inception of each fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is assessed
at inception on a prospective basis and is reassessed, on an ongoing
basis, based on actual experience and valuation. Fair value hedge
relationships that do not meet the effectiveness test requirement
of hedge accounting are discontinued with effect from the date of
ineffectiveness of the fair value hedge.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties
may default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,
and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee for approving major credit
exposures. The Credit Management Committee (“CMC”) and the
Treasury & Investment Risk Committee (“TIRC”) are the functional
committees responsible for credit policy formulation and portfolio
monitoring of the loan and treasury businesses respectively. These
committees are all chaired by the Chief Executive with certain
Executive Directors and senior business and credit officers as
members. Credit risk measurement, underwriting, approval and
monitoring requirements are detailed in credit policies.

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis. Credits
are extended within the parameters set out in the credit policies
and are approved by different levels of management based upon
established guidelines and delegated authorities. Credit exposures,
limits and asset quality are regularly monitored and controlled by
management, credit committees and Group Risk Division. The
Group’s internal auditors also conduct regular reviews and audits
to ensure compliance with credit policies and procedures, and
regulatory guidelines.

The Group has established policies and processes for the approval
and review of new products and activities, and credit policies
with details of the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes and
impairment policies.

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement
(@) Loans and advances

In measuring credit risk of loans and advances to customers and
to banks and other financial institutions at a counterparty level,
the Group focuses on three components, namely (i) credit risk
of the client or counterparty; (ii) current exposures to client or
counterparty; and (jii) the amount of impairment allowances.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(@
(i)

(i)

(i)

(®)

Loans and advances (Continued)

The Group assesses the credit quality of corporate clients
using an internal rating tool. It is developed internally and
combines general credit analysis and judgements of credit
officers, and is reviewed, where available, by comparison
with externally available data. The Group’s rating scale
has 13 grades which are segmented into three broad
rating classes as shown in Note 3.2.3. Credit exposures
migrate between credit grades and rating classes as the
assessment of credit quality on the borrower and business
environment changes. The rating tool is kept under review
and upgraded as necessary.

Credit quality of personal clients is assessed using
established criteria in credit policies and external
market data from credit bureau. Loans to individuals not
relating to commercial banking business are monitored
on portfolio basis primarily based on their delinquency
status.

Current exposure represents the actual utilisation of a
credit facility and contractual obligations including both

current exposure and undrawn commitment.

The assessment of individual and collective impairment is
detailed in Note 3.2.3.

Credit-related commitments

Credit related commitments include bank guarantee,

documentary letter of credit, standby letter of credit and

undrawn commitment on legally bound facilities. Their credit

risk is similar to loans except for documentary letters of credit

which are usually short term and self-liquidating and carry a low

level of credit risk and capital charge.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(c) Debt securities and treasury bills

For debt securities and treasury bills, external credit ratings
from international credit rating agencies such as Standard &
Poor’s are used to assist in credit risk assessment on top of
internal credit analysis. These investments help to diversify
risk exposures and income streams, and to maintain a readily
available source of liquidity to the Group.

(d)  Derivatives

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into a variety
of derivative transactions including forwards, futures, swaps
and options transactions in the interest rate, foreign exchange
and equity markets. Derivative transactions are conducted for
both trading and hedging purposes. The Group’s objectives in
using derivative instruments are to meet customers’ needs by
acting as an intermediary, to manage the Group’s exposure to
risks and to generate revenues through trading activities within
acceptable limits.

The Group is exposed to counterparty risk arising from its
positions in derivative financial instruments, which is either
“valuation risk” for the credit risk on receiving mark-to-market
gains upon the default of a counterparty prior to scheduled
settlement, or “settlement risk” for the possibility of not
receiving the expected cash flow of a derivative transaction
upon the expiry of a derivative contract on the settlement date.

The notional amounts of financial instruments do not necessarily
indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current
fair value of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate
the Group’s exposure to credit or price risks. The derivative
instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable
(liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, equity prices and credit market
conditions. The aggregate contractual or notional amount of
derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to which
instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus the
aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities,
can fluctuate significantly from time to time.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(d)  Derivatives (Continued)

The Group maintains strict control limits on net open derivative
positions (i.e., the difference between purchase and sale
contracts), by both amount and term. At any one time, the
amount subject to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments that are favourable to the Group (i.e., assets where
their fair values are positive), which in relation to derivatives is
only a small fraction of the contract, or notional values used to
express the volume of instruments outstanding.

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group has an established framework to manage and control
concentrations risk with respect to individual borrower or
counterparty group, industry or country. Exposure limits by borrower
or counterparty group, industry or country are in place and their
exposures are monitored and reported to credit committees regularly.

The large exposure limits to borrower or counterparty groups are
capital based while the limits for industry are relative to the size of the
overall credit portfolio. Country limits are also set up with reference to
the sovereign credit rating from international credit rating agencies. All
these limits aim to achieve a more balanced portfolio.

To mitigate credit risk and where appropriate, the Group will obtain
collateral to support the credit facility granted. To control credit risk
exposure to counterparty arising from derivative positions, the Group
limits its derivative dealings with approved financial institutions, and
uses established market practices on credit support and collateral
settlement to reduce credit risk exposure to derivative counterparties.
Overall credit risk limit for individual financial institution counterparty,
including valuation limit for derivatives, is approved by the Group
Credit Committee with reference to the financial strength and
credit rating of individual counterparty. The acceptable types of
collateral and their characteristics are established within the credit
policies, as are the respective margins of finance. Enforceable legal
documentation establishes the Group’s direct, irrevocable and
unconditional recourse to any collateral, security or other credit
enhancements provided.
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(LABEEF Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMKEERERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 FERE @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

322 S B RSB 2 B (&) 3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

A ESEBUEM A AR EERE & In relation to lending commitments that are unconditionally
EBERANCEEREEE  AEEBFTERERE cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the
BRENTEMN - Bt EREW TN EAREBE necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality
REXEERE - of a borrower deteriorates. Accordingly, these commitments do not

expose the Group to significant credit risk.

FTBEERTE  EmaSKEUEHS  HFEUAR Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are
EEHXGEHFHEELRE BEeREsEBIRE based upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile, cashflow
BIREES ° position and ability to repay.
(FF) B K% (a) Loans and advances
NEBHSEEHEBEERESTBEERE The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific
ARBFROAIZEREIES - TE2HF M classes of collateral for securing loans and advances. The
BRI principal collateral types are:
. IR . Mortgages over properties;
° BHEGEEVNRE FELEW 3 Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory
A and accounts receivable;

o EHem T ANEREFMRE : & o Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities
and equities; and

. HEIRTFR © e Charges over deposits.

AN BAREBERESEBEERAGRZE In addition, in order to minimise credit loss, the Group will,
REREBRALIERETZE  €EEH where possible, seek additional collateral from the borrower as
ESRHIRHEEIMNER RUREEERX - soon as impairment indicators are noticed on relevant individual

loans and advances.

(Z2) EFES (b) Debt securities

BREYemITEAASIEAEERERZEE Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured,
WHEASLREIAEN  B5E5REE with the exception of asset-backed securities and similar
BHERAERMT - instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial

instruments or underlying assets.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

(c) Derivatives

Since all counterparties for derivatives trading are financial
institutions, the risk is managed as part of the credit risk control
and monitoring process in respect of financial institutions
including credit controls such as setting individual limit for
valuation risk, daily settlement limits and performing periodic
credit assessment for individual counterparty. Moreover, the
Group requires all derivative contract counterparties to enter
into International Swaps and Derivatives Association (“ISDA”)
Agreement in order to follow the standardised market practice
of close-out netting arrangement in the event of default or early
termination.

Collateral arrangements with selected counterparties are also
in place to limit our unsecured derivative exposures to these
counterparties.

3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies

Impairment allowances are recognised for loans, securities and

derivative exposures which have objective evidence of impairment at

the end of the reporting period for financial reporting purposes (see
Note 2.7).

In determining whether objective evidence of impairment exists under

HKAS 39, the following criteria are assessed:

Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;
Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (e.g. equity to
debt ratio, net income percentage of sales);

Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;

Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position; and
Deterioration in the value of collateral.
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 FERE @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

323 HEREBEBE &) 3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)
REB/BRERERLEE—NX  KERENBR The Group’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets
FEZREENRREEMARIERMEE - that are above pre-set thresholds at least annually or more regularly
P76 (B Rl 82 K AR P 2 18] IR (B 28 5 T 3 M8 I B when individual circumstances warrant. Individual impairment
THEERRERR SR ZBRMEE - FHEEE allowances on all individually significant accounts are determined by
BEnZERNESAE KR (BIEEHER an evaluation of the incurred loss at the end of the reporting period
WHATS T RFEst Uk AR EH 3 5 38 g on a case-by-case basis. The assessment normally encompasses
7 e collateral held (including re-confirmation of its enforceability) and

the anticipated receipts from liquidating collaterals for that individual

account.
RETEREEERS () ENEREEMKFE R Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for:
BEEMAS  R(i)ERFHEEREERNREZE (i) portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below
EfEL © materiality thresholds; and (i) assets that are individually assessed but

do not have individual impairment.

TRABIIRAEEEEBERANERLEALS The table below shows the percentage of the Group’s on-balance
BEZARTRARN B ELAREEEGER sheet items relating to loans and advances and the associated
A R ANZ BB EES (ARG eSS ) B impairment allowances (both individually and collectively assessed)
BEX - covering on- and off-balance sheet amounts for each of the three

broad internal rating classes.

2013 2012
WEERE B
I ERERE (==
Bak Aot
Impairment Impairment

BR R allowance ERKEEF allowance

Ao as a % of Btk as a % of
Loans and loan Loans and loan
58 Group advances balance advances balance
% % % %

451 Class
1—1ES 1 - pass 99.2 0.2 99.2 0.1
2—R5RIEEE 2 — special mention 0.2 6.5 0.3 5.7
3— IR IAT 3 - sub-standard or below 0.6 44.6 0.5 25.0

100.0 100.0
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3. WXEERERE @)
3.2 SER@m
323 HEBREERR &)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

2013 2012
B BIEZER
IHERERE BB T
BoL Ak
Impairment Impairment
BERRBH  allowance EHEEFH  allowance
Ao as a % of Bk as a % of
Loans and loan Loans and loan
$RAT Bank advances balance advances balance
% % % %
48571 Class
1—1E% 1 - pass 99.4 0.1 99.5 0.1
2—RRIEEE 2 — special mention 0.1 11.4 0.1 11.0
— RBHLAT 3 - sub-standard or below 0.5 32.6 0.4 23.2

ERARBZBERITER ZEEFD
MR

D& RBEAE

F1AMNER] B2 AEERNNERTRF LD
ZEIEFIR  KRREFXABRFNRENREE
AZ2BNEMNEMERRE ZBENAL T ERE ©

F245 [FhEE] B8~ RBEABERFER
P ZE10R  RRERALERRER - KT

‘ﬁ BHEERRERL AT AREREIE
EBK -
E3MER [IRETIAT | B2 RNEEARE R R

EBPRZENEFIIH - KREFALREAR
REERMEZRE T2 8UKRm A AEE
KRERHGLEERZBRMmAFER - BEA
EREAER/FFEBRZER - XRFZERK
RREZMABE T RIEAEHERAEARD -

REFRITAERAR | 20135F F

100.0 100.0

As far as the commercial banking business of the Group is concerned,
the credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Class 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal loan
grading system, represents loans for which borrowers are current in
meeting commitments and for which the full repayment of interest and
principal is not in doubt.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which borrowers
are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to credit losses to the
Group if the deterioration in loan quality cannot be contained.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13
of the Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans in
which borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is likely
to jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable and the
Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking
into account the fair value of collateral less cost to sell; or loans that
are considered uncollectible after all collection options have been
exhausted.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEERERE @) 3.
3.2 SER@m
324 R AHEZHAHATREMESEIES

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held

FIZREEERREE or other credit enhancements
£E RAT
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
FHEEERRNEEL Credit risk exposures relating to
EERBRENT : on-balance sheet assets are as follows:
B e RERITHER Cash and balances with banks 8,270,012 13,472,376 6,277,902 10,026,938
FERITHFFR Placements with banks 4,101,293 3,990,627 4,067,212 3,697,744
REETR®RNES Trading securities 6,335,788 5,797,742 6,335,788 5,797,742
EENATFEFEEHEE Financial assets designated at fair
FTABENSREE value through profit or loss 4,248 23,525 - 21,743
ITESRTA Derivative financial instruments 687,069 643,246 710,805 671,941
EPEFREBT Loans and advances to customers
BAER Loans to individuals
—EAR - Credit cards 4,162,473 4,425,525 3,956,449 4,246,084
—RIBEN - Mortgages 27,122,139 23,749,843 22,137,902 19,737,100
—Hfb - Others 6,674,529 5,422,366 5,708,366 4,589,844
TEER Loans to corporate entities
—BHER - Term loans 27,590,155 24,257,026 22,039,535 19,816,001
—RBER - Mortgages 13,148,257 11,876,133 10,584,833 10,029,414
-BomE - Trade finance 6,911,081 5,360,541 5,918,454 5,024,007
—Hfb - Others 12,377,528 11,090,926 11,028,919 9,743,909
BHRE Trade bills 5,925,648 4,329,872 6,271,548 4,323,710
HitBE Other assets 3,673,803 3,816,653 1,680,146 2,527,956
BIEEER R ENGIEER Investments in securities included in
LEHFRE the loans and receivables category 1,137,631 3,398,020 908,239 3,165,438
Al EE S Available-for-sale securities
—EBES - Debt securities 26,851,790 21,586,984 26,851,790 21,586,984
BEIEES Held-to-maturity securities 5,669,289 7,047,540 3,017,495 5,174,189
160,642,733 150,289,445 137,495,383 130,180,744
BHEEARRIIERZ Credit risk exposures relating to
EERBENT off-balance sheet items are as follows:
IBERREMEERR Financial guarantees and other credit
SRAE related contingent liabilities 2,795,495 2,744,878 742,107 807,082
SEERAMEERR Loan commitments and other credit
I related commitments 67,734,378 59,987,212 63,540,736 56,046,658
70,529,873 62,732,090 64,282,843 56,853,740
12 A31H At 31 December 231,172,606 213,021,535 201,778,226 187,034,484
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o  EBRIRBFMEET 8% A EEF
JRME (2012 4F : 98%)

s AKEERARITZERKLGEREZEF
ERRBFEEFERRBREEI A
0.40% (2012 4F : 0.35%) }.0.25% (2012
F:0.15%) &

. EBHLRHMELHZEFR75% (20124 ¢
71%) D EA- EEARR
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

The above table represents a worse case scenario of credit risk
exposure for the Group and the Bank at 31 December 2013 and
2012, without taking into account of any collateral held or other credit
enhancements attached.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets recognised
on the statement of assets and liabilities is the carrying amount.
For contingent liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
maximum amount the Group would have to pay if the instrument is
called upon. For undrawn facilities, the maximum exposure to credit
risk is the full amount of the undrawn credit facilities granted to

customers.

The Group’s exposures to credit risk, measured using the expected
gross credit exposures that will arise upon a default of the end obligor,
are shown in the disclosures required under the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules.

The results of credit performance of the Group can be further
assessed with reference to the following:

. 6% of the loans and advances portfolio are categorised in the
top grade of the internal rating system (2012: 7%);

° Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
portfolio, are backed by collateral;

° 98% of the loans and advances portfolio are considered to be
neither past due nor individually impaired (2012: 98%);

o Loans and advances to customers that are either individually

or collectively impaired constituted 0.40% (2012: 0.35%)

and 0.25% (2012: 0.15%) of the total loans and advances to

customers of the Group and the Bank respectively; and

75% (2012: 71%) of the investments in debt securities and other

bills have at least an A- credit rating.
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

3. UHEEEE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 SER@m
325 BEFREB5

ERREBFEAAT

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances

Loans and advances to customers are summarised as follows:

£H Group 2013 2012
fm e B % (8 R DR E Neither past due nor individually

impaired 96,249,076 84,555,803
8 BB R E R R E Past due but not individually

impaired 1,356,146 1,343,765
B RRE Individually impaired 380,940 283,292
ke Gross 97,986,162 86,182,860
B B Less: allowance for impairment (442,026) (258,442)
HER Net 97,544,136 85,924,418
$R1T Bank 2013 2012
g A N e R DsE Neither past due nor individually

impaired 80,010,141 71,891,661
B HR (B R (E R R E Past due but not individually

impaired 1,172,164 1,193,774
&R E Individually impaired 192,153 100,924
ek Gross 81,374,458 73,186,359
B ORELER Less: allowance for impairment (210,196) (129,729)
R Net 81,164,262 73,056,630
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325 B R 4
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

Loans and advances to customers are summarised as follows:

(Continued)
£ Group 2013 2012
REERREK Impaired loans and advances
—{ERIEE (G (FR)) — Individually impaired (Note (a)) 380,940 283,292
—RAERE(GE(2)) — Collectively impaired (Note (b)) 15,355 16,251
396,295 299,543
B Impairment allowances made
—ERIFE (F(R)) — Individually assessed (Note (c)) (244,294) (90,726)
—kraaHE (FE(2)) - Collectively assessed (Note (b)) (13,838) (14,948)
(258,132) (105,674)
138,163 193,869
BHEEERATE" Fair value of collaterals held * 92,205 221,109
BREEREBRETEFER Impaired loans and advances as a % of
RBFBE AN total loans and advances to customers 0.40% 0.35%
BT Bank 2013 2012
BEERREAK Impaired loans and advances
—{ERIEE (G (FR)) — Individually impaired (Note (a)) 192,153 100,924
—RARME(G(2)) — Collectively impaired (Note (b)) 11,048 12,052
203,201 112,976
AL Impairment allowances made
—@RIEHE (FE(R)) — Individually assessed (Note(c)) (110,549) (42,544)
—REHE (GE(2)) - Collectively assessed (Note (b)) (11,048) (12,052)
(121,597) (54,596)
81,604 58,380
FAEERRATE" Fair value of collaterals held * 77,727 50,515
BEERRBREEFER Impaired loans and advances as a % of
hEgBEs ANl total loans and advances to customers 0.25% 0.15%

* B R A FETDRBERRTERER
# MEPREEEE

AFRITARAR | 20134 |

*

collateral and outstanding loan balance.

Fair value of collateral is determined as the lower of the market value of
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

3. HBEBRERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 FERE @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

325 B KRB (&) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

(2 Note:

() ERREERZEBVIRAERAEERRET (@)  Individually impaired loans are defined as those loans having objective

— R EREREERENTERERSER ([1BX
=D WER - MZBEREFEZER R
RREREBEKTE WA SFHMEE

(2) HFRMERRRBIIEZE NGRS EEERER
HEVEER RN E2HRE B SR ERBBHIORZ
ERRBR - ZER D25 2 REETRERE R
BEEFTERGAREERN—ED °

(A) ALERREEREZRBEBERN2A318E
Z B AmEE -

REBRARITZERRBRZ B EEFERESD
7l 442,026,000 70 (2012 4 : 258,442,000 7%
JT) % 210,196,000 7% 7T (2012 4F : 129,729,000
BIL) BREERNREERZEED A
244,294,000 7T, (2012 £F : 90,726,000 77T ) &
110,549,000/8 70 (2012 4 : 42,544,000/57C) &
HIRGAEETENERZBBEGEAEED BB
197,732,000 7% 7t (2012 4 : 167,716,000 7% 7T )
%299,647,0005%8 7T (20124 : 87,185,000/87T) °
M5 IRBE L ARFER R AR R EMER B /E
2R EEREE R o

evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated cash flows of the loans that can be
reliably estimated.

Collectively impaired loans and advances refer to those unsecured loans
and advances assessed for impairment on a collective basis and which
have become overdue for more than 90 days as at the reporting date.
The collective impairment allowance for these impaired loans, which is a
part of the overall collective impairment allowances, is shown above.

The above individual impairment allowances were made after taking into
account the value of collaterals in respect of such advances as at 31
December.

The total impairment allowance for loans and advances of the
Group and the Bank is HK$442,026,000 (2012: HK$258,442,000)
and HK$210,196,000 (2012: HK$129,729,000) respectively,
comprising an allowance of HK$244,294,000 (2012: HK$90,726,000)
and HK$110,549,000 (2012: HK$42,544,000) respectively for the
individually impaired loans and the overall collective impairment
allowances of HK$ 197,732,000 (2012: HK$167,716,000) and
HK$99,647,000 (2012: HK$87,185,000) respectively provided on
loans assessed on a collective basis. Further information on the

impairment allowances maintained for each of loans and advances to

customers, and other accounts is provided in Note 25.
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(LABEEF Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HMKEERERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FERE @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BEF KRB &) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
() A RAEELRES B R EHN (@ Loans and advances neither past due nor individually
impaired
ERNBREAR EEEEAERIERE The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that
& BB E T — AR BRI 52 8.2.3 38 A3 K were neither past due nor individually impaired is normally
EHVERE - assessed based on the three broad gradings mentioned in Note
3.2.8.
A (ZERF) ¥ EFERR
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities BRER
ERE 5% Total loans
£F Group Credit  REER A BHER  EBER Trade Eft and advances
013F12A31A At 31 December 2013 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  to customers
ik Class:
1-I% 1-pass 4,108,044 26,739,025 6558120 27,450,103 12,993,489 6,707,415 11,677,906 96,234,102
2-HREE 2 - special mention - - - - 11,319 - 978 12,297
3-REHT 3 - sub-standard or below - 321 585 - 1,222 - 549 2,677
A Total 4108044 26,739,346 6,558,705 27,450,103 13,006,030 6,707,415 11,679,433 96,249,076
A (ZEZR) &% RPEHR
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities B
i 2584 Total loans
£8 Group Credit  %BEH e BHER  EBER Trade Eff and advances
2012124318 At 31 December 2012 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others to customers
ik Class:
1-I% 1 - pass 4,366,370 23,404,414 5334977 24210841 11,664,174 5285287 10,264,912 84,530,975
2-KAlEE 2 - special mention - - - - 18,076 1,338 3,349 22,763
3-RBFUAT 3 - sub-standard or below - 344 195 - 1,526 - - 2,065
A Total 4366370 23,404,758 5335172 24210841 11,683,776 5286625 10268261 84,555,803
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HMKEERERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 FERE @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 EF KRB &) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
() @B R AN S R B2 B3R B (@ Loans and advances neither past due nor individually
(%) impaired (Continued)
fiA(BEEF) % EFEXR
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities EE e
ER+ 5% Total loans
#i Bank Credit  RBEX Bt  BHER  REER Trade £ty and advances
2013%12R31A At 31 December 2013 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  to customers
a5 Class:
1-IE% 1 - pass 3,915,963 21,883,584 5,621,176 22,014,646 10,460,309 5770777 10,329,297 79,995,752
2-BRE: 2 - special mention - - - - 11,319 - 978 1297
3-REFUT 3 - sub-standard or below - 321 - - 1,222 - 549 2,092
At Total 3915063 21,883,905 562,176 22014646 10472850 5770777 10,330,824 80,010,141
[IA(ZEZR) % RPEFR
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities B
5 B5mE Total loans
#1 Bank Credit  1ZEBEH i BHER  REER Trade £t and advances
012512 831A At 31 December 2012 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  to customers
a5 Class:
1-IE% 1 - pass 4200232 19,492,276 4518255 19,794,692 9,830,254 4,960,687 9,070,682 71,867,028
-l 2 - special mention - - - - 18,076 1,338 3,349 22,763
3-RBFUAT 3 - sub-standard or below - 344 - - 1,526 - - 1870
At Total 4200232 19,492,620 4518255 19,794,692 9,849,856 4,962,025 9,073,981 71,891,661
FERARIA TR 2 IRIBEREE B EE Mortgage loans in the sub-standard or below class were
2 BEE T E AARRE assessed as not impaired after taking into consideration the

value and recovery of collaterals.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HXEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 ZEREE@m 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BEFRB (&) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(Z) #EEHERFEZ B REZH (b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired
EA(BEEF) % EFERR
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities 845
=ik EEE Total loans
£ Group Credit — RBEX Mt BHER  REER Trade Ef and advances
20135125318 At 31 December 2013 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  to customers
L ALEEETEN Past due up to 1 month UME 334907 91,050 - 13151 BT 5100 1,147,147
SE1ERNE Past due more than 1 month
23{dA and up to 3 months 10,626 29,526 15,149 - 1,966 14,081 86,729 158,077
BHSEANLE Past due more than 3 months
X and up to 6 months 5,860 320 5,982 - - 523 7,393 20,078
AH6EANLE Past due more than 6 months 3,495 4,842 - - - 223 29,284 30,844
At Total 54,429 369,595 112,181 - 133,480 53,006 633,455 1,356,146
FEERRATE Fair value of collaterals * - 367,188 3,329 - 133,102 10,647 565,914 1,080,180
EA(ZERR) 13 EFEFR
Indlvidual (retail customers) Corporate entities B
Hiiny 2588 Total loans
£8 Group Credit  %IBER i BHER  EBER Trade Eft and advances
20125124318 At 31 December 2012 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance QOthers to customers
BE1EASAT Past due up to 1 month 39,810 300,674 63,283 26,928 177,990 32,961 555,224 1,196,870
PE1EANE Past due more than 1 month
EXLE and up to 3 months 10,950 26,156 15,779 - 4916 12,842 32,463 103,106
#H3EANE Past due more than 3 months
2684 and up to 6 months 5,230 4,816 5,553 - - 85 15,178 30,862
BH6EANE Past due more than 6 months 3,165 541 782 - = 48 8,391 12,927
At Total 59,155 332,187 85,397 26,928 182,906 45,936 611,256 1,343,765
RERRR ATE" Fair value of collaterals * - 331,958 1,480 1,863 182,876 16,107 440,920 975,204
* ER@Z A FEDBREERRRTERER * Fair value of collateral is determined as the lower of the market
REBEH  MEPREEME ° value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEET TThLFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HXEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 ZEREE@m 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BFRB (&) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(Z2) BEEHERFES B REZH (&) (b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired (Continued)
EA(BEEF) % EFERR
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities 845
=ik EEE Total loans
#17 Bank Credit  %BEX Mt BHER  REER Trade Ef and advances
20135125318 At 31 December 2013 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  to customers
#51HAIUT Past due up to 1 month M5 242,406 71,020 - 102957 BAT9 5709 999,162
SE1ERNE Past due more than 1 month
23{dA and up to 3 months 7,886 6,429 10,188 - 1,073 14,081 86,729 126,386
BHSEANLE Past due more than 3 months
X and up to 6 months 5,049 320 5,982 - - 523 7,393 19,267
AH6EANE Past due more than 6 months - 4,842 - - - 223 22,284 27,349
At Total 40,486 253,997 87,190 - 104,030 53,006 633,455 1,172,164
FRERRZATE" Falr valug of collaterals* - 25185 - - 104090 10,647 565,914 932,444
EA(ZERR) 13 EFEFR
Indlvidual (retail customers) Corporate entities B
Hiiay 2588 Total loans
iich) Bank Credit  %IBER i BHER  EBER Trade £H and advances
20125124318 At 31 December 2012 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  to customers
S ERIUT Past due up to 1 month 33,044 234,399 53,614 2,052 167,693 32,961 555,224 1,078,987
PE1EANE Past due more than 1 month
B and up to 3 months 8,612 47124 11,640 - 4916 12,842 32,463 75,197
AH3EANE Past due more than 3 months
Z6fHA and up to 6 months 4,19 4,816 5,553 - - 85 15,178 29,828
BH6MANE Past due more than 6 months - 541 782 - = 48 8,391 9,762
At Total 45,852 244480 71,589 2,052 172,609 45,936 611,256 1,198,774
FERARCATE Fair value of collaterals* - 244,480 740 1,863 172,609 16,107 440,920 876,719
* EHGZ AFEDEEERSIMERLRER * Fair value of collateral is determined as the lower of the market
REELEH  MEPREEME ° value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.
VRTERE R R B R - HEEERZA Upon initial recognition of loans and advances, the associated
FEDKBERENEEEEE 2 BETEM collateral is valued based on valuation techniques for the
E o BEREIME  ZIEFRZAFELZRE particular assets. In subsequent periods, the fair value of such
ThinERKRIEEEREHSMER - collateral is updated by reference to market price or indexes of

similar assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEERERE @) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 SER@m 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BFRB &) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

() 1EFIREZ &P B REH ()

REERARRITARET AREFAHEF S
ZBRenAzElANBEE,ERRB
9 Bl /4380,940,000/% JT (20124 :
283,292,000/8 7T ) 5 192,153,000/% 7T
(20124 : 100,924,000787T) °

Loans and advances to customers individually impaired

The individually impaired loans and advances to customers
of the Group and the Bank before taking into consideration
the cash flows from collateral held is HK$380,940,000
(2012: HK$283,292,000) and HK$ 192,153,000 (2012:
HK$100,924,000) respectively.

18 BB B 3 S Bk 2 4B 8R | AN SR P 5
TEER 2 AR ER G A FEZER DT

The analysis of the gross amount of individually impaired loans
and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related

T collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows:
AEER-
fIA(SEEF) ¥ {ERIHE
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
E5RE allowances -
&8 Group RBER 2 EHEX  REER Trade Eft & individual
2013%12R31A At 31 December 2013 Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total ~ assessment
{ARIRES Individually impaired loans 13,198 3,643 140,052 8,747 150,660 64,640 380,940 244,294
EERARZATE Fair value of collaterals* 13,198 - 8,829 8,318 32,211 29,649 92,205
EER-
{AA(ZERP) % (BRI
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
BaRE allowances -
=B Group RIBER i BHEX  RBER Trade -0 A3t individual
20124124318 At 31 December 2012 Mortgages Others ~ Termloans ~ Mortgages finance Others Total  assessment
{ERIREES Individually impaired loans 12,898 2,207 19,257 9,451 27,980 211,409 283,202 90,726
WRERRZATE" Fair value of collaterals* 12,848 - 1276 9,024 14,963 182,998 201,109
* ERR 2 ATFEDBERERRTHEREER * Fair value of collateral is determined as the lower of the market

RNEEES  MEPREEME -

value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AT TTAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HXEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 ZEREE@m 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BFRB (&) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
() 1EFREZ ZFEHRBL (&) (c) Loans and advances to customers individually impaired
(Continued)
AEER-
fIA(SEEF) ¥ BRI
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
B5E allowances -
AT Bank REER Bt BHEX  REEX Trade Efh &3t individual
20135128318 At 31 December 2013 Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total  assessment
{ERIRE S Individually impaired loans - - 24,889 7953 94,671 64,640 192,153 110,549
FRERRZ ATE" Falr valug of collaterals* - - 8,829 7,538 31,71 29,649 72
EERE-
EA(ZERP) % @RI
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
BoRA allowances -
T Bank fEBE At BEEY  RBEEX Trade Aft A% individual
0124124318 At 31 December 2012 Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total  assessment
{ERIREER Individually impaired loans - - 19,257 6,949 16,046 58,672 100,924 42,544
FERRRATE" Fair value of collaterals* - - 1276 6,535 12,443 30,261 50,515
* EIRGRZ AFEDBEEARTERER * Fair value of collateral is determined as the lower of the market
REBZS  WEFREEME value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 SER@m

325 BHREBS (&)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

/8

REFRITAERAR | 20135F F

(T) #2EI3 187U LEZEH KRB (d)  Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months
)y BwHREEERERE ()  Gross amount of overdue loans
£
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
ngKEE REAER aEAER ARRER
BhaE EnaE BRaE EnaE
Gross 4% Gross e Gross g Gross e
amount of BA  amount of BA%  amount of BAtE  amount of Bnlt
overdue loans % of total overdue loans % of total overdue loans % of total overdue loans % of total
RERRFER (Gross advances to
i Al customers which
have been overdue for:
—3fAANLE - six months or less but
68 A over three months 100,260 0.10 70,549 0.08 67,433 0.08 61,949 0.08
—6EANLE1E - one year or less but
over six months 69,831 0.07 33,986 0.04 21,400 0.03 29,614 0.04
1%L - OVer one year 127,380 0.13 195,040 0.23 75,350 0.09 21,295 0.03
297,411 0.30 299,575 0.35 164,183 0.20 112,858 0.15
(i) BEHREZBERRBRZBEEERR (i)  Value of collateral held and impairment allowances
Pk mE against overdue loans and advances
ERREH kil HERERE-
AMEBHE BhfE ERq ERq A& fBIRI 44
Outstanding Current  FrA®HG ReEAEFH BRABEE  Impairment
amount of market Portion Portion Other allowances -
£ Group loans and value of covered  not covered creditrisk individually
20135125831H At 31 December 2013 advances collateral by collateral by collateral mitigation assessed
BHKEBZPEZREH  Overdue loans and advances
to customers 297,471 177,543 121,065 176,406 - 160,454
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HXEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 EERK @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BHRBS (&) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(T) BEI31EFULEZ BRI (&) (d) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months
(Continued)
(i) BPREEERLBRZBEEEN (i)  Value of collateral held and impairment allowances
PR mE (&) against overdue loans and advances (Continued)
BERRBH EHm REEE-
REEHE R g g EifzE BRI
Outstanding Current  FAESH FRekdEdh EBRFEEE  Impairment
amount of market Portion Portion Other  allowances -
3L Group loans and value of covered  not covered creditrisk  individually
2012% 12318 At 31 December 2012 advances collateral by collateral by collateral mitigation assessed

AHAEERPEZ P Overdue loans and advances
to customers 299,575 379,646 242,553 57,022 - 78,668

FRFF M £ 2 REF R IR BT Collateral held mainly represented pledged deposits and
mortgage over properties.

EXRRBH B HEERE-
FEBHE R B B At g {B R
Outstanding Current  FrA®HG REAEFH BERAZEE  Impairment

amount of market Portion Portion Other allowances -

BT Bank loans and value of covered  not covered creditrisk  individually

2013%125831A At 31 December 2013 advances collateral by collateral by collateral mitigation assessed
AEAEEEEERRER  Overdue loans and advances

to customers 164,183 129,291 95,523 68,660 - 57,781

EHREHN gt HEER-

AEREH Binfa B gt AffEE (BRI

Outstanding Current  FTAESGH AeAdEsdn  BBRAEEHEE  Impairment

amount of market Portion Portion Other  allowances -

il Bank loans and value of covered  not covered creditrisk  individually

201212 A 318 At 31 December 2012 advances collateral by collateral by collateral mitigation assessed
BEAEEEPERREN  Overdue loans and advances

to customers 112,858 91,049 71,403 41,455 - 30,486

FREs i £ 2 AR E R IRB T E - Collateral held mainly represented pledged deposits and

mortgage over properties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

3. HMBERERE @
3.2 FERR®@
325 B R 4
(X) #EME (B A B Fat.2 8

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

() Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in

HE) overdue advances shown above

&8 BT

Group Bank
AR HEEEY HEAREAL hEBEY
2013 % of total 2012 % of total 2013 % of total 2012 % of total
ZFER Advances to customers 148,512 0.15 147,504 0.17 147,668 0.18 147,399 0.20

HEEE Impairment allowances - - =
326 EZZE 3.2.6 Trade bills

R2013F12A31H ' AEFUWERBECESE
(20124 : ) mM@mEREEIEANLNLEEG
8 R~ Z 5214 475,000,877 (2012 : &) o
327 WEH#in
RERFE 2 WREEARIOT

As at 31 December 2013, there were trade bills overdue for more than
3 months and up to 6 months of HK$475,000 (2012: Nil) and no trade

bills were impaired (2012: Nil).

3.2.7 Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:

55 $R1T
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BENE Nature of assets
kY Repossessed properties 87,660 73,702 19,800 1,360
EAh Others 85 6,760 85 6,760
87,745 80,462 19,885 8,120

WEHERRRATERERHE - BURKIBAMN
BIEB R Z BRAREEET

flrat Al £ 35 4218 /4 67,860,000 75 7T 2 £ 7 B At
B T EH A3 (20124 : 72,342,000 7T) * J5
AN BB AR A B At AR AR A 2 SE S A TR LAY
WER KRB - ZEH R AR L3622 [H
fhEE|BTHRIEBLHEZEE - HEAZER
EARAR IEHERR -

REFRITAERAR | 20135F F

Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the

proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the

borrowers concerned.

Certain other properties in the Mainland China with a total estimated
realisable value of HK$67,860,000 (2012: HK$72,342,000), which had
been foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to orders

issued by courts in the Mainland China, represent assets held by the

Group for resale and have been reported under “Other assets” in Note

36. The relevant loans had been derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HBEBRERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 FERR®@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

328 EHEF 3.2.8 Debt securities
(FF) etk Ig15E 2 5FR 5T (a)  Analysis by rating agency designation
TRIRMN2013F £ 2012F 12 A31 BiZ The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating
AR E 2 RO 2 BISE S o agency designation as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

BFEE REN THEERE BEZIHRE Bk
BiEEE  AVEMNE  Available- Held-to- EsE

£8 Group Trading  Designated for-sale maturity  Loans and Hi
20135128318 At 31 December 2013 assets  atfairvalue investments investments  receivables Total
AAA AAA 10,240 - 1,377,938 - - 1,388,178
AA- E AA+ AA- to AA+ 6,325,368 - 7,016,032 867,349 - 14,208,749
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 103 - 12,730,721 1,806,195 37,220 14,574,239
B RBERA- Rated but lower than A- - 4,224 4,065,664 845,524 1,100,370 6,015,782
RETR Unrated 77 24 1,661,435 2,150,221 41 3,811,798
At Total 6,335,788 4,248 26,851,790 5,669,289 1,137,631 39,998,746

FIFEE BEL TRLERE HEIBRE Bk

FRdE  DYVERNE Available- Held-to- MR
£E Group Trading  Designated for-sale maturity ~ Loans and CH)
2012412 A31H At 31 December 2012 assets  atfairvalue  investments  investments receivables Total
AAA AAA - - 530,906 108,794 - 639,700
AA- E AA+ AA- to AA+ 5,797,593 - 7,333,770 715,697 - 13,847,060
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 149 - 9,492,487 3,179,297 83,743 12,755,676
BRRBERA- Rated but lower than A- - 23,440 3,342,003 1,109,253 3,261,957 7,736,653
AETR Unrated - 85 887,818 1,934,499 52,320 2,874,722
ait Total 5,797,742 23525 21,586,984 7047540 3,398,020 37,853,811
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HXEEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 ZERE@m 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
328 EBEES (#) 3.2.8 Debt securities (Continued)
(FF) 1EFaRiEIEIEE 2 5FR 5T (48) (a)  Analysis by rating agency designation (Continued)

BIFEE BEN WHEERE BEIHRE BRR
BiEE  AVEHE  Available- Held-to- FEE

1T Bank Trading  Designated for-sale maturity  Loans and &5t
20135128318 At 31 December 2013 assets  atfairvalue investments investments  receivables Total
AAA AAA 10,240 - 1,377,938 - - 1,388,178
AA- £ AA+ AA- to AA+ 6,325,368 - 7,016,032 491,913 - 13,833,313
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 103 - 12,730,721 1,403,023 - 14,133,847
BHRBERA- Rated but lower than A- - - 4,065,664 712,006 908,198 5,685,868
AETR Unrated 7 - 1,661,435 410,553 41 2,072,106
At Total 6,335,788 - 26,851,790 3,017,495 908,239 37,113,312

FEEE REN THEERE HEIBRE Bk

FRdE  DYVERE Available- Held-to- FEMGE
iichl Bank Trading  Designated for-sale maturity ~ Loans and At
2012124311 At 31 December 2012 assets  atfairvalue investments  investments receivables Total
AAA AAA - - 530,906 108,794 - 639,700
AA-ZAA+ AA- to AA+ 5,797,593 - 7,333,770 672,285 - 13,803,648
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 149 - 9,492,487 2,776,524 46,536 12,315,696
BHRBERA- Rated but lower than A- - 21,665 3,342,003 975,236 3,066,582 7,405,486
RETR Unrated - 78 887,818 641,350 52,320 1,581,566
ait Total 5,797,742 21743 21,586,984 5174189 3165438 35,746,096
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

P e

3. HMKEERERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 FERE @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
328 EBEES (#) 3.2.8 Debt securities (Continued)
(2) HEERE RS T (b)  Analysis by overdue period
RBTERRE D EAE R ERFIE 2 & Investments in securities which were classified as loans and
HIRE - WERE R 12 A31 BaafmT receivables upon initial recognition, and were overdue at
TR ¢ the time of recognition, and which remain overdue as at 31
December as shown below:
EERIRTT Group and Bank 2013 2012
R ERRE S ERER K Investments in securities classified
ERFIR 2 FHIRE as loans and receivables upon
initial recognition
%60 5 Overdue for
—1F L — over one year 41 52,320
R HERB DB AE R R EWRIE 2 & The entire portfolio of investments in securities classified as
HEWEHRE SR IRERD Fitm B R loans and receivables upon initial recognition was recognised
&2 BEEMBHRRRER in the statement of financial position at a value after taking into
account the above overdue status.
329 s EERE M EEERFE 3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk

FREE

(FF) E3
BEPERZBRIESMIIRIEE Z BE R
BRZERAMEMDSE - —KRWME - &
EFRMERTENEERATRZ R
B - BRI EE -

I DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2013

exposure
(@) Geographical sectors

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified
according to the location of the borrowers after taking into
account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies
when an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area
which is different from that of the borrower.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 SERB@m
329 BEEEEREZEHBEEZ AREE

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk

HEEE (&) exposure (Continued)
(FF) [E1 ) (a)  Geographical sectors (Continued)

TRABEFPERERIREHAINT -

The following table analyses gross advances to customers by

34

geographical area.

2013 & 20124

12H31H 12A31H

At At

31 December 31 December

£8 Group 2013 2012
REEREE Gross advances to customers

—&BE - Hong Kong 77,492,360 68,780,111

— - China 8,890,132 8,144,601

— R - Macau 10,196,127 8,421,679

—HAth - Others 1,407,543 836,469

97,986,162 86,182,860

2013 20124

12831 R 12A31H

At At

31 December 31 December

$R1T Bank 2013 2012
REEREE Gross advances to customers

— &8 - Hong Kong 76,045,718 67,865,960

=1 - China 3,419,102 4,099,683

—RFT - Macau 763,375 622,477

—HAh - Others 1,146,263 598,239

81,374,458 73,186,359
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 SERB@m 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

329 WMEEGEREBEZtMEEZRMRE 3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
HEEE (&) exposure (Continued)
(FF) [E1 ) (a)  Geographical sectors (Continued)
TRAAEEEBERNBR BH5KRE The following table analyses the cross-border claims of the
RAESRITHESRATFERZ BEEREDT Group in relation to loans and advances, investments in

securities, and balances and placements with banks.

£5
Group
RITRHAth
SRR
Banks NEHE
and other Public
2013%12H31H At 31 December 2013 financial sector Hith et
BHEETT In millions of HK$ institutions entities Others Total
TRE - TNEEABEA  Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 20,456 254 17,165 37,875
JbERExE North and South America 213 775 2,332 3,320
BOM Europe 2,544 - 867 3,411
23,213 1,029 20,364 44,606
R1T
Bank
RITRHAth
SRR
Banks NEHE
and other Public
2013%12H31H At 31 December 2013 financial sector Hth et
BHEETT In millions of HK$ institutions entities Others Total
DKE - FNEEEBEAN  Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 18,669 229 11,501 30,399
EEREE North and South America 75 775 2,148 2,998
BOM Europe 2,324 - 865 3,189
21,068 1,004 14,514 36,586
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(ABEET TThLFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FERE @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
329 WHEEEERBZEHEEZAEE 3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
HIEEE (&) exposure (Continued)
(FF) [E1 () (a)  Geographical sectors (Continued)
L]
Group
SR1T R H A
TR
Banks N
and other Public
2012412 B 31 H At 31 December 2012 financial sector HAfb “BEt
BEBT In millions of HK$ institutions entities Others Total
DRE - NEIEEBEA  Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 20,697 154 15,317 36,168
EERmEZE North and South America 2,109 - 2,854 4,963
BN Europe 3,751 80 1,475 5,306
26,557 234 19,646 46,437
RTT
Bank
SRIT R H At
R
Banks N
and other Public
2012412 B 31 H At 31 December 2012 financial sector =i “BEt
BEBT In millions of HK$ institutions entities Others Total
DRE - NEIEEBEA  Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 19,252 124 10,296 29,672
EEKEE North and South America 1,984 - 2,640 4,624
BOM Europe 3,527 80 1,474 5,081
24,763 204 14,410 39,377
LillEREEEENETERRARNER The above information of cross-border claims discloses
1& - RIRI 5 ¥ TF 7 P42 3 B 58 B A exposures to foreign counterparties on which the ultimate
WX SEFHEMENRAR - —RM=E - risk lies, and is derived according to the location of the
ERXRZGHFNEERBETRBERMN S — counterparties after taking into account any transfer of risk.
FER SETERER —HRTHNEIND In general, transfer of risk from one country to another is
7 MELFRERTRANER @ 7 EE recognised if the claims against a counterparty are guaranteed
RERH-BERERES B - by another party in a different country or if the claims are on

an overseas branch of a bank whose head office is located in a
different country.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 FERE @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

329 WHEEEERBZEHEEZEEE 3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
HIEEE (&) exposure (Continued)
(2) 7% (b)  Industry sectors
BREERRE - RITEREFRES Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans

£8 $R1T
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
ERBEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
Trges Industrial, commercial
and financial
—MEERE — Property development 2,015,552 1,662,651 2,015,552 1,662,651
—MERE — Property investment 15,122,078 14,047,519 15,122,078 14,047,519
— SR - Financial concerns 740,178 336,280 1,108,665 550,900
—BRELL — Stockbrokers 109,264 100,240 109,264 100,240
—HrEETEX — Wholesale and retail trade 4,006,724 3,219,507 4,006,724 3,219,507
—BlEx - Manufacturing 1,975,672 1,996,894 1,975,672 1,996,894
— B RERRE — Transport and transport
equipment 5,050,680 4,635,150 5,050,680 4,635,150
—REEE - Recreational activities 300,505 287,610 300,505 287,610
— BB — Information technology 24,916 8,703 24,916 8,703
—HAph - Others 3,571,083 2,894,403 3,571,083 2,894,403
32,916,652 29,188,957 33,285,139 29,403,577
{EYN Individuals
-BEEER - Loans for the purchase of
HEE] TRA flats in Home Ownership
2EREEHE] & Scheme, Private Sector
[fHEEHERE] Participation Scheme and
EFER Tenants Purchase Scheme 1,080,873 1,123,393 1,080,873 1,123,393
—BEHEMES — Loans for the purchase of
MEE other residential properties 18,041,141 16,026,972 18,041,141 16,026,972
—ERARER — Credit card advances 3,949,544 4,240,329 3,949,544 4,240,329
—HAth - Others 6,880,302 5,465,362 6,556,016 5,279,598
29,951,860 26,856,056 29,627,574 26,670,292
ERBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 62,868,512 56,045,013 62,912,713 56,073,869
Bo7mE (5 (1) Trade finance (Note (1)) 5,918,454 5,024,007 5,918,454 5,024,007
FEBRBAIME AR E K Loans for use outside
(@) Hong Kong (Note (2)) 29,199,196 25,113,840 12,543,291 12,088,483

97,986,162 86,182,860 81,374,458 73,186,359
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEERERE @)
3.2 SER@m

329 WEEEEREBZEHEES EMRE
HIEEE (&)

(Z) 7@
G

() ERFIRZESMEARSETECMER
BIEELER]) I 2 AME3IMH A
AEBED - WAMBAMEE  URE
RESHWMEASZHR -

THEREBZESHMEBER(BIEART
ZBIMRITITB AR T2 ESmME) B
18992,627,000 %570 (2012 F 12 A31 H :
336,534,000 7T ) DR [1EEB B LAIME
AMERIET °

(@ HEFEUIMEANESRBRERTEERR
BEEBAIMEBZER

3.3 miHER

mIZRKR T s BT i5 R R RERE( TSI ZE
BE  BEREERBRIMNGRZERRAR -

BRERGzmERBEHESS  REEERS
REEERMERRERRZESRESEERT
ZRENMZEZ S RRARRBRERIESIAERE - &
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B AFLBRERME FBIRE - AR5 - 5
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FAERRBETERZKTEA - EATFARER
M BERBEERREEFEABEEEE-VE
hiERREZEE EREENAREZEGNE
EeEERIE -
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure (Continued)

(b)  Industry sectors (Continued)

Note:

(1) Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance
of imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong
Kong and merchandising trade classified with reference to the
relevant guidelines issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA?).

Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade
finance extended by the Bank’s overseas subsidiary banks)
totalling HK$992,627,000 (31 December 2012: HK$336,534,000)
are classified under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.

3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance

sheet positions arising from movements in market rates and prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within various risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board, the
RMCC and the TIRC under the authority delegated from the Board.
Risk limits are set at the portfolio level as well as by products and
by different types of risks. The risk limits comprise a combination
of notional, stop-loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls.
All trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-market valuation.
The Risk Management and Control Department (“RMCD”) within the
Group Risk Division, as an independent risk management and control
unit, identifies, measures, monitors and controls the risk exposures
against approved limits and initiates specific actions to ensure
positions are managed within an acceptable level. Any exceptions
have to be reviewed and sanctioned by the appropriate level of
management of TIRC, RMCC or the Board as stipulated in the relevant
policies and procedures.
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 mWiEE @) 3.3 Market risk (Continued)

KT ZHBRRRFEEFETRO AR QA Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (‘BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
(MR ERT]) RAFHFEIT(PRH) BREA A Limited (“DSB China”), which are subsidiaries of the Bank, run their
(TR#FERT(RE) ) BIBFE —FEE EREMBER treasury functions locally under their own set of limits and policies
B AR 1T 35 0 2 40 B T 35 [ B 20 56| (R s 7 T HL AR and within the overall market risk controls set by the Bank. The RMCD
T2 EERE) - NIRITZ R E IR KBS ZREEER of the Bank oversees and controls the market risk arising from the
FEERERFIEFERITRATNBT (PR BFE treasury operations of BCM and DSB China.

VAR )

REEREH B &R RIRITER 2 15 R ER T The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures
[F2 R ERER RIZRF in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking
books.
331 FEEBKRZTHSEE 3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book
T AR =B B AR T SRR PIR ER1T © The following descriptions relate to the Bank and BCM.
AEBZEERA  EINE - BHES - EaE In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
BERTETEZEBFAEREEMGRER ° positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and
derivatives.
(FF) mEREEGE % (a)  Market risk measurement technique
EETMESRKRER  AEBFERASEER In the management of market risk, the Group measures market
LR 2 A 2SR R KIZEH TS risks using various techniques commonly used by the industry
FRAREEZRBRERZLEAN - ARG E and control market risk exposures within established risk limits.
REETIS R 2 st AT The major measurement techniques used to measure and

control market risk are outlined below.
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3. HMBERERE @

3.3 miFEE @

331 REEERZ TS5 EE &)
() mEEEEE T4 (#)
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() THERBE
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TFIERARATER - BERIBRA A
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)7]7
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FARERZ5EE 25 REREE
B 15918 /41,453,000 7T (2012 4F :
2,140,000/87T) °

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.8.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(@

Market risk measurement technique (Continued)

(i) Value at risk

The Group applies a VaR methodology, which is a
statistically based estimate, to measure the potential loss
of its trading portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses as the maximum amount the Group might lose
given a certain level of confidence, which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. Hence, the use of VaR does
not prevent losses outside the VaR limits in the event of
extreme market movements.

The VaR model assumes a certain “holding period” (one
day in the case of the Group) until positions can be closed.
It is calculated based on the current mark-to-market value
of the positions, the historical correlation and volatilities of
the market risk factors over an observation period of 250
days (or one year) using a method known as parametric
VaR methodology.

The VaR model is continuously validated by back-testing
the VaR results for trading positions. All back-testing
exceptions are investigated and back-testing results are
reported to senior management.

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and
reviewed by the Board and its delegated committees
at least annually for all trading positions and allocated
to business units. Actual exposures, including VaR, are
monitored against limits on a daily basis by Group Risk
Division. Average daily VaR for the Group for all trading
activities during the year was HK$1,453,000 (2012:
HK$2,140,000).
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 mWiEE @) 3.3 Market risk (Continued)

331 REEERZHEERE &) 3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(F) THREREER % (%) (a)  Market risk measurement technique (Continued)

@iy EIDAR (i)  Stress tests
BB R SR w15 R R Al se IR 2 Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size
BIEB R 2 458 - EEEREPEITHY of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The
EEAIR B LE - RBRERE DA - stress tests carried out by Group Risk Division include:
FEBESRBERFREITNREN risk factor stress testing, where stress movements are
BE MEARBIAH - 5EAFA applied to each risk category; and scenario stress testing,
FEA RN FIHE R ERE SAEE which includes applying possible stress events to specific
HEITAIE o 1IN - TMErEREEER positions or portfolios. Besides, the expected shortfall
BAE 2T ERAGHEEBEETE of the trading portfolio is measured to evaluate the
BEEKTERERRRFE K LIRR expected size of extreme trading loss beyond a specified
EEEEENTEGHRE o fbih - i confidence level and over a longer holding period. In
THEBRNABER —TABE BT AT addition, reverse-stress tests are performed as a useful
EAE BRI R AR E 2 A A ZKFER tool to evaluate the maximum size of market stress
FrebEZ AT IHE D& ALIEE © that the Group can endure before hitting the prescribed

tolerable levels.

BhlszERhEEe REREY The results of the stress tests are reviewed by the Board
ZEgTEHEHN - and its delegated committees regularly.
(Z2) TS EEENZ (b)  VaR summary of trading portfolio
HZE2013F12A31 BLL12{8A BZ2012612A31B1E1218A
12 months to 31 December 2013 12 months to 31 December 2012
¥4 BB 137 1 B 5%
£E Group Average High Low Average High Low
SNERR Foreign exchange risk 934 1,529 450 1,709 3,589 913
=R R Interest rate risk 1,058 2,193 330 1,265 3,143 377
2EER All risks 1,453 2,625 689 2,140 4,692 1,002
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book

In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated
with positions in debt and equity securities.

REFRITAERAR | 20135F F

(FF) THREREE %

HEFEREREZZEERIUZARE
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AEOFEINERRTOER - AR
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R HEHE o RPIERARK ZE
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BN e

ERRPINEESREBETEE K
ZIRA - BEEEBEREHRINESLD
A3 5H DUREC SN R

(@)  Market risk measurement technique

Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board and its delegated committees, various limits,
guidelines and management action triggers are established to
control the exposures of the Group’s banking book activities
to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and price risk. In
particular, position and sensitivity limits and price triggers are
in place to control the price risk of the investment securities.
In addition, sensitivity analysis and stress testing (including
reverse-stress testing) covering shocks and shifts in interest
rates on the Group’s on- and off-balance sheet positions
and credit spreads on the Group’s investment securities are
regularly performed to gauge the market risk inherent in the
Group’s banking book portfolios and manage it against the
established control measures.

VaR methodology is not currently being used to measure and
control the market risk of the banking book.

(b)  Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”)) as foreign exchange positions and foreign
currency balances arising from customer transactions are
normally matched against other customer transactions or
transactions with the market. Foreign exchange exposure
in respect of MOP and RMB arise mainly from the
operation of overseas subsidiaries in Macau and Mainland
China. The net exposure positions, both by individual
currency and in aggregate, are managed by the Treasury
of the Group on a daily basis within established foreign
exchange limits.

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that this
is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, or vice versa,
is normally matched using foreign exchange forward
contracts to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.



B RS R AR M L
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

3. UHEEEE@m &

3.3 WiHEE @

332 FERITARZ 1B /EE (%)
(Z) FFIEBEEFSHEEZ GUBEST (4) (b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

i)  SMERB (4

R2013F12 A318 ' WA Efth
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(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2013, if HK$ had weakened by 100
pips against MOP and RMB with all other variables held
constant, the profit after tax for the year and equity would
have been HK$9 million higher (2012: HK$8 million higher),
mainly as a result that the foreign exchange gain on
translation of MOP and RMB denominated financial assets
outweighed the foreign exchange losses on translation of
MOP and RMB denominated financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HK$ had strengthened by 100 pips against
MOP and RMB with all other variables held constant, the
profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$9 million lower (2012: HK$8 million lower).

(i) Interest rate risk

From an earnings perspective, interest rate risk is the
risk that the net income arising from future cash flows of
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. From an economic value
perspective, interest rate risk is the risk that the economic
value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group takes on
interest rate risk from both perspectives in the banking
book. As such, the interest margins or net interest income
and the economic value of the capital may increase or
decrease as a result of such changes or in the event that
unexpected movements arise. The Board and the Asset
and Liability Management Committee (“ALCQO”) set limits
on the level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that may
be undertaken, which are monitored regularly by RMCD.
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3. UHEREE@m ).

3.3 WiHEE @

332 FEIRITARZ T E/EE (%)
(Z) FFIEEERHHEEZ GUBEST (4) (b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

94
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(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

The framework adopted by the Group to measure interest
rate risk exposures arising from its banking book positions
is consistent with that set forth by the HKMA for reporting
interest rate risk exposures. In this framework, deposits
without a fixed maturity are assumed to be repayable
and to reprice on the next working day whereas loan
prepayments are not considered when allocating loan
balances into respective interest repricing time bands.

At 31 December 2013, if HK$ and US$ market interest
rates had been 200 bps higher with other variables held
constant, the profit after tax over the next 12 months and
the economic value would have been HK$193 million
lower (2012: HK$80 million lower) and HK$970 million
lower (2012: HK$605 million lower) respectively.

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity
analysis on foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk are
on the same basis for both 2012 and 2013.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate
risk, the Group’s investments in debt securities and
equity securities are also exposed to other price risks.
Consequently, the value of such investments could
change significantly depending on a variety of factors
including liquidity risk, market sentiment and other events
that might affect individual or portfolios of exposures.
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(ABHEFhrsm) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. BMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 mWiZE @) 3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 JMER R 3.3.3 Currency risk

TRESANER G ANREITIZEME| D R ATEESE The table below summarises the Group’s and the Bank’s financial

BIH s EERBESRE - assets and liabilities translated into equivalent HK$ amounts,

categorised by currency.

58 Group BT £ gk N Hit CEl
2013F12A 318 At 31 December 2013 HKD usD MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
B RERTNES Cash and balances with banks 879,053 1,419,021 442,508 4,905,415 623,925 8,270,012
ERTHER Placements with banks - 1,343,478 - 2,757,815 - 401,293
FEEERERES Trading securities 6,335,608 - - 180 - 6,335,788
EBENATEFEAEE Financial assets designated at

SABRRERAE fair value through profit or loss = 4,248 = = = 4,248
fTESMITA Derivative financial instruments 26,945 608,954 = = 51,170 687,069
FREFRAMEE Advances and other accounts 76,526,290 13,304,523 4,547,504 12,254,168 1,570,253 108,202,738
AEHERS Available-for-sale securities 2,172,592 24,033,176 485 649,869 263,696 27,119,818
SRS HES Held-to-maturity securities 549,637 3,174,645 590,539 951,316 403152 5,669,289
SREEST Total financial assets 86,490,125 43,888,045 5,581,126 21,518,763  2912,196 160,390,255
8 Liabilities
RITIEH Deposits from banks 59,591 1,886,917 256 30,574 17,959 1,995,297
TEEMTA Derivative financial instruments 30,834 912,746 = = 173,676 1,117,256
HEEERERNER Trading liabilities 3,362,473 - - - - 3,362,473
BPREH Deposits from customers 82,357,809 14,886,479 6,395,628 19,399,000 6,906,217 129,945,133
BEITMTNE Certificates of deposit issued 5,356,465 775,465 631 = - 6,132,561
BRINEBES Issued debt securities - 775,385 - - - 775,385
BEES Subordinated notes - 2,398,493 - - 1,363,978 3,762,471
Hifk A R iERE Other accounts and accruals 1,187,019 878,960 58,889 389,527 88,512 2,602,907
SRAEaT Total financial liabilities 92,354,191 22,514,445 6455404 19,819,101 8,550,342 149,693,483
EEERRLERRE Net on-balance sheet positions (5,864,066) 21,373,600 (874,278) 1,699,662  (5,638,146) 10,696,772

BEBBRIMFRERRFE" Off-balance sheet net notional

positions* 14,936,216  (20,476,354) 249,867 (163,843) 5,384,119 (69,995)
EERE Credit commitments 61,463,280 4,261,313 454,286 4,187,601 163,393 70,529,873
L BEABRINGEEEZE FHETITEANFHENRE * Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional
EINEEESER Z2INESRITAETENEZEF amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which
ZH o are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency
movements.
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEERERE @)
5 B K (8)
3.3.3 SME R R (%)

3.3

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)

3] Group BT e il ARE £t A%
20124512 A31 1 At 31 December 2012 HKD Usb MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
Re RERITHEH Cash and balances with banks 3,908,174 1,534,407 340,250 5424342 2265203 13,472,376
TERITHER Placements with banks 1,475,000 457,922 - 1,550,778 506,927 3,990,627
HIEEERRNES Trading securities 5,797,196 - - 546 - 5,797,742
BENATEFEAHE Financial assets designated at

HAERNEREE fair value through profit or loss - 23,525 - - - 23,525
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 34,617 500,069 - 7 108,553 643,246
EXHEFREMIRE Advances and other accounts 69,414,623 13273114 3411974 8477318 2,730,821 97,307,850
At EES Available-for-sale securities 2,719,826 18,331,844 485 567,911 285,582 21,905,648
BERIHES Held-to-maturity securities 399,701 4,998,675 869,731 43,412 736,021 7,047,540
SREEAR Total financial assets 83,749,137 39,119,556 4,622,440 16,064,314 6,633,107 150,188,554
afs Liabilities
BITHER Deposits from banks 110,386 1,685,016 38,902 771,586 39,730 2,645,620
fTEERMTA Derivative financial instruments 8,768 1,216,050 = = 273874 1,498,692
FIEEEREMAR Trading liabilities 2,278,044 - - - - 2,278,044
REER Deposits from customers 75,704,875 15,352,845 5674666 13,898,425 7,450,355 118,081,166
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 4,410,874 1,331,019 10,569 = - 5752462
BEINELES Issued debt securities - 2,712,907 - - - 2,712,907
BIERES Subordinated notes - 2,555,901 = - 1423569 3,979,470
HipfR A R TEIR Other accounts and accruals 1,138,992 1,526,029 58,342 337,252 110,316 3,170,931
SRBEA: Total financial liabilities 83,651,939 26,379,767 5,782,479  15007,263 9,297,844 140,119,292
BERBRLFERTE Net on-balance sheet positions 97,198 12,739,789  (1,160,039) 1,057,051  (2,664,737) 10,069,262
BEAGBRINGREEFE” Off-balance sheet net notional

positions* 9,034,953  (11,306,151) = 152,725 2,353,137 234,664

EERE Credit commitments 54147462 4,738,582 479,075 3,180,948 186,023 62,732,090
AFERTAR AR | 201344k I
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEERERE @) 3.

3.3 mWiEE @)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 SMERE R (%)

3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)

®AT Bank BT E ARH Hity CH
2013512831 H At 31 December 2013 HKD usD RMB Others Total
BE Assets
Be RERTHER Cash and balances with banks 1,196,135 1,442,075 3,017,171 622,521 6,277,902
ERITOER Placements with banks 266,266 1,846,420 1,939,774 14,752 4,067,212
HIEEERRRNES Trading securities 6,335,608 - 180 - 6,335,788
BENATEFEEHE Financial assets designated at
SABRNEREE fair value through profit or loss = = = > =
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 26,945 633,444 - 50,416 710,805
FEERREMERE Advances and other accounts 71,059,080 11,819,760 5,581,949 1,484,951 89,945,740
At EES Available-for-sale securities 2,163,835 23,986,708 649,869 263,696 27,064,108
SRR Held-to-maturity securities - 2,666,741 - 350,754 3,017,495
SREEST Total financial assets 81,047,869 42,395,148 11,188,943 2,787,090 137,419,050
8% Liabilities
BIIER Deposits from banks 525,548 1,898,430 226,627 499,048 3,149,653
TESRTR Derivative financial instruments 30,463 909,617 = 169,137 1,109,217
HIEEERENERE Trading liabilities 3,362,473 - - - 3,362,473
RPER Deposits from customers 78,168,689 13,857,253 10,060,493 6,324,217 108,410,652
BETNERE Certificates of deposit issued 5,951,669 775,465 = = 6,727,134
BRIINERES Issued debt securities - 775,385 = = 775,385
BERS Subordinated notes - 2,398,493 - 1,363,978 3,762,471
HibE B RBER Other accounts and accruals 1,123,953 874,656 210,348 85,476 2,294,433
SRBREA Total financial liabilities 89,162,795 21,489,299 10,497,468 8,441,856 129,591,418
BEGERLEAFE Net on-balance sheet positions  (8,114,926) 20,905,849 691,475 (5,654,766) 7,827,632
BEBRRIMFRERTE" Off-balance sheet net notional
positions* 15,186,163 (20,475,615) (163,843) 5,401,396 (51,899)
BEAE Credit commitments 60,243,774 3,866,183 27,016 145,870 64,282,843
* BEABRINGEBE FHIETEANBEAE * Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional
THNEEFRKBZINESRITET AN B RF amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which are
B o principally used to reduce the Bank’s exposure to currency movements.
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3.3.3 SME R R (%)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)

8R1T Bank BT EI ARE Hit A%
2012412 A31 1 At 31 December 2012 HKD usD RMB Others Total
BE Assets
RE RAEFTRA SR Cash and balances with banks 3,854,818 1,464,460 2,406,557 2,301,103 10,026,938
ERTNER Placements with banks 1,410,000 680,765 1,091,943 515,036 3,697,744
FIEEERENES Trading securities 5,797,196 - 546 - 5,797,742
EENATEFEEHE Financial assets designated at

SABRNEREE fair value through profit or loss - 21,743 - - 21,743
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 34,567 528,933 7 108,434 671,941
EXEEFREMIRE Advances and other accounts 64,593,535 11,963,666 3,707,634 2,647,848 82,912,683
At EES Available-for-sale securities 2,711,424 18,291,187 567,911 285,582 21,856,104
BRI EES Held-to-maturity securities - 4,498,203 - 675,986 5,174,189
SREEAR Total financial assets 78,401,540 37,448,957 7,774,598 6,533,989 130,159,084
afs Liabilities
BIIER Deposits from banks 201,121 1,842,746 109,458 585,136 2,738,461
TEERMTA Derivative financial instruments 8,768 1,212,724 1 267,794 1,489,287
FIEEEREMAR Trading liabilities 2,278,044 - - - 2,278,044
REER Deposits from customers 72,334,629 13,862,411 7,563,082 6,816,210 100,576,332
BRETNEHE Certificates of deposit issued 4,886,091 1,331,019 = - 6,217,110
BEINELESH Issued debt securities - 2,712,907 - - 2,712,907
BERS Subordinated notes = 2,555,901 = 1,423,569 3,979,470
HipfR A L TER Other accounts and accruals 1,060,842 1,515,972 180,597 108,148 2,865,559
SRBEA: Total financial liabilities 80,769,495 25,033,680 7,853,138 9,200,857 122,857,170
BERBRLFRFE Net on-balance sheet positions ~ (2,367,955) 12,415,277 (78,540) (2,666,868) 7,301,914
BEABRINGREEFE” Off-balance sheet net notional

positions* 9,036,866 (11,425,835) 146,934 2,352,551 110,516

EERE Credit commitments 52,635,812 4,044,220 = 173,708 56,853,740
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IS ERR M RE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.4 Interest rate risk

The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate
risks. Included in the table are the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual
repricing or maturity dates.

3EAME 5L

38R E1E E5E
FUT Over Over SENE FHE

) Group 3months  3months to 1 yearto Over  Non-interest At
20135128311 At 31 December 2013 or less 1 year 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
EE Assets
BeRES LR Cash and balances with banks 7,329,504 - - - 940,508 8,270,012
ERANER Placements with banks 1,889,032 2,212,261 - - - 4,101,293
FEEERRNES Trading securities 631,934 5,368,325 335,529 - - 6,335,788
RENATEEAEEY Financial assets designated at

TABRNEBEE fair value through profit or loss - - - - 4,248 4,48
fEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 687,069 687,069
EEEFRAMEE Advances and other accounts 84,981,809 8,473,687 9,791,152 727,150 4208940 108,202,738
AL EERR Available-for-sale securities 920,545 1,992,504 18,939,775 4,994,214 272,780 27,119,818
FRHEES Held-to-maturity securities 1,446,017 1,655,194 2,568,078 - - 5,669,289
SREEAT Total financial assets 97,198,841 19,701,971 31,634,534 5,721,364 6,133,545 160,390,255
Bk Liabilities
FIER Deposits from banks 1,759,613 - - - 235,684 1,995,297
ITESBTIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,117,256 1,117,256
RHEEERRMAE Trading liabilities 478,501 2,767,145 116,827 - - 3,362,473
BPER Deposits from customers 103,321,781 19,134,646 1,608,375 164,673 5715658 129,945,133
BETHERE Certificates of deposit issued 2,259,279 2,107,785 1,765,497 - - 6,132,561
BETNERES Issued debt securities 775,385 - - - - 775,385
kEEH Subordinated notes - - 1,850,719 1,011,752 - 3,762,471
EthiR B kB Other accounts and accruals 100,993 - - - 2,501,914 2,602,907
SRAEAT Total financial liabilties 108,695,552 24,009,576 5,341,418 2,076,425 9,570,512 149,693,483
NESBERAH (REHE)" Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)  (11,496,711) (4,307,605) 26,293,116 3,644,939
NEfTETAR N2 EE Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 4,226,603 2,950,892 (4,061,258  (3,130,229)
NESBEELH (BHE) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* (7,270,108) (1,356,713) 22,231,858 514,710

* AMEFHENSEREBIREEBBRNEEM
BENKAEEET - CRHENSHBREEEFA
SRR R = @ T 1T A R OTAE T A S KM

Ho

*

Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of
on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap
takes into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered
into to mitigate interest rate risk.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEERERE @) 3.
3.3 mWiEE @)
3.34 FIZEE LR &)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

100

SEANL 155 E
3@A 2% 5%
AT Over Over 5 F T8

] Group 3months 3 months to 1yearto Over  Non-interest At
20124612 4311 At 31 December 2012 or less 1 year 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
3 Assets
Be RESTHER Cash and balances with banks 12,497,233 - - - 975,143 13,472,376
ERINER Placements with banks 3,423,499 567,128 - - - 3,990,627
FEEERRNES Trading securities 693,090 4,700,030 384,812 19,810 - 5,797,742
BENATEEAERY Financial assets designated at

TABRNEREE fair value through profit or loss - - - - 23,525 23,525
ITESBTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 643,246 643,246
EEETREEE Advances and other accounts 75,643,570 7,680,768 9,754,047 487,741 3,740,824 97,307,850
AHRHESS Available-for-sale securities 851,542 1,383,436 15,341,744 4,006,511 322,415 21,905,648
FEIHES Held-to-maturity securities 3,046,936 1,930,135 1,870,469 - - 7,047,540
SREAEAF Total financial assets 96,355,870 16,261,497 27,351,972 4,514,062 5705153 150,188,554
af Liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 2,325,523 314 - - 319,783 2,645,620
fESRTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,498,692 1,498,692
FEEERBMAE Trading liabilties 1,436,569 646,446 195,029 - - 2,278,044
REER Deposits from customers 97,043,165 14,905,880 727,034 - 5205087 118,081,166
BRGNS Certificates of deposit issued 1,521,356 3,559,124 671,982 - - 5,752,462
BENEEES Issued debt securities 2,712,907 - - - - 2,712,907
REER Subordinated notes - - 1,934,029 2,045,441 - 3,979,470
A RER Other accounts and accruals 33,259 - - - 3,137,672 3,170,931
SHEEAR: Total financial liabilities 105,272,779 19,111,764 3,528,074 2,045,441 10,161,234 140,119,292
MEGREEAH (REAE)" Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted|* ~ (8,916,909) (2,850267) 23,823,898 2,468,621
MEHETEANZ 72 Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 3,705,070 3,358,526 (5,408,185) (1,620,921)
NEGREERG (AHE) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* (5,211,839) 508,259 18,415,713 847,700
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEERERE @) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 mWiEE @) 3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.34 FIFELE &) 3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

3EANE 5L

38R Z1f B5F
HUT Over Over SEME THE

#17 Bank 3months 3 months to 1 year to Over  Non-interest Rt
2013%12A31H At 31 December 2013 or less 1 year 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
&E Assets
ReRERINLEE Cash and balances with banks 5,349,643 - - - 928259 6,277,902
ERTRER Placements with banks 1,983,662 2,083,530 - - - 4,067,212
REEERRNES Trading securities 631,934 5,368,325 335,529 - - 6,335,788
EEALTEHEAELY Financial assets designated at

TABRNEREE fair value through profit or loss - - - - - -
ITESBTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 710,805 710,805
EEETR AR Advances and other accounts 75,984,676 5,396,799 5,560,232 207,715 2,796,318 89,945,740
eSS Available-for-sale securities 920,545 1,992,504 18,939,775 4,994,214 217,070 27,064,108
BREHES Held-to-maturity securities 1,206,705 232,971 1,577,819 - - 3,017,495
SREERH Total financial assets 86,077,185 15,074,129 26,413,355 5,201,929 4,652,452 137,419,050
& Liabilties
el Deposits from banks 2,804,187 70,805 - - 274,661 3,149,653
ik A Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,109,217 1,100,217
FEEERRMAE Trading liabilties 478,501 2,767,145 116,827 - - 3,362,473
RERH Deposits from customers 89,928,992 12,689,855 6,452 - 5,785,353 108,410,652
BRGNS Certificates of deposit issued 2,258,694 2,702,943 1,765,497 = = 6,727,134
BENEEES Issued debt securities 775,385 = = = = 775,385
REER Subordinated notes - - 1,850,719 1,911,752 = 3,762,471
HbiRE RER Other accounts and accruals 100,993 - - - 2,193,440 2,294,433
SREEAT Total financial liabilities 96,346,752 18,230,748 3,739,495 1,911,752 9362671 129,591,418
HESSBEEAT (REHE) Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)*  (10,269,567) (3,156,619) 22,673,860 3,290,177
NEfTETEAN Y& Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 4,085,215 2,950,892 (3,919,870) (3,130,229)
NESBEESH (LHE) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* (6,184,352) (205727) 18,753,990 159,948

*

Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of

* RERBENSREEENZAERBERANEEM

BENBASET - CABFESMEZEDA on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap
FAIBUIE 1) 2R 2 o 1 AT RO A AT A T A A K9 R9K takes into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered
o into to mitigate interest rate risk.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEERERE @) 3.
3.3 mWiEE @)
3.34 FIZEE LR &)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

102

SEANL 155 E
3fEA E{E B56F
AT Over Over 5 F T8

ichl Bank 3months  3Imonths to 1yearto Over  Non-interest At
20124612 4311 At 31 December 2012 or less 1 year 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
AE Assets
e RERANER Cash and balances with banks 9,050,890 - - - 976,048 10,026,938
ERINER Placements with banks 3,193,924 503,820 - - - 3,697,744
FEEERRNES Trading securities 693,090 4,700,030 384,812 19,810 - 5,797,742
BENATEEAERY Financial assets designated at

TABRNEREE fair value through profit or loss - - - - 21,743 21,743
ITESBTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 671,941 671,941
BEEREMEE Advances and other accounts 68,499,325 5,261,922 6,519,520 65,095 2,566,821 82,912,683
AHRHESS Available-for-sale securities 851,542 1383436 15,341,744 4,006,511 272,871 21,856,104
FEIHES Held-to-maturity securities 2,001,151 1,139,727 1,833,311 - - 5,174,189
SHEERH Total financial assets 84,489,922 12988935 24,079,387 4,001,416 4500424 130,159,084
af Liabilties
BB Deposits from banks 2,347,834 30,685 - - 359,942 2,738,461
fESRTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,489,287 1,489,287
FEEERBMAE Trading liabilties 1,436,569 646,446 195,029 - - 2,278,044
RPER Deposits from customers 83,863,289 11,443,595 417 - 5265277 100,576,332
BRINENE Certificates of deposit issued 1,504,184 4,040,944 671,982 - - 6,217,110
BENEEES Issued debt securities 2,712,907 - - - - 2,712,907
kEEH Subordinated notes - - 1,934,029 2,045,441 - 3,979,470
A RER Other accounts and accruals 33,259 - - - 2,832,300 2,865,559
SHEEAR: Total financial liabilities 91,898,042 16,161,670 2,805,211 2,045,441 9,046,806 122,857,170
MEGREEAH (REAE)" Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted|*  (7,408,120) (3172735 21,274,176 2,045,975
MEfETARNZEE Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 3,565,437 3,358,526 (5,268,552) (1,620921)
NEGREERG (AHE) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* (3,842,683 185,791 16,005,624 425,054
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its payment
obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due
and to replace funds when they are withdrawn.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis with the objective
to ensure that there is adequate liquidity and funding capacity to meet
normal business operations and to withstand a prolonged period
of liquidity stress of not less than a month. During the period, the
Group had maintained a sufficiently high liquidity ratio well above the
statutory minimum of 25%.

Moreover, the Group maintains the liquidity risk management
framework in accordance with the requirements set forth in the
Supervisory Policy Manual (“SPM”) LM-2 on “Sound Systems and
Controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by the HKMA in April
2011. The SPM LM-2 is developed to implement the liquidity sound
principles formulated by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision
(“Basel Committee”) to strengthen the liquidity risk management
standards of banks.

Liquidity risk management is governed by the policy and framework
approved by the Board, which delegates to the Group’s ALCO to
oversee liquidity risk management. The ALCO regularly reviews the
Group’s loan and deposit mix and changes, funding requirements
and projections, and monitors a set of liquidity risk metrics,
including the liquidity ratio and maturity mismatch on an ongoing
basis. Appropriate limits or triggers on these risk metrics are set
and sufficient liquid assets are held to ensure that the Group can
meet all short-term funding requirements. The Treasury Division is
responsible for the day-to-day management of funding and liquidity
position while the RMCD is responsible for the measurement and
monitoring of liquidity risk exposures on a daily and monthly basis,
and also conducting liquidity analysis and stress testing. The Financial
Control Division handles regulatory reporting in relation to liquidity
risk, and coordinates the regular forecast of loans and deposits, and
liquidity ratio, budget and analysis relating to liquidity and funding

management.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The Group places considerable importance to establish a diversified
and stable funding. While customer deposits form the primary portion
of the Group’s funding, certificates of deposit and medium term notes
are issued at opportune time in order to lengthen the funding maturity
and optimise asset and liability maturities. Short-term interbank
deposits are taken on a limited basis with the aim of maintaining the
presence in the market and the Group is a net lender to the interbank
market.

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow
measurements and projections for different time horizons, including
the next day, week and month, which are key periods for liquidity
management. The starting point for those projections is an analysis
of the contractual maturity of the financial assets and liabilities as
well as the expected maturity of these assets and liabilities based
on historical observations. The cash flow projections also take into
account the historical behaviour of off-balance sheet items, including
undrawn lending commitments and contingent liabilities such as
standby letters of credit and guarantees. A liquid asset portfolio
is held to withstand unexpected shortfall in net cash flow. Debt
securities held are marked to the market on daily basis to ensure
their market liquidity. The Group performs stress testing regularly,
which includes an institution-specific crisis scenario, a general market
crisis scenario and a combination of these crisis scenarios in order
to assess the potential impact on its liquidity position under stressed
market conditions and has formulated a contingency plan that sets
out strategies for dealing with liquidity problems and the procedures
for making up cash flow deficits (e.g. conducting repo transactions
or liquidation of assets held for liquidity risk management purpose)
in emergency situations. Intragroup transactions are conducted on
arms-length basis and are treated the same way as other third party
transactions for the purpose of cash flow projection under normal
scenario. Subsidiaries of the Group are required to manage their
liquidity positions to meet their needs under both normal and stressed
conditions.

3.4.2 Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, where
applicable, the earliest callable date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AT TTAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HXEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 REBELEMRE@m 3.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
34.2 FEIHZ#7 (&) 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)
1AL
E3EAHUT 3EANL 150
3 months 1 B5E
MHEE  1BAINT or less Over Over SENE

-] Group Repayable Upto but over 3 months 1 year QOver BIHAN &t
135128318 At 31 December 2013 on demand 1 month 1 month to1 year to 5 years 5 years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
ReRERTHER Cash and balances with banks 3,363,571 4,906,441 - - - - - 8,270,012
RN Placements with banks - - 1,889,032 2,212,261 - - - 4,101,293
RIEEERRNES Trading securities - 147,493 481,050 5,358,136 349,109 - - 6,335,788
EENATENEEEZE Financial assets designated at

TAERNEHAE fair value through profit or loss - - - - - 4,048 - 4,248
TEERMIA Derivative financial instruments - 65,421 30,274 143,845 124,426 323,103 - 687,069
EEEHREEE Advances and other accounts 7,481,876 10,341,658 11,440,961 14587803  31,648940 31,020,943 1,674,557 108,202,738
ARLEES Available-for-sale securities - 383,989 39,426 2,101,347 19,328,062 4,994,214 72,780 27,119,818
HEHHES Held-to-maturity securities - 262,604 - 1,655,194 3,751,491 - - 5,669,289
BENTRE Investment in an associate - - - - - = 3,304,993 3,304,993
RFEHERRE Investments in jointly

controlled entities - - - - - - 59,657 59,657

g Goodwill - - - - - - 811,690 811,690
BREE Intangible assets - - - - - - 66,242 66,242
NEREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - = 5 5 - 1,705,350 1,705,350
RENF Investment properties - - - - - = 600,540 600,540
ELfREE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 22,975 = = 22,975
EEqH Total assets 10,851,447 16,107,606 13,880,743 26,058,586 55,225,003 36,342,508 8,495809 166,961,702
& Liabilties
FiE Deposits from banks 123,020 476,584 - - 1,395,693 - - 1,995,297
fEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - 119,207 45,486 128,324 719,379 104,770 - 1,117,256
RIEEERROER Trading liabilities - 477,501 1,000 2,767,146 116,826 = = 3,362,473
EPEH Deposits from customers 40193463 42134031 28212501 17,809,946 1,594,411 781 - 129,045,133
BEIHEHE Certficates of depositissued - 752,633 856,739 2,757,691 1,765,498 = - 6132561
BEANGREES Issued debt securities - - - 775,385 - - - 775,385
RS Subordinated notes - - - - 486740 3,275,731 - 3762478
HtbiRE kiR Other accounts and accruals 25,576 759,737 780,390 482,398 62,300 - 492,506 2,602,907
HERERE Current income tax liabilities - - - 200,072 = = = 200,072
EtfRak Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - 21,268 = = 21,68
BEaH Total liabilities 40,342,059 44719783 29,896,116 24,920,962 6,162,115 3,381,262 492,506 149,914,823
FROMEE Net liquidity gap (29,490,612  (28,612,177)  (16,015,373) 1,137,624 49,062,888 32,961,226 8,008,303 17,046,879
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(AT TTAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HXEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 REBELEMRE@m 3.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
34.2 2B H 57 (&) 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)
1EANE
{B3EARINT 3EANE 185
3 months 2E E5F
PHEE  1EAT or less Over Over SENE

] Group Repayable Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over  EHRAH A%
2012412 A31 A (4EZ5]) At 31 December 2012 (Restated) ~ on demand 1 month 1 month to 1 year t0 5 years 5 years Indefinite Total
AE Assets
ReRERTHER Cash and balances with banks 2,397,467 11,074,909 - - - - - 13472376
ERINER Placements with banks - - 3,423,499 567,128 - - - 3,990,627
RIEEERRNES Trading securities - 39,498 650,443 4,694,242 393,749 19,810 - 5,797,742
EENATENEEEEE Financial assets designated at

TAERNEHAE fair value through profit or loss - - - - - 23,505 - 23525
TEERMIA Derivative financial instruments - 83,569 40,789 41,295 178,928 298,665 - 643,246
BEERREMER Advances and other accounts 7,162,694 7,715,841 9130589 14516117 30,114,837 27315315 1352457 97,307,850
A ERS Available-for-sale securities - 38,794 99,208 1,422,570 16,016,130 4,006,511 322,415 21,905,648
REHBES Held-to-maturity securities - 261,815 101,075 2,365,107 4,319,543 - - 7,047,540
BENARE Investment in an associate - - - - - = 2,437,031 2,437,031
RFEHERRE Investments in jointly

controlled entities - - - - - - 54,246 54,246

8 Goodwill - - - - - - 811,690 811,690
ENEE Intangible assets - - - - - - 73,320 73,320
NEREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets = - - - = = 12315,763 1,315,763
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 735,502 735,502
IEteEE Current income tax assets - - - 51 - - - 51
ELfBEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 18,876 = = 18876
BERR Total assets 9,560,161 19,214,426 13,445,623 23,606,510 51,042,063 31,663,826 7,102,424 155,635,033
8f Liabilties
HikE Deposits from banks 146,583 872,226 812,626 314 813,871 - - 2,645,620
fTEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - 383,765 29,003 39,611 1,114,010 282,303 - 1,498,692
REEERRNER Trading liabilities - 18,500 1,418,069 646,446 195,029 - - 2,278,044
EPER Deposits from customers 35047107 41,848560 25,550,858 14,908,107 727,034 - - 118,081,166
BENERE Certificates of deposit issued - 253,929 13,363 4,813,188 671,982 - - 5,752,462
BENERES Issued debt securities - - - 1,937,792 775115 - - 2,712,907
RERK Subordinated notes - - - - 510,460 3,469,010 - 3,979,470
RtoiRE kR Other accounts and accruals 54,150 728,467 1,445,789 348,473 26,391 - 567,661 3,170,931
Ly = Current income tax liabilities - - - 102,865 - - - 102,865
ELfBaR Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - 3,934 = - 3,934
84 Total liabilities 35,247,840 43,755,447 29,269,208 22,796,796 4,837,826 3,751,313 567,661 140,226,091
FRatEE Net liquidity gap (25,687,679 (24,541,021)  (15,823,585) 809,714 46,204,287 27,912,513 6,534,763 15,408,942
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(AT TTAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HXEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 REBELEMRE@m 3.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
34.2 FEIHZ#7 (&) 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

1AL

E3EAHUT 3EANL 150
3 months 1 B5E
MHEE  1BAINT or less Over Over SENE

#17 Bank Repayable Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over  BHBHAH &t
135128318 At 31 December 2013 on demand 1 month 1 month to1 year to 5 years 5 years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
ReRERTHER Cash and balances with banks 2,199,992 4,077,910 - - - - - 61902
RN Placements with banks - - 1867374 2,083,530 116,308 - - 4067212
RIEEERRNES Trading securities - 147,493 481,050 5,358,136 349,109 - - 6,335,788

EENATENEEEZE Financial assets designated at
SABRNERAE fair value through profit or loss - - - = - - - -

TEERMIA Derivative financial instruments - 64,837 30,105 143,855 148,904 323,104 - 710,805
EEEHREEE Advances and other accounts 6,946,874 10065192 10402158 10,895,679 25046432 26,268,697 320713 89,945,740
ARLEES Available-for-sale securities - 383,989 39,426 2,101,347 19,328,062 4,994,214 217070 27,064,108
RENEES Held-to-maturity securities - 23,293 - 232,971 2,761,231 - - 3,017,495
BENTRE Investment in an associate - - - - - = 1,213,057 1,213,057
RFEHERRE Investments in jointly controlled

entities - - - - - - 20,000 20,000
EVAE Intangible assets - - - - - - 1,000 1,000
MEBARRERER Investments in and loans

to subsidiaries - - - - - - 3,501,138 3,501,138
NEREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - = 1,032,737 1,232,737
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 508,456 598,456
BEAT Total assets 9,146,866 14762714 12820108 20815518 47,750,046 31,586,015 7104171 143,985,438
& Liabilties
ROER Deposits from banks 143,635 1,364,832 174,688 70,805 1,395,693 - - 3,149,653
fEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - 119,058 45,486 128,204 711,698 104,711 - 1,109,217
RIEEERROER Trading liabilities - 477,501 1,000 2,767,146 116,826 = = 3,362,473
EPEH Deposits from customers 32097860 37,103,744 25611088 12,691,538 6,452 = - 108,410,652
BEIHEHE Certificates of deposit issued - 752,633 856,154 3352849 1,765,498 - - 1%
BRINERESF Issued debt securities - - - 775,385 - - - 775,385
iEEH Subordinated notes - - - - 486,740 3275731 - 376247
HtbiRE kiR Other accounts and accruals 8,077 713,220 757,989 347,742 3 - 467,374 2,294,433
HEREEE Current income tax liabilities - - - 153,879 = = = 153,879
ELfRak Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - 19,934 = = 19,034
BEaH Total liabilities 33149572 40530988  27,446375 20,287,548 4,502,872 3,380,502 467,374 129,765,231
FREtEE Net liquidity gap (24,002,706)  (25,768,274)  (14,626,267) 521,970 43,247,174 28,205,513 6,636,797 14,220,207
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(AT TTAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HXEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 REBELEMRE@m 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
34.2 2B H 57 (&) 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)
1EANE
{B3ERFMAT 3@ANE K
3 months 2E E5F
PHEE  1EAT or less Over Over SENE

&1 Bank Repayable Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over  EZHAE 8%
2012412 A31 A (4EZ5]) At 31 December 2012 (Restated) ~ on demand 1 month 1 month to 1 year t0 5 years 5 years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
ReRERINES Cash and balances with banks 1,095,862 8,931,076 - - = = - 10,026,938
RS Placements with banks - - 3,193,924 503,820 - - - 3,607,744
RIEEERRYNES Trading securities - 39,498 650,443 4,694,242 393,749 19,810 = 5,797,742
EENATESEESS  Financial assets designated at

TABRHEREE fair value through profit or loss - - - - - 21,743 - 21,743
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments - 83,400 40,789 41,295 207,792 298,665 - 671,941
EREHRAMEE Advances and other accounts 6,719,903 7,672,603 8,445,815 11,588,561 24958618 23,241,356 285,827 82,912,683

AR NEES Available-for-sale securities - 38,794 99,228 1,422,570 16,016,130 4,006,511 272,871 21,856,104
REEES Held-to-maturity securities - 155,019 101,075 1,162,971 3,755,124 = - 5,174,189
BENARS Investment in an associate - - - - - - 883,057 883,057

AREHERRE Investments in jointly controlled
entities - - - - - - 20,000 20,000
EVEE Intangible assets - - - - - - 4,000 4,000
HEBARRERER Investments in and loans
to subsidiaries - - - - - - 3,480,656 3,480,656

HEREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 937,136 937,136
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 733,559 733,559
ELHEEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 6,623 - - 6,623
BERR Total assets 7,815,765 16,920,390 12,531,274 19413459 45338036 27,588,085 6,617,106 136,224,115
af Liabilities
i Deposits from banks 186,659 734,456 972,790 30,685 813,871 - - 2,738,461
ik Derivative financial instruments - 33,741 30,200 39,610 1,103,433 282,303 - 1,489,287
HEEERAMER Trading liabilities - 18,500 1,418,069 646,446 195,029 - - 2,278,044
RPER Deposits from customers 28234360 38,007,203 22794776 11,445,822 4171 - - 100,576,332
BEfRENE Certificates of deposit issied - 250,121 - 5,095,007 671,082 - - 6,217,110
BEMTNEHES Issued debt securities - - - 1,937,792 715115 - - 2,712,907
G Subordinated notes - - - - 510,460 3,469,010 - 3979470
Hi0iRE R Other accounts and accruals 9,726 688,086 1,406,520 250,094 14 - 511,119 2,865,559
SEREEE Current income tax liabilities - - - 86,583 - - - 86,583
B4 Total liabilities 28,430,745 39,822,107 26,622,355 19,732,039 4,074,075 3,751,313 511,119 122,943,753
ey lig 3 Net liquidity gap (20,614,980)  (22,901,717)  (14,091,081) (318,580) 41,263,961 23,836,772 6,105,987 13,280,362
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

In respect of certificates of deposit held for investment purpose
and included in total assets as at the end of the reporting period,

AHFIRAAT the relevant balance, analysed based on the remaining period to
contractual maturity, is shown as follows:
1EARE
E3EAIUT 3fEANL 10
3 months EE E5F
PHEE  1EAINT or less Over Over SENE
Repayable Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over  SERH it
-1 Group on demand 1 month 1 month to1 year to 5 years 5 years Indefinite Total
0135128318 At 31 December 2013
FREpan: Certificates of deposit held
included in:
RENEES Held-to-maturity securities - - - 1,006,441 99,831 - - 1,106,272
2012512 A31A At 31 December 2012
FEaan: Certificates of deposit held
included in:
REHEES Held-to-maturity securities - - - - 399,701 - - 399,701
1EARL
RIEEEDES 3EANL 150k
3 months L3R E5F
HfEE  1EAINT or less Over Over SENL
Repayable Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over  BHHAH it
#17 Bank on demand 1 month 1 month to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Indefinite Total
01312831 At 31 December 2013
EREpan: Certificates of deposit held
included in:
REIHES Held-to-maturity securities - = - = = - - -
012412318 At 31 December 2012
EREpan: Certificates of deposit held
included in:
REIHES Held-to-maturity securities - - - = = = = -
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and
interest rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the
management of the Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely
matched, as businesses transacted are often of uncertain term
and of different types. An unmatched position potentially enhances
profitability, but also increases the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at
an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are
important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its
exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of
the commitment because the Group does not generally expect the
third parties to fully draw funds under the agreements. The total
outstanding contractual amount of commitments to extend credit
does not necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of
these commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that
will be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group
manages the inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted
cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis
include:

o Foreign exchange derivatives: over-the-counter (OTC) currency
options, currency futures, exchange traded currency options;

° Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, interest rate futures and
other interest rate contracts; and

° Equity derivatives: equity options.
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(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HXEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 REBELEMRE@m 3.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
343 BAEXBE HZKEBEE LT (&) 3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
(Continued)
AEEBBIRBHEEELERE 2 ITETABEE The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:
. SNESTAE T B : R=HAIIME - SNESRER . Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency
swaps;
. MZELTHE T B« F| 2= $e HY [ 32 #2 6 B | 2 ° Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps and cross currency
A R interest rate swaps; and
. EEMITATR  FRENBEN - . Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.
1EAULE
I@ASMUT  3EAME 1E0E
3 months BE Z5%
1fBRZUT or less Over Over 55
&8 Group Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over &5t
201312318 At 31 December 2013 1 month 1 month to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Total
FTEIERSER Non-derivative cash flow
=L Liabilities
RITHER Deposits from banks 698,688 2,616 2,545 1,398,357 - 2,102,206
EPHER Deposits from customers 82,530,917  28,825453 18,080,136 1,795,564 988 131,233,058
HEEERENAE Trading liabilities 477,501 1,879 2,769,048 116,175 - 3,364,603
BETHERE Certificates of deposit issued 761,700 869,997 2,805,211 1,851,787 - 6,288,695
BERTHERES Issued debt securities 27 - 775,411 - - 775,438
{&(BER Subordinated notes - 106,607 105830 2513200 1,920,877 4,646,514
HigE Other liabilities 683,942 493,033 285,328 - - 1,462,303
BREES Total liabilities
(BH3IHE) (contractual maturity dates) 85,152,775 30,299,585 24,823,509 7,675,083 1,921,865 149,872,817
fIETARSR Derivative cash flow
BFREENE Derivative financial instruments
tRTE settled on net basis (56,908) (70,572) (322,775) (121,973) (3,694) (575,922)
RIEREE 2 TE Derivative financial instruments
ERIA settled on a gross basis
it 5 Total outflow 24,428,483 | | 12,409,656 | | 15,391,173 | | 3,474,947 649,780 | | 56,354,039
AR Total inflow (24,359,868)( | (12,373,388)| | (15,208,642) (2,775,658) (451,578)| | (55,169,134)
68,615 36,268 182,531 699,289 198,202 1,184,905
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEERERE @) 3.
3.4 REBESRES @
348 BEXNBE A Z KB BEELT (&)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

112

(Continued)
1EAN LR
SEATIAT AL 1 E
3 months BE B5F
1EASAT or less Over Over 5EN
£H Group Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over At
2012612310 At 31 December 2012 1 month 1 month to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Total
FETARER Non-derivative cash flow
A Liabilities
RITHEH Deposits from banks 824,561 580,914 236,630 1,031,766 - 2,673,871
RFER Deposits from customers 76,714,783 25,222,539 15,909,413 1,256,317 88,955 119,192,007
FIEEERGENERE Trading liabilities 18,500 1,419,155 648,239 193,257 - 2279151
BETNENE Certificates of deposit issued 262,534 22,753 5,376,134 680,714 - 6,342,135
BRINESES Issued debt securities 11,468 - 1,971,003 780,744 - 2763215
1&(BME% Subordinated notes - 107,679 107,008 2,663,650 2,087,353 4,915,690
g Other liabilities 666,694 1,151,384 344,991 - - 2,163,069
RfEER Total liabilities
(GHEL =) (contractual maturity dates) 78,498,540 28504424 24,593,418 6,606,448 2,126,308 140,329,138
TETERER Derivative cash flow
BEREEINE Derivative financial instruments
SRTA settled on net basis (8,064) (11,627) (68,315) (21,950) - (109,956)
RABEE 2T Derivative financial instruments
tRTE settled on a gross basis
it 5 Total outflow 17,085,279 | | 17,758,005 | | 27,680,324 4,769,121 590,736 | | 67,863,465
MABE Total inflow (17,096,083)| | (17,743,823)| | (27,438,906)| | (3,886,775) (523,470)( | (66,689,057)
(30,804) 14,182 241,418 882,346 67,266 1,174,408

REFRITAERAR | 2013FF
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(LA T TTAI5IIR)
3. WXEERERE @) 3.
3.4 REBESRES @

348 BEXNBE A Z K BEEZT (&)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(Continued)
1fHALLLE
EAHIUT 3EANL 1EN0E
3 months 21E B5E
1EAEMUT or less Over Over S5ENUL

17 Bank Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over fit
2013128 31H At 31 December 2013 1 month 1 month to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Total
FHETARSR Non-derivative cash flow
& Liabilities
RITHER Deposits from banks 1,607,251 175,234 72,122 1,395,693 - 3,250,300
EPER Deposits from customers 70203632 25734864 12,848,480 6,674 - 108,793,650
FIEEERGENERE Trading liabilities 477,501 1,879 2,769,048 116,175 - 3,364,603
BETNENE Certificates of deposit issued 761,681 869,409 3,406,107 1,851,787 - 6,888,984
BRINESES Issued debt securities 27 - 775,411 - - 775,438
1&(BME% Subordinated notes - 106,607 105830 2518200 1920877 4,646,514
g Other liabilities 651,451 463,136 232,032 - - 1,346,619
RfEER Total liabilities

(R#51H8A) (contractual maturity dates) 73,701,543 27,351,129 20,209,030 5883529 1,920,877 129,066,108
TEIARER Derivative cash flow
BEREENE Derivative financial instruments

SRTA settled on net basis (56,908) (70,572) (322,774) (121,973) (3,694) (575,921)
RABEE 21T Derivative financial instruments

tRTE settled on a gross basis

it Total outflow 24,409,041 | | 12,401,250 | | 15,142,594 | | 3,482,071 649,780 | | 56,084,736
MABE Total inflow (24,340,927)| | (12,364,603)( | (14,966,078) | (2,796,599) (451,578)| | (54,919,785)
68,114 36,647 176,516 685,472 198,202 1,164,951
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEERERE @) 3.
3.4 REBESRES @
348 BEXNBE A Z KB BEELT (&)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

114

(Continued)
1A LR
SMAFLT  SEAME 1EE
3 months ZE B5E
1EASMUT or less Over Over 5EE
BT Bank Up to but over 3 months 1 year Over ait
2012612310 At 31 December 2012 1 month 1 month to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Total
FETERSR Non-derivative cash flow
& Liabilities
BITER Deposits from banks 922,632 976,258 30,716 821,570 = 2,751,176
REEH Deposits from customers 66,431,686 22,900,050 11,588,499 4,339 - 100,924,574
FIEEERZNER Trading liabilities 18,500 1,419,155 648,239 193,257 - 2,279,151
BETNENE Certificates of deposit issued 258,661 8,801 5,358,484 680,714 - 6,306,750
BEINERES Issued debt securities 11,468 - 1,971,003 780,744 - 2783215
RERK Subordinated notes - 107,679 107,008 2,663,650 2,037,353 4,915,690
g Other liabilities 614,452 1,123,807 234,525 - - 1972874
BEAE Total liabilities
(R#51H8A) (contractual maturity dates) 68,257,309 26535930 19938474 5144274 2,037,353 121,913,430
ITETARER Derivative cash flow
REBEE L HTE Derivative financial instruments
$RIA settled on net basis (8,064) (4,493) (68,316) (21,950) - (102,823)
RIEREE 7 T4 Derivative financial instruments
tRTE settled on a gross basis
it 5 Total outflow 17,198,624 | | 17,758,226 | | 27,681,635 | | 4,775,146 590,736 | | 68,004,367
AL Total inflow (17,230,002)| | (17,743,823)| | (27,446,254)| | (3,916,180) (523,470)| | (66,859,819)
(31,468) 14,403 235,381 858,966 67,266 1,144,548

REFRITAERAR | 2013FF




B RS R R ML
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(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 REBELEMRE@m 3.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

343 BAEXBE HZKEBEE LT (&) 3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
(Continued)

ARANEMNTERERAERRIEERECZE Assets available to meet all of the liabilities and to cover outstanding

EBERS PR RIBTHEE - EKE 2IBEH loan commitments include cash, central bank balances, items in

LMEEES  RITERRBR IRFERLR the course of collection and treasury bills; loans and advances to

o EAEERD  AMHIRENERAEN—FENRN banks; and loans and advances to customers. In the normal course

NEBZEPEFEEES - ko - BRES KE of business, a proportion of customer loans contractually repayable

BEEHFOHKBARERAR - KEEWA]FE B within one year will be extended. In addition, debt securities and

HEBEFLKBAEINESRE (HlI0 : BETS) treasury bills have been pledged to secure liabilities. The Group

AR ZREME & FRA o would also be able to meet unexpected net cash outflows by selling

securities and accessing additional funding sources such as asset-
backed markets.

344 BERMEFKIEA 3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items

TREFEATHER : Included in the table below are the following items:

o PAAE TR EEREMBEZE R o Loan commitments by reference to the dates of the contractual
E(REZEAEEEEAGRINEGRIAY amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments
AEHAREHE) that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities;

. AR B A BB IR G R BB SE 2 B A . Financial guarantees based on the conditions existing at the
R reporting date as to what contractual payments are required;

o REEAEEAZ TR BUBK & H L& IE o The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
MAREBL Nz HIEBAENERE & operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments

where a Group company is the lessee; and

o EERENEEZEINEIE- o Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and

equipment.
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(LA T TTAI5II7R)

3. WXEERERE @)
3.4 REBESRE @
344 BEEEEXKIEE (&)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items (Continued)

1E LR 1L 5ELR

&M Group No later E5 Over =
2013F12H 31 H At 31 December 2013 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
SRR Loan commitments 63,521,453 4,146,585 53,883 67,721,921
FER A R EA 2 B ARTES Guarantees, acceptances
and other financial facilities
—HH - Acceptances 948 - - 948
—ER&ERERE - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 1,834,851 225,603 83,217 2,143,671
—REREEERE - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 650,876 - - 650,876
REIF Forward forward deposits placed 12,457 = = 12,457
I TR Operating lease commitments 193,353 226,260 61,661 481,274
BIARAENE Capital commitments 175,369 = = 175,369
CE Total 66,389,307 4,598,448 198,761 71,186,516
1ELA 15 54 AR
] Group No later allis Over BFF
2012412 A31H At 31 December 2012 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BRI Loan commitments 54,319,767 5,654,776 12,669 59,987,212
FER AL R E SRR Guarantees, acceptances
and other financial facilities
— &K - Acceptances 1,024,085 - - 1,024,085
—EREERERE - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 356,464 545,879 83,217 985,560
- REREEEZRF - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 735,233 - - 735,233
EHFR Forward forward deposits placed = = = =
IR KR Operating lease commitments 158,094 255,268 58,161 471,523
BARAYE Capital commitments 196,496 - - 196,496
&t Total 56,790,139 6,455,923 154,047 63,400,109

REFRITAERAR | 20135F F




B RS R AR M L
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(LA T TTAI5II7R)
3. WXEERERE @) 3.
3.4 REBESRE @

344 BEEEEXKSIEE (&)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items (Continued)

1EHUR 1% 5F L%
R1T Bank No later ZE5E Over &t
2013F12H 31 H At 31 December 2013 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BRRIE Loan commitments 60,614,753 2,913,526 - 63,528,279
FER A R EA 2 B ARTES Guarantees, acceptances
and other financial facilities
—EREERERE - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 200,882 20,929 - 221,811
- REREECZHEF - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 520,296 - - 520,296
RETFH Forward forward deposits placed 12,457 = = 12,457
I E TR A A Operating lease commitments 172,592 166,948 - 339,540
BAAEYE Capital commitments 171,883 - - 171,883
At Total 61,692,863 3,101,403 - 64,794,266
1EAR 1E AR 5F LAtk
R17 Bank No later E5F Over &t
201212 A31H At 31 December 2012 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
EEiE Loan commitments 53,375,373 2,669,691 - 56,045,064
R A& RE SRR Guarantees, acceptances
and other financial facilities
—HER&EAERE - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 155,525 23,027 - 178,552
—REREEERE - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 628,530 - - 628,530
REIF Forward forward deposits placed 1,594 = = 1,594
I E TR A A Operating lease commitments 144,858 215,688 2,998 363,544
BIRESE Capital commitments 189,006 - - 189,006
=H) Total 54,494,886 2,908,406 2,998 57,406,290
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(@) Determination of fair value

Fair values are subject to a control framework that the Board is
held responsible for ensuring proper valuation governance and
control processes of the Group. It delegates the responsibility
for overseeing the valuation process for financial instruments
to the TIRC. Valuation is performed independently by RMCD
and the valuation results are periodically verified to ensure the

integrity of the fair value measurement process.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date under current market conditions regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation

technique.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency. A quoted price in an active market provides
the most reliable evidence of fair value and shall be used
whenever available. If a financial asset or a financial liability has
a bid price and an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the circumstances is
used by the Group.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(CABREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEEKRERE @) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
35 SREEREBZAFE @ 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(F) RNFEZETE) (a)  Determination of fair value (Continued)

MemTE A BIRmGREREEEE
B AEEFAGERERZRYZHE
FEGFZELRIAE 2 AFE  BRER
BEREREEREEERD - RERZE
SR T A HERAN  AEEERAR
EEREETERREE(GN: FE.E
X RBE - EEEE)  MEXLBREES
AT BRIKE - flanfREHEHO2A
FERMGAHNRRRER2RETE - B
HINES K 2 ATFE—RBERTREARE
R MEREHZAFEIEZEEEZ
E(ERAGTE - 20 Black-Scholes &AL o

AEBEEAIMEREREAFEERRS
2 UEBTESRABREEZEALRFE
AEZHEMARZRE - HWAKBEZEER
BEEME BEZEETR  AEESHE
RzFaBEZNE - WAKEZEESE
WE - afZBELA  ARES®RE
LZEREEE -

MEFE  ANGERFZEREERS
BEWTABZRAETER  HHLHE
FEEBENNMHERBR

Where observable market quotation of financial instruments is
not directly available, the Group estimates the fair value of such
financial instruments by using appropriate valuation techniques
that are widely recognised including present value techniques
and standard option pricing models. In applying valuation
techniques for these financial instruments, the Group maximizes
the use of relevant observable inputs (for examples, interest
rates, FX rates, volatilities, credit spreads) and minimizes the
use of unobservable inputs. For examples, the fair value of
interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, the fair value of foreign exchange
forward contracts is generally based on current forward
rates and the fair value of option contracts is derived using
appropriate pricing models, such as Black-Scholes model.

The Group uses external price quotes and its own credit risk
spreads in determining the current value of its financial liabilities
and other liabilities for which it has elected the fair value option.
When the Group’s credit spreads widen, the Group recognises
a gain on these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has
decreased. When the Group’s credit spreads narrow, the Group
recognises a loss on these liabilities because the value of the
liabilities has increased.

Price data and parameters used in the measurement process
are reviewed carefully and adjusted, if necessary, to take
consideration of the current market developments.
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A - fImEE -
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Ex B EEE X (BIER) s (B
WEREH) AR 28R %R
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EEABARRN AT BSR AR 2 it
MERES o

AFRITARAR | 20134 |

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.
3.5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(b)  Fair value hierarchy

The Group measures fair values using the following hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the observable and unobservable
inputs used in the fair value measurement:

Level Descriptions

1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities. This level includes equity
and debt securities that are listed on exchanges or
regularly quoted in the market, and exchange traded
derivatives like futures.

2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices). This level includes the majority of the
over-the-counter derivative contracts.

3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This
level includes equity and debt securities with significant

unobservable components.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEERERE @) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
35 SREEREBZAFE @ 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(Z) N-FEZRE) (b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

BATEAEZEERERE

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

%8 Group F1H F2R EIMR =5
201312831 H At 31 December 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
ANFEFEEEESF A Financial assets at fair value
Tﬁmﬁﬁ{lﬁﬂﬁg through profit or loss
HEEERR Held for trading
B E Debt securities - 6,335,788 - 6,335,788
EENATEFNEEHE Designated at fair value through
=2 ;#ME/\ profit or loss
ﬁn’*%p’i% Debt securities - 4,248 - 4,248
fTESRMTA Derivative financial instruments
RHIEEERZ Held for trading - 299,574 - 299,574
A R{EL S Held for hedging - 387,495 - 387,495
AN E s SREE Available-for-sale financial assets
RIS &5 Debt securities - 26,847,037 4,753 26,851,790
EmEES Equity securities 70,288 122,599 75,141 268,028
BATENEZEERR Total assets measured at fair value 70,288 33,996,741 79,894 34,146,923
TEFEEES Financial liabilities at fair value
J)\Téﬁﬁﬁ%‘ﬁ@ through profit or loss
RIEEERZ Held for trading - 3,362,473 - 3,362,473
PTEERIA Derivative financial instruments
HEBERR Held for trading - 459,361 - 459,361
FE R+ Held for hedging - 657,895 - 657,895
BNTEFEZBERR Total liabilities measured at fair value - 4,479,729 = 4,479,729

RERFIGHEEZERMEERIFLTE
BUERAFREFRE - WESREERK
BERATFEAENBZKAETR

Financial assets classified as Level 3 assets represent
investments in unlisted equity securities and debentures. They
are stated at cost which is considered to be a reasonable

approximation of fair value.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

M REEE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
SREEREGZAYE @) 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(Z) RNFEZRE) (b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
BAFEAEZEERERE (&) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

#H £2013F12 A31 H k2012412 A 31
MEsMmEENBEE AkiE

BIEFE -

For the year ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,
there were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities into or

EAFESRFTREIRG - REEBEZEZ out of the Level 3 fair value hierarchy. The changes in carrying
AINEBFIEEE - value represent the exchange revaluation gains/losses.
&8 Group R FoM F34 =H)
201212 A31 H At 31 December 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
ATEFEBEZHF A Financial assets at fair value through
Té!ﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬁrgﬂﬁ? profit or loss
HEBERR Held for trading
EEES Debt securities - 5,797,742 - 5,797,742
BENATEFEAH Designated at fair value through
ZERTABR profit or loss
B ES Debt securities - 23,525 - 23,525
fTESMTA Derivative financial instruments
HEEERE Held for trading - 213,497 - 213,497
A R{EEH Held for hedging - 429,749 = 429,749
AfHE s SREE Available-for-sale financial assets
BI85 Debt securities - 21,583,231 &7/ 21,586,984
R Equity securities 145,635 106,925 66,104 318,664
BATEFECEEST Total assets measured at fair value 145,635 28,154,669 69,857 28,370,161
AR P EFEBEZETA Financial liabilities at fair value
BRNTHEE through profit or loss
HEEERE Held for trading - 2,278,044 - 2,278,044
fTESRMIA Derivative financial instruments
HEEERE Held for trading - 241,828 - 241,828
AR Held for hedging - 1,256,864 - 1,256,864
BATEFEZBEA Total liabilities measured at fair value - 3,776,736 = 3,776,736
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEERERE @) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
35 SREEREBZAFE @ 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

() N FEZR &) (b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

BATEAECZEENABE  (8) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

R1T Bank F1H F2R EIMR =5
201312831 H At 31 December 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
WAFEFEBEZSFA  Financial assets at fair value through
BafemEE profit or loss
HEEERR Held for trading
BERBEH Debt securities - 6,335,788 - 6,335,788
EENATEFNEEHE Designated at fair value through
ZERT A BR profit or loss
BEREH Debt securities - - - -
fTESRMTA Derivative financial instruments
RHIEEERZ Held for trading - 323,310 - 323,310
A R{EL S Held for hedging - 387,495 - 387,495
AN E s SREE Available-for-sale financial assets
BRES Debt securities - 26,847,037 4,753 26,851,790
EnEES Equity securities 69,562 104,442 38,314 212,318
BATEFECEEST Total assets measured at fair value 69,562 33,998,072 43,067 34,110,701
WAFEEREEE A Financial liabilities at fair value
BRNERAR through profit or loss
RIEEERZ Held for trading - 3,362,473 = 3,362,473
TESMTA Derivative financial instruments
RIEEERZ Held for trading - 466,226 = 466,226
AR Held for hedging - 642,991 = 642,991
BEATEECAES Total liabilities measured at fair value - 4,471,690 = 4,471,690

RERFIGHEEZERMEERIFLTE
B2EEFREFRE WFEREERK
BRATEABHNBZKAETR

Financial assets classified as Level 3 assets represent
investments in unlisted equity securities and debentures. They
are stated at cost which is considered to be a reasonable
approximation of fair value.
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HXEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

35 SREEREBZAFE @ 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(Z) NFEZRE) (b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
BRATEAEZEERBE  (&8) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

#H £20134F12 A31 H KX2012412 A 31 For the year ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,
HIEFE  HiEcpEERBEBEE ARE there were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities into or
HEAFESFRFPNEIRG - BREE 2 out of the Level 3 fair value hierarchy. The changes in carrying
AINEBHIEEE o value represent the exchange revaluation gains/losses.
iR1T Bank F1H FoH E3R A%
201212 A31H At 31 December 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
ATEFEBREZEF A Financial assets at fair value through
Té!ﬁﬁﬁ’]%@?&éf? profit or loss
HEEERR Held for trading
EHE S Debt securities - 5,797,742 - 5,797,742
EENAATEFNEEHE Designated at fair value through
ZERT A BR profit or loss
1%&% Debt securities - 21,743 - 21,743
fTESRTA Derivative financial instruments
HEEERE Held for trading - 242,192 - 242,192
A R{ELH Held for hedging - 429,749 - 429,749
AHEEZeREE Available-for-sale financial assets
BISES Debt securities - 21,583,231 3,753 21,586,984
EnEES Equity securities 145,265 94,568 29,287 269,120
BATENEZEERR Total assets measured at fair value 145,265 28,169,225 33,040 28,347,530

AT EEBEEB A Financial liabilities at fair value

BafemaE through profit or loss

RIEEERZ Held for trading - 2,278,044 - 2,278,044
fTESRMTIA Derivative financial instruments

HEEERE Held for trading - 257,861 - 257,861

AR Held for hedging - 1,231,426 - 1,231,426
BATEHEZBERR Total liabilities measured at fair value = 3,767,331 = 3,767,331
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEERERE @) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.5 SRIEENEBZAFEH®@® 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

(A) AL FlEGTEZEHMTA ()

TREAZERAEE RARITH B
RARARFEI R ZEMEERAEBEZ
FREEMATE EREMBEENE - 1
ERFETRE(ER) AREAZRT
SHERARBRZ M TERKSONE
MBS RMAET AR RREMS @ BT

SERRBEETE °

The table below summarises the carrying amounts and fair
values of those financial assets and liabilities not presented in
the Group’s and the Bank’s statement of financial position at
their fair value. For disclosure purposes, these fair values have
been estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows
at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments, if applicable, or in the case of
investment securities, determined based on market prices or
price quotations.

BREE NEE
Carrying value Fair value

£E Group 2013 2012 2013 2012
ERMEE Financial assets
R e RIERITH AR Cash and balances with banks 8,270,012 13,472,376 8,267,832 13,472,235
TERITHITF 3K Placements with banks 4,101,293 3,990,627 4,112,843 3,993,829
REER MBI Loans and advances to customers

BAAEZ Loans to individuals

—fEAR — Credit cards 4,162,473 4,425,525 4,162,888 4,426,032

—RBER — Mortgages 27,122,139 23,749,843 27,122,028 23,749,762

— Hfth — Others 6,674,529 5,422,866 6,668,029 5,391,286

BEER Loans to corporate entities

—BHIER — Term loans 27,590,155 24,257,026 27,582,271 24,245,669

—IRIBER - Mortgages 13,148,257 11,876,133 13,148,615 11,876,310

—EoRE — Trade finance 6,911,081 5,360,541 6,908,396 5,358,190

— HAh — Others 12,377,528 11,090,926 12,379,431 11,085,702
BEoEE Trade bills 5,925,648 4,329,872 5,975,492 4,387,616
BIEEER & ERGIE Investments in securities

MR BHIRE included in the loans and

receivables category 1,137,631 3,398,020 1,020,606 2,994,523

REIHES Held-to-maturity securities 5,669,289 7,047,540 5,732,857 7,043,371
SRBE Financial liabilities
RITIF X Deposits from banks 1,995,297 2,645,620 1,997,667 2,644,960
BEEHR Deposits from customers 129,945,133 118,081,166 129,992,712 118,102,888
EBITHERE Certificates of deposit issued 6,132,561 5,752,462 6,124,475 5,759,413
BEEBITHERE S Issued debt securities 775,385 2,712,907 774,718 2,732,129
BIEER Subordinated notes 3,762,471 3,979,470 3,826,392 3,957,519
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
35 SREEREBZAFE @ 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(A) KERFEFGTEC 2T A ) (c)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)
FREE NEE
Carrying value Fair value
$R1T Bank 2013 2012 2013 2012
SRMEE Financial assets
R R RITHIAE SR Cash and balances with banks 6,277,902 10,026,938 6,278,342 10,027,255
FERITHI T 3K Placements with banks 4,067,212 3,697,744 4,075,537 3,700,109
EFEERRBR Loans and advances to customers
BAAER Loans to individuals
—fEAR — Credit cards 3,956,449 4,246,084 3,956,449 4,246,084
—RBER — Mortgages 22,137,902 19,737,100 22,137,902 19,737,100
— HAth — Others 5,708,366 4,589,844 5,710,203 4,574,675
BEER Loans to corporate entities
—BHIER — Term loans 22,039,535 19,816,001 22,031,651 19,804,644
—IRIBER — Mortgages 10,584,833 10,029,414 10,584,833 10,029,414
—EFRrE - Trade finance 5,918,454 5,024,007 5,918,454 5,024,007
—HAh — Others 11,028,919 9,743,909 11,027,604 9,743,942
525 Trade bills 6,271,548 4,323,710 6,321,392 4,381,454
BIEEER K EWFIE Investments in securities
BRI 2 BHIRE included in the loans and
receivables category 908,239 3,165,438 804,898 2,782,391
BEIEHES Held-to-maturity securities 3,017,495 5,174,189 3,075,886 5,186,513
=R Financial liabilities
HRITIF Deposits from banks 3,149,653 2,738,461 3,149,663 2,738,471
BPER Deposits from customers 108,410,652 100,576,332 108,543,962 100,690,023
BB TR Certificates of deposit issued 6,727,134 6,217,110 6,718,597 6,223,796
BT ERE S Issued debt securities 775,385 2,712,907 774,718 2,732,129
BIBE Subordinated notes 3,762,471 3,979,470 3,826,392 3,957,519

() ERITHER

ERTHZEFERARBRIERZ A
ETDEREE - BEMBFRZAF
ETREHAERBEERRREIHA
TGRS ) 2 BT PAE BT & 5 5 X
AHEZEFRBRESR -

REFRITAERAR | 2013FF

(i) Placements with banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(CABREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEEKRERE @) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
35 SREEREBZAFE @ 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

() RIZERFEGTEZ S/ TAE) (c)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)

iy BEFEZKENR KEFEE

ERRBRRESGRER A ATE
B ARG KBRS R BE
2R o AR MR IT SN KA
BIABEATE °

ERREBSBREERKEYRK
B RERIBERCHEEE -
EXHEEMERREYRIEZ AT
EERETISERILLRE X HER
B HABHEER  RFEZGE
TR ARREE - B8R kR
FRHEMNESMISHE -

(V) ROAFRRGEH BEER-
BBETNEREREMEAE
o

EXAZMAZENK - BRAMER
H o EATFERRNEZHE - K
BEETSME 2 BIEMEFHRME
fibfEsx - R FETRBERAMNAE
R 2 H B RIEREE R 2 FTE TS B R E
ZERBELRmEE -

(v) EBEBETHNEFEFBRERCET

RREER

HABTSHEZESTE - AEA
A BIE IR 2 o A 2k
R/ SR 8RR RIS 2
e -

(ii) Loans and advances to customers, and trade bills

The estimated fair value of loans and advances and trade
bills represents the discounted amount of estimated future
cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows
are discounted at current market rates to determine fair

value.

(iii)  Investment securities

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the loans and receivables, and held-to-
maturity categories. Fair value of held-to-maturity assets
and loans and receivables is based on market prices or
broker/dealer price quotations. Where this information is
not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

(ivy Deposits and balances from banks, deposits from
customers, certificates of deposit issued and other
borrowed funds

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated
maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits,
is the amount repayable on demand. The estimated
fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits and other
borrowings not quoted in an active market is based on
discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts
with similar remaining maturity.

(v) Debt securities in issue including subordinated
notes issued

For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, the present value technique is used based on
current yield curve and/or credit spread appropriate for
the remaining term to maturity to estimate fair value.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.6 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

o To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

o To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a
going concern;

° To maximise returns to shareholders and optimise the benefits
to other stakeholders; and

o To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital are monitored
regularly by the Group’s management, employing techniques based
on the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented
by the HKMA, for supervisory purposes. The required information is
filed with the HKMA on a quarterly basis.

As the first phase of Basel lll has become effective from January 2013,
the Bank is required to meet three ratios, namely, the Common Equity
Tier 1 capital, Tier 1 capital and Total capital respectively against
risk-weighted assets. The internationally agreed minimum of these
three ratios as of 1 January 2013 are set at 3.5%, 4.5% and 8.0%
respectively and are adopted by the HKMA. In addition, the capital
conservation and countercyclical capital buffers newly introduced
under Basel Il will be implemented from 1 January 2016 in Hong
Kong. In line with the international standards, the HKMA also adopts
the phase-in arrangements for new capital requirements in relation to
the Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, Tier 1 capital ratio and capital
buffers as proposed by the Basel Committee and will achieve full
implementation by 1 January 2019.
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3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.6 BEXREE#) 3.6 Capital management (Continued)

7]1] ERBREERFEEEEERAKINZEER Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted amounts
- TR AR R 2 INERREEES T - for credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and covers both on-

ﬁé%%i’%lﬁﬂ IRARRES A S EREREEE S balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. On-balance sheet

HREKERBLERRUZINMEETRILERE exposures are classified according to the obligor or the nature of each

iﬁ’\ﬂ?i%@&ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ%(éﬁ)%EE‘J>>Z exposure and risk-weighted based on the credit assessment rating

JRAIB B ZERR EERRE &R 52 REE assigned by an external credit assessment institution recognised by

HingERE - EEERERIIMNEBERED B R the HKMA or other rules as set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules,

mERREFERN  EEASERR ZABEER taking into account the capital effects of credit risk mitigation.

HREHEHAEESERE  BMOESEEDNEE Off-balance sheet exposures are converted into credit-equivalent

BEXRARRE - amounts by applying relevant credit conversion factors to each

exposure, before being classified and risk-weighted as if they were
on-balance sheet exposures.

AEEEEEFHILREMeRmEER(RMHEE Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
B RFPHBTEEEEEZE 2 ([P RHEEE Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and banking subsidiary in China,
2 ) REERERENESI2HZE  BEEEEZ DSB China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s management,
SRS BRI TR SR 1T Kb B B SR 1T AT employing techniques based on the guidelines provided by the
RIT(RAR) 2EARAFTREREZEERNZER ° Autoridade Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM?”) and the China Banking
Regulatory Commission (“CBRC”) respectively for supervisory

purposes.
SRPIREIRTT RAFIRIT (P E) 955 JF'T?@FEJ/\';q The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by
BT EEESRFEERMELL - RASE DSB China with the CBRC on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires
R ERFI R ERITARE Ifﬁﬁf‘\%ﬁmk%ﬁfﬁ BCM and the CBRC requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own
ﬁ ( ) SBGEHE B H & AR E RERE S N funds or capital base to total risk-weighted exposures (i.e. the capital
bpiasE 2 bR (AVEART R &R ) MEREE R adequacy ratio) not lower than the agreed regulatory minimum of 8%.

EIZEi1£E7}<$ 8% °

AREBETIHRBEITHBE AR N ABREEMEE Certain non-banking subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to
B BRREEBERER®) ETE statutory capital requirements from other regulatory authorities, such
IRFE o as the Securities and Futures Commission.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and
advisory services to third parties, which involve the Group making
allocation and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety
of financial instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary
capacity are not included in the Group’s financial statements. These
services could give rise to the risk that the Group could be accused of
mal-administration.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Changes in estimates and assumptions may
have a significant impact on the results of the Group in the periods
when changes are made. The application and selection of different
estimates and assumptions, and their subsequent changes, could
affect the Group’s profit and net asset value in the future. The Group,
based on its high-level assessment of the sensitivity impacts on the
reported assets and liabilities of the Group arising from the changes
in critical accounting estimates and assumptions, believes that the
estimates and assumptions adopted are appropriate and reasonable,
and the financial results and positions presented in the Group’s
financial statements are fair and reasonable in all material respects.
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JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(@) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at
least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment
loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group
makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease
can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio.
This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of
borrowers in a group, or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on assets in the Group. Management uses estimates
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to
those in the portfolio when estimating its future cash flows of
recoverable amounts. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows
are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

(b)  Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried
at fair value are valued based on observable market quotations.
As a consequence of the difficulties in financial markets caused
by the 2008 global financial crisis, the Group had witnessed
observable declines in market liquidity and the range of market
quotations for certain securities have widened. The Group
applies judgement in selecting the most appropriate quotation
for valuation purposes based on its assessment of the range
of observable quotations, recent observable transactions, the
reliability and quality of the pricing source, and the value of
securities of a similar nature.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4.

4.1

4.2

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(c) Goodwill and intangible asset valuation

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition
of goodwill and intangible assets, any major change in the
assumptions in relation to future benefits to be generated from
the intangible assets, including future cash flow of benefits
to be generated from the acquired entities, or discount rates
which could be caused by major changes in market conditions
and outlook, could result in adjustments to the carrying values
of such assets. In the event that the expected recoverable
amounts of goodwill and intangible assets are significantly lower
than their carrying values, impairment of such assets would
have to be recognised.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies

(@) Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property. In making its judgement, the Group
considers whether the property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable
not only to property but also to other assets used in the
production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held to
supply services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
can be sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance
lease), the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted
for as investment property only if an insignificant portion is held
to supply services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is applied in determining whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as investment
property. The Group considers each property separately in
making its judgement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4.

4.2

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(b) Impairment assessment on available-for-sale equity
securities, and investments in debt securities included
in the available-for-sale, held-to-maturity and loans and
receivables categories

The Group has conducted assessment of its available-for-sale
equity securities, and investments in debt securities included
in the available-for-sale (“AFS”), held-to-maturity (“HTM”)
and loans and receivables (“LNR”) categories as of the end
of the year and up to the date of the approval of the financial
statements of the Group. Assessment for any impairment, on
individual and collective basis, is made with reference to the
financial strength and credit rating of each issuer, industry
development and market conditions, and historical loss
experience of a portfolio of similar credits provided by rating
agencies. The Group has concluded that there are no objective
or specific indications that any of its AFS, HTM and LNR
securities is individually impaired as at 31 December 2013.

Given the continuing uncertain conditions in global credit
markets, the Group has conducted an assessment of its debt
securities on a collective basis. Based on its judgement, the
Group identified certain information indicating a possible
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a certain
group of debt securities, even though the decrease cannot
yet be identified with an individual debt security. The
judgement formed by the Group takes into account the
nature of the securities held and its evaluation of the impact
of market volatility, changes in credit conditions and market
developments on the recoverable amounts. Based on its
evaluation, a collective impairment allowance had been
recognised for a group of debt securities since 2011. As at
31 December 2013, the amount of such collective impairment
allowance was HK$75 million.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(c)  Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This
classification requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to
hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep
these investments to maturity other than for the specific
circumstances — for example, selling an insignificant amount
close to maturity - it will be required to reclassify the entire
class as available-for-sale. The investments would therefore be
measured at fair value, not amortised cost.

(d)  Assessment of claims and contingencies

Judgement is needed to determine if provision for
compensation to certain customers who had bought structured
investments distributed (but not originated or arranged) by the
Group need to be recorded in accordance with the requirements
of HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates the
information relating to each or similar cases, and the likelihood
and estimated amount of outflow of resources which may be
incurred to settle the obligation after considering factors such as
recent settlement experiences and advice from legal counsel.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment reporting by the Group is prepared in accordance with
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”. Information reported to the chief
operating decision maker, including the Chief Executive and other
Executive Committee members, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, is determined on the basis
of personal banking, commercial banking, treasury and overseas
banking business. Operating performances are analysed by business
activities for local banking business, and on business entity basis for
overseas banking business.

Considering the customer groups, products and services of local
businesses, the economic environment and regulations, the Group
splits the operating segments of the Group into the following
reportable segments:

° Personal banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from individual customers and the extension of residential
mortgage lending, personal loans, overdraft and credit card
services, the provision of insurance sales and investment
services. Starting from 2013, hire purchase finance and leasing
related to vehicle and transport financing are included under
personal banking business. Certain comparative amounts have
been revised to conform with the current year’s presentation.

° Commercial banking business includes the acceptance of
deposits from and the advance of loans and working capital
finance to commercial, industrial and institutional customers,
and the provision of trade financing. Hire purchase finance and
leasing related to equipment financing are included.

° Treasury activities are mainly the provision of foreign exchange
services and centralised cash management for deposit taking
and lending, interest rate risk management, management of
investment in securities and the overall funding of the Group.

° Overseas banking businesses include personal banking,
commercial banking business activities provided by overseas
subsidiaries in Macau and China, and the Group’s interest in a
commercial bank in China.

° Others include results of operations not directly identified under
other reportable segments, corporate investments and debt
funding (including subordinated notes).
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the purpose of segment reporting, revenue derived from
customers, products and services directly identifiable with individual
segments are reported directly under respective segments, while
revenue and funding cost arising from inter-segment funding
operation and funding resources are allocated to segments by way
of transfer pricing mechanism with reference to market interest rates.
Transactions within segments are priced based on similar terms
offered to or transacted with external parties. Inter-segment income
or expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are
allocated to various segments and products based on effort and time
spent as well as segments’ operating income depending on the nature
of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to segments, products and support functions
are grouped under Others as unallocated corporate expenses.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(LAEREFThzgI7R)

5. EXEDEREE 5.
HZ2013F12H31 ALLEE

OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BARS BERT BT #1ER
Personal  Commercial &R Overseas A Inter- @it
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Others segment Total
FHERA/ (i) Net interest income/(expenses) 1,283,273 914,331 372,738 524,456 (243,130) - 2,801,668
FEHSRA/ (i) Non-interest income/(expenses) 444,435 239,291 286,112 120,380 (92,953) ") 997,194
EENA Total operating income 1,677,708 1,153,622 658,850 644,836 (336,083) M) 3,798,862
BELH Operating expenses (1,094,529) (296,834)  (138,141)  (443,201) (35,642) 7 (2,008,276)
pilaeHE] Ay Operating proft/(oss) before impairment
&/ (58) losses 583,179 856,788 520,709 0165 (371,729) - 1,790,586
EAEERRAMEE Loan impairment losses and other credit
Bk (RR)/ M provisions (charged)/written back (140,949) (92,699) 25,000 (101,158) - - (309,806)
ThAEEEk 28 Operating profit/(oss) after impairment
&/ (58) losses 442,230 764,089 545,709 100477 (371,729) - 1,480,780
&R - RENERALM Nt (loss)/gain on disposal and fair value
EREEREATEREL adjustment of premises, investment
F(BR)/ ki properties and other fixed assets 2,167) - = 30 17,837 = 15,700
HERFRET (BR)/ s Nt (loss)/gain on disposal of investments
in securites - - (21476) - 27,53 - (100341)
RRLERERTREBE Loss on deemed disposal of investment
in an associate - - - (56,971) - - (56,971)
ElEBELm %E Share of results of an associate - - - 578,556 - - 578,556
ElhLREEE 26 Share of results of jintly controlled entties - - - - 17311 - 17,311
RiLER/(B8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 440,063 764,089 417,833 622,092 (309,042) - 1,935,035
B (S)/ B Taxation (expenses)/credit (73989 (126,075) (68,942) (27,460) 60,908 - (235,550)
BHigER /(B8 Profit/{loss) after taxation 366,074 638,014 348,891 594,632 (248,134) - 1699477
HZ2013512A31A For the year ended
IH5E 31 December 2013
TENBHER Depreciation and amortisation 44,266 6,467 5,047 38,062 25,064 = 118,906
R2013%E12 A318 At 31 December 2013
PREE Segment assets 39,495,699 49216979 47675728 32,018,112 3,082,778 (4,527,594) 166,961,702
AREE Segment liabilities 69,441,655 32,237,167 14025526 24,726,047 14,012,022 (4,527,594) 149,914,823
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. #EESERE @ 5.
HZE2012F12 A31 B ILEE (KE5)

OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Restated)

138

{EAST iG] MR EIEE
Personal  Commercal BIA%H  Overseas £t Inter- &t
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Others segment Total
FHERA/ (i) Net interest income/(expenses) 1,058,573 714,774 306,212 392,840 (269,482) - 2202017
FEHSRA/ (i) Non-interest income/(expenses) 342,623 149,042 208,374 78,224 (24,487) (99) 753,681
EENA Total operating income 1,401,196 863,816 514,586 471,064 (293,969) (95) 2,956,598
BB Operating expenses (1,044,030) (249,027) (128,291) (351,116) (16,508) 95 (1,788,877
TRREEEZEE Operating proft/(oss) before impairment
&/ (58) losses 357,166 614,789 386,295 119,48 (310477) - 116772
ERREERREMES Loan impairment losses and other credit
BiE(iE)/n% provisions (charged)/written back (84,382) 23,454 (61,966) (20,857) 62 - (143,689)
ThREFRk EE Operating profit/(oss) after impairment
&/ (E8) losses 272,784 638,243 324,329 99,091 (310,415) - 1,024,082
&R - RENERALM Nt (loss)/gain on disposal and fair value
ErAERELATERE adjustment of premises, investment
F(BR)/ Wi properties and other fixed assets (1,549) - - 4,120 131,187 - 133,758
HERFRAFER Net loss on disposal of investments
in securities - - (64,128) - - - (64,128)
ElBERA EE Share of results of an associate - - - 490,806 - - 490,806
ElLREHESE 38 Share of results of jintly controlled entities - - - - 13,385 - 13,385
R/ (B8) Profit/{loss) before taxation 271,235 638,243 260,201 594,017 (165,843) - 1,507,853
BB () Taxation (expenses)/credit (4729 (105,310) (42,984) (18,265) 56,170 - (155,009)
RikER/(B8) Profit/{loss) after taxation 226,506 532,033 217,287 575,752 (109,673) - 1442755
EE012512A31H For the year ended
i3 31 December 2012
NEREHER Depreciation and amortisation 49,152 11,853 7,452 39,270 1,658 = 109,385
R2012E12 4317 At 31 December 2012
PBAE Segment assets 35,047,350 44346608 49,757,413 26,306,191 2,882,073 (2,704,602) 155,635,033
PERfR Segment liabilities 65620885 28882670 13,101,445 20,031,758 15293935 (2,704,602 140,226,091
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(LAEREFThzgI7R)

5. ZEESERE @) 5.
TRBEINTRE 2 WS TIREMNRER ~ BN
B ZRITHBARIMRE s T EERERE - 8
EEIXGENR CERE EERE BFRE

° of credit, asset-based finance, securities investment services offered

OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Revenues from external customers were contributed from banking
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and People’s Republic of China,
with major products and services including deposit taking, extension

&

to customers.

TREHZREBEZER  BREDREAEE
ASNEPE PR EART - BEBMER S REIBE
ESA TE MRS 2 T M T EERR.

The following tables provide information by geographical area, which
was determined with reference to the domicile of the legal entities
within the Group with business dealing and relationship with, and

services to external customers.

B 5 B[
EEREAM Inter-
Hong Kong P segment st
and Others Macau elimination Total
EZE20135F12A31 A For the year ended
LFE 31 December 2013
2 A Operating income 3,464,174 334,688 = 3,798,862
R A B Al Profit before taxation 1,779,917 155,118 = 1,935,035
R2013E12H31H At 31 December 2013
BEAG Total assets 153,449,806 15,868,862 (2,356,966) 166,961,702
BEAE Total liabilities 138,387,245 13,884,544 (2,356,966) 149,914,823
BREEREE Intangible assets and goodwill 319,667 558,265 = 877,932
BEN-EEVES Contingent liabilities and
commitments 73,127,390 1,889,509 - 75,016,899
& 32 53 T ]
1K 84
BB REA Inter-
Hong Kong oA segment et
and Others Macau elimination Total
BZE2012612 A31H For the year ended
LILFE (BE7)) 31 December 2012 (Restated)
2 A Operating income 2,702,328 254,261 2,956,598
R A B A Profit before taxation 1,500,314 97,530 1,597,853
R20124 12 A31 B (KE51) At 31 December 2012 (Restated)
BEAG Total assets 143,346,739 13,805,842 (1,517,548) 155,635,033
BEA Total liabilities 129,779,476 11,964,163 (1,517,548) 140,226,091
BREERGE Intangible assets and goodwill 322,667 562,343 = 885,010
SABERAE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 64,333,313 2,056,644 - 66,389,957
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6. FFEWA

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. NET INTEREST INCOME

2013 2012
FIE WA Interest income
R e RIERITOEERR Cash and balances with banks 337,526 342,772
BHIKE Investments in securities 668,661 669,963
FZHEEFNEMIER Advances and other accounts 3,357,693 2,853,853
4,363,880 3,866,588
FMEXH Interest expense
ROIERBEER Deposits from banks/Deposits
from customers 1,297,471 1,426,482
BB TITF K& Certificates of deposit issued 90,181 43,706
BEEITHERES Issued debt securities 35,793 48,446
&IBETS Subordinated notes 133,513 141,109
Hh Others 5,254 3,928
1,562,212 1,663,671
FIEWABIE Included within interest income
ETRE 2 FEWA Interest income on listed investments 589,638 582,943
FELEMRE 2 FBHA Interest income on unlisted investments 79,023 87,020
668,661 669,963
KARFEFE B EEH T ABE Interest income on financial assets
NERMEE 2 FBWA not at fair value through profit or loss 4,342,986 3,843,318
BEEEFSWA Interest income on impaired assets 1,204 3,688
MEXHEE Included within interest expense
RANFEFE HEZ G ABE Interest expenses on financial liabilities
HEMBEZMESH not at fair value through profit or loss 1,560,179 1,496,125
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(LAEREFThzgI7R)

7. FRBERAEBA

7. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

2013 2012
REERASKA Fee and commission income
RKAQNFEFEBHE Fee and commission income from
ATAERHEREERAREZ financial assets and liabilities not
fRi%E KA WA at fair value through profit or loss
—EEEBREERME — Credit related fees and commissions 103,855 74,596
—BE5mE - Trade finance 68,237 51,203
—EAR — Credit card 302,699 276,929
H RIS E RAS WA Other fee and commission income
—BHELLEAS - Securities brokerage 85,557 59,061
—{REREHE R H M — Insurance distribution and others 98,528 67,516
—ZEREEC RV EEERS — Retail investment and wealth
management services 130,846 85,829
—RITRBERFEE - Bank services and handling fees 51,175 44,518
— B RIS & — Other fees 95,005 82,044
935,902 741,696
REERASIH Fee and commission expense
RKAQNFEFEBHE Fee and commission expense from
TAERHEREERAREZ financial assets and liabilities not
IR E RAE = H at fair value through profit or loss
—FEEBERAS - Handling fees and commission 218,330 198,586
—BRNEMREER — Other fees paid 15,659 12,560
233,989 211,146

REBERE=FRHAE X7 EEXEFERK
BEERY - REUXEBEASFORBZEEL T

BEENFMHERERA -

The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and

investment management services to third parties. Those assets that

are held in a fiduciary capacity are not included in these financial

statements.
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(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
8. BFREEWA 8. NET TRADING INCOME
2013 2012
HNE B B F U Net gain arising from dealing in
foreign currencies 211,664 235,301
HIEEBERSENES2F (BB) W Net (loss)/gain on trading securities (772) 4,201
FHEEBREMITET A 2 F e Net gain from derivatives
entered into for trading purpose 56,317 13,878
AAFELFRERER A 2 FEE Net loss arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge (39,677) (65,960)
EENAATEE B EZBF ABEN Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
SRMIAZFKE/(B8) instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss 14,640 (9,253)
242,172 178,167
9. HMZEEWA 9. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2013 2012
AHEEFHEE ZRBMA Dividend income from investments in
available-for-sale securities
— FTHE — Listed investments 6,516 4,719
—FEEMEE — Unlisted investments 5,797 5,050
‘B B WA LRE Gross rental income from
investment properties 18,124 17,682
H A Other rental income 8,658 6,815
Hh Others 14,014 10,698
53,109 44,964
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

10. EEXH 10. OPERATING EXPENSES
&7
Restated
2013 2012
& B % KA A2 i Employee compensation
(BEEEHM) (KEE11) and benefit expenses (including
directors’ remuneration) (Note 11) 1,212,100 1,065,446
TEREMEEEESH - Premises and other fixed assets
NEIETE expenses, excluding depreciation
—1TEZHE® - Rental of premises 188,760 150,121
—Hft - Others 117,879 99,723
e (H5E34) Depreciation (Note 34) 111,828 99,322
BE RIEHER S Advertising and promotion costs 86,101 76,969
EDfpY ~ SRR EE Printing, stationery and postage 48,291 45,062
M EE#HER (H5E32) Amortisation expenses of
intangible assets (Note 32) 7,078 10,063
Z BTN Auditors’ remuneration 7,016 6,805
HAit Others 229,223 235,366
2,008,276 1,788,877

1. EEFMEENSE

11. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND BENEFIT

EXPENSES

2013 2012
FREMASER Salaries and other staff costs 1,118,763 995,474

LARZ (D B EERE RN 2 B e 1 Provision for share-based

(M93E50) compensation charged
(Note 50) 26,452 7,252

BRETH Pension costs

— AEHKETE — defined contribution plans 66,885 62,720
1,212,100 1,065,446
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12. EXREBREREMEERE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

12. LOAN IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND OTHER CREDIT

PROVISIONS
2013 2012
BHUREEE Loan impairment losses
BEERREAMRE RESE Net charge/(reversal) of impairment
R (E5) losses on advances and other accounts
—E5RE - Trade bills 937 1,067
—EFENR - Advances to customers 334,188 80,531
— JERT R B R E AR AR B - Accrued interest and other accounts (319) 117
334,806 81,715
BER R EMR B R EEE Net charge/(reversal) of impairment
@kﬁé/ 1) losses on advances and other accounts
— (&R - Individually assessed 161,796 (1,496)
— kA — Collectively assessed 173,010 83,211
334,806 81,715
B e Of which
— g R EEINER - new and additional allowances
(BERFENEE (including amounts directly
WisH <z £%58) written off in the year) 413,155 176,026
SCIEC - releases (30,259) (38,946)
—gE - recoveries (48,090) (55,365)
334,806 81,715
Hth {5 S B4 Other credit provisions
BIEEER R EWGIE R 2 Net (reversal)/charge of impairment losses on
BHILE 2 REBEF (ER), Rk investments in securities included
in the loans and receivables category
— EBIFFE — Individually assessed - 61,974
—IRA - Collectively assessed (25,000) -
(25,000) 61,974
Wz BR A 32 Net charge to income statement 309,806 143,689
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(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

13. HETERAEMGEETEERITER 13. NET (LOSS)/GAIN ON DISPOSAL AND REVALUATION

23 (F518) W OF PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS
KE5
Restated
2013 2012
TEEE 2R (AR 1E B Deficit reversed on
revaluation of premises - 390
HEITE 2 F s Net gain on disposal of premises - 4,318
HEHAREEBE 2 FEE Net loss on disposal of
other fixed assets (2,715) (1,749)
(2,715) 2,959
14, REVEQAFEAEZFRE 14. NET GAIN ON FAIR VALUE ADJUSTMENT OF
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2013 2012
WEYFE AT ERAR 2F W Net gain on fair value adjustment
of investment properties 18,415 130,799
15. HERSFREZFER 15. NET LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF INVESTMENTS IN
SECURITIES
2013 2012
& ] i B 5B 5 R IR a Net gain on disposal of available-
for-sale securities 107,287 75,737
& BEEE R R EYIEER Net loss on disposal of investments
ZBEFIEEFEE in securities included in the loans
and receivables category (172,413) (107,284)
HEREIAESFEE GE) Net loss on disposal of
held-to-maturity securities (Note) (35,215) (32,581)
(100,341) (64,128)
i Note:
MR 2013 F % 2012 F 7 H & Ji& & = H A i & Ip The disposals in 2013 and 2012 were made after considering risk and external
EAZX - factors.
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16. RELEBEATAREZER

NEBPE LR EERT([EEET]) 2BRHD
i BEERITN2013F 11 BEEFA TR E
H-f% 2 BIX AR B E H 20% fEZE 16.95% °

REBEBGETAERISE 28 (M E A RIRE VT
ERREEERRMBREERR T HARE
EAHHEBESATENETREFHEERZA
A o FAER 20% —MREWR R TEREERY
87 IRIEZFZENEBURMER -

HRAEEEERRTEEFSAREAER LA
BRNZEREKRER  AEEREBRRITZER
B R AEEERE A RRE

AEER2013FEEERITHA RN THE - 12
BRRLETHOEERTZRERE - Z15 A
MOHERDS R BRI EHREERTT
BRARBIRTRE - EFETRO ZE8RFAE
FRIBEREZEETRARBRAT 2 8RR EEE
M ESROFEEE TR -

REFRITAERAR | 2013FF

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

16. LOSS ON DEEMED DISPOSAL OF INVESTMENT IN
AN ASSOCIATE

The Group’s shareholding interest in Bank of Chongging (“BOCQ”),
which is the Group’s associate, decreased from 20% to 16.95% after
BOCQ completed its initial public offering (“IPO”) of H-shares in Hong
Kong in November 2013.

In accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard No. 28,
“Investments in Associates”, an associate is an entity over which the
investor has significant influence, including the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions, without controlling the
management of the investee. Usually a holding of less than 20% is
presumed not to have significant influence, unless such influence can
be clearly demonstrated.

The Group’s interest in BOCQ has been accounted for as an associate
using the equity method as the Group has representation in the
Board of BOCQ, and the ability to participate in the decision making
process.

The reduction in the Group’s shareholding in BOCQ in 2013 is treated
as a deemed partial disposal of investment in BOCQ. The loss arising
from the deemed partial disposal is caused mainly by the lowering
in the net asset value per share of BOCQ immediately after the
completion of the BOCQ IPO, as the net proceeds per share on the
new issue are lower than the net asset value per share immediately
before the IPO. With the partial disposal of the Group’s interest in
BOCQ having been recognised, the reduction in the Group’s share of
BOCQ net assets is accounted as a deemed disposal loss.
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(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

17. BiE 17. TAXATION

7 T 15 B Th 1% BB FE N 1 51 FE =R 51 i A1) DA Bt =X Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2012:
16.5% (2012 5 : 16.5% ) IR ° BIINIIAES 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
H TR E NG IME ST FE R S R K AN 2 B 4R a2 32 overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable
R 2RI R E o profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in

which the Group operates.

ELHRESRBAEINEREZ8 - IREMZSE Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
HIEAEEENEREERN THREFMEE 2/ the liability method at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
REZHRER o year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
K &5
Restated
2013 2012
REERIE: Current income tax:
—FBMEH - Hong Kong profits tax 193,995 120,863
—BIINIR - Overseas taxation 48,362 16,657
—RIBAEFE (B5E), /TR 2 — (Over)/under-provision in prior years (374) 167
EIEFIA (FizE42): Deferred income tax (Note 42):
— BT R A= LA A IR — Origination and reversal of
temporary differences (6,966) 21,036
— B (R ) B &1 - Reversal/(recognition) of tax losses 541 (3,625)
THIE Taxation 235,558 155,098
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

17. ﬁlﬁ (#&) 17. TAXATION (continued)

REBBRBBDSEN 2 HIBEARNGEES & A 7 inkE The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
EETR R E IR EERL T ¢ theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax

rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

&5
Restated
2013 2012
R A5 B Al Profit before taxation 1,935,035 1,597,853
RE AR SRR 2 A Fi R+ E 2 FiE Tax calculated at domestic tax rates
applicable to profits in the
respective countries 319,281 263,646
MIE AR Tax effects of:
H A B 2 S RIA 2 Different taxation rates in
other countries (7,460) (2,838)
BRI WA Income not subject to taxation (11,232) (50,522)
TEEFDR A 2 Expenses not deductible 33,661 27,837
AR B2 B AR R Results of associates and
HENEGIE S 2 5 jointly controlled entities
reported net of tax (98,318) (83,192)
RBAEFE (B) T2 EE (Over)/under-provision in prior years (374) 167
THIE Taxation 235,558 155,098
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
18. EEME 18. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
2013 2012
EZHe Directors’ fee 202 =
e FE - BEUHmREMER Salaries, housing, benefits in kind and
other allowances 89,940 80,106
BIRe Pensions 2,817 3,020
92,959 83,126
19. REREMLER 19. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
PR ANBITHERERAZRREMG B The profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the financial
1,094,244,00075 (20124 : /& #912,454,00078 statements of the Bank to the extent of HK$1,094,244,000 (2012:
JT) ° profit of HK$912,454,000).
20. BRE 20. DIVIDENDS
]RIT Bank 2013 2012
EIRFERE - BiRE@R2.248 T Interim dividend paid of HK$2.2
(20124 : 2.10/87T) (2012: HK$2.10) per ordinary share 110,000 96,600
BORREAIR S « SRR EEAR5.087T Proposed final dividend of HK$5.0
(20124 : 4.80757T) (2012: HK$4.80) per ordinary share 250,000 240,000

360,000 336,600
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
21. BERESRITHEE 21. CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS
&8 R1T
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
B RERTHAER Cash and balances with banks 3,304,369 2,326,558 2,199,992 1,095,862
BAMEEER Money at call and short notice 4,965,643 11,145,818 4,077,910 8,931,076

8,270,012 13,472,376 6,277,902 10,026,938

22. ERITHER 22. PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS
%8 BT
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
ERT1E12fAR Placements with banks maturing
BB TE R between one and twelve months 4,101,293 3,990,627 3,950,904 3,697,744
FERRIT12 @ A LASH Placements with banks maturing
ZIEREITE R beyond twelve months - = 116,308 =

4,101,293 3,990,627 4,067,212 3,697,744
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23. HFIFEEAENESREEURQF

P e

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

EfEEESETARENEHME

23. TRADING SECURITIES AND FINANCIAL ASSETS
DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

J=3 OR LOSS
&8 $RAT
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
FHEEE RERES Trading securities:
BRES Debt securities:
—&BLEm - Listed in Hong Kong 1,211,300 548,781 1,211,300 548,781
—JEEm - Unlisted 5,124,488 5,248,961 5,124,488 5,248,961
RIEEERZNBF B Total trading securities 6,335,788 5,797,742 6,335,788 5,797,742
EENATEFEAEE Financial assets designated at
FABENEREE fair value through profit or loss:
BBES Debt securities:
— BB ET - Listed outside Hong Kong 4,248 23,525 - 21,743
HEEERENE S RIEE Total trading securities and
WAFEREBEZETA financial assets designated at
BRENeREERE fair value through profit or loss 6,340,036 5,821,267 6,335,788 5,819,485
BREEERBESFNE : Included within debt securities are:
- BREEREEERR - Government bonds included in
EBH BN ES trading securities 6,335,548 5,795,924 6,335,548 5,795,924
—HthEKES - Other debt securities 4,488 25,343 240 23,561
6,340,036 5,821,267 6,335,788 5,819,485

R2013FE K 2012F12 A31H @ i EEE R
B A A FEFENEFEFERANTERER

B -

FERERZMNESMEENARHEAERRE
B ABRSNEREERBETERERRN DT

debt securities.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, there were no certificates of
deposit held included in the above balances of trading or fair value

Trading securities and financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss are analysed by categories of issuers as follows:

T ¢

%8 81T

Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
—RRBT R RIRAT — Central governments and central banks 6,335,548 5,795,924 6,335,548 5,795,924
—NE - Public sector entities 240 1,409 240 1,409
— TR EME REE - Banks and other financial institutions = 409 - 409
—% - Corporate entities 4,248 23,525 - 21,743
6,340,036 5,821,267 6,335,788 5,819,485
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

24. $TEEWMIA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2013412 A 31 H A2 Hf Bz EE The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivative contracts
AEREAFENT : and their fair values as of 31 December 2013 were as follows:
B4/
2ReH AYE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE af
%8 Group amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEEBERBZITETA 1) Derivatives held for trading
R SMETETA a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BHRHEEH Forward and future contracts 49,420,058 80,348 (136,686)
AR T AME B Currency options purchased and written 74,747,110 205,612 (203,254)
L) FIETETA b) Interest rate derivatives
F=HE Interest rate futures 821,908 600 (19)
&= 5 Interest rate swaps 10,700,774 10,486 (116,874)
N) EntiTE TR ¢) Equity derivatives
BARUE L e Equity options purchased and written 228,285 2,528 (2,528)
ﬁﬁ“ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁZﬁ KTA Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
&/ (afE) A held for trading 135,918,135 299,574 (459,361)
2) BEHHARZITETR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
B)EEN L TFEEHZITETA a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
&= 5 Interest rate swaps 19,947,380 387,495 (623,816)
Bitklaih Currency swaps 1,379,471 = (34,079)
ﬁﬁ”ﬂ‘?qﬂ}ﬂﬁﬂﬁilﬁ Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held
BE/(BE)A for hedging 21,326,851 387,495 (657,895)
BHRR 24T Ei% Total recognised derivative financial
LE/ (A4 E assets/(liabilities) 157,244,986 687,069 (1,117,256)
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B RS R AR M L
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

24. $TEELBI B @)

R2012F 12 A31 BREIBITETEAOZEE

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivative contracts

ReREAFEWT : and their fair values as of 31 December 2012 were as follows:
&8/
2 AEE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE BE
L] Group amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEEBERBZITETA 1) Derivatives held for trading
R SMETETA a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BHRHEEH Forward and future contracts 64,252,866 130,837 (66,258)
B A\ ot T NE H3E Currency options purchased and written 43,336,993 71,746 (71,809)
O)FIETETA b) Interest rate derivatives
MEHE Interest rate futures 1,550,230 116 -
&= 5 Interest rate swaps 7,487,004 10,177 (103,140)
N) EntiTE TR c) Equity derivatives
BARE LR Equity options purchased and written 39,874 621 (621)
FEEERSZITETR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(BE)AG held for trading 116,666,967 213,497 (241,828)
2) BEHFARZITETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
R) BEURFEH 2 TETLR a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
|5 Interest rate swaps 18,685,659 397,412 (1,256,864)
Bitklaih Currency swaps 1,427,468 32,337 =
FEERARZTETR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(&f8) A held for hedging 20,113,127 429,749 (1,256,864)
BRRZITASRIA Total recognised derivative financial
BE/(BF)As assets/(liabilities) 136,780,094 643,246 (1,498,692)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24. PTESRT A @)
R 20134F 12 A31 HARRITAREBITETAESY
ZREAEREAFENT

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivative contracts
of the Bank and their fair values as of 31 December 2013 were as

follows:

&5/
254 H AYE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE af
17 Bank amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEEBERBZITETR 1) Derivatives held for trading
B SMELTET R a) Foreign exchange derivatives
RERBEEY Forward and future contracts 49,141,391 79,595 (136,315)
AR HINE R Currency options purchased and written 74,747,110 205,622 (203,267)
L) FIET4TA b) Interest rate derivatives
FEHE Interest rate futures 821,908 600 (19)
&= Hy Interest rate swaps 10,832,589 34,965 (124,097
R) #Em HTET A c) Equity derivatives
BB ARG I E Equity options purchased and written 228,285 2,528 (2,528)
FEEERBZITETR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/ (8 A held for trading 135,771,283 323,310 (466,226)
2) FEEHRRBZITETR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
R)EEN A FEE AR a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
g peegect i Interest rate swaps 19,829,254 387,495 (608,912)
Bimih Currency swaps 1,379,471 - (34,079)
FEERARZITETIR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(AfF) &5t held for hedging 21,208,725 387,495 (642,991)
ERRZITERRTA Total recognised derivative financial
BE/(8F) A assets/(liabilities) 156,980,008 710,805 (1,109,217)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AT TTAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
24, PTESBTE . 24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
M2012F 12 A31 BARBITARBEPTETEEL The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivative contracts
ZERERNEREQAFERT of the Bank and their fair values as of 31 December 2012 were as
follows:
&4/
2ESH AYE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE BE
RAT Bank amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEEBERBZITETR 1) Derivatives held for trading
B SMELTET R a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BHRBEEN Forward and future contracts 64,385,863 130,668 (66,234)
B AR I NE i Currency options purchased and written 43,336,993 71,746 (71,809)
) FIEPTET R b) Interest rate derivatives
Fl=EE Interest rate futures 1,550,230 116 =
ik bl Interest rate swaps 7,889,048 39,041 (119,197)
R) EntiTE TR ¢) Equity derivatives
BARE LR Equity options purchased and written 39,874 621 (621)
ﬁfﬁgé‘?ﬁkﬂﬁilﬂ Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(BfE)A held for trading 117,202,008 242,192 (257,861)
2) BEHHARZITETR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
B)EENL TR ITET A a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
sty Interest rate swaps 18,546,026 397,412 (1,231,426)
S Currency swaps 1,427,468 32,337 -
ﬁf’ﬁ“ﬂ‘?qﬂﬁ%%ﬁmﬁilﬁ Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(BB) A held for hedging 19,973,494 429,749 (1,231,426)
Eﬁ@?ﬂiﬁiﬁ%ﬁllﬁ Total recognised derivative financial
BE/(af) &t assets/(liabilities) 187,175,502 671,941 (1,489,287)
WENMETAECATEREZRAR 2 EEFHE The effect of bilateral netting agreements, where applicable, has been
mEZHE(MER)NEE - taken into account in disclosing the fair value of derivatives.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
24. PTESRT A @) 24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Group
BERS RS st
Trading Hedging Total
22EH Notional amount 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
ERAH Exchange rate contracts
BERHASEH Forward and futures contracts 49,420,058 64,252,866 - - 49,420,058 64,252,866
Lser Currency swaps - - 1379471 1,427,468 1,379,471 1,427,468
MNEHES D Foreign exchange option contracts
—~BASNERE - Currency options purchased 37,373,555 21,668,497 - - 37,373,555 21,668,497
— b JNE - Currency options written 37,373,555 21,668,496 - - 37,373,555 21,668,496

124,167,168 107,589,859 1,379,471 1,427,468 125,546,639 109,017,327

FlEAH) Interest rate contracts
EARBERY Forward and futures contracts 821,908 1,550,230 = - 821,908 1,550,230
it Interest rate swaps 10,700,774 7,487,004 19,947,380 18,685,659 30,648,154 26,172,663
11,522,682 9,037,234 19,947,380 18,685,659 31,470,062 27,722,893
HiaH Other contracts
EntEReY Equity option contracts
S IN il - Options purchased 114,143 19,937 - - 114,143 19,937
—h - Options written 114,142 19,937 - - 114,142 19,937

228,285 39,874 - = 228,285 39,874
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24. STEEMI A

P E

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

#17
Bank
EERS ARG Fhy
Trading Hedging Total
22EH Notional amount 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
EXA4 Exchange rate contracts
BRERBEAY Forward and futures contracts 49,141,391 64,385,863 - - 49,141,301 64,385,863
Lser Currency swaps - - 1379471 1,427,468 1,379,471 1,427,468
MNEHES D Foreign exchange option contracts
—~BASNERE - Currency options purchased 37,373,555 21,668,497 - - 37,373,555 21,668,497
— b JNE - Currency options written 37,373,555 21,668,496 - - 37,373,555 21,668,496
123,888,501 107,722,856 1,379,471 1,427,468 125,267,972 109,150,324
M=EH Interest rate contracts
EARBERY Forward and futures contracts 821,908 1,550,230 = - 821,908 1,550,230
it Interest rate swaps 10,832,589 7,889,048 19,829,254 18,546,026 30,661,843 26,435,074
11,654,497 9,439,278 19,829,254 18,546,026 31,483,751 27,985,304
HiaH Other contracts
EntEReY Equity option contracts
S IN il - Options purchased 114,143 19,937 - - 114,143 19,937
— b - Options written 114,142 19,937 - - 114,142 19,937
228,285 39,874 - - 228285 39,874

t D

N

BERZEREANTEPEERSIET SR
BRZMEANTE TR -

The trading transactions include positions arising from the

execution of trade orders from customers or transactions taken

to hedge these positions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEET TTALFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
24, {TEE£BT A @) 24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
LA RIEEEERGEINERZIIERAER The credit risk weighted amounts of the above off-balance sheet
AT AREEF L 2 E2FHAETH (WER) exposures as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 calculated
2222013412 A31 HK& 2012412 A31 H under Basel Il and Basel Il basis respectively and, where applicable,
BEBBERINBEENEERRINESZE - 250 without taking into account the effect of bilateral netting arrangements
T that the Group entered into, are as follows:
%8 81T
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
EXE4 Exchange rate contracts
BHRAERN Forward and futures contracts 309,229 451,359 304,463 451,920
3t Currency swaps 13,795 20,742 13,795 20,742
YN\ Currency options purchased 847,750 491,391 851,058 491,393
FIEEH Interest rate contracts
== 5 Interest rate swaps 209,991 183,695 219,546 196,753
Hina 4 Other contracts 7,809 1,586 7,809 1,586
1,388,574 1,148,773 1,396,671 1,162,394
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24, {TEE£BT A @) 24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
WETAZANBHEEAERBKEHARNRS The contract amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
2 WAMKRERBREE - transactions outstanding as at the end of the reporting period. They

do not represent the amounts at risk.

FEERRNESREN2EEE2ERRH 2R The credit risk weighted amounts are the amounts that have been
TE(ER)RBBDMABE 285 GHEFZE calculated with reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the
FEPR TR ZEF R ZIEAS LR RE © HKMA. The amounts calculated are dependent upon the status of the

counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

AR ST RIE S AW FE2.9 155 o The hedging practices and accounting treatment are disclosed in Note
2.9.

NG BB LAR R 18 B 20 2 A B S AR The Group hedges a portion of its existing interest rate risk in
BREEERKEWFIAELRERNZFHFIEE - aHH investments in securities included in the loans and receivables
EEFEFRBEETEEZBHREFERRE - category, available-for-sale debt securities and issued liabilities by
¥ TH 7 s % 466,453,000 75 7T (2012 4F - fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swap. The gains on
E518 481,425,000/ T) » ¥ 1A B E(G ¥ E the hedging instruments were HK$466,453,000 (2012: losses of
% 2 E518 4 506,130,000/8 7T (2012 £F : Uizs A HK$81,425,000). The losses on the hedged item attributable to the
15,465,0007%870) ° WWFFEE 2R WESs 2 hedged risk were HK$506,130,000 (2012: gains of HK$15,465,000).
[ARAFELHEBESE T A2 FS B | The net impact is disclosed in “Net gain/loss arising from financial
Al o instruments subject to fair value hedge” in Note 8.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABREFThzgI7R)

25. BEHERKAEMKRE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

&5 R1T
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BAE R KB Loans and advances to
individuals
— AR — Credit cards 4,162,473 4,425,525 3,956,449 4,246,084
—RIBER - Mortgages 27,122,139 23,749,843 22,137,902 19,737,100
—Hfh - Others 6,674,529 5,422,866 5,708,366 4,589,844
TEERNEBK Loans and advances to
corporate entities
—BHEER — Term loans 27,590,155 24,257,026 22,039,535 19,816,001
—EZBER — Mortgages 13,148,257 11,876,133 10,584,833 10,029,414
—B5mE — Trade finance 6,911,081 5,360,541 5,918,454 5,024,007
—HAth — Others 12,377,528 11,090,926 11,028,919 9,743,909
EFEERMEEE Gross advances to customers 97,986,162 86,182,860 81,374,458 73,186,359
=t Trade bills 5,925,648 4,329,872 6,271,548 4,323,710
Hin & E (F7E36) Other assets (Note 36) 3,673,803 3,816,653 1,680,146 2,527,956
107,585,613 94,329,385 89,326,152 80,038,025
bk : BE%EE Less: Impairment allowances
— &R FT Ay — Individually assessed (244,294) (90,726) (110,549) (42,544)
— R B RHE — Collectively assessed (201,212) (170,578) (103,102) (89,985)
(445,506) (261,304) (213,651) (132,529)
BREEER KL EWE Investments in securities
Rz BEHEE included in the loans and
(P 26) receivables category
(Note 26) 1,062,631 3,239,769 833,239 3,007,187
BHEERRHEMER Advances and other accounts 108,202,738 97,307,850 89,945,740 82,912,683
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(LABREFThzgI7R)

25. BREERREMERE @)
(F) EFERRBRRESZEBVHREMER (a)

25. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

B HRK

and advances to customers, and trade bills

Impairment allowances - Individual assessment

(B2 — (BRI FFAE

REBER Hitr A%t
&8 Group Mortgages Others Total
BAERKBHRELEE 22T Movement in impairment allowances on loans

and advances to individuals

201241 A1 B8&H Balance at 1 January 2012 392 617 1,009
EEE (B18) /TR & Impairment losses (reversed)/charged (779) 246 (539)
R ERERMIEE Loans written off as uncollectible - (223) (223)
Y EIE AT FiiE 2 B Recoveries of advances written off in previous years 644 515 1,159
2012412 A31 H At 31 December 2012 257 1,155 1,412
2013F 1 A1 HEH Balance at 1 January 2013 257 1,155 1,412
EEE (B15) TRk Impairment losses (reversed)/charged (819) 563 (256)
R ERERMIHE Loans written off as uncollectible - (759) (753)
WEIBREFME 2 EX Recoveries of advances written off in previous years 780 709 1,489
201312831 H At 31 December 2013 218 1,674 1,892
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAEREFThzgI7R)

25. BREERREMERE @)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

() EFERRBAREZZEBEZEEEHER (a) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans
and advances to customers, and trade bills (Continued)

k) E36 )

HEER-RATE

Impairment allowances - Collective assessment

ik REBEX Hitr &t

%8 Group Credit cards Mortgages Others Total
BAERKRBRBEEEZEE Movement in impairment

allowances on loans and

advances to individuals
2012 1 A1 HE &R Balance at 1 January 2012 24,309 5,220 30,899 60,428
WEEERE (E#) Impairment losses

charged/(reversed) 52,232 (495) 66,962 118,699
R EBERMEE Loans written off as uncollectible (61,983) - (77,577) (139,560)
WREIE R EFHME 2 BT Recoveries of advances

written off in previous years 12,471 = 20,575 33,046
BEE 5 R H A % Exchange and other adjustments = = 4 4
201212 A31H At 31 December 2012 27,029 4,725 40,863 72,617
2013%1 A1 B &R Balance at 1 January 2013 27,029 4,725 40,863 72,617
BB Impairment losses charged 50,812 1,944 91,923 144,679
ReEBEE T HE Loans written off as uncollectible (64,926) - (106,391) (171,317
WEIBRAEFMEZER Recoveries of advances

written off in previous years 13,123 - 16,804 29,927
BE 5 I LA % Exchange and other adjustments - 7 5 12
2013128 31H At 31 December 2013 26,038 6,676 43,204 75,918
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(LAEREFThzgI7R)

25. BREERREMERE @) 25.

(R) BEFERRBRNEZEEZERERIKR (a)

P E

ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

B ¥ iRk (@) and advances to customers, and trade bills (Continued)
BB 2 — 18 B T4
Impairment allowances - Individual assessment
BHER ESRE
Term RBER Trade Hit &it
| Group loans  Mortgages finance Others Total
PEERRBH Movement in impairment
HEEE2 2D allowances on loans and

advances to corporate entities
20121 A1 BAER Balance at 1 January 2012 17,406 302 14,913 156,590 189,211
REBRRE /(D) Impairment losses charged/

(reversed) 1,958 987 1,939 (5,785) (901)
Rt BEEFTM A Loans written off as uncollectible (14,275) - (2,004) (104,217 (120,496)
KEEREERE &R Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years 3,065 - 956 17,135 21,156
E 5 5% Exchange adjustments 46 - - 298 344
20125 12A 318 At 31 December 2012 8,200 1,289 15,804 64,021 89,314
201341 B 1 B Balance at 1 January 2013 8,200 1,289 15,804 64,021 89,314
REBRRE /(D) Impairment losses charged/

(reversed) 83,064 (321) 103,629 (24,320) 162,052
Rt BEEFTM T Loans written off as uncollectible - - (7,175) (18,783) (25,958)
KEEREERE &R Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years 2,725 322 1,503 12,116 16,666
E 5 5% Exchange adjustments - - - 328 328
2013128318 At 31 December 2013 93,989 1,290 113,761 33,362 242,402
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(LAEREFThzgI7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. BREERREMERE @)
(F) EFERRBRRESZEBECEHREMSER (a)

25. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

164

B ¥ iRk (@) and advances to customers, and trade bills (Continued)
HEEE-FaTE
Impairment allowances - Collective assessment
BHER ESRE
Term RBER Trade 2 &it
3L Group loans  Mortgages finance Others Total
PEERRBH Movement in impairment
HEEE2 2D allowances on loans and

advances to corporate entities
201241 R 1 B Balance at 1 January 2012 20,742 8,730 19,455 84,172 133,099
REBERE/(2#) Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 6,878 (2,624) 1,965 (41,886) (35,667)
ReEERETMEE Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (281) (281)
W BB R EMSH 2 SR Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years = = = 4 4
B R B A Exchange and other adjustments 9% 3 - 69 168
2012612 A31H At 31 December 2012 27,716 6,109 21,420 42,078 97,323
20131 A1 HEY &R Balance at 1 January 2013 27,716 6,109 21,420 42,078 97,323
BB Impairment losses charged 3,121 2,238 6,873 16,418 28,650
AEEERETMEE Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (2,086) (2,086)
WEE AT EMEZER Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years - - - 8 8
R R AR Exchange and other adjustments 604 - 23 453 1,080
201312831 H At 31 December 2013 31,441 8,347 28,316 56,871 124,975
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B RS R R ML
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ASEET TThL5R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. BREERREMERE @) 25. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

() EFERRBAREZZBZEEEER (a) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans
B HiR%E (&) and advances to customers, and trade bills (Continued)

WAE 2 — 18 Bl 3k
Impairment allowances
- Individual assessment

REBEX Hity &%
$R1T Bank Mortgages Others Total
BAERRBFRE Movement in impairment allowances

Aol 2 B ) on loans and advances to individuals

201241 A1 BM#R Balance at 1 January 2012 175 - 175
B & 1 [B] Impairment losses reversed (779) - (779)
Bl B R SE i EE 2 B K Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years 604 - 604
2012412 A31H At 31 December 2012 - - -
201341 A1 BM#R Balance at 1 January 2013 - - =
B ES 18 [B] Impairment losses reversed (768) - (768)
Yel B S HSE 2 B3 Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years 768 - 768
2013412H31H At 31 December 2013 - - -

I DA SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUALREPORT 2018 165



B B sk P o
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(LAEREFThzgI7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. BREERREMERE @)
(F) EFERRBRRESZEBECEHREMSER (a)

25. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

166

B ¥ ERER (#) and advances to customers, and trade bills (Continued)
HEEE - RETME
Impairment allowances - Collective assessment
iR REER Hte &t
R1T Bank Credit cards Mortgages Others Total
BAERRBRRELEE Movement in impairment
pd | allowances on loans and

advances to individuals
20121 A1 BR& & Balance at 1 January 2012 19,093 - 28,186 47,279
BB Impairment losses charged 51,507 = 56,007 107,514
REEEETHMHEE Loans written off as uncollectible (61,023) - (69,838) (130,861)
W BB R EFEME 2 B3R Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years 11,586 - 20,503 32,089
2012412 A31H At 31 December 2012 21,163 - 34,858 56,021
201341 A1 HE&EH Balance at 1 January 2013 21,163 - 34,858 56,021
B R ERE Impairment losses charged 50,433 - 63,440 113,873
REEEBETMEEEE Loans written off as uncollectible (63,415) - (78,387) (141,802)
W e B NMEFERSE 2 BER Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years 11,747 - 16,268 28,015
2013%F12H31H At 31 December 2013 19,928 - 36,179 56,107

REFRITAERAR | 2013FF




(LAEREFThzgI7R)

25. BREERREMERE @)
(F) EFERRBRRESZEBVHREMER (a)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B RS R R ML
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

B ¥ iRk (@) and advances to customers, and trade bills (Continued)
BB %A — B B R
Impairment allowances - Individual assessment
BHEXR E5mE
Term BBER Trade Hity &%
817 Bank loans  Mortgages finance Others Total
CEERRBRRELEE Movement in impairment allowances
228 on loans and advances to

corporate entities
20121 R 1 B Balance at 1 January 2012 11,730 - 3,756 121,618 137,104
REBE (E%) /15 Impairment losses (reversed)/charged (4,846) 986 1,899 (5,785) (7,746)
RELBEE M Loans written off as uncollectible (1,749) - (2,004) (104,217) (107,970)
W BB R EMSH 2 B3 Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years 3,065 - 956 17,135 21,156
2012F 12 A31H At 31 December 2012 8,200 986 4,607 28,751 42,544
201351 A1 B Balance at 1 January 2013 8,200 986 4,607 28,751 42,544
REBE (%) /RE Impairment losses (reversed)/charged (151) (322) 64,643 13,127 77,297
RecERETMIHE Loans written off as uncollectible - - (7,175) (18,783) (25,958)
WEEREFHEZER Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years 2,725 322 1,503 12,116 16,666
2013F12A 31 H At 31 December 2013 10,774 986 63,578 35,211 110,549
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(CAEREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. BREERREMERE @)
(F) EFERRBRRESZEBECEHREMSER (a)

25. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

168

B ¥ ERER (#) and advances to customers, and trade bills (Continued)
REERE - RETE
Impairment allowances - Collective assessment
BHER E5mE
Term REEX Trade Hity a3
817 Bank loans  Mortgages finance Others Total
CEERRBRRELEE Movement in impairment allowances
pa ¥ on loans and advances to

corporate entities
2012F 1 A1 BE&: R Balance at 1 January 2012 6,567 8,369 4,974 63,601 83,511
RERSE () /1RE Impairment losses (reversed)/charged (80) (2,260) 120 (47,688) (49,908)
RELBEE M Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (281) (281)
WEEREFMEER Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years = = = 4 4
2012412 A31H At 31 December 2012 6,487 6,109 5,094 15,636 33,326
2013F 1 A1 BA & Balance at 1 January 2013 6,487 6,109 5,094 15,636 33,326
BB B Impairment losses charged 3,970 2,238 3,434 5,786 15,428
REERE SIS Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (2,086) (2,086)
WEEREFHEZER Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years - - - 8 8
2013%12831H At 31 December 2013 10,457 8,347 8,528 19,344 46,676
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
25. REERRHEAMERR @ 25. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)
(2) EStRIERHEMEE 2EEEHFREHERR (b) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on

accrued interest and other accounts

WEEE - REER -
FET 18 Bl 365
Impairment Impairment
allowances - allowances -
Collective Individual
assessment assessment
Bt FER g =954
Hittfx B Hitfz
Accrued Accrued

interest interest

and other and other

EERET Group and Bank accounts accounts
Bt REREMERE REEE 22 Movement in impairment allowances

on accrued interest and
other accounts

201241 A1 BM#ES Balance at 1 January 2012 459 639
REEBIRRE(E#) Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 179 (62)
NBEIER ERER M SRR Amounts written off as uncollectible - (577)
2012412 A31H At 31 December 2012 638 -
201341 A1 BH4&eR Balance at 1 January 2013 638 -
VRN SR (EkE Impairment losses reversed (319) -
2013512831 H At 31 December 2013 319 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAEREFThzgI7R)

25. BREERREMERE @)
(R) BREEEFERREBER 2 AMEHERERER (c)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Loans and advances to customers include finance lease

mE receivables as follows:
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
REEBRERSE 2 EWER Gross investment in finance
FEL- lease receivables:
1FELAA Not later than 1 year 2,512,655 2,295,716 2,512,655 2,295,716
1FUEESF Later than 1 year and not later
than 5 years 3,799,857 3,402,918 3,799,857 3,402,918
S5 F Later than 5 years 3,320,741 3,282,471 3,320,741 3,282,471
9,633,253 8,981,105 9,633,253 8,981,105
BMEME 2 KR Z Unearned future finance income
BE WA on finance leases (1,271,252)  (1,244,734)  (1,271,252)  (1,244,734)
Bl A B EFE Net investment in finance leases 8,362,001 7,736,371 8,362,001 7,736,371
BMEMEREFHEL The net investment in finance
DT leases is analysed as follows:
1FELARN Not later than 1 year 2,218,486 2,007,751 2,218,486 2,007,751
1FUERESF Later than 1 year and not later
than 5 years 3,376,449 2,995,360 3,376,449 2,995,360
5 F Later than 5 years 2,767,066 2,733,260 2,767,066 2,733,260
8,362,001 7,736,371 8,362,001 7,736,371

R2013F12 A31H ' LM EHERELE
M8 B EERFIREE (20124 « ) o

RK2013F 12 A31 8B ARBERARITZEFR
BEEBRFERAIIKE Z 7 E SRR EH A%
& 54 38,731,000/%5 7T (2012 F : 24,585,000

FBIL)

REFRITAERAR | 2013FF

There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross
investment in finance leases above as at 31 December 2013 (2012:
Nil).

The allowance for uncollectable finance lease receivables included in

the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2013 of the Group and
the Bank amounted to HK$33,731,000 (2012: HK$24,585,000).



B RS R R ML
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. BREERREVRREBEER &S 26. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES INCLUDED IN THE

"E LOANS AND RECEIVABLES CATEGORY
55 $R1T
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
B EEREFHHE Investments in securities
ZEHIRE reclassified from the
available-for-sale category
—IZERFIRE R T — At fair value under fair
ANES R value hedge (for hedging
interest rate risk) 548,651 2,227,771 420,378 2,071,153
— RN T R — At amortised cost 588,939 1,117,929 487,820 1,041,965
1,137,590 3,345,700 908,198 3,113,118
R : REZEE Less: Impairment allowances
— &R FT Ay - Individually assessed - (58,251) - (58,251)
—fREEE — Collectively assessed (75,000) (100,000) (75,000) (100,000)
(75,000) (158,251) (75,000) (158,251)
1,062,590 3,187,449 833,198 2,954,867
RYETERFE D B AER Investments in securities
RIEWFIE 2 BHIEE (FE) classified as loans and
receivables upon initial
recognition (Note) 41 52,320 41 52,320
1,062,631 3,239,769 833,239 3,007,187
5 Note:

RUAERR D EAERRERRIA 2 BHEEERER
FrE@E - 4201312 A31 H X 2012612 A31H -
ZEREC MEBEF o

The investments in securities classified as loans and receivables upon initial
recognition were overdue at the time of recognition. As at 31 December 2013
and 2012, these investments were overdue for more than one year.
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(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. BREERRERRIBEER &S 26. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES INCLUDED IN THE

BE @) LOANS AND RECEIVABLES CATEGORY (Continued)
BREEEREEWZIBERN 2EHFEE DT Investments in securities included in the loans and receivables
e category are analysed as follows:

&8 R1T
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BRES Debt securities:
—BBNUINET — Listed outside Hong Kong 1,137,590 3,102,803 908,198 2,870,221
—JE LT - Unlisted 41 295,217 41 295217
1,137,631 3,398,020 908,239 3,165,438
kR REZEE Less: Impairment allowances
— &R FE A — Individually assessed - (58,251) - (58,251)
— kR EFHE - Collectively assessed (75,000) (100,000) (75,000) (100,000)
(75,000) (158,251) (75,000) (158,251)
1,062,631 3,239,769 833,239 3,007,187
th#ES2TE Market value of listed securities 1,020,565 2,770,374 804,857 2,558,242
R2013F K 2012412 A31 B » LillEKHESFK As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, there were no certificates of
BEBATEBIEFETRE ° deposit held included in the above balances of investments in debt
securities.
BIEEER M ERZIELER Investments in securities included
ZBEFIEREITIRE in the loans and receivables
RIS T category are analysed by
categories of issuers as follows:
—RIT R E At & RIS - Banks and other financial
institutions 668,806 2,282,015 482,640 2,091,878
— 1% — Corporate entities 468,825 1,116,005 425,599 1,073,560

1,137,631 3,398,020 908,239 3,165,438
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. BREERREVRREBEER &S 26. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES INCLUDED IN THE

BE @) LOANS AND RECEIVABLES CATEGORY (Continued)
(F) BREERREVRFTEE 2ESFRKR (@) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on
B EEEEREYER investments in securities included in the loans and

receivables category

WIEZEHE
Impairment allowances
18 51 774 RERHE
Individually Collectively

EERRIT Group and Bank a d a d
20121 A1 BH&&R Balance at 1 January 2012 - 100,000
B E R R Impairment losses charged 58,251 -
201212 A31H At 31 December 2012 58,251 100,000
201341 A1 BHW &% Balance at 1 January 2013 58,251 100,000
BB 18 [B] 4 Impairment losses released - (25,000)
A Allowance written off (57,170) —
b Exchange adjustments (1,081) -
20134 12H31 H At 31 December 2013 - 75,000
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

27. AHEERS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

&5 R1T
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BFES Debt securities:
—&BLT — Listed in Hong Kong 12,073,723 8,919,452 12,073,723 8,919,452
— BB ET — Listed outside Hong Kong 13,067,076 11,599,410 13,067,076 11,599,410
o Al — Unlisted 1,710,991 1,068,122 1,710,991 1,068,122
26,851,790 21,586,984 26,851,790 21,586,984
RERMEES Equity securities:
—&B/BLE™ — Listed in Hong Kong 70,288 73,026 69,562 72,655
—BENUINET — Listed outside Hong Kong - 72,610 = 72,610
—3JE LT — Unlisted 197,740 173,028 142,756 123,855
268,028 318,664 212,318 269,120
At EE SRR Total available-for-sale
securities 27,119,818 21,905,648 27,064,108 21,856,104
R2013FE N 2012F12 A31 H @ Ll EKEEKR As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, there were no certificates of

BREBALBEBREFEERE

A HEERREITHRE

BRIDHTET

—RREF K RIRTT

—RERE
—RITREM S EEE

—B%
—H A

174
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deposit held included in the above balances of investments in debt

securities.

Available-for-sale securities
are analysed by categories
of issuers as follows:

— Central governments and
central banks

— Public sector entities

- Banks and other financial
institutions

— Corporate entities

- Others

3,181,651 2,867,068 3,181,651 2,867,068
205,067 294,279 205,067 294,279
6,559,368 6,060,201 6,559,368 6,060,201
17,171,279 12,682,647 17,115,569 12,633,103
2,453 1,453 2,453 1,453
27,119,818 21,905,648 27,064,108 21,856,104




B RS R AR M L
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
28. BEZIIHAES 28. HELD-TO-MATURITY SECURITIES
£E $RAT
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
B EH Debt securities
— BB LM - Listed in Hong Kong 731,541 711,921 580,268 579,577
— BB ET — Listed outside Hong Kong 2,799,824 4,797,430 2,365,155 4,385,889
—3JE LT — Unlisted 2,137,924 1,538,189 72,072 208,723

5,669,289 7,047,540 3,017,495 5,174,189

EmREHzTE Market value of listed
securities 3,602,160 5,536,303 3,002,392 4,973,689
BEEERES Included within debt
securities are:
— BT RE — Certificates of deposit held 1,106,272 399,701 - =
— Bt ERES — Other debt securities 4,563,017 6,647,839 3,017,495 5,174,189
5,669,289 7,047,540 3,017,495 5,174,189
R B AR Held-to-maturity securities
HEBRSITAT are analysed by issuers
as follows:
— AR BT R AR R ERAT — Central governments and
central banks 935,473 910,343 39,184 40,611
—NEHIE - Public sector entities 193,788 193,620 193,788 193,620
— $R1T R E fth & RS — Banks and other financial
institutions 3,154,149 3,914,755 1,496,991 3,014,027
—1b — Corporate entities 1,385,879 2,028,822 1,287,532 1,925,931

5,669,289 7,047,540 3,017,495 5,174,189
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CABREFThz5I7R)

20. TREEZENIE

MR2012F 12 A20H + A E Bt E 3 &k E Ik
RERREF EETHEERAHLEEHE
AlzeMEE - ZZeREEREFHHERZ
AFEREEED R A1,829,247,0007%8 70 &
1,774,626,00087C - EFHEREEZ AFE
% 54,621,000,8 T EFIEE Mt 2 i am o
20134 » AEBWEXER K EBGKRIEREFIE
MO BEMFGEERAIHEERERZS/E
E °

A AR 2008 4F K 2009 F ¢ It L E KB RIEHT 5
HEERRERFIELERI MM 2013412 A31 H
MAREZeREE WESHHBZEMEE
M2013F12 A3IB 2 A FELREEBES B A
1,020,565,000/% 7T (20124F : 926,042,000/5 7T )
$.1,137,590,000 7% 7T (2012 £ : 1,144,153,000
PETT) °

WEBFZFERNLEEHH BN LSREER
A EERNEE R REWGRIEER - Bl
BE 2 EhEEB S 0116,819,00075 7t (2012
- #901217,782,000787T) °
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

29. RECLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

On 20 December 2012, the Group reclassified certain financial assets
that qualified for recognition as available-for-sale out of the loans
and receivables category. The fair value and carrying value of these
financial assets at the date of reclassification were HK$1,829,247,000
and HK$1,774,626,000. The fair value gain of HK$54,621,000
generated upon the reclassification has been taken to other
comprehensive income. During 2013, the Group did not reclassify any
financial assets that qualified for recognition as available-for-sale out
of the loans and receivables category.

For the financial assets reclassified from the available-for-sale
category into the loans and receivables category in 2008 and 2009
that remained outstanding as at 31 December 2013, the fair value
and carrying value of these reclassified financial assets as at 31
December 2013 were HK$1,020,565,000 (2012: HK$926,042,000) and
HK$1,137,590,000 (2012: HK$1,144,153,000) respectively.

If reclassification of the above financial assets from the available-for-
sale category into the loans and receivables category in prior years
had not taken place, the revaluation deficit in equity would have been
HK$116,819,000 higher (2012: HK$217,782,000 higher).



B RS E R M L
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEE T TAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
30. BEQATKRE 30. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
58 R1T
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
ELETRE @ KA Unlisted investment, at cost = = = 883,057
EHIRE R Listed investment, at cost = - 1,213,057 =
EIHEEFE Share of net assets 2,960,370 2,092,408 = =
kS Goodwill 344,623 344,623 - -
A&t Total 3,304,993 2,437,031 1,213,057 883,057
£E Group 2013 2012
1A1H At 1 January 2,437,031 1,961,365
BIMRE Additional investment 330,000 -
FEMRBRTRIE R Share of results, net of tax 578,556 490,806
FEMRBRTR IR E B E Share of investment revaluation
reserve, net of tax (20,399) (7,000)
RFALE 2 B Loss on deemed disposal (56,971) =
RE G Dividend received (35,624) (24,540)
EHER Exchange differences 72,400 16,400
12A31H At 31 December 3,304,993 2,437,031
R2013F R 2012F 12 A1 BZHtE ARz =& The following is the key information relating to the associate as at 31
BRI December 2013 and 2012:
FEf I i itk 2 FEEK bR B DL
2158 Place of incorporation Principal Percentage of interest
Name and operation activities in ownership
2013 2012
EERIT R AR HEAE R1T 16.95% 20.00%
Bank of Chongqing People’s Republic of China Banking
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(ABEET TThLFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
31. HEEHERBRE 31. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
K E 87
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
FE TR - KA Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
FE(R U R4 S Share of post-acquisition reserves 39,657 34,246 = =
59,657 54,246 20,000 20,000
20134 % 20124 12 A 31 HE HFIZEHI 88 The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December
I ¢ 2013 and 2012:
LA ZEDL
o fif itk 2 FEER R B Percentage of
2 Place of Principal activities and effective interest
Name incorporation place of operation in ownership
REEZEAC B R A A BB REZR - BF 13.333%
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, Hong Kong
REHEEER AR BB BEEERY AR 13.333%
Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business,
Hong Kong
REES R AR DA i RIED X B 13.333%
BCT Financial Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business,
Hong Kong
TEREIERER AR 2 ERBAARITEERE - The interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is directly held by the
MmiRE =T AR A 7 R IREE € B A IR A &) ThiR Bt Bank. Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited and BCT Financial
EREBRAFIZZEMBART - Limited are the wholly owned subsidiaries of Bank Consortium

Holding Limited.
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P E

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

32. BEREFREE 32. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
BV EFE#
&4 BYEE BYEE
BREE Core  Customer
wE Contract deposit  relationship ki &t
£8 Group Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
KA Cost
20131 818K At 1 January 2013 and
2013512 A31H 31 December 2013 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,777 58,252 1,047,801
BV £ Accumulated impairment/amortisation
201351818 At 1 January 2013 - 26,499 80,583 55,709 - 162,791
ERZ i (1 10) Charge for the year (Note 10) - - - 7,078 - 7,078
2013124318 At 31 December 2013 - 26,499 80,583 62,787 - 169,869
REE Carrying value
2013128318 At 31 December 2013 811,690 - - 7,990 58,252 877,932
TlLER EPHE
At BVEE BYEE
BlEE Core Customer
mE Contract deposit  relationship % Af
e Group Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
%S Cost
20121 A1AR At 1 January 2012 and
2012512 A31H 31 December 2012 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,777 58,252 1,047,801
2HERE/ B Accumulated impairment/amortisation
2012F1A1H At 1 January 2012 - 26,499 80,583 45,646 - 152,728
FR%E (F10) Charge for the year (Note 10) - - - 10,063 - 10,063
2012124318 At 31 December 2012 - 26,499 80,583 55,709 - 18279
REE Carrying value
2012612 A 318 At 31 December 2012 811,690 - - 15,068 58,252 885,010
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

32. BHEREFEE®@®

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

32. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

EFBR
BILEE
Customer
relationship
$RAT Bank intangibles
BN Cost
201341 A1 H&2013F12 A31H At 1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013 30,000
2IERE B Accumulated impairment/amortisation
2018341 H1H At 1 January 2013 26,000
FAZH Charge for the year 3,000
2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013 29,000
REE Carrying value
2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013 1,000
EPRAR
B EE
Customer
relationship
HR1T Bank intangibles
B Cost
20121 H1HX2012F12 A31H At 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012 30,000
2FERE, Accumulated impairment/amortisation
201241 A1H At 1 January 2012 20,500
FRZH Charge for the year 5,500
2012412 A31H At 31 December 2012 26,000
AREE Carrying value

201212 H31H At 31 December 2012 4,000
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32. BHEREFEE®@®

EERABRZEBVEERREAYN BROEREE
FRARETEERARBREBEZENF5E12
FZURFHEE - BREAERERMRYEESF
B ER BB 1B AR AR RERE RS

N

EP

HEDREEREANLEERERE —HOEKD
ERPARSELBM([REELEM]) - &
2B

i}
BOMBMEZ50T

P E

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

32. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Intangible assets of finite life include contract intangibles, core
deposit intangibles and customer relationship intangibles, and are
amortised over their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a
diminishing balance method. Trade name is carried as an asset of
indefinite life and is tested annually for impairment losses. It is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment loss.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
identified according to business segments in line with the internal
management reporting structure. A summary of goodwill allocation is
presented below.

201212 H31 HK 201341231 H
At 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013
BERIT &8 ASR1T BIMRIT

Commercial Personal Overseas &5t
£8 Group Banking Banking Banking Total
B Hong Kong 196,478 122,189 - 318,667
JRFT Macau - - 493,023 493,023

196,478 122,189 493,023 811,690

HEEGFERBENR  HHEBRBEFE 2 ERE
EMEEZREEAEMAEKREE - -1 EE
FHREEEEREABMES - A5 F5HE 2 78RR
SR CERBASFERRBUEEFERE
2% HERIE 5 FUABEKE - Z5FrtBlHEEE
BABENRHUBHARCEEBM 2 EBRZE
TSR TERI s BR N B 3B RIS R 2 AT BT 6l o P fE
FA 2 BE 3R 3 Th s BN AN 52 B 2 B AN AR I S
£10.1% (20124 : 9.7%) °

EREFETORENANER2RBREESR
52 3% 5 3 B F R R I LA AR HART E1 2 FERI Uk
A v BUAEIE FH R R 2% #5556 B E K
Ro FTEMAZEIRE 510.1% (20124 : 9.7%)
THEERAEE 2 B A INET I -

FEIWERREE LR ZREEIE (2012

) o

o
H @

Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually by
comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based on
value in use calculation. The calculations use cash flow projections
prepared by the Senior Management based on a 5-year business plan,
taking into account projected annual growth rate, and in perpetuity
with 2% constant growth rate after the fifth year. The 5-year business
plan was developed by the Senior Management based on their
evaluation of the businesses of the relevant CGU and the conditions
in which such businesses will operate over the projected period. The
discount rate used is based on the Group’s weighted average cost of
capital at 10.1% (2012: 9.7%).

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually using pre-
tax royalty rate of 3% with reference to similar business transactions,
projected revenue in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity with 2%
constant growth rate after the fifth year. The discount rate of 10.1%
(2012: 9.7%) used is based on the Group’s weighted average cost of
capital.

No impairment losses on goodwill and trade name were identified in
the year (2012: Nil).
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
33. MBARKRERER 33. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES
() MBARKRE (@) Investments in subsidiaries
R1T
Bank
2013 2012
JE LTRSS Unlisted shares, at cost 2,984,244 2,983,915
NGRS Amounts due from subsidiaries 517,095 500,719
FEASTBT /B A B15RIE Amounts due to subsidiaries (201) (3,978)
3,501,138 3,480,656
Bl FENMNEB AR ZRIBHAEEER - 28K The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and
RESRIEN ° repayable on demand.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(ABEET TThLFR)

33. MBARKRERER @) 33. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(FF) B ERE @) (@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

MK2013F 12 A31 8 ' KiRfT 2 EEH B AR The following is a list of the Bank’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

T« December 2013:
ERTEBRRA
i itk B Particulars of
NCIEE TEEK Place of issued ordinary

Name of company

Principal activity

incorporation

share capital

RETRIT (R E]) AR A |7 FEE AR HAE

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited Banking People’s Republic of China RMB1,000,000,000

RPIEERITRO AR A A R17 R

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Banking Macau MOP225,000,000

RERBRER AR A A Rigaga e

Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited Insurance broking Hong Kong HK$200,000
FE REBRIES

Dah Sing MTN Financing Limited Financing British Virgin Islands US$1

RHEFERAR RIBABRTS e

Dah Sing Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong HK$100,000
REZER e

Dah Sing Properties Limited Investment holding Hong Kong HK$9,998
FE REBRIES

Dah Sing SAR Financing Limited Financing British Virgin Islands US$1

RETEHBRAR EHFER e

Dah Sing Securities Limited Securities dealing Hong Kong HK$10,000,000
REZER e

DSB BCM (1) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong HK$1
REZER e

DSB BCM (2) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong HK$1

RHBHESRERAA MERE B

Dah Sing Computer Systems Limited Property investment Hong Kong HK$20
BEX RERAEE

DSLI (1) Limited Inactive British Virgin Islands US$1

ZEPBERAA WM& e

OK Finance Limited Money lending Hong Kong HK$1,000
BEX RBRAEE

Shinning Bloom Investments Limited Inactive British Virgin Islands US$1

RREUE(FE)ERAH mEX e

Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited Inactive Hong Kong HK$450,000,000

HEREERAR MERE BB

Vanishing Border Investment Services Limited Property investment Hong Kong HK$20
MERE REBRAEE

Wise Measure Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands US$1

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2013



184

AR5 RRPoE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CABREFThz5I7R)

33. MEBARKRERER®@®

() B2 RRE @

BOBRPIREERITRO AR AR (H22% #EmEE
F1DSB BCM (1) Limited &z DSB BCM (2) Limited
BRI AERRIEAARRITEZEEEHRS °

BORPIERIRITIRODBR AR - RFTRT (PE)
BERAR R L 5AREINER 2 RRIN - Hfh
RAGERBRLE -

RFETER1T (B AR A RN 2008 F 7 AEF BA
AR - EARE A EE A R FAMB 2 0538
BIBRAR] (BREE  BHRMZLER
&)

(Z2) MBRARER
MEBARERAEER 2B MIEESKER -

REFRITAERAR | 2013FF

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

33. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
(@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

The above companies are all wholly-owned and directly held by the
Bank except for Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., with 22% interests
indirectly held through DSB BCM (1) Limited and DSB BCM (2)
Limited, which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank.

Except for Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited and companies incorporated outside Hong Kong specified
above, all other companies operate in Hong Kong.

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited was incorporated in Mainland China in
July 2008. It is registered as “Limited liability company” (solely funded
by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate body) under the laws of
the People’s Republic of China.

(b) Loans to subsidiaries

The loans to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and are
repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. TERHMEEEE 34. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS
&M
HRERARE
Furniture,
equipment
TE  and motor a5
8 Group Premises vehicles Total
HZE2012F 12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2012
FYEREFE © WA 23R Opening net book amount,
as previously reported 2,142,793 241,898 2,384,691
GETBUR S - Change in accounting policy —
AR AR BEREE Y TE Restatement of premises on
cost basis (1,227,597) - (1,227,597)
FYREFE - &F5 Opening net book amount, as restated 915,196 241,898 1,157,094
i Additions 43,332 145,786 189,118
ENMOBREVMEARTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises 74,000 - 74,000
e Disposals (375) (4,929) (5,304)
FEZH (KisE10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (27,912) (71,410) (99,322)
MEHZE Exchange difference 177 - 177
FERREFE Closing net book amount 1,004,418 311,345 1,315,763
201212 A31H At 31 December 2012
PR Cost 1,184,713 653,308 1,838,021
RIEE Accumulated depreciation (180,295) (341,963) (522,258)
BREFE Net book amount 1,004,418 311,345 1,315,763
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(LABEEF T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. TERHMBEEEE @ 34. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (continued)
R
RERAE
Furniture,
equipment
T  and motor a5
8 Group Premises vehicles Total
HZE2013F12H31 HIEFEE Year ended 31 December 2013
FYEREFE © WA 23R Opening net book amount,
as previously reported 2,818,955 311,345 3,130,300
GETBUR S - Change in accounting policy —
AR AR BEREE Y TE Restatement of premises on
cost basis (1,814,537) - (1,814,537)
FYREFE - &F5 Opening net book amount, as restated 1,004,418 311,345 1,315,763
prine] Additions 71,157 156,766 227,923
ENMOBTERIREME Reclassification from premises
to investment properties (57,365) - (57,365)
ENOBREMERTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises 332,990 - 332,990
HE Disposals - (5,612) (5,612)
rEx i (FiEE10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (31,267) (80,561) (111,828)
EHER Exchange difference 1,767 1,712 3,479
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 1,321,700 383,650 1,705,350
2013%F 12831 H At 31 December 2013
B Cost 1,505,676 772,684 2,278,360
2IENE Accumulated depreciation (183,976) (389,034) (573,010)
BREFE Net book amount 1,321,700 383,650 1,705,350
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(LABEEF T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. TERHMBEEEE @ 34. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (continued)
R
RERAE
Furniture,
equipment
TE  and motor a5
R1T Bank Premises vehicles Total
HE2012F 12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2012
FYEREFE © WA 23R Opening net book amount,
as previously reported 1,428,240 161,997 1,590,237
GETBUR R - Change in accounting policy —
AR AR BEREE Y TE Restatement of premises on
cost basis (769,125) - (769,125)
FYREFE - &F5 Opening net book amount, as restated 659,115 161,997 821,112
Hig Additions - 106,997 106,997
ENMOBREVMEARTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises 74,000 - 74,000
HeE Disposals - (1,563) (1,563)
FEXH Depreciation charge (17,748) (45,838) (63,586)
MEHZE Exchange difference 176 - 176
FARREFE Closing net book amount 715,543 221,593 937,136
201212 A31H At 31 December 2012
AN Cost 841,835 303,334 1,145,169
ZIEHE Accumulated depreciation (126,292) (81,741) (208,033)
BREHEE Net book amount 715,543 221,593 937,136
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. TERHMEEEE @ 34. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (continued)
SN
RERRE
Furniture,
equipment
{TZ  and motor &t
$R1T Bank Premises vehicles Total
BZ2013F 12831 ALLFE Year ended 31 December 2013
FYEREFE © WA 23R Opening net book amount,
as previously reported 1,877,309 221,593 2,098,902
GETBOR R - Change in accounting policy —
AR AR BEREEYIITE Restatement of premises on
cost basis (1,161,766) - (1,161,766)
FHEREFE - L& Opening net book amount, as restated 715,543 221,593 937,136
g Additions - 121,128 121,128
ENMOBTERIREME Reclassification from premises
to investment properties (57,365) - (57,365)
BN BREMERTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises 332,990 - 332,990
L& Disposals (22,361) (2,733) (25,094)
FEXH Depreciation charge (21,767) (54,713) (76,480)
ERER Exchange difference 417 5 422
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 947,457 285,280 1,232,737
20134 12H31 H At 31 December 2013
B AR Cost 1,067,918 391,591 1,459,509
ZIEE Accumulated depreciation (120,461) (106,311) (226,772)
REFE Net book amount 947,457 285,280 1,232,737
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(AT TTAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. TERHMEEEE @ 34. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (Continued)
TEZEOFERRE : The net book value of premises comprises:
£E R1T
Group Bank
EEET KEET
Restated Restated
2013 2012 2013 2012
TR fEHh Leaseholds
EERFA 2 FEHEA Held in Hong Kong on
(fE10E50F 2 /) medium-term lease
(between 10-50 years) 947,457 693,295 947,457 693,295
TEEEAINEE 2 BB Held outside Hong Kong on
4 (FE10 =504 2. ) medium-term lease
(between 10-50 years) 374,243 311,123 - 22,248
1,321,700 1,004,418 947,457 715,543
35. REYHE 35. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
£ Group 2013 2012
1A1H At 1 January 735,502 678,703
ENOBREMERTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises (332,990) (74,000)
BN ETERKRENE Reclassification from premises to
investment properties 179,613 -
HHAFERE Fair value gains on revaluation 18,415 130,799
12 A31H At 31 December 600,540 735,502
$R1T Bank 2013 2012
1HA1H At 1 January 733,559 676,830
BN BEREMERTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises (332,990) (74,000)
ENOBTERIREME Reclassification from premises to
investment properties 179,613 -
EHATFEWEE Fair value gains on revaluation 18,274 130,729
12 A31H At 31 December 598,456 733,559
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

35. BREWHE @) 35. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
AW 2 REFEEE ! The net book value of investment properties comprises:
&5 R1T
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
THEHD Leaseholds
TEERFA 2 FHEHEA Held in Hong Kong on
(FE10=50F 2H) medium-term lease
(between 10-50 years) 598,456 733,559 598,456 733,559
TEBBAINGFE 2+ 8 Held outside Hong Kong
A (FE10E50F 2 [H) on medium-term lease
(between 10-50 years) 2,084 1,943 - -
600,540 735,502 598,456 733,559
() SFIEREVNEZATE (@) Fair value measurement of investment properties

190

RNEBPM2013F 12 A31 B AR EMENEEE
177 EfE o WA B FE PSS —K
TR (HERSERER) GRARIEERLE
TR AREEE(L T EARI2E Z AU E
H3f BARK SR 4D SR SRAET T o

EREREMENEER HP—HEIRERER
REBRRE - AR ERE R FH R KB
BFFEENHEEAER  MEEZERNTE
FF5IR2,3008 2T F 5 R103,0008 7T © $HE
BUERNTREEBRENEZAFEFER
HEBDLEARED - RZIR -

REMEDBRAER/BBUHERELEF135%
(R HERE)TR A THESRHE IR -

REFRITAERAR | 20135F F

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December
2013 by adopting the direct comparison approach or the income
capitalisation approach and with reference to recent transactions for
similar premises as far as practicable by independent, professionally
qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and Professional Services) Limited.

One of the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties was
the unit sale rate taking into account of time, location, and individual
factors such as size and levels of buildings, which ranged from
HK$2,300 to HK$103,000 per square feet. A decrease in unit sale rate
would result in decrease in fair value measurement of the investment
properties by the same percentage decrease and vice versa.

Investment properties are classified as Level 3 under the fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

35. BEYE @) 35. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
(Z) PR ESERPEIHIN 2L FEFESY (b) Reconciliation of fair value measurement in Level 3 of

fRR

TRHANERBEERTABRRIBE ZAEE
HBEIRR 2R EMEMFEN R FEREIT R

the fair value hierarchy

The following table provides a reconciliation of the movement
between opening and closing balances of Level 3 investment

BiR 2 SR B ) 2 #HR - properties, measured at fair value using a valuation technique with
significant unobservable inputs:
&5 $R1T
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
1A1H At 1 January 735,502 678,703 733,559 676,830
BN EREMERTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises (332,990) (74,000) (332,990) (74,000)
BN ETERKRENE Reclassification from premises to
investment properties
—EHMDARITEZEEFRE - Net book value of premises
reclassified 57,365 - 57,365 -
—EHABREAITEEMMEE - Surplus on revaluation credited
to premises revaluation
reserve 122,248 - 122,248 -
179,613 - 179,613 -
N ER Fair value gains 18,415 130,799 18,274 130,729
12 A31H At 31 December 600,540 735,502 598,456 733,559
RERFEZEEETH Unrealised gains or losses
WA EERZRER recognised in comprehensive
Weam sk B8 income statement relating to
those assets held at the end of
the year
— Y ESHF R — Net surplus on property
revaluation 122,248 - 122,248 -
NERFE2EEMEEZEFR  Unrealised gains or losses
BEER 2 AR U e kg8 recognised in income statement
relating to those assets held at
the end of the year
— A ERE — Fair value gains 18,415 130,799 18,274 130,729
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(LABEEF T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
35. REWHE @ 35. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
(R) EEEIRBAFETEFENER (¢) Information about Level 3 fair value measurement
fh{E R % TABRZHE
Valuation Unobservable i [E
technique(s) input(s) Range
REM= WABRBEETE i es = 3.50%
(EHEMm=)
Investment properties Income capitalisation approach Market yields 3.50%

(reversionary yield)

iEzickn ¥ HRABEIS T

Market rental HK$35 per square foot
NWAREEETEAEEATFEZKREDE For investment properties of which the fair value is determined using
BEAZTHIEWAREBEENREEEZEY the income capitalisation approach, the assessment is conducted
E7XHEEAEFEKAZENET - AFES on the basis of capitalisation of net incomes with due allowance
SEHEHSEESKIEABREEZ  EBmigkaRKa for outgoings and reversionary income potential. The fair value
FERARAMR © measurement is positively correlated to the market rental and

inversely correlated to the market yields.

36. Hitt&EE 36. OTHER ASSETS
55 $R1T
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
FEM R M FERTE R Accounts receivable and
prepayments 2,751,036 2,894,756 880,721 1,692,167
FERTURA Accrued income 705,585 632,775 630,139 587,213
Hfth Others 217,182 289,122 169,286 248,576

3,673,803 3,816,653 1,680,146 2,627,956
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37. HEFEERZRNER

EERET

B RS E R M L
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

37. TRADING LIABILITIES

Group and Bank 2013 2012

HEBEREREEES

38. HEFEX

Short sales of treasury bills and
treasury bonds 3,362,473 2,278,044

38. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

&3 $R1T
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
& B R R AE RIF K Demand deposits and
current accounts 21,211,822 16,948,210 17,161,826 12,977,202
EEFR Savings deposits 18,981,641 18,086,362 15,836,034 15,257,158

EH - BARAEHER

Time, call and notice deposits 89,751,670 83,046,594 75,412,792 72,341,972

129,945,133 118,081,166 108,410,652 100,576,332

BFEFAE&RBSHFFEA DS AE T A& Included in customer accounts were deposits of HK$31,589,000
& 2 B @ 2 17 031,589,000 7% 7T (2012 4F : (2012: HK$21,979,000) held as collateral for irrevocable commitments

21,979,000 1) ©

under import letters of credit.

BREH - BAREHERIN - IEEMEFFER Other than time, call and notice deposits, all other customer deposits

ERERIFR

carry variable interest rates.
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
39. BRITHERE 39. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ISSUED
&5 R1T
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
REHRFIRRER T AFE At fair value under fair value
B AR hedge (for hedging interest
rate risk) 5,274,902 4,463,338 5,874,706 4,963,047
RE ARSI R At amortised cost 857,659 1,289,124 852,428 1,254,063

6,132,561 5,752,462 6,727,134 6,217,110

M20134F 22012 F A - AREERERVIEER During 2013 and 2012, the Group did not designate on initial
RIEEEMEETFERERARTEFE8AE recognition any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through
EhET AEE © profit or loss.
REBTEHFEBETEREDARZRENEMNN The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
SRERIA L5 2 BRE{E = 9,000,000% 7T (2012 maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HK$9 million
F : {£17,000,000787C) ° higher (2012: HK$17 million lower) than the above carrying amount.
40. ERITHEKXES 40. ISSUED DEBT SECURITIES
SEREIT
Group and Bank
2013 2012
250,000,000 % 70)% BEE (71 (7)) US$250,000,000 Floating Rate
Notes (Note (a)) - 1,987,792
100,000,000 £ 7% 855 (FE(2)) US$100,000,000 Floating Rate
Notes (Note (b)) 775,385 775,115

775,385 2,712,907

TR RN AT BR At amortised cost 775,385 2,712,907
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

40. ERTHERERSF @ 40. ISSUED DEBT SECURITIES (continued)

&t Note:

() W ARBITEBAEITZEBMNT ISP HEET (@  This represented US$250 million Floating Rate Notes (the “Notes”)
BT WEFMERXSGHA(TFHRA]) Ehz issued by the Bank under the Bank’s Euro Medium Term Note
250,000,000 %0 ERE(RE]) - ZRBER Programme, and are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange Trading
| ZEROMAYEIT - BIER2010F10 Limited (“SGX”). The Notes were unsecured and were issued in two
A 7H%172175,000,000% 70 %A 20105F 11 A series, comprising US$175 million issued on 7 October 2010 and US$75
15 H 17,2 75,000,000 % 7T ° ANER1TE 742013 million issued on 15 November 2010. The Bank fully repaid the Notes on
F10A7H (ZHR) 2 HHEEHEREE 7 October 2013, the final maturity date.

(Z2) WT3ARRITR2011F4 A28 HBBARITZHK (b)  This represents US$100 million Floating Rate Notes (the “Notes”) issued
NS EEEARET YETRALETZ by the Bank on 28 April 2011 under the Bank’s Euro Medium Term Note
100,000,000 %0 82 &E ([FER]) - ZREBA Programme, and are listed on the SGX. The Notes are unsecured and
BRI - %2 HIHA20145F4 H28H - have a final maturity on 28 April 2014.

41. BEGSK 41. SUBORDINATED NOTES

SERRIT
Group and Bank
2013 2012
225,000,000 & 7TE B EER (GE (F)) US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
Rate Notes (Note (a)) 1,911,753 2,045,441
200,000,000 = TTK A E BAEER (7 (2)) US$200,000,000 Perpetual
Subordinated Fixed Rate
Notes (Note (b)) 486,740 510,460
225,000,000 7 03K 7T 2022 F 2 Hf $$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
HE B REER (GE(R)) Rate Notes due 2022 (Note (c)) 1,363,978 1,423,569
3,762,471 3,979,470
REDRFEE R T A TESER At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 3,762,471 3,979,470
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(LB T TEhI5IT)
41. BEBK@®

R2013F R 2012F K » NEB RGN VAR
BiEEEMREREAAATFETELELEH:T
ABEE o

() i J5 & 8 17 R2010F2 8118 % 17 2
225,000,000 2 7T £ ¥ 32 AT T 3 4% 5 58 A T AN
BRNESBREEB(TER] - FEBHER
20202 A11 BEIH - F£5/56.625% * TFHF
E—IR o« ANRITINE B — BB ERTT AT S Fl K2
HE A ISERSEE E M SR RAAE TRTTRIZE
FEREROFBF SR -

(Z) 1 75 A iR 17 K2007F2A16H % 17 2
200,000,000 E TR AT LML H R E B E
Bt InE AR B AE BB EER ([EE] o lhEE
B EMEER A2017F2A17H - B%1TH
FHREMEERR  £85486.253%  FFF
Bk Hig - WEBACREBHEEEAER -
FEOFNEEETASHEABETRITRERE
M908 T - EREBEBLERTE LM + AR
TR R MR B AR IR R F B KB
UNEEEEERME GEHD) & o NRITIRE
81— BRRERTT AT 7 FI K 5 B S 4018 (B S 79 E 2 71
BRI A EITRITRIZER S AEMNZE) T 2
(e

2010 4F 2 2009 F © ANERITRARIEER SRR
FEBHEUTEENBEERNCLEI A
75,000,000 7T % 70,000,000 7T 2 SR ERS -
MBEBZEBERIERESEESERZE LN
AR -

(A) BETBARRITHIN20124F 2 A 8 HE472225,000,000
FTANSE TCAE #N 32 FT _ETh S 4 R e BT AN E AR E
BREBH(ER] - BLEEKER 202242 A
9RZIH - RIBMEEH A2017F2H9H ° i
BOTHEHBEEREER  £2/R4875% ' &
FERB—IR o % - WEFHRIEEZEEER
fEE - EROFNSEETTAERS T T
BRHESENIT6 T - ERBEELE RELI
0 ANERTT R PR IR M IR A sk R B A IR B AR
BRFRBUREEEERFE GEBH) &K - K
$RITINE B — BIBRERAT AT L A XI= B & A IS 75
R EEFI SR A A ETRITRIER S AR
SFBYFI SR o

NEBMENSREGBEIHBFREOENNESHE
B A FFr5l 2 B8R M {E 1K 212,000,0005 7T (2012
£ : {K.382,000,000/%7T) °
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

41.

SUBORDINATED NOTES (Continued)

During 2013 and 2012, the Group did not designate on initial

recognition any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or loss.

Note:

This represents US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of the Bank issued on 11 February
2010 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes will mature
on 11 February 2020. Interest at 6.625% p.a. is payable semi-annually.
An interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of
the Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into
with an international bank.

This represents US$200,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated Fixed Rate
Notes qualifying as upper supplementary capital of the Bank issued on
16 February 2007 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes
carry an optional redemption date falling on 17 February 2017. Interest at
6.253% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue date to the optional
redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest
rate will reset and the Notes will bear interest at 3-month LIBOR plus 190
pips. The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional
redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date. An
interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the
Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with
an international bank.

In 2010 and 2009, the Bank repurchased a portion of the Notes with
a total notional principal of US$75,000,000 and US$70,000,000
respectively at a discount after unwinding an identical notional amount
of interest rate swap. Such repurchased Notes were cancelled after
receiving prior approval of the HKMA.

This represents $$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of the Bank issued on 8 February
2012 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes will mature on
9 February 2022 with an optional redemption date falling on 9 February
2017. Interest at 4.875% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue
date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not
redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest
at the then prevailing 5-year Singapore Dollar swap rate plus 376 basis
points. The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the
HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the
optional redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment
date. An interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment
liability of the Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been
entered into with an international bank.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$212 million

lower (2012: HK$382 million lower) than the above carrying amount.



B RS R AR M L
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
42. EEFIE 42. DEFERRED INCOME TAX
EEBRBEERBENHEEREREFE AT Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
I HENHATE TR & EE N B HATR I8 B (B MR IE R IE legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against
BH[E—fHGSHEE AR S T - W22 current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
N relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:
£H $R1T
Group Bank
Pl Pl
Restated Restated
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT T E Deferred income tax assets 22,975 18,876 = 6,623
RIETIEE & Deferred income tax liabilities (21,268) (3,934) (19,934) -
BEMIBEERBEREBERZE ZHBERN R Deferred income tax assets and liabilities analysed based on the
B AN 2 FEEt B A TR T underlying category of temporary differences and the expected date

of recovery and settlement are as follows:

&8 $RAT
Group Bank
FeEl KE5|
Restated Restated
2013 2012 2013 2012
FIETRIAE 2 ¢ Deferred income tax assets:
— A 7E 12 & A & Y=l — Deferred income tax assets
ZIBETRIR A B to be recovered after
more than 12 months 88,236 86,530 58,874 71,479
FIEFRIEEE ¢ Deferred income tax liabilities:
—EE12EAREER — Deferred income tax liabilities
ZIBLEFIBEE to be settled after
more than 12 months (86,529) (71,588) (78,808) (64,856)
1,707 14,942 (19,934) 6,623
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

42. IEEFIIE (@)
EIEFETEER B A= ST ¢

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as

follows:

£ $RAT
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
1818 WRI23R At 1 January, as previously
reported (177,322) 49,907 (185,641) 42,107
FEBOR 2R E — Change in accounting policy -
PARK AR REREEYI1TE Restatement of premises on
cost basis 192,264 131,746 192,264 131,746
1H18 @ £F5 At 1 January, as restated 14,942 181,653 6,623 173,853
P ESBRAFL AR B, (SZ1)  Tax credited/(charged) to the
(3E17) income statement (Note 17) 6,425 (17,411) (7,535) (18,675)
R ATIES (i 46)  Tax charged to equity (Note 46) (19,998) (149,300) (19,022) (148,555)
ERER Exchange difference 338 - - -
12H31H At 31 December 1,707 14,942 (19,934) 6,623
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B RS R AR M L
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
42, EFEBIR (50 42. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
FEREFRBEENRBERAEE 22 » TEER The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during

MRABAESEE T HIEZ GBI

the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances

within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

IRIEFRIBEE : Deferred income tax assets:
AR EEX
EHERERE REAt
Impairment REEM Deferred
allowances BEEE  Investment expenses =
55 Group and provisions Tax losses revaluation and others Total
20121 A1 H At 1 January 2012 41,574 981 173,415 18,420 234,390
RURESER A () /[l 5 (Charged)/credited to
the income statement (10,693) 3,625 - 8,519 1,451
AR NS Charged to equity - - (149,311) - (149,311)
201212 A31 B R At 31 December 2012
201341 F1H and 1 January 2013 30,881 4,606 24,104 26,939 86,530
RUEBRREIE /() Credited/(charged) to
the income statement 12,594 (541) - 9,254 21,307
AR BRI Charged to equity - - (19,939) - (19,939)
ERER Exchange difference 272 - - 66 338
201312831 H At 31 December 2013 43,747 4,065 4,165 36,259 88,236
WEEEREE B
Impairment REAM
allowances REE Deferred
and Investment  expenses &5t
R1T Bank provisions revaluation and others Total
201241 A1H At 1 January 2012 30,668 172,805 17,895 221,368
RURESBRA (), Bl (Charged)/credited to
the income statement (8,586) - 7,252 (1,334)
RERREAS N Charged to equity - (148,555) = (148,555)
2012F 12 A31 B & At 31 December 2012 and
201341 A1H 1 January 2013 22,082 24,250 25,147 71,479
AU ERERA () [B1# (Charged)/credited to
the income statement (2,071) - 8,488 6,417
Rz BRI Charged to equity - (19,022) - (19,022)
20134 12H31 H At 31 December 2013 20,011 5,228 33,635 58,874
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

42. EEFIE @)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

IRIEFRIBEE S : Deferred income tax liabilities:
MERBHE RENEEL
Accelerated TEEfE  Investment REER
BE tax  Premises  properties  Investment 2 ait
- Group Provisions ~ depreciation  revaluation  revaluation  revaluation Others Total
01261818 MaI2H At 1 January 2012, as previously reported 4,941 15,612 153,024 10,673 64 169 184,483
R HE- Change in accounting policy -

WA AERES1E Restatement of premises on cost basis - 21,018 (153,024) - - - (131,746)
201251 A1R » BEF At 1 January 2012, as restated 4,94 36,890 - 10,673 64 169 52,737
RpERRZE Charged to the income statement 1,266 16,795 - 801 - - 18,862
RERRAES Credited to equity - - - - (11) - M)
012612 4318 At 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013 6,207 53,685 - 11,474 53 169 71,588

2013F1A18
013F1 818 MaI2H At 1 January 2013, as previously reported 6,207 26,353 219,596 11,474 53 169 263,852
R HE- Change in accounting policy -

MR ERERESfTE Restatement of premises on cost basis - 27,332 (219,59) - = = (192,264)
20131 A1R » BE7 At 1 January 2013, as restated 6,207 53,685 - 11,474 53 169 71,588
RpERRZE Charged to the income statement 915 11,622 - 2,345 - - 14,882
REGRRZL Charged to equity - - - - 59 - 59
MIE12A31 B At 31 December 2013 12 e - 13819 12 169 86529
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B RS R AR M L
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

42. IEEFIIE (@)
EERIEEE - @

42. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities: (Continued)

hRB B E REMEER
Accelerated TEEff  Investment
tax Premises properties =5
BT Bank depreciation  revaluation  revaluation Total
201241818 At 1 January 2012,
AN R 23R as previously reported 15,563 153,026 10,672 179,261
BER 2 B - Change in accounting policy -
PARANE BEMESITTE Restatement of premises on
cost basis 21,280 (153,026) - (131,746)
2012%1H18 - At 1 January 2012,
KET| as restated 36,843 = 10,672 47,515
U E AR A Charged to the
income statement 16,540 - 801 17,341
201212 A31 B R At 31 December 2012 and
201341 A1H 1 January 2013 53,383 - 11,473 64,856
201341818 At 1 January 2013,
AN R 23R as previously reported 26,049 219,598 11,473 257,120
BER 2 B - Change in accounting policy -
PARANE BEMESITTE Restatement of premises on
cost basis 27,334 (219,598) - (192,264)
2013F1H18 - At 1 January 2013,
KET| as restated 53,383 = 11,473 64,856
Pk BR A S Charged to the income statement 11,607 = 2,345 13,952
201312 A 318 At 31 December 2013 64,990 - 13,818 78,808
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
42. IEEFIIE (@) 42. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
Tt P ERNEZEAY 2 EERIE - The deferred income tax charged to equity during the year is as
follows:
58 $R1T
Group Bank
S| S|
Restated Restated
2013 2012 2013 2012
PR RE R 2 AT ERE - Fair value reserves in
shareholders’ equity:
— A SRS (HiFE46) — available-for-sale
securities (Note 46) (19,998)  (149,300) (19,022)  (148,555)
43. HEEBRQ R 2R 43. BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES
WA R NER B B R AR A 7 R BT Included in the following statement of financial position captions are
IR A RIHE — AR G ETT R 5 P A 2 A5 RR T balances with the ultimate and immediate holding companies arising
FIET from transactions conducted on normal commercial terms:
SEERIRIT Group and Bank 2013 2012
FSHEERMEMRE Advances and other accounts = 88
BRER Deposits from customers 50,253 159,694
HEiRE RTER Other accounts and accruals 1 -

50,254 159,694
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B A5 R R ML
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AT TTAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
43. BAEE AT Z &8 @) 43. BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES (continued)
BIIRR R NER B B IR R R B A B 2 & fheT Included in the following statement of financial position captions are
FEAT - balances with fellow subsidiaries detailed as follows:
EERRIT Group and Bank 2013 2012
BHEERMEMRE Advances and other accounts 19,582 50,925
Y SVER 4 Deposits from customers 1,674,440 1,393,735
HBRE RIERE Other accounts and accruals 4,394 4,036
&IEETS Subordinated notes 40,934 43,908
1,719,768 1,441,679
WA R A ER B BIEAIRTT BT B A Rl 2 AR Included in the following statement of financial position captions are
YA balances with subsidiaries of the Bank detailed as follows:
$RAT Bank 2013 2012
& RIERITH AR Cash and balances with banks 1,897,331 775,213
BEHEEZRREMIEE Advances and other accounts 882,142 710,885
2,779,473 1,486,098
RITIER Deposits from banks 1,187,251 937,369
BREER Deposits from customers 534,164 520,198
BEITHERE Certificates of deposit issued 599,804 499,709
HEaiR B RTER Other accounts and accruals 8,015 14,034

2,329,234 1,971,310
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

44, RRBERARE 44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

() BAXARE (@)

R12A31BERRE ADARIRBEEEEBEE KB
ABEEEZERAENT

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure in respect of projects and acquisition of fixed
assets as at 31 December but not yet incurred is as follows:

KM 8R1T
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BREBREBEN 2R Expenditure authorised but
not contracted for 22,109 43,423 21,027 42,771
BROBERREER ZFX Expenditure contracted but
not provided for 153,260 153,073 150,856 146,235
175,369 196,496 171,883 189,006

(2) FERE (b)

AEEEEEBRINEERETEFPZEMIA
BREEMEGERBRINESENT

Credit commitments

The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-
balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to
customers are as follows:

204

=¥ Skl
Contract amount
£ $RAT
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
HEEERED Direct credit substitutes 1,858,669 478,535 94,599 168,477
XX ZER 2 S ATEE Transaction-related contingencies 285,002 507,025 127,212 10,075
B 5 AR E Trade-related contingencies 651,824 1,759,318 520,296 628,530
AR EUH MR /ETR %L Commitments that are
B R unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice 60,823,138 52,779,971 58,310,893 50,777,336
H A Other commitments with an
[RAEARR 7 original maturity of:
— D1 &F - under 1 year 5,401,515 5,604,862 4,816,606 4,959,718
—1FRIAE — 1 year and over 1,497,268 1,602,379 400,780 308,010
RARTER Forward forward deposits placed 12,457 = 12,457 1,594
70,529,873 62,732,090 64,282,843 56,853,740
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

44, HARBBRAE @

(2) FEAE @

B RS R AR M L
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(Continued)
(b) Credit commitments (Continued)

FERBINESEE
Credit risk weighted amount
&9 $B1T
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012

A B B R Contingent liabilities and

commitments

(R) BEERZEE

TRPARAEEE ELSEBBSNEER
TEEREDTEREESSER L ELDE
BES

SEERBAT

2,474,576 2,589,868 1,219,137 1,250,111

(c) Assets pledged

Exchange Fund debts pledged with the HKMA to facilitate the Group’s
trading and market-marking activities in Exchange Fund debts are as
follows:

Group and Bank 2013 2012

EReEE2ERNEE
FIEEBERENES
A EES

HEARIE :

Assets pledged with HKMA:
Trading securities 3,132,132 2,548,496
Available-for-sale securities 169,051 132,544

3,301,183 2,681,040

Associated liabilities:
Trading liabilities 3,362,473 2,278,044
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

44, FREBRAE @ 44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(Continued)

(R) BEEAZEE @ (c) Assets pledged (Continued)

Tt B ¥z O BB 1 2 818 T IE R & g8 2 3k The carrying amounts of the non-government bonds pledged with

BRES REREE B REE unrelated financial institutions under repurchase agreements and the

associated liabilities are as follows:

£ Group 2013 2012
Bl N2 EBEE - Assets pledged under repurchase
agreements:
At ERS Available-for-sale securities 512,318 256,838
RREEFS Held-to-maturity securities 16,882 51,970
529,200 308,808
HHEE Associated liabilities:
RITIER Deposits from banks 408,051 259,386
HEiR B RTER Other accounts and accruals 97,862 36,569
505,913 295,955
$B1T Bank 2013 2012
ElfE = ~ 2 BREE - Assets pledged under repurchase
agreements:
AT ’%% % Available-for-sale securities 512,318 256,838
2 EE Held-to-maturity securities 16,882 15,401
529,200 272,239
EERE : Associated liabilities:
RITIER Deposits from banks 408,051 259,386
HMERE RTER Other accounts and accruals 97,862 -
505,913 259,386
#BY v ESFMERBEEN A TERER 2 ES The fair value of the transferred securities and associated liabilities
FIRREEMRS ° approximate the carrying amount of the transferred securities.
REBHREAAN - KRB RABFITNEER B The Group and the Bank cannot use, sell or pledge the above
BB LRSS THHEB ZEFSFNETA securities for the duration of the repurchase agreements and is
HiEERE - exposed to the credit risk of the issuers of the transferred securities.
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B RS R AR M L
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

44, HREBERAE @ 44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(Continued)

(T) REHERIE (d) Operating lease commitments
INANEE R AERITAETEA - B TA BUE YK Where the Group and the Bank is the lessee, the future minimum lease
EHEMRARREX N 2 HEBENFHAEEDN payments under non-cancellable building operating leases are as
N follows:
£H $R1T
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
16 AR Not later than 1 year 193,353 158,094 172,592 144,858
1FUABRESF Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 226,260 255,268 166,948 215,688
5 E Later than 5 years 61,661 58,161 - 2,998
481,274 471,523 339,540 363,544
IARE B KAEITAEEA - B RABUS YA Where the Group and the Bank is the lessor, the future minimum lease
EHEMRARARAX Nz HEEENREREN payments under non-cancellable building operating leases are as
K follows:
55 $R1T
Group Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
1F AR Not later than 1 year 31,230 15,850 31,090 14,322
1ENBESF Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 49,936 856 48,212 856
81,166 16,706 79,302 15,178
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEET TThLFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
45. B 45. SHARE CAPITAL
2013 2012
SEERRA Authorised:
50,000,000 % E3@A% - BIXEE 100 757T 50,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$100 each 5,000,000 5,000,000
2013 2012
EZERBRE TR AR 2R
Number of BZA  Number of &N
Issued and fully ordinary Share ordinary Share
BT R paid share capital: shares capital shares capital
1H1H At 1 January 50,000,000 5,000,000 46,000,000 4,600,000
BATHRIDFRIS /IR Proceeds from shares issued - - 4,000,000 400,000
12H31H At 31 December 50,000,000 5,000,000 50,000,000 5,000,000
2013 12 A31 HE H{T L BIRRMNHEE &5t A The total number of ordinary shares in issue as at 31 December
FREEE 10078 7T (2012 F : B EE 10078 7T) 2013 is 50 million shares (2012: 50 million shares) with a par value of
250,000,000 /% (2012 4 : 50,000,000 % ) ° Ff HK$100 per share (2012: HK$100 per share). All issued shares are
BEBET RN ZEET - fully paid.
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

B RS R AR M L
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

46. f#fE 46. RESERVES
NRAAEE  REER
TEEMRE REEMHRE B2 e (&)
GaRfE  Premises Investment  EXREf  -MEE Resevefor  Refained
Consolidation ~ Revaluation ~ Revaluation ~ Exchange General Share-based Earnings &t
%8 Group Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Compensation (Note) Total
01351 A18  MAI2H At 1 January 2013, as previously reported 8,827 1,619,476 (102,461) 285,853 700,254 130 9,519,136 12,031,215
EHR L E - Change in accounting policy -

A ERERESTE Restatement of premises on cost basis - (1,576479) - - - - (45,795)  (1,622,279)
013F1 A1 8 EE Balance at 1 January 2013, as restated 8,827 42,998 (102,461) 285,853 700,254 130 9,473,341 10,408,942
AREES AT ARG Fair value gains on available-for-sale

NERRATER securities recognised in equity - - 47,691 - - - - 47,691
AFEBENEREETE  Fairvalue loss realised and transferred to

HERNRERI AR income statement upon disposal of

RN s 2 5 investments in securities included in

Rl BFRARER the loans and receivables category and

e e held-to-maturity category which were

previously reclassified from
the available-for-sale category - - 135,647 - - - - 135,647
ATEUHINLETRIE Fair value gain realised and transferred to
BARER R ERENEE income statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities - - (107,287) - - - - (107,287)
REEHREZDMER Deferred income tax assets released/
LERHEAE/ liabilities recognised on movements in
RLERHERR investment revaluation reserve

(Hizt42) (Note 42) - - (19,998) - - - - (19,998)
REENDRTEARE Reserve arising from reclassification of

VYL premises to investment properties - 122,48 - - - - - 1248
BN e Exchange differences arising on translation

MEXZE of the financial statements of foreign entities - - - 105,918 = - = 105,918
DA ST DR D B Provision for equity-settled

el WA share-based compensation - - - - - 4,041 = 4,241
EERT Profit for the year = - - - - - 1600477 1,699,477
12FRERE 2012 final dividend - - - - - - (240,000) (240,000)
013 RERE 2013 Interm ividend - - - - - - {10000 (110000)
20135128318 At 31 December 2013 8,827 165,246 (46,408) 391,71 700,254 4311 10,822,818 12,046,879
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

46. f#fE @ 46. RESERVES (Continued)
WRDAEE  RERH
EEMRE RASERE 2 fate (&)
GAGE  Premses Investment  [ENfFE  —EE  Resevefor  Refained
Consolidation ~ Revaluation ~ Revaluation ~ Exchange General ~ Share-based Earnings H
£E Group Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Compensation (Note) Total
01241810  WMAIZR At 1 January 2012, as previously reported 8,827 1,109,496 (836,853) 257,813 700,254 - 8266939 9,506,476
S HR L E - Change in accounting policy -

WA ERERESTE Restatement of premises on cost basis - (1,066,498) - - - - (29,353)  (1,005,851)
201261718 L& Balance at 1 January 2012, as restated 8,827 42,998 (836,853) 257,813 700,254 - 8237586 8,410,625
Ak ERS AT ENE Fair value gains on available-for-sale

NERRATED securities recognised in equity - - 814,060 - - - - 814,060
AHERERET IS Fair value gains recognised in equity upon

ETEF REWEERIN reclassffication of certain investments in

CEFREEIEHERRE  securiies included in the loans and

NERRATED receivables category to the

available-for-sale category - - 54,621 - - - - 54,621
ATEEBENIEREE Fair value loss realised and transferred o

At ERAINEN AR income statement upon disposal of

EHRENGUERRR investments in securities included in

HEHEBER ERRE the loans and receivables category and

KRR RER R NGEE held-to-maturity category which were

previously reclassified from
the available-for-sale category - - 87,025 - - - - 87,025
AFESERNEEETHLE  Fairvalue loss realised and transferred to

BRNEFHBAER income statement upon impairment of

RIENGUERRZ E5 RS investments in securities included in

RERERRBEENGR the loans and receivables category

which were previously reclassified
from the available-for-sale category - - 3,723 - - - - 3,723
AFERENIETREEES  Fair value gain realised and transferred o
WERRERENER income statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities = = (75,731) = = = = (75,731)
FAEREEEEMERL Deferred income tax assets released
ERBREE /B2 liabilities recognised on movements
EiEREafkE () in investment revaluation reserve
(Note 42) - - (149300) - - - - (149300)
HEBNHB AR Exchange differences arising on translation

BROERZE of the financial statements of foreign entities - - - 28,040 - - - 28,040
DARREST F DA D AR Provision for equity-settled

Ell g share-based compensation - - - - - 130 - 130
EE&A Profit for the year - - - - - - 1440755 1,442,755
011 FXERE 2011 final dividend - - - - - - (110400 (110400)
1250 ERE 2012 Interim dividend - - - - - - (96,600) (96,600)
2012612 A31H At 31 December 2012 8,827 42,998 (102,461) 285,853 700,254 130 9473341 10,408,942
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B RS R AR M L
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

46. f#fE @ 46. RESERVES (Continued)
HRARERE REEH
TEEMRE REEMHRE B2l (&)
Premises  Investment Eifif —fR&%E  Resevefor  Retained
Revaluation ~ Revaluation ~ Exchange General  Share-based Eamnings At
it Bank Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve  Compensation (Note) Total
013%F1 810 WEI2 At 1 January 2013, as previously reported 963,485 (92,874) 158 693,304 130 7,685,661 9,249,864
S HR E - Change in accounting policy -

WA AR ESE Restatement of premises on cost basis (920,487) - - - - (49,015 (969,502)
013F1 718 L& Balance at 1 January 2013, s restated 42,998 (92,874) 158 693,304 130 7,636,646 8,280,362
kL ERS AT ENE Fair value gains on available-for-sale

NERRATED securities recognised in equity - 59,762 - - - - 59,762
ATEBERNHERXETR Fair value loss realised and transferred to

HERRINERARAER income statement upon disposal of

REENGUERR Ry 2 5E investments in securities included in

Bl EARERER the loans and receivables category and

REE2 RS held-to-maturity category which were

previously reclassified from
the available-for-sale category - 135,647 - - - - 135,647
AHERERLENREE Fair value gain realised and transferred to
FERERREAE AR income statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities - (107,287) - - - - (107,287)
RAEEREGMER Deferred income tax assets released/

LERHEAE/ liablities recognised on movements in

A ERHERRE investment revaluation reserve

(Fz42) (Note 42) - (19,022) - - - - (19,022)
BEENAEAEARE Reserve arising from reclassification of

VL1 premises to investment properties 122,248 - o - 5 o 122,248
BEENATHEREND Exchange differences arising on translation

EizE of the financial statements of a foreign branch - - 12 - - - 12
WRES AN AERE M Z8%E  Provision for equity-settled

share-based compensation - - - - 4.241 - 4,241
FREA Profit for the year - - - - - 1004244 1,004,044
125 KBRS 2012 final dividend - - - - - (240,000) (240,000)
013FHERE 2013 interim dividend - - - - - (110,000) (110,000)
2013%128318 At 31 December 2013 165,246 (23,774) 170 693,304 4371 8,380,890 9,220,207
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(CABREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

46. f#fE @ 46. RESERVES (Continued)
DR AER REEH
EEGHE RASERE 2 et (&)
Premises Investment ExEE —%#E  Reservefor Retained
Revaluation  Revaluation Exchange General  Share-based Earnings &t
Eidh] Bank Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve  Compensation (Note) Total
012F1A18  AIZH At 1 January 2012, as previously reported 633,928 (827,306) 145 693,304 - 69T TATTTI2
SRR NE - Change in accounting policy -
WHAERERSSE Restatement of premises on cost basis (590,930 - - - - (46,449 (637,379)
1261 A18 - GE3| Balance at 1 January 2012, as restated 42,998 (827,306) 145 693,304 - 6,931,192 6,840,333
AERR 2 AT RN Fair value gains on available-for-sale
NERRATED securities recognised in equity - 814,515 - - - - 814,515
?@Hﬁlﬁnf@%ﬁ yix Fair value gains recognised in equity upon
EHRENGUEERA reclassffication of certain investments in
Zﬁ%‘&ﬁi—lﬁi\ﬁ IR securities inclued in the loans and
NERRATED receivables category to
the available-for-sale category - 54,621 - - - - 54,621
ATEEFENLERZAMRLE Fair value loss realised and transferred to
BHRERABAET RER income statement upon disposal of
FEERIREE R E investments in securities included in
RAREZRRERENER the loans and receivables category and
held-to-maturity category which were
previously reclassified from
the available-for-sale category - 85,865 - - - - 85,865

ATEERRBEATHHERNA
i%ﬁ” RERREMGERR
EFRERERERRERE G

Fair value loss realised and transferred to

income statement upon impairment of

investments in securities included in

the loans and receivables category which

were previously reclassified from

the available-for-sale category - 3,723 - - - - 3,723
Fair value gain realised and transferred to

income statement upon disposal of

?Tﬁuﬁlmwﬁﬂ HE
Eibacy SYET e 3

available-for-sale securities - (75,731) - - - - (75,731)
RASRHERM Deferred income tax assets released/
D& ERHELAE/ liablities recognised on movements in
RLERHEAR (M 42) investment revaluation reserve
(Note 42) - (148555 - - - - (14855
RERMATHERRA Exchange differences arising on translation
EizR of the financial statements of a foreign branch - - 13 - - - 13
DA S DA D B Provision for equity-settled
2 Bt share-based compensation - - - - 130 - 130
EREH Profit for the year - - - - - 912,454 912,454
2011 FRERE 2011 final dividend - - - - - (Mod0)  (110400)
1251 HRE 2012 interim dividend - - - - - 96,600) (96,600)
201212 A31H At 31 December 2012 42,998 (92,874) 158 693,304 130 7,636,646 8,280,362
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

46. Fﬁ{%(ﬁ) 46. RESERVES (continued)

(2 Note:

ARIRTTENE B R EL N RGBS ISHRE ZERFTA The Bank is required to maintain minimum impairment provisions in excess of
AN Z KRB RS - BIFZEEREAREBBIR those required under HKFRS in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory
TEGEHIRANBEEE BB AEERTE - KBS reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking
REERBRARE TR HESE - EEHE2E8AE Ordinance and local regulatory requirements for prudential supervision
HERBSE RETHNA  TEENEREEANFAR - purposes. The regulatory reserve restricts the amount of reserves which can

be distributed to shareholders. Movements in the regulatory reserve are made
directly through equity reserve and in consultation with the HKMA.

® 2013912 A31 B * ANRFTE R E 1,433,269,000 7 7T As at 31 December 2013, the Bank has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
(20124 : 1,286,675,0008 L) 2 € RBIEAEEHH HK$1,433,269,000 (2012: HK$1,286,675,000) first against the consolidated
RN E A —REEE - SRR BNESEREBEN T general reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against
7E ° the consolidated retained earnings of the Bank.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

47. MEBEEREFERMEE

() MBRBEBER 2 EESFEEETHR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

47. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENTS

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit after impairment

ERAFHEYHERR losses to net cash flows from operating activities
KB
Restated
2013 2012
MBEREBER 2 EERF Operating profit after impairment losses 1,480,780 1,024,032
FH WA Net interest income (2,801,668)  (2,202,917)
=N Dividend income (12,313) (9,769)
EFREEE REMEERE Loan impairment losses and
other credit provisions 309,806 143,689
e Depreciation 111,828 99,322
B EE 2 HH Amortisation expenses of intangible assets 7,078 10,063
RBR B 18 2 B EEF 2R Advances written off net of recoveries (152,024) (205,772)
PARR#E 2 A5 PARR A A EE AR SR M 2 8 Provision for equity-settled
share-based compensation 4,241 130
B4 S Interest received 4,262,065 3,781,898
BERALE Interest paid (1,193,362)  (1,346,985)
B U B Dividend received 56,729 39,215
EEEERABEGH 2EERT Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 2,073,160 1,332,906
EEEERARZED Changes in operating assets
and liabilities:
— & RERITHER KR DB BB - cash and balances with banks and
38 A ziman & 5e BTE K money at call and short notice
with an original maturity
beyond three months (355,447) 65,827
—REE R BB 3 EA 2 ERITHER - placements with banks with an
original maturity beyond three months  (1,637,694) 2,421,465
—FHEBERRMNES - trading securities (649,613)  (1,547,470)
—ﬁiﬁﬂlﬁ — derivative financial instruments (425,259) (46,693)
—EBENAFEEBEEEB T ABEN — financial assets designated at
irﬂéﬁ fair value through profit or loss 19,277 (14,749)
—BEFER - advances to customers (13,399,078)  (8,466,285)
—HMARE - other accounts 215,661 (927,926)
—BRETEERREWGIEER 2 EHEE — investments in securities included in
the loans and receivables category 2,277,537 1,810,947
— At E RS - available-for-sale securities (5,146,080)  (2,031,466)
fﬁzéJHﬂ*’* — held-to-maturity securities 1,378,126 1,141,473
—ERT—HRAEHEE —loan to a jointly controlled entity - 20,429
—fﬁ{ﬂ_m - deposits from banks (650,323) 238,370
—RHEBERSRMEE - trading liabilities 1,084,429 (767,158)
—BPEER - deposits from customers 11,863,967 4,691,782
—HibBR B RTERR — other accounts and accruals (1,236,720) 1,615,246
M SRR Exchange adjustments (121,859) (99,315)
B EHMANE S Cash absorbed by operating activities (4,709,916) (562,617)
SREBITOEREZFE Interest paid on certificates of
deposit issued (80,609) (45,415)
EHEBNEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (125,045) (30,643)
EAUE NI Overseas tax paid (19,680) (16,888)
KRB FTAIR S F5E Net cash used in operating activities (4,935,250) (655,563)
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

47. RERESREBLERME @

(2) ERERBEERA  BERERBEEE
EEERBERMESEARUTEHZT
IgeR REBES{CES EARATE
RERESEERSHEZLETR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B RS R AR M L
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENTS (continued)

(b) For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise the following balances
with maturity of three months or less from the date of
acquisition, deposits that are readily convertible to
known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

KE7
Restated
- Group 2013 2012
e MERITHE R Cash and balances with banks 3,010,837 2,059,946

[REIER B 7E 3 M A sk A T 2 i &0 K 8 BT 5K Money at call and short notice with an
original maturity within three months 4,447,115 10,955,818

JREER B 72 318 A s A T 2 FESRI T FF 3K Placements with banks with an

original maturity within three months 1,268,798 2,795,826
FHEEBRENES Trading securities 578,374 689,941
9,305,124 16,501,531

48. ERMABER

BREBRAGDIE161BE - ERXTERRAELZ
BIRET

48. LOANS TO OFFICERS

Particulars of loans made to officers disclosed pursuant to section

161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

12 A 31 B#EeR
Balance outstanding
at 31 December

FRERESEER
Maximum balance

during the year

2013 2012 2013 2012
e RA B AR Aggregate amount outstanding
in respect of principal
and interest 22,267 53,002 28,667 93,573
ERESER Aggregate amount outstanding
in respect of guarantees 545 651 545 651
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

49. EBEALTZRS 49. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
RPITZEEERARATETEBRBR AR & The Bank’s immediate holding company is Dah Sing Banking Group
BEERARAFTEHEEERAGIRAERE Limited and the ultimate holding company is Dah Sing Financial
EMEE LTAR - Holdings Limited. Both holding companies are incorporated and listed

in Hong Kong.

R 2013 F 2012 F » ANIRITIHE— B FEMKK - During 2013 and 2012, the Bank entered into various transactions
R AR REEZNB AR EZERS B with its holding companies, and other fellow subsidiaries on normal
SRITRIEGFERRR HERDHASZ KRR commercial terms. These transactions include interbank placements
A - IR —RRIBITIRTE - and deposit taking, marketing and distribution of life and general

insurance products and the provision of other banking services.

PEON - RRITMRSEER AR RERRMEA In addition, the Bank also provides computer and administrative
AIREEMRITHRG  HEERIHAYETRR services to its ultimate holding company and its fellow subsidiaries,
B AR - leases and sub-leases properties to fellow subsidiaries.
HEEBEATZEARZNAT : Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows.
() BERLAR MEBARRRRAKEL (@) Transactions and balances with holding companies,
G subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries
() WAKRTH ()  Income and expenses
BEERBEREZERAER
Immediate and ultimate EEXG:PE]
holding companies Fellow subsidiaries
£HE Group 2013 2012 2013 2012
BAIALE Interest paid (10) (11) (11,854) (12,408)
S Interest received - - 225 261
EAEE Commission received - - 76,994 52,488
2 U AR5 & Service fee received 5,700 5,700 16,950 18,004
2 e REBRE Rental and related building
EIRE management fee received - - 15,288 14,529
ENEMEES Other operating expenses paid = = (12,929) (12,268)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
49. BREAEALTZRZ @) 49. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(R) EERAT MBATRBEZKEA (a) Transactions and balances with holding companies,
AN S K&tk subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries (Continued)
(i) EHTELEIREIZENE LA DT EE (i)  Derivative financial instruments with subsidiary or fellow
FTA subsidiary
an/s
EREHE AFE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE =N
$R1T Bank amount Assets Liabilities
2013412831 8 At 31 December 2013 349,257 24,618 (7,530)
2012412 A 31 H At 31 December 2012 401,286 28,868 (9,354)
@i)  FIRTEB AR A2 (5 EEGE (i)  Committed facilities to a subsidiary
R1T Bank 2013 2012
FEEAHESE Facility amount 499,258 315,738
() XEEE AR (b) Key management personnel
(i) HEERFTEEBAE ZEALZ R () Material transactions and balances with directors and key
F=93 management personnel
AREE  RBTIREWREFEZ 8 = During the year, the Bank has banking transactions with
BRERERE TFTEEEEALE  HiiE the key management personnel, their close family members
RESHERBIESIADE - HRER and the entities controlled by them including deposit taking,
IF % EBEIE R R & B E i 8 T 5508 loans, credit card facilities and investment services. These
[ o transactions were provided in the ordinary course of business

and at the same terms with other employees.
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49. BEREATZRE @)
(Z) TEEEAE @)

() HBEERTEEEABZBEALSR
AR ()

TEEBABZRGMELEZWA R
WAER - MERRFRZEHROT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

49.

(b)

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Key management personnel (Continued)

(i) Material transactions and balances with directors and key
management personnel (Continued)

Income and expenses arising from the transactions with key
management personnel are immaterial and the loans and
deposits balances with them are shown below:

EEKRTT Group and Bank 2013 2012
BB Loans and advances 3,928 4,984
REA 2 BEF0E Undrawn commitments 2,771 2,688
55K Deposits 329,121 202,699
EfR Guarantee 545 502
FRNERKRBRZ x=iB5E Maximum aggregate amount of loans

and advances during the year 9,788 11,087

(i) ETEEEASHz

KIRITEBEIBAEENITES - HRM
ERREEREIAKGEI8

(R) EREQAFARARZFNEREZRER
REER
FARARTKRIBABLERAREERTT

35,624,000 7T (2012 4F : 24,540,000% 7T ) Hx
BUWA - &R - ABTEE — HRZEHEEER
EEEARATZIFER ﬁﬁﬁf%zmsimﬁm B
F 3 #582521,407,000/5 7T (20124F : 4,313,000
FETT) o
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(c)

(i)  Remuneration of key management personnel
Key management personnel of the Bank are executive directors

and their remunerations are included under Note 18.

Transactions and balances with associate and jointly
controlled entity

During the year, the Bank received from Bank of Chongqing,
an associate, dividend income of HK$35,624,000 (2012:
HK$24,540,000). During the year, the Bank received deposits from
Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited, a jointly controlled entity

and as at 31 December 2013, the balance of deposit was HK$
21,407,000 (2012: HK$4,313,000).



(LAEREFThz5I7R)

50. LR HERRIMETE

AT BRERAB(RFRITEEERAA
[RFRITEE ) RREIER AR (KT R EE
BERAB (A eRER]) SEERBRESE -
BEBRFEB 2 KFTIRITEBE RS E ([ RH
RITEEE ) RAF & REERIRESS ([X
MEmEEl)  SERARZEEFEARTHEER
T BRERARERARITNES  RREIBE
e

AEEE BRI RITEBEF B R AF & B BIIR
HIAB D SERORM T AEB 2 EFERSRIT
BRAE e

() RFRITEEE

RFROTEERTEMAEMBRARETEZLE
SR - EREAAFAHRTEEERE
ZERBIRAEITE A RHEERNRE S T RAED
ReEE WEROEHETRD - KFRTE
BITHE AR S X NEHIR2012F ARIAR T
HVRRARHE © N2012F PR T 2 SRAXHE - KFTIRTT
SEFTHEBEITHRE - PASTITHE AR o

% E R TR AN R AT SR B AT BN 2 R AR
HER T - BHRREZITEE T BRES R
ZEEREXAFNRITEEESSUTEERRE
BHARSPBERAR ([BERSHA]) EmRAl
F17.0309)EMRE T B MERUATIER Z &S
EHEETE : () AABRTEEROGERTFERES
RSB EZWHIE : (i) KBITERRNER
BERTHASERZARBEERSMEEZ T
WifE (i) RETRITE ERA R FRRAR D 175
TLZTEE © %aRIRIE 2T AR TR T B B
FTE1EFE6ARA -

P E

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

Each of the Bank’s immediate holding company (Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited (“DSBG”)) and ultimate holding company (Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”)) has its own share option
scheme. The Board of Directors of DSBG and DSFH can grant to any
employees, including directors of the Bank and of the Group, options
to subscribe for shares of DSBG or DSFH under the DSBG Share
Option Scheme (the “DSBG Scheme”) and the DSFH Share Option
Scheme (the “DSFH Scheme”) approved by shareholders.

Share-based compensation through the DSBG Scheme and the DSFH
Scheme is available to directors and senior executives of the Group.

(@) DSBG Scheme

DSBG issues to certain directors and employees of its subsidiaries
share options on terms that allow DSBG the choice of making cash
payments, determined based on the intrinsic value of each share
option, instead of allotting newly issued shares to the directors or
employees at the date of exercise. DSBG has the intention to adopt
cash settlement practice in respect of the share options granted prior
to year 2012. For share option issued in 2012, DSBG has the intention
to settle its obligations by issuing new shares.

The share options are granted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the DSBG Scheme. The exercise price per option share
is concluded by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee on
behalf of the Board of DSBG on the basis no less exacting than the
requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”)
and is determined as no less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of DSBG’s shares traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of DSBG’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of DSBG'’s shares of HK$1 each in the capital in issue. The exercise
period is between the first and sixth anniversaries from the date of
grant.
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50. AR AERBRMEE ®
(Z) Rr&mstal

AFEMETEREMNBARETEEREER
It - ERIEFAFATERMATBEEZSTRR
BITERMEEEHEEXNRBENRSE
B AERDEFHETRND - RKFTESHERAIR
EXEHRITEERENRBITER T 2R
Pt o

ZERRIE TR RN & RUAR R 7L 200545 4 A28 H
BB 2 ST RRAE B 2 R R T - &5
RBAEZTEEIRRERFHEESREKRT
CREFSUTNBERREBRZAT LTRAISE
17.039) &R E T » I MERLAR3IEHR 2 & m

EERE : (VAFEMBROHERTFARBBRZ A
BEZWME : () RMemBRNEEERTHA
5EZXZAREARGMEE 2 FHWHE: &
(iii) RFT 2R AR BRI 2 BT ZEE ° 2R
BAE 2 1T E B AR T B e AT SR 1 2R 6 B
E| o

#_Et W E R AR ST BT T 2 AR & XA HIR
it - AEEE R4 E B #5229,809,000 % 7T
(20124 : 7,598,0007%5 7T ) B A % SRR E A
FEZBE - ZABETEE L[V AT/ S
SNETAERISH o WAFETA=ZEX TR
BRIE TR FBHBEFTHE o

Fh B AFTIRITRBAT BIFTR T 2 AR S &Y
R - ERRTHZAFEA=AXBEE
ERAR TR E2RKRAE -
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)
(b) DSFH Scheme

DSFH issues to certain directors and employees of its subsidiaries
share options on terms that allow DSFH the choice of making cash
payments, determined based on the intrinsic value of each share
option, instead of allotting newly issued shares to the directors or
employees at the date of exercise. DSFH has adopted the cash
settlement practice and intends to continue this practice in respect of
the existing share options issued.

The share options are granted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the new Share Option Scheme approved by the
shareholders of DSFH on 28 April 2005. The exercise price per option
share is concluded by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
on behalf of the Board of DSFH on the basis no less exacting than the
requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the SEHK and is determined as no less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of DSFH’s shares traded on the SEHK
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of DSFH’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of DSFH shares of HK$2 each in the capital in issue.
The exercise period is between the first and sixth anniversaries from
the date of grant.

With respect to the cash-settled options granted under the two share
option schemes described above, the Group has recorded liabilities
of HK$29,809,000 (2012: HK$7,598,000) in respect of the fair value
of the share options at the reporting date. These do not include cost
separately borne by DSFH as stated under note (iv) below. The fair
value is determined by using the Trinomial Option Pricing Model, and
based on the major assumptions set out in the following tables.

With respect to the equity-settled options granted under the DSBG
Scheme described above, the fair value is determined by using the
Trinomial Option Pricing Model at the date when the options are
granted, and based on the major assumptions set out in the following
tables.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEET TThLFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
50. URBHEBRBEME @ 50. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)
ULz BR A RE SR 2 LA R (0 & E i sl BN 2 =2 i 4n Share-based compensation charged to income statement is as
T~ follows:
2013 2012
VAR #E 32 5 2 SRR Equity-settled options 4,241 130
AR & T 2 R Cash-settled options 22,211 7,122
CEl Total 26,452 7,252
ZER T EWEIR A B B E < RIERR 2013 The total intrinsic value of the share options for which the grantees’
F12 531 H/4A14,478,00078 (2012 4F : £&) © right to receive cash on a vested basis as of 31 December 2013 is
HK$14,478,000 (2012: Nil).
BAZIEAREEEREA 28RN T The inputs into the Trinomial Option Pricing Model are as follows:
AFRITEBE
DSBG Scheme
2013 2012
2012 F 2011 & 2012 F 2011

12A21H 12A12H 12H21H 127121

PURREX 15 RS VARG % PRSI

21 December 12 December 21 December 12 December

®¥H Grant date 2012 2011 2012 2011
XRAR Settlement method Equity-settled  Cash-settled Equity-settled ~ Cash-settled

RFTEERE T B (LAREZ)  Share price of DSBG as at grant

skt 12 A31 B (ARE ) date (for equity-settled) or
IR (E (L) 31 December (for cash-settled)
(HK$) 8.27 13.64 8.27 8.43
1TfEE (BIL) Exercise price (HK$) 8.27 9.25 8.27 9.25
TREHKIE (3 () Expected volatility (Note (i)) 38.84% 39.72% 38.84% 38.79%
FH(F) Time to maturity (years) <5 <4 <6 <5
R BR A= (5 (ii)) Risk free rate (Note (ii)) 0.41% 1.03% 0.41% 0.32%
e GEIGH() Expected dividend rate (Note (iii)) 3.42% 3.80% 3.42% 3.20%
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(LABEEF Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50. ARG RERRME 0 50. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

MAZTEANPEEEREANZEENT (&) The inputs into the Trinomial Option Pricing Model are as follows:

(Continued)
AFEREE
DSFH Scheme
2013 2012
2012F 20115 20125 20115 2007 F
12A21H 12A12R 12A21H 12A12H 9A428H
UREXM NREXM Sk a) MR S
(5% (iv) (&% (iv) (£ (iv)) (£ (iv)
21 December 12 December 21 December 12 December 28 September

B¥H Grant date 2012 2011 2012 2011 2007

HAER Settlement method Cash-settled  Cash-settled ~ Cash-settled ~ Cash-settled ~ Cash-settled

(Note (iv)) (Note (iv)) (Note (iv)) (Note (iv))

AFemmn12A31H Share price of DSFH as

BB (BT) at 31 December (HK$) 44,45 44.45 34.95 34.95 34.95

TEE(BT) Exercise price (HK$) 33.25 40.00 33.25 40.00 59.28

TEaHKE (R () Expected volatility (Note (i) 34.31% 34.31% 45.15% 45.15% 45.15%

FH(F) Time to maturity (years) <5 <4 <6 <5 <1

BRI (& (i) Risk free rate (Note (ii) 1.40% 1.03% 0.39% 0.32% 0.07%

TR AR B (5 (i) Expected dividend rate

(Note (iii)) 3.94% 3.94% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25%
it Note:

(i) FRETKIE R ILAR B EHE B 2 AT — F AR (i) Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility of
TERERAH A e @B a KMt E o Wk the share prices of DSBG and DSFH, as applicable, during the one year
SRR ARTIRITER B R AR 5 BARE 2 K08 - 8 period immediately preceding the measurement date and is based on
ERARBIAEZ FHNZ BKE - WEREX the assumption that there is no material difference between the expected
HER o volatility over the time to maturity of the options and the historical

volatility of the share prices of DSBG and DSFH as set out above.

(i) ERRFEAGEFHZBEBIERSRIE K (i) Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of relevant
25 o time to maturity.

(i) S EDZBEREBME - (i)  Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends.

(iv) ZERBE X B A R AR &AL - (iv)  The cost of these options is borne by the holding company, DSFH. DSFH
R & ml 2 Bt % R AR % T 323,049,000 7% 7T has recorded liabilities of HK$3,049,000 (2012: HK$1,168,000) and a
(20124 : 1,168,000 % 7T) & & R UK a5 AR FE R charge to income statement of HK$1,881,000 (2012: HK$1,131,000) for
1,881,000 7L(20124F : 1,131,000/ 7T) % H ° these options.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(CABREFThz5I7R)

50. ARG AERBRMEE ®
BT 2 R ESE M ENEFEHITHEE 2 ES

50. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

Movements in the number of share options granted and their related

T weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
% GELhE i ERH
DSBG Scheme DSFH Scheme
2013 2012 2013 2012
RYTRE RTUEE R¥TEE RTUEE

KARITEE mERS  AHEGEE MEF KiTER MEFS AHEH T
ARET 8 e L e By L fitg A e
RH#E (B7) Rin%A (%) Ri#E (%7m) Bk (%)
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
DSBG shares average  DSBG shares average  DSFH shares average  DSFH shares average
in share exercise in share exercise in share exercise in share exercise
options price options price options price options price
granted (HKS) granted (HKS) granted (HKS) granted (HKS)
1R1A At 1 January 11,800,000 8.92 7,800,000 9.25 608,950 44.95 458,950 4878
o Granted - - 4,000,000 8.27 - - 150,000 33.25
BAR Lapsed - - - - - - - -
B Exercised - - - - - - - -
fRhok:d Expired - - - - (208,950) 50.28 - -
12318 At 31 December 11,800,000 8.92 11,800,000 8.92 400,000 3741 608,950 44.95
12331 Baf3e Exercisable at 31 December 3,920,000 9.05 1,560,000 9.25 130,000 38.44 258,950 55.55

ANHFBITEER 2013 F 12 A 31 HARTTE 2R
EZATEEN F8.27 BT E9.25%8 T (20124 ¢
NF-8.27BILE9.257% 7T ) + KE M FH Tk
AHITEE A 4.304F (20124 : 5.304F ) - @R
AEBEEREBTHRABABEAZ AT RS
BRRHE - B 2013F 12 A31 BARITEZ A HE
BRRR AR AE Z fTfEE N T 33.25 8 ;L £40.0078 7T
(20124F : 1 F33.25/87C£59.28/87T) + KEMN
I TR A KTTEH A 4.33 F (2012 4F : 3.76
F) e

RNERN - LEARAFRITEB GBI AFT SR EHE
T WERARHNRTEESATESIZEERS
MITHA B T RIHRE (2012 F - EAFBITE
B2l RAFERETEIT - KFBRITEBRAH
BT 2 RRE - HERE—RRG 2 RIE
ZINEFH A FED B A2.33% T & 10.797%
JT) e

DSBG’s share options outstanding as of 31 December 2013 have
exercise prices in the range of HK$8.27 to HK$9.25 (2012: HK$8.27 to
HK$9.25), and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.30
years (2012: 5.30 years). In respect of directors and senior executives
of the Group, their applicable DSFH’s share options outstanding as
of 31 December 2013 have exercise prices in the range of HK$33.25
to HK$40.00 (2012: HK$33.25 to HK$59.28), and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 4.33 years (2012: 3.76 years).

During the year, no share options were granted either under the DSBG
Scheme or the DSFH Scheme to directors and senior executives
of DSBG or DSFH (2012: DSBG’s and DSFH’s share options were
granted at weighted average fair values of HK$2.33 and HK$10.79 per
option to purchase a share under the DSBG Scheme and the DSFH
Scheme respectively).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

51. SRIEEHSENHH

5B AR ERBIERITOERN AT M e R E E
RBBEZERRLE  URABAFHEEELNH
RENRBEREENBEAE AT HERE
ERBRBEEHE -

() xFHAEEHSIEEY CEMBERR
RAHHCEMEERAE

AEEBBETETREEBERARA(E
BRREEDRARZIEFREPETER

BEERH -

AEERZFNEURENEERIRET 2
CRHERNEEHEEEBPREE 2 BIKGRIE
HFE R PRI SRIEAREE - R20134F12 A31H
K20128 128318 @ R FEARKKEAER
BERMTE36H 2 [ EYGRIERTERIER |
BRIEA o 2 STEM T °

EER BT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

51.

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

Financial assets and liabilities are presented net when there is a legally

enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an

intention to settle them on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle

the liability simultaneously.

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement and offset on the statement of financial
position

The Group maintains an account with the Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC?”) through which it
conducts securities trading transactions for its customers.

In presenting the amounts due from and to HKSCC, the Group
has offset the gross amount of the accounts receivable from
and the gross amount of the accounts payable to HKSCC. As
at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the net amount
was a receivable and was included in “Accounts receivable and
prepayments” in Note 36. The amounts offset are shown below.

Group and Bank 2013 2012

FEU P R4S H 2 FRIE R

FEN BB RAEE 2RI B

FEIRE B RAEEFHE

AFRITARAR | 20134 |

Gross amount of accounts receivable

from HKSCC 23,531 15,614
Gross amount of accounts payable

to HKSCC (12,441) (5,467)
Net amount due from HKSCC 11,090 10,147




(LAEREFThz5I7R)

51. TRIEEHSENHHEm

(2) RERFERFERBEM BRI X
NEHE EMEEREE

BREFERELH

AEESRAREAIFIHFITLARFR
BEZH UWREEERR - FREER
FZRE —BHBREOEN  ASRR
HHFIZRERRZERIE - MMEHE
RAERH EIRFEEE - MIFBHEED
M MERBFIRFENABLEER
—RISENBARKRTEHEERALE -

TRIVRZ S - BARMN 2 BRFR
REZHRBRBEMORNSETARF

P e

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

51.

(b)

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position

Master netting arrangements

To mitigate credit risks, the Group enters into master netting
arrangements with counterparties whenever possible. Netting
agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs,
all outstanding transactions with the counterparty will be
terminated and all amounts outstanding will be settled on
a net basis. Except for the event of default, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty are settled on a gross basis
and generally do not result in offsetting the assets and liabilities
in the statement of financial position.

The following tables present details of financial instruments
subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements

1% ° and similar agreements.
REEBRARAYE 2 ERLE
REBRRER REBHRER Related amounts not set off
Hivomd SineeR in the statement of
SHaksE EETE financial position
BEZER  Grossamounts of Net amounts of SRIA
BEEE  recognised financial financial assets  (BFEFBEARR)
Gross amounts liabilities setoff ~ presented in the Financial EhBLHR
SEREN Group and Bank of recognised i the statement of statement of  instruments (including Cash 7
01312531 A At 31 December 2013 financial assets financial position financial position  non-cash collateral)  collateral received Net amount
SHEE Financial assets
SRR Derivative financial instruments 527,012 - 527,012 (435,971) - 91,301

I DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2013

225



B B sk P o
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
51. ¢REEHESBNEHE @ 51. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(2) SFERETHERBEVEMRRRE (b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
AEECEHEEREGE@® agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position (Continued)
AR H SR E T () Master netting arrangements (Continued)
UEEHERRRNEE 2 EBLE
REBRARA REBRRER Related amounts not set off
Yizend ik in the statement of
SREELE BEFE financial position
BE:ZER  Grossamounts of Net amounts of SRIE
BE4E recognised financial  financial liabiities  (BEFREAAR)
Gross amounts assetssetoff  presented in the Financial BERBLER
&0 Group of recognised  in the statement of statement of  instruments (including Cash collateral et
013F128317 At 31 December 2013 financial liabilities financial position financial position  non-cash collateral) placed out Net amount
tRAE Financial liabiltes
HiTH Deposits from banks 408,051 - 408,051 (408,051) - -
fESMIA Derivative financial instruments 915,133 - 915,133 (435,971) (66,606) 412,55
RIEEEREMAE Trading liabilties 3,362,473 - 3,362,473 (3,301,183 - 61,200
AR RER Other accounts and accruals 97,862 - 97,862 (97,862) = -
UEEEHERRRNEE 2 EBLE
REBRARA REBRRER Related amounts not set off
Yizend vk in the statement of
SREELE BEFE financial position
BE:ZSR  Grossamounts of Net amounts of SRIE
BE4E recognised financial  financial liabiities  (BEFREAAR)
Gross amounts assetssetoff  presented in the Financial BERBLER
7 Bank of recognised  in the statement of statement of  instruments (including Cash collateral #E
013F128318 At 31 December 2013 financial liabilities financial position financial position  non-cash collateral) placed out Net amount
tRAR Financial liables
HiTH Deposits from banks 408,051 - 408,051 (408,051) - -
fESMIA Derivative financial instruments 907,453 - 907,453 (435,971) (66,606) 404,876
HERERENAE Trading liabites 3362473 - 3,362,473 (3,301,183) - 61,290
AR RER Other accounts and accruals 97,862 - 97,862 (07,862) = -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
51. TREEHRSBENEHE @ 51. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(2) SFERETHERBEVEMRRRE (b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
REHzEeRMEERERE @ agreement but not offset on the statement of financial

position (Continued)

AR H SR E T () Master netting arrangements (Continued)

PEESHRRARN S AREE

REHBRARR REBRER Related amounts not set off
HiEma v in the statement of
HARNE HERR financial position
BR7E%  Grossamounts of Net amounts of $HIE
EEBE  recognised financil financial essets  (EEHFREERR)
Gross amounts liabiltes set off presented in the Financia BlERLER
EERHT Group and Bank of recognised i the statement of statement of  instruments (ncluding Cash i
012125318 At 31 December 2012 financial assets financial position financial position ~ non-cash collateral)  collateral received Net amount
SRR Financial assets
fEeRIE Derivative financial instruments 502,547 - 502,547 (379.229) - 123318
UREBRRNANS R
REHBRARR REBRER Related amounts not set off
HiEma v in the statement of
SHEESE 8EEE financial position
BR7E%  Grossamounts of Net amounts of $HIE
8E4E  recognisedfinancial  financial labilites  (EfE RS A AR)
Gross amounts assets set off presented in the Financia BERRSER
£H Group of recognised ~ in the statement of statement of  instruments (including Cash i
0125128318 At 31 December 2012 financial liabilities financial postion financial position ~ non-cash collateral) ~ collateral placed out Net amount
£HAG Financial liabilties
HER Deposits from banks 250,386 - 259,386 (259,386) - -
it eRIE Derivative financial instruments 1,380,173 - 1,380,173 (379,229) (214,707) 786,237
RIEEEREMHAE Trading liabiltes 2,278,044 - 2,278,044 (2,278,044) - -
EfEARER Other accounts and accruals 36,569 - 36,569 (36,569) - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
51. TREEHRSBENEHE @ 51. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(2) SFERETHERBEVEMRRRE (b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
REHzEeRMEERERE @ agreement but not offset on the statement of financial

position (Continued)

AR H SR E T () Master netting arrangements (Continued)

PEESHRRARN S AREE

REHBRARR REBRER Related amounts not set off
HiEma v in the statement of
SHEESE 8EEE financial position
BEZ8E  Gross amounts of Net amounts of $HIE
8E4E  recognisedfinancial  financial labilites  (EfE RS )
Gross amounts assets set off presented in the Financia BERREER

i Bank of recognised  in the statement of statement of  instruments (including Cash collateral #E
0125128318 At 31 December 2012 financial liabilities financial postion financial position ~ non-cash collateral) placed out Net amount
SHAR Financial liabiltes

HER Deposits from banks 250,386 - 259,386 (259,386) - -
fiEemIA Derivative financial instruments 1,369,595 - 1,369,595 (379.229) (214,707) 775,659
HERERENAE Trading liabites 2,278,044 - 2,278,044 (2,278,044) = =
52. WMEHREBZEE 52. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING

PERIOD

201441 429 A - AN8R{78£17225,000,000 3 On 29 January 2014, the Bank issued US$225 million Basel Ill-
TTAEBERBR G L RFFE EZERBE N R compliant 10-year Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier
ER/RZMEARNI0FHESREGEE (BETE 2 capital (subject to the provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of
BCIRITE (BAR) AN ZIER) - ZEBZFE Hong Kong) which are listed on the SEHK. The Notes carry an interest
75.25%  ANERITAI{TEERE - EEEBEEAR rate of 5.25% per annum with call option exercisable by the Bank, and
201941 A29 8 o WAIRITARITEEE# - %E with the first call date falling on 29 January 2019. If the call option is
%585 2024 F 1 A 29 AE|HA - not exercised by the Bank, the Notes will mature on 29 January 2024.
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(LABREFThzgI7R)

TIREBEARRE 2 ERHERR IR 2 B M
MER - B IFLEAH B RERZ A0

1. BEXREHR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as part
of the accompanying information to the financial statements and does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

1. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

KE7

Restated

20134 2012

12HA31H 12 431 H

At At

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
BEmE EER

W E 1 E i 7€ 1 Ehi

Basel lll basis Basel Il basis

BARFT R E
—EEkE A
—— &R

__ EkEE

IER=

2013412 A31 H K% 2012412 A31 HZEXR
RLEERTRIBITHEGRE MR (BIFRFIREER
FTRAFRIT (FRE)) A RIBECRITE (BAR) 8
Il i) R ZE BB 17 5 111 R0 % R ZE @ 1o 5 1) ELH P st
HEHEHLEE - ZEAXFZ R ENFEEZRE
MiZERRIERE - M20126F12 A31HZE
AEWELET - RITEKAZBO SR
HEE o

EARTARBEBRITEGIETELATRL
RREER - RFIEFRITRETH BRFIRTT
EEENRERKIRT (PE) BETERASD
RITREENRE °

REAGRTTE(KRE) RAD  FREAEEEEE
R E AR R ER < FEINE R B TS AR T B
http://www.dahsing.com » I AJ &L A RN B BB AL
www.dahsing.com/tc/html/aboutus/regulatory_
disclosures.html # A °

Capital adequacy ratio

- Common Equity Tier 1 10.4% TEAN.A.
— Tier 1/Core 10.4% 10.4%
— Total/Overall

14.5% 14.9%

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2012 represents the consolidated position of DSB (covering BCM and
DSB China) computed on Basel lll and Basel Il basis respectively with
reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules. This capital adequacy ratio
takes into account market risk and operational risk. The capital base
as at 31 December 2012 has been restated to reflect the change in the
accounting policy for premises to the cost basis.

Only the Bank is subject to the minimum capital adequacy ratio
requirement under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. BCM is subject
to Macau banking regulations and DSB China is subject to China
banking regulations.

For the purposes of compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules,
additional information relating to the Group’s regulatory capital
and other related disclosures is published in the Bank’s website at
www.dahsing.com and is accessible at the following direct link:
www.dahsing.com/en/html/aboutus/regulatory_disclosures.html.
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REEZH T A ER
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
2. H"EBESHE 2. LIQUIDITY RATIOS
&£E Group 2013 2012
MENE @ L% Liquidity ratio
— 81T (BB ERE) - Bank (Hong Kong offices) 46.7% 51.1%
—&H - Group 46.2% 50.1%
RIRTT(BEANEBR) 2nBES L RAEREBETE The liquidity ratio of the Hong Kong offices of the Bank is calculated
BRERENEBEN12E A SEE A8 EERe as the simple average of each calendar month’s average liquidity ratio
B thXMEEFEHE - ZRBESHRERE for the twelve months of the financial year of the Bank’s Hong Kong
SRITEEBIFE AW R AR FIEETE o offices computed in accordance with the Fourth Schedule of the Hong

Kong Banking Ordinance.

REBZRHESHLRANBRITRIZMRBRETA The liquidity ratio of the Group is calculated as the simple average of
AN EBERN12EAESEE AN RESESL each calendar month’s average liquidity ratio for the twelve months of
REETIHH - ZRBESHRELXRERITE the financial year of the Bank and its banking subsidiaries computed
G-BIZE 4 IR AR AT E - with reference to the methods set out in the Fourth Schedule of the

Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

BEBBERITERD  EXNETEE—RBRES Only the Bank, as a Hong Kong incorporated authorized institution,
2 R B EETREE DL R RFEEK - is subject to the minimum liquidity ratio requirement under the Hong

Kong Banking Ordinance.
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(LAEREFThzgI7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. SMNERBS 3.
T AR2013F12 A31 HzE T MAE@ERNE
e 7 HNEEFEB (£ B 2 HNE F RE B 38 FT A INE F
10%) @ REBEZ L8 -

CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS

The following sets out the net foreign exchange position in USD and
other individual currency that constitutes more than 10% of the total
net position in all foreign currencies as at 31 December 2013 and the
corresponding comparative balances.

R2013%F 12 A31 H % 2012412 A31 BEA%EE
K ASRITI AT I AR M NS5 B8R 558

The Group and the Bank did not have any structural foreign exchange
position as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

N
gk Other Total
- Group T ARH Macau foreign foreign
201312831 H At 31 December 2013 US dollars Renminbi pataca currencies currencies
HERBEST Equivalent in HK$ millions
REEE Spot assets 45,668 26,788 5,712 3,678 81,846
BEAR Spot liabilities (23,461) (26,038) (7,218) (9,068) (65,785)
REE A Forward purchases 16,805 2,097 250 9,140 28,292
RHEN Forward sales (37,282) (2,261) - (3,756) (43,299
&/ () &F8 Net long/(short) position 1,730 586 (1,256) 6) 1,054
Hiohk  SMNEEE
gk Other Total
&E Group =V NG Macau o foreign foreign
201212 A31H At 31 December 2012 US dollars Renminbi pataca Euro  currencies  currencies
HERBEST Equivalent in HK$ millions
RERE Spot assets 40,839 21,000 4,739 3,359 4,095 74,032
BEER Spot liabilities (27,282) (20,991) (6,382) (1,018) (8,879) (64,552)
ZHIE A Forward purchases 26,892 569 - 418 6,912 34,791
FHE N Forward sales (38,198) (416) - (2,829) (2,146) (43,589)
&/ (1) 8558 Net long/(short) position 2,251 162 (1,643) (70) (18) 682
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. SNERBE @ 3. CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS (continued)

Hith s SNEEET

Other Total

$R1T Bank =TT AR foreign foreign
2013%12H31H At 31 December 2013 US dollars Renminbi  currencies currencies
HERBEAT Equivalent in HK$ millions
NEBE Spot assets 43,400 11,312 3,048 57,760
REBE Spot liabilities (21,636) (10,494) (8,456) (40,586)
R=HE A Forward purchases 16,805 2,097 9,134 28,036
RHIE Forward sales (37,281) (2,261) (3,732) (43,274)
&) 8BF8 Net long/(short) position 1,288 654 (6) 1,936

H AN SNEEET

Other Total
RIT Bank ET AR foreign foreign
2012412 A31H At 31 December 2012 US dollars Renminbi currencies currencies
HERBEET Equivalent in HK$ millions
REBE Spot assets 38,434 7,889 6,759 53,082
REEE Spot liabilities (25,189) (7,836) (9,208) (42,232)
RAIBA Forward purchases 26,765 563 7,322 34,650
REIE W Forward sales (88,191) (416) (4,968) (43,575)
/() 8% Net long/(short) position 1,819 200 (95) 1,924
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4. FFERRBR

() #ITEs BB FERRRE (LEXA (@)
BOERUZERRRENEI LS

AEE LI M EMER
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed

) by percentage covered by collateral
201312831 H 2012512 A31H
At 31 December 2013 At 31 December 2012
EXEH B
SHEARRE ZHERRRE
ZEM ZAD
% of gross % of gross
REBEH advances REBEH advances
Outstanding covered Outstanding covered
balance by collateral balance by collateral
EBBHLRNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
I@men Industrial, commercial and financial
o E - Property development 2,015,552 72.8 1,662,651 70.4
—MERE - Property investment 15,122,078 98.3 14,047,519 98.4
—SROE - Financial concerns 740,178 46.5 336,280 36.4
-BRELR - Stockbrokers 109,264 90.7 100,240 90.0
—HEERTER - Wholesale and retail trade 4,006,724 95.7 3,219,507 92.9
—BIER - Manufacturing 1,975,672 91.5 1,996,894 94.7
— B8 BRI — Transport and transport
equipment 5,050,680 95.9 4,635,150 96.3
—REEEE - Recreational activities 300,505 12.2 287,610 1.5
— BB - Information technology 24,916 82.1 8,703 47.7
—Hft - Others 3,571,083 82.5 2,894,403 80.8
32,916,652 92.0 29,188,957 92.1
(EVN Individuals
-BE [EEEHEE ] - Loans for the purchase of
[AAZEREHE & flats in Home Ownership
[HEBEEFE BFER Scheme, Private Sector
Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 1,080,873 100.0 1,123,393 100.0
-BEHMEENEER - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 18,041,141 99.9 16,026,972 100.0
—ERRER - Credit card advances 3,949,544 - 4,240,329 =
—Efth - Others 6,880,302 31.0 5,465,362 28.2
29,951,860 70.9 26,856,056 69.6
EEBRANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 62,868,512 81.9 56,045,013 81.3
Z5mE GE(1) Trade finance (Note (1)) 5,918,454 61.3 5,024,007 61.0
EEBIMEBNER () Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(Note (2)) 29,199,196 63.9 25,113,840 64.8
97,986,162 (588 86,182,860 75.3
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REEZH T A ER
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
4. EFEFEREREBER@m 4. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)
(R) RITESBEZ2EFERLE (ULEXKA (@@ Gross advances to customers by industry sector
ZNERUZEFRRENEI LD classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
) (@ by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)
G Note:
(1) LA RzESRERL2ERELERE (1)  Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of
B2 ARSI moEARSED - HAOM imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong
BOMME UNEREIRESZE and merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant
e guidelines issued by the HKMA.
THRERBZESMEER(BIEARRTT Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade
ZEINRITHB AR FZESRME) B finance extended by the Bank’s overseas subsidiary banks)
{£992,627,000% (2012412 H31 H : totalling HK$992,627,000 (31 December 2012: HK$336,534,000)
336,534,000 7T ) D8 [FEF 8 LASME are classified under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

REER] BT -

2) EBEBUIMEANERBREETEAERE 2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
BERBUIMERZER - customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.
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AEE LI M EMER
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
4. EBFERRBR@ 4. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)
() ITEDE2EFERETE (LLER (@) Gross advances to customers by industry sector
ZPERUZHEFRRENED l:ls’J} classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
) (@) by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)
AT S BREFERAEE10% s E/ITT For each industry sector reported above with loan balance
% HEGREEREE - @SR R ERIFnER constituting 10% or more of the total balance of advances to
ARHEMERREEFELDT ¢ customers, the attributable amount of impaired loans, overdue loans,

and individually and collectively assessed loan impairment allowances
are as follows:

E7¢ b

BHREER
HRiB3EA 18 31 5% GATHE
Gross AEER REER

advances Individually Collectively
REBES HEER overdue assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired for over 3 impairment impairment
2013%12H31H At 31 December 2013 balance loans months allowances allowances
EEBFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IaEsH Industrial, commercial
and financial
—MEEKE - Property investment 15,122,078 = = = 8,614
fAA Individuals
-BEEHEMEEMEER - Loans for the
purchase of other
residential
properties 18,041,141 - - - 674
ERBIMERRER Loans for use outside
Hong Kong 29,199,196 273,679 216,275 177,723 110,022
UAZ- %E
ﬁ,ﬁﬂfﬂa}&
BB 3{E A {E Bl R
Gross BEER HEER
advances Individually Collectively
REBEH HEER overdue assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired for over 3 impairment impairment
2012412 A31H At 31 December 2012 balance loans months allowances allowances
EEBFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IEs Industrial, commercial
and financial
—MEKRE - Property investment 14,047,519 - - - 6,657
A Individuals
-BEEEMEEMEER - Loans for the
purchase of other
residential
properties 16,026,972 - 541 - 7,594
ERBIMERRER Loans for use outside
Hong Kong 25,113,840 259,672 263,750 82,863 82,261
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(CAEREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4., EFEFERERBF @ 4.

() RITEP B EFEREE (LLEFRHA (a)
ERoERUSEHERRENE LD
) (@)

TREBFRNERSRIER 2 ML EBIREES
TR ER TR 2 W SH R

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

The amount of new allowances charged to income statement, and the
amount of impaired loans and advances written off during the year are
disclosed in the tables below.

236

BEBREE
HisH 2 &%
KEEEIE  Recoveries
FMEEE  of advances
E{5E# Loans written  written off in
Allowances off as previous
2013 F 2013 written back  uncollectible years
ERAFERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
Trgea Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERE - Property investment - - _
A Individuals
-BEHMEENEER — Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties - - 335
EBBAIMERRER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 15,568 14,641 13,221
WEIBREE
iz = G
RefEE Recoveries
EFMMiEZ  of advances
OB Loans written  written off in
Allowances off as previous
20124 2012 written back  uncollectible years
EEBEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IrEem Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERE - Property investment - - -
EA Individuals
—BEHMEEMEER - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 171 - 336
EEEAIMERNER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 4,052 104,875 19,606
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(CAEREFThz5I7R)

4., EFEFERERBF @

AEELHIEI T M EMER
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)

(Z) B RFEERITEEFEREE (b) Non-bank Mainland exposures

2013F12H 31 H
At 31 December 2013

B BIFEAE

EERBRAN EEES/ERN REERE

HYERER HYERER Individually

On-balance  Off-balance assessed

sheet sheet #EXEE  impairment

REHFER Type of counterparties exposure exposure Total  allowances
B KRS Mainland entities 15,977,192 2,878,378 18,855,570 114,235

HRBEAREAIREREA
g R B SR R EIARE
(:35

HiR 5T MERR B
AEBRTEREAIRTE
BPER

Companies and individuals

outside Mainland where the

credits are granted for use

in the Mainland 8,432,247 249,666 8,681,913 79,011
Other counterparties the

exposures to whom are

considered by the Group

to be non-bank Mainland

exposures 239,374 - 239,374 -

201212 A31H
At 31 December 2012

EhlIEEE

BEEARERA EEBERN RELERE

HEATR HIEARR Individually

On-balance Off-balance assessed

sheet sheet e impairment

RHEFEE Type of counterparties exposure exposure Total allowances
B KRS Mainland entities 11,852,148 1,483,651 13,335,799 37,119

B BEAREAIMREREA
05 R B B R B A R
35

HAth 32 555 M B R
AEBRTEREAIRTE
PR

7o

°

P ERBEEETPERERLEMETLREZE
L]

Companies and individuals

outside Mainland where the

credits are granted for use

in the Mainland 10,294,395 329,327 10,623,722 37,873
Other counterparties the

exposures to whom are

considered by the Group

to be non-bank Mainland

exposures 76,028 - 76,028 -

Note:

balances of claims on the customers.
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The balances of exposures reported above include gross advances and other
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REEZH T A ER
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4. EFEFEREREBER@m 4. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)
() RES I MZEFERBERAHNE (c) Analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue

EA loans by geographical area

BEERZEBESTIIRIED ZERBERE 2 Advances to customers by geographical area are classified according
RHEFREMDTE - —RME © EERXNER to the location of the counterparties after taking into account the
FAEERZSEHFRRZBRIGE - ERAS 5% transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when an advance is
% o guaranteed by a party located in an area which is different from that

of the counterparty.

THAZESZLE  FARNAEAZES - Bl The following table analyses gross advances to customers,
EEEREERREESES T GREERFRRES individually impaired advances to customers, overdue advances to
T o customers, and individually and collectively assessed impairment

allowances by geographical area.

BBl E 18 Bl =4 e

BEFEX BEFEMN BHER AEER AR R
#Z  Individually B3 Individually  Collectively
Gross impaired Overdue d a d

advancesto advancesto advances to impairment impairment

2013%12A31H At 31 December 2013 customers customers customers allowances allowances
BB Hong Kong 77,492,360 212,953 180,209 120,956 100,032
H China 8,890,132 140,535 83,166 111,850 50,788
SBFT Macau 10,196,127 27,369 34,013 11,431 44,572
HoAh, Others 1,407,543 83 83 57 2,340
97,986,162 380,940 297,471 244,294 197,732

&R E EhEEE AR

EEEXR BEEEX BHRP BEEE RELERE

ok Individually B Individually ~ Collectively

Gross impaired Overdue assessed assessed

advancesto  advancesto  advances to impairment impairment

2012412 A31H At 31 December 2012 customers customers customers allowances allowances
B8 Hong Kong 68,780,111 100,985 112,919 42,602 90,151
B China 8,144,601 152,742 152,742 37,124 39,072
BPY Macau 8,421,679 29,513 33,862 10,979 36,223
HAth Others 836,469 52 52 21 2,270
86,182,860 283,292 299,575 90,726 167,716
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AEE LI M EMER
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4. EFEFEREREBER@m 4. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

(T) GEABERIAEBEZHTFRREN (d) Credit commitments and contingent liabilities analysed
Bk by percentage covered by collateral
2013 2012

ZEARRE ZIEM@RE

EBHLH WEDL SRS BB

Contract % covered Contract % covered

amount by collateral amount by collateral

MR EEMEERREZ Financial guarantees

DEZN=RE and other credit related
contingent liabilities 2,795,495 40.3 2,744,878 32.5
SERREREMEERRAZ Loan commitments
A and other credit related
commitments 67,734,378 7.6 59,987,212 7.1
70,529,873 8.8 62,732,090 8.3
5. FE - mEREERRIERER 5. CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, MARKET AND
OPERATIONAL RISKS
AFIEE1 45822013 12 A 31 H 2012412 A The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December
31 BEARF B R Y ARBITRIB(RITE (BA) 2012 disclosed in Note 1 above represents the consolidated ratio
#HADTIEA 2 75 E D AIIREER B E N R EER T of the Bank computed on Basel lll and Basel |l basis respectively in
ENEREMGTEMNGEL R - fRE BEEEME accordance with the methods set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules.
M2 2 RUEE T 2 A - For accounting purposes, the basis of consolidation is described in

Note 2.2 to the financial statements.
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RS ELA TR S EL M B

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(LAEREFThzgI7R)

5, FE - TERRERRBZERER
(80

BRI 2 EAREREEANT -

() FERBZERER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, MARKET AND

OPERATIONAL RISKS (Continued)

The capital charge for each class of exposures are summarised as

follows:

(i) Capital charge for credit risk

2013 2012

BEEE EER

WEIMER  15E EG

Basel lll Basel Il

basis basis

F R R R Sovereign exposures 3,680 2,213

N R AR Public Sector Entity exposures 29,342 33,279

SRITIR R AR Bank exposures 772,721 793,748

B B bR R Securities firm exposures 3,745 4,041

V5 B [ g Corporate exposures 4,362,830 3,277,026

HEIAAB Cash items 29,117 23,508

EETERmAE Regulatory retail exposures 839,902 766,524

FEZRIBER Residential mortgage loans 976,928 931,032
H At AR 480 A B B o o2 Other exposures which are not past

due exposures 1,195,176 1,494,859

ﬁﬁﬂﬂ S I Past due exposures 14,385 15,928

B R B Securitization exposures 62,687 N.A.
BEABRARRAE 2 ERNERERE Total capital charge for on-balance

sheet exposures 8,290,513 7,342,158

EREERER Direct credit substitutes 47,509 51,992

AR SR < S ATE B Transactions-related contingencies 16,294 12,130

8 FE 2 S AEE Trade-related contingencies 8,045 8,861

EEFER Forward forward deposits placed 199 -

HoAth e Other commitments 125,918 134,206

XRG4 Exchange rate contracts 93,662 77,079

FMEEH Interest rate contracts 16,799 14,696

EEEEH Equity contracts 625 127

ERMERE Credit valuation adjustment 4,247 N.A.

BEABRINARAE 2 ERNERERE Total capital charge for
off-balance sheet exposures 313,298 299,091
FERKZEAERME Total capital charge for credit risk 8,603,811 7,641,249

BT ASE A B EAE 2 B i
BERRIAB% MB(E - WHARBZERIEEE
] e

AFRITARAR | 20134 |

This disclosure is made by multiplying the risk-weighted amount

derived from the relevant calculation approach by 8%, not the

institution’s actual “regulatory capital”.



UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(BT IERIBITR)

5. FE MERRERBZIEFRER
(%)

(i) THEEBZERER

RPATRABEFELTETISRR ©

REEZ TR S B B Y

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, MARKET AND
OPERATIONAL RISKS (Continued)

(i) Market risk capital charge

The Bank uses the Standardised Approach for calculating market risk.

2013 2012
B gL BXER  ERIEHE BARER
Risk weighted Capital  Risk weighted Capital
amount charge amount charge
R R B E (R IR ) Interest rate exposures

(including options) 1,511,850 120,948 1,317,587 105,407

INERBEAE (BREESR Foreign exchange exposures
HAtE) (including gold and options) 1,289,213 103,137 1,739,888 139,191
2,801,063 224,085 3,057,475 244,598

2\ Bea AN BURR B AR R P P SR ER1T RAFT R 1T (7
B) #AT 2 DTE R KB

(i) BERBZERER
ARITRAEAERF B A ERIERR -

The risk-weighted amount included those amounts arising from
derivative contracts executed by BCM and DSB China.

(iii) Operational risk capital charge

The Bank uses the Basic Indicator Approach for calculating
operational risk.

2013 2012

RIERR 2 EARERK

6. LXER

EREBESNRNEE  LEHIEEFSEH
FARMHAEMRTMETEERADENAR
NAEERBR

(R) aRES

AEFDE2ETHERSERMBELEERR
FtA [ AR A B bR E RIS | AT
FIHEZK
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Capital charge for operational risk 466,074 395,754

6. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance is concerned with how companies are
managed and controlled, and in particular the role and operation of
the Board of Directors in sustaining sound business integrity and
practices, and effective accountability.

(@) Statement of Compliance

The Group has fully complied with the requirements set out in the
Supervisory Policy Manual entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorized Institutions” issued by the HKMA.
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AEEBZH T A ER
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. TEER®@® 6. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

(z) B2 (b) The Board

M2013F 12831 EFTeRETHIERE As at 31 December 2013, the Board comprised a Chairman, seven
TRNHTEZ(BEEEITHREAR)  M5MIEH executive directors including the Group Chief Executive, and five
TEEMENK - EFgeRRIBFRIT X non-executive directors. The Board meets at least quarterly. Its
HIrZAea RN EWZELE RERER & principal roles include the formulation and approval of corporate and
SEERMERE SR TERERRBEFERT business strategies, review of operations and financial performance,
2 WHEREERASNEREENIEEENES approval of key policies and annual business plans, and ensuring the
R o maintenance of sound risk management and regulatory compliance.
HTES I EHESSRBATRITSEEBL L Executive directors are appointed to the Board based on their
MR« BEREERANBMELZE - EHITE experience, specialist skill and knowledge of different businesses
FAIBMMEEMTERERNEE L% K NH of the Group. Non-executive directors bring to the Board their
SEEES WIS EITHEIRBEERRK knowledge and experience of other markets and industries,
BUR#IT  WHESSMREANANSEEREZSERN guide executive management’s strategy development and policy
INRER S © implementation, and provide valuable external perspectives in the

Board’s deliberations.

(R) EE=EgrEEZES (c) Board and Specialised Committees

() FEZEZ ()  Audit Committee

AAFEITEBER QA TR EBEZE The Group Audit Committee, established by the Board of Dah
“EZEE® MARNEZAMNEEESE Sing Banking Group Limited, has the authority to review all
BN BERERERIEE - AP RINE matters related to financial statements and disclosure, audit
ZEENEZ TE - NPERERES - BRE work performed by internal and external auditors, internal
BHORERGHEESEE TEHE control systems, risk management system and compliance
EERAFEINEERER  THES for the whole Group. The Committee reports to the Board
SIRH BBV SRS R EERENEZ ° its observations and comments on any issue that needs

to be brought to the attention of the Board, and makes
recommendations to the Board regarding financial statements
and results announcements.

B3I B ZIFMITERFTAKA & EFEZ Three independent non-executive directors comprise the Group
ZESBFHAKENSRERERE - AP Audit Committee, which meets at least three times a year with
BZHEE RINEZEED  BITHRI3KX the Group’s senior management, the head of internal audit and
ERo-ZEGFE—B - THUEEE the external auditors. The Chairman of the Committee is an
BB REREROE L ERITERAE independent non-executive director with a high level of financial
(E and audit experience.
SEEAREZIETETEHEERZEE The head of internal audit of the Group reports functionally
eEH e FRIMESR - mIMNEX SR ] B to the Group Audit Committee. External auditors have direct
FHEESeHE  ROTWERNSEEEH access to the Committee for expressing their views and
WEHNER - comments on any matter or concern relating to the Group.
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

6. HXEFHEw@m
() EEEREEZEEW)
(i) FEBREERSHEESS

ARITZEABRERIEREZES((RRE
BRaRZBEG ) BEFER 2B
EEREARTEAREERBRERZ
FENEE Ry RREERERERR
o EEESRREREERRLEI2RE
BRRBAETERN - UAREHNIENEE
EREERER  UHARRTZERBEE
RIERTEE ZESRTEIETE
A N e A A B B TR R B A R B BRI
EEEK e

RREENAREEGRANRIT2(IEIIF
NITEFERATRITEEERARTHA
EUPTARK

(i) HTEEZ

WTZBEEHER  SETREENFAE
RRITHTESHEK - THREZESER
BRUHEAKENRBELER  MRXE
BRRPIIR Mt BRI A M A Bl ~ AT R R
B ARABERERGHREE - HEER
RREXRBERIRENBILRF - TR
RESHEREASEXBKERZETHE
=R - AR EEEESE TR o

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6.
(c)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
Board and Specialised Committees (Continued)
(i) Risk Management and Compliance Committee

The Risk Management and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) of
the Bank is a Board-level committee with the responsibility to
provide guidance and oversight on the Bank’s risk management
strategy and development, review risk management issues and
the resolution thereof, review risk management policies and
major risk limits prior to the approval by the Board, and review
major regulatory compliance issues and development, and
exercise oversight on the compliance function and activities of
the Bank. It has the authority to conduct any enquiry and review
on matters related to risk management and compliance with risk

policy and regulatory requirements.

The RMCC comprises two independent non-executive directors
of the Bank and the Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited.

(iii)  Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises the Chairman, Group Chief
Executive and executive directors of the Bank. It is responsible
for developing and setting the strategy and objectives of the
Group. It provides direction and guidance to business divisions,
reviews business performance, ensures effective internal
control systems, allocates resources, prioritises business
initiatives and investment, and is delegated with the authority of
the Board to exercise the authority and power of the Board on
matters relating to the normal course of business of the Group.

The Executive Committee can call upon such members of senior
management for advice or participation in its discussions as it
deems appropriate.
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6.

(A"

REFRITAERAR | 2013FF

TEEE @
) EEgREEZEE W
(iv) BEREEE®E

ZRE

rEBEENRBBERZER ([BERA
EEEZRE® ) FHAEERANRITAIT
ZESRE WEERAKEAMEENS
HRE - RBES  BE - FERR RS
LRRHERE - ﬁ?&%%é@émaﬁ
BRI ERFEERERY  EXEE  ME
KE  ERIXGERREABEENERS -

ZEETEAKENEERREARER

£ EEEZNAE -

BENABEREZE@BENETEE
—RBBEERIEIZXHFEMREHE
B BERRGREY BEFL RHE
T MBRESRE  BAMBERS IR
AMENEFNET BEERABEETEZR
BeTEREARTBEYBHRARRRE
BRE  BEMEBELNT  RERFE
BRRREBIIRE BAIRRILL S o

BERABEEZBEmEETRARE
¥ REENEEREARERRRITHE
REIFFAERITES K*BT%E’]%?“BFEJ

JR\Be B B N B 7S B o A

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6.
(c)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
Board and Specialised Committees (Continued)
(iv)  Asset and Liability Management Committee

The Group Asset and Liability Management Committee
(“ALCO”) is accountable to the Executive Committee of the
Group and of the Bank, and oversees the overall management
of the statement of financial position, liquidity, funding, interest
rate risk and market risk of the Group. It is responsible for
formulating business plans affecting lending business, loan mix,
treasury investments, deposit taking and capital management.
It also plays a key role in the overall risk governance and
management of the Group.

ALCO meets every week and its regular tasks include the
review of key business emphasis and development, loan and
deposit changes, funding requirement, liquidity, surplus funds
investments, capital market dealing, and review of market
changes and competition. ALCO also conducts a regular
monthly review of overall statement of financial position and
business performance, including trend analysis and actual
positions against limits and targets.

ALCO is chaired by the Group Chief Executive. Members of
the Committee include executive directors of the Group and
its banking subsidiaries, heads of most business divisions, risk
management and financial control.



AEELHIEI T M EMER
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(LABEEF T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. TEER®@® 6. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

(R) E=gRESEZES @) (c) Board and Specialised Committees (Continued)
v) EEREREEZSS (v)  Credit and Risk Management Committees
AEEREEBREEZESREHRZEX The Group has a Group Credit Committee for approving major
HEERRBKD FEEHREZE S HIE credit exposures. The Credit Management Committee and
REFERBEZEEE NN NBREGIFTIER the Treasury & Investment Risk Committee are the functional
LM BEEG 2 EERRREREHES 21 committees responsible for credit policy formulation and
L E® ZELTESHANBITERSE portfolio monitoring of the loan and treasury businesses
RBARTTRARETEELBHE THTE respectively. These committees are all chaired by the Chief
EREREBREEABHARK - FERR Executive of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited with certain
FPE 0 AR - BUAZAIES R 2 R T B EE AR Executive Directors and senior business and credit officers as
FEBERA ° members. Credit risk measurement, underwriting, approval and

monitoring requirements are detailed in credit policies.
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(Vi) EHREEZEZ

AEEAREEREeERER RIEEM
BERERREERMEYL - #RFMBRH
R BMRRE - AEREBUERAEE

ERRMENRE RSB - EEREAR
RALREENBEERRE LK - A%
37 4E 37 30 % S 48 .30 SR AL 0
HEEHRER  UISEABEEYE
b

EHREEBZESRERETHRAR &8
REBREHEE EZERERPEE - Bl
TES UREEZERRREENRR

TBAB - 9N ZEENFERSHL
BREHREEEREAEEERZELZES -

i) ADERZEE

SBANERZESEERESEEANE
BEBNERAR - UHAHNERER
K BEREB LS TEMNERIEDLIE
5l - ZEEBETERLENMERE
FTEIRMITIME - BT 8 RABENE -

BT E;W?&/\j}é/ LB o
ZESRKETRARIR EMKER
REBETFERBMIAPIEE -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6.
(c)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
Board and Specialised Committees (Continued)
(vi)  Compliance Committee

The Group Compliance Committee is responsible for overseeing
and guiding the development, maintenance and enhancement
of compliance system, policies and practices to ensure
compliance with all statutory requirements and regulatory
guidelines. The Committee serves to uphold a high level of
awareness and accountability of compliance requirements.
The Group has adopted an ongoing compliance control and
monitoring process within business and support functions to
enhance compliance control.

Members of the Compliance Committee include the Chief
Executive, the Head of Group Risk Division, the Head of Legal
and Compliance, a number of executive directors and senior
operation and risk control executives of the Group. Minutes of
the Committee meetings and regular report are submitted to the
Group Audit Committee.

(vii) Human Resources Committee

The Group Human Resources Committee is responsible for
setting the overall human resources direction of the Group
and guiding the development of people strategy, policy and
practices. It is responsible for overseeing corporate culture
development, planning and implementation, remuneration
programs and changes, staff development plans, employee
relations projects and human resources systems.

The Committee is chaired by the Group Chief Executive.
Members comprise the Chairman of the Group and a number of
division heads.
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. BEkkER 7. RISK MANAGEMENT

AEERESERRE T EHENFETERT The Group recognises the changing nature of risk and manages it
ENEBREBEENER - through a well-developed management structure.
BEREEETIRNEERRE  mHRERE - F XA Risk management is focused on credit risk, market risk, interest rate
% REBECER - BRERR BERR IR risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk and strategic risk.
R - EERBZEEEZERNASEZEE Credit risk occurs mainly in the Group’s credit portfolios comprising
HE - HPpREEE  HBENTEEE - B commercial, wholesale and retail lending, equipment and hire
HENERTEDNS S XN G purchase financing, and treasury and financial institutions wholesale
Eo lending.

REMD KT R R TR & ZD o thF ZEARSE Market risk arises mainly from Treasury and is associated principally
BEEERBRACEERGREAEABRINCE with the Group’s on- and off-balance sheet positions in the trading
BERXHNHBAREGH - book and its investment securities.

F) 2K @\ g2 15 A 71| =R 49 N FI 2 8 i 5| SRS B 8B Interest rate risk means the risk to the Group’s financial condition
ERGHA S T B A R B © resulting from adverse movements in interest rates.

mEESRB I AEBAREMRI B zZeHEER Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its payment
TNREE &%ET&HQ%;}{EZ%@}EQ@Z@@ ° obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due

and to replace funds when they are withdrawn.

BERBDERNISERF - B TR RS 2T R HEER Operational risk is the risk of loss (direct or indirect) resulting from
REAINKEEHMEL Z EEsEEEEZE inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
% o external events.
ﬁﬁiﬂ SR IEHRNNEE LB - BERE Reputation risk is the risk arising from the potential that negative
e EREMAETRZEBESERE - EL8 publicity regarding the Group’s business practices, operational errors
ﬁl%ﬂ_aﬁ%@%g R E S BREELEE RS or operating performance, whether true or not, could cause customer
BEEZE  HIBRFEREMS(LE X EEHFE concerns or negative view, decline in the customer base or market
BREANZFARIORDHA © share, or lead to costly litigation or revenue reductions.
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. BBREEG@ 7. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
REEMERRIZIEANESD 2R IERE « Tal#E Strategic risk generally refers to the corporate risk that may bring
R WBRIE - REEHEIT ERE A KRB R TI5E significant immediate or future negative impact on the financial and
BRI N ER T A fe S E BB RIS A market positions of the Group because of poor strategic decisions,
BB EABETE ZDERR - unacceptable financial performance, inappropriate implementation of

strategies and lack of effective response to the market changes.

MBS SRRMIES I E 2 SRR BRI - HAib Apart from the description of financial risk management disclosed in
FHEZBEREBRFMRAT Note 3 to the financial statements, the other risk management aspects

are disclosed below.

() EERKREEEE (@) The risk management structure of the Group
SEeYMEREINRKREES FERBNET - The Board of Directors has the broad overall responsibility for the
FARRRIZESIFE - EEEeNEEes management of all types of risk. The responsibilities of the Board in

relation to risk control are:

. HEEE R R RBUR ARRREER S K . the approval of the overall strategy and policies to ensure
HEEMEASHEEEFEREMRE ; that credit and other risks are properly managed at both the

transaction and portfolio levels;

. HIEFIEM B T EANEREIE  BBEEE . the management of risk, both financial and non-financial,
TS PEEESRZE & 2RiRE conducted through operational and administrative control
HEEMT(ELHTEA) - BEFR MR systems including the operation of the Group Audit Committee;
REHEE & review of key results (against forecasts), operational statistics

and policy compliance; and

o EF L ETEE - Wl EEM DT EEIEES o the review of financial performance by analysis against
FEIEIZ - approved budgets and analysis of variations in key non-financial
measures.

HTLEEekAREEBREHZESWRIEER The Executive Committee and the RMCC have been delegated the
REEREERRBPNSNEZESTEEER authority to oversee and guide the management of different risks
RIBR N RIZEE @R o which are more particularly managed and dealt with by Group Risk

Division and different functional committees.
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. BBREEG@ 7. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(Z) EER I (b) Group risk function

AEEMBILRER S ERRAEEEEBHBUER The independent Group Risk function is responsible for ensuring
FIENES - EERRIPERTABREREE N that policies and mandates are established for the Group as a whole.
SHEEENHITEEGRNEFEREEE R Group Risk Division monitors and reports the Group risk positions to
O - HITE & B R R A E R TR M A B IR AR the Board via the RMCC and the Executive Committee, sets standards
REREERREFNEENBIEF @ RHERY for the management of financial risks and data integrity and ensures
BHENEE -  SEREREDEHNEEMEARE that the financial risks are fully considered in the product planning
BENEELREREE  BEEFTmES - &BT and pricing process. Group Risk Division reviews and manages all
¥ G EEERNSASEEACEERRA credit and risk exposure policies for the Group including the approval
AEBRAMETANZE - EREEENEBEER of exposures to new markets, economic sectors, organisations,
B EEEEPeEEEFTELE BEIENES - credit products and financial instruments which expose the Group
T A M AR A EFERIR o to different types of risks. In determining risk policies, Group Risk

Division takes into account the guidelines established by the HKMA,
business direction, and risk adjusted performance of each business.

NEER B BNEEMNEISEIEEEAED The Group’s risk management expertise continues to advance the
BREEE  UTREASEHGEERNRETHNEEE overall quality of the Group’s lending portfolios, and enables the
SKFNF {504y E 1R B A5 48 Y[R B A B 5 o Group to meet the changing regulatory requirements and enter

into credit exposures with the confidence that it understands the
associated risks and rewards.

EEERERIBEEEER AEBEFEERER The Group continues to evolve its risk management capabilities
[ ae ) » 04 0 =T E B s M 3 R B R0 SR under the aegis of the Head of Group Risk Division, with increasing
REROBHTE AREBEMEEFELEEIE focus of its risk strategy on risk and reward and returns on capital.
TRFABNRRESERE — X7 ORBREIEN D The Group uses a range of risk measurement and analytical tools
LA o thZ T B IR 7 0 2 B FI3R TH LA RS in its management of various risks which it faces in its day-to-day
AT EREEMEE BB - businesses and these are continually being enhanced and upgraded

to reflect the ever-changing business needs and the requirements of
the regulators.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. BEREE@m 7. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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() FEXES

AEERAREFEERREAERMZEANGEER
E8@

RREEE - EEEEE

BEgmPERKRERRE

BERNREERRMEXFARREMERL

7R

KK - BEMREREGERS CHEREE - /X
REBMAZNEERBRAER [F5 B &R AR E

(T) FERR

REFRITAERAR | 20135F F

() FEEBEAE

SEEMAARE AR (REEB]) - 2
BREERGAR([RAKRE ] REEE
BRERFRERAFE AAEERAZIH
BB1E A AT S (15 B AT E R D) ARG
HIRTT - THRE  REBELREERE
Bl EERBAE - REFCERNERR
EENASERESEETERARAEZ
EEREAE -

AEEERGERTE(ER)RADE 480 R
EZIEF RERITEAZERAESEE
FFHEHE 2 BITARIAR -

(c)

Credit committees

The Group has a Group Credit Committee for approving major

credit limits. The Credit Management Committee and the Treasury &

Investment Risk Committee are the functional committees responsible

for approving and recommending policies, limits and mandates for

risk control in loans and treasury business respectively. The credit risk

function, while set up to support the business areas, reports solely to

the Group Risk Division.

(d)

Credit risk
() Credit risk exposures

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services (“Standard & Poor’s”),
Moody’s Investors Services (“Moody’s”) and Fitch Ratings are
the external credit assessment institutions (“ECAIs”) that the
Group uses for the assessment of its credit risk exposures
to banks, sovereigns, public sector entities, and collective
investment schemes as well as securitisation exposures and
exposures to corporates that do not qualify as regulatory retail
exposures.

The process it uses to map ECAI issuer ratings to exposures
booked in its banking book follows the process prescribed in
Part 4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules.



(LAEREFThz5I7R)

7. BREEm@m)
(T) EERRE @

AEELHIEI T M EMER
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

()  1GEEGEAEE) ()  Credit risk exposures (Continued)
SATER
4ANEE
fETRAN
RE2ER
ABEE
Total
FaREERERY exposure
ZBREE RATERG covered by
Exposures after BRIESE BBk recognised
recognised credt Risk-ueighted REAE Quarantess
rsk mifiation amounts RRiEY Totel o
R T B R g exposure tecognised
BRAGEE (&) (&3] (2] (&3) Total riske covered by credi
035 2013 Total Rated Unrated Rated Unrated weighted recognised derivative
BRER Class of exposures Exposures (Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 2) (Note 3) amounts collateral contracts
i The Group
B OEEBERR A Onbeanceshest
1. HElE 1, Sovereign 406987 406987 1491439 45,095 - 45,09 - -
2. DEE(f 2. Public Sector Enty 710,688 1,789,779 Un9 367,956 8,624 366,760 - 118,333
8 ZBEEZT 3 Multterd
Development
Bank 3425 3425 - - - - - -
4 B 4. Bank 24,148,866 23,935,678 1,622,170 9,334,578 30434 9,699,012 - -
5. B5E 5, Secures fim %630 1345 9,85 12 4,14 1815 - -
6. B 6. Corporate 66,504,502 16,443,680 42,654,696 12,207,138 42,308.241 54,535,374 4,200,867 1,185,333
7. BB 1. Cashitems 876,108 - 4,383,774 - 363,969 363,969 - -
8 EETE 8. Regulatory retal 14,351,120 - 13,998,878 - 10,498,780 10,498,780 167,312 187,113
9. (=R 9, Residental
mortgage loans 20,455,137 - 28,240,929 - 12,211,600 12,211,600 - 113807
10 EfKBSH 10, Otherexposures
Bl which are ot
nast due
£xposures 13,504,800 2112382 11,434,405 1,694,195 13,245,502 14,930,697 17,90 -
1, BERAE 11 Ptdeoposes 147N - 14781 - 17915 11915 57 17589
L. BERER) B Offodenceshest
1. BEMIE 1 Offbalance sheet
TARSY exposUres ofher
H-(jid than OTC
TEAH Gervative
LEEEE transactions or
FoNak creditdervtive
i contracts 373,920 8,529 37271.301 1,706 2412810 2414576 193,743 -
2. BIMTETE 2 OTCdeative
25 franszctions 2,301,192 1,431,638 869,554 534990 853,564 1,388,574 3,651 3,764
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7. BREEm@m)
(T) EERK @

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

()  1GEEEAEE) ()  Credit risk exposures (Continued)
fET2AH
EZEE
AiEg
Total
EREERBRE expostre
LEREE et covere by
Exposurs afer LA recognised
recognised crecft Risk-weighted Quarantegs
fisk migaton amounts Bl s o
Bk Ak B R iz exposlre recoqrised
e (#2) (i#3) (i) (i#3) Tota k- covered by credi
N12% 212 Total Rated Unrated Rated Unrated Weighted recognised derivative
ERE Class of exposures Exposures (Note?) (Note 3) (Note?) (Note 3) amounts Colleteral coniracs
i The Group
B OEEBERR A Onbeanceshest
1. TR 1, Sovereign 8,891,706 891,706 1047468 27860 - 27860 - -
2. DEEf 2. Public Sector Enty 874,768 2,060,343 99,207 306,143 19,841 415,984 - -
8 ZBEEZT 3 Multterd
Development
Bank 162,27 162,287 - - - - - -
4 B 4. Bank 24,802,586 21,660,065 941,622 9,721,695 200,153 9,921,848 - -
5. B5E 5, Secures fim 101,01 - 101,01 - 50516 50516 - -
6. it 6. Corporate 52,481,210 14,663,095 31,278,165 9,723,866 31,238,963 40,962,629 5,851,443 902,395
7. REER 7. Cashitems 1,225,853 - 3,169,128 - 23847 23847 - -
8 EETE 8. Regulatory retal 13,038,304 - 12,175,407 - 9,581,555 9,581,565 125530 145,073
9. fFEiE 0. Residential
mortgage loans 26,580,716 - 25,331 439 - 11,637,895 11,637,895 - 149217
10 EfKBH 10, Otherexposures
Bl which are ot
nast due
exposures 18,697,917 a3 14,313,312 4372426 14313313 18,685,739 12178 -
1 BBERAE 11 Ptdeopoes 1091 - 14298 - 199,102 199,102 5 W
L. BERER) B Offodenceshest
1. BEMMIE 1 Offbalance sheet
TARSY exposUres ofher
H-(jid than OTC
TEAH Gervaive
LEEEE transactions or
FoNak creditdervtive
i contracts 3,504,354 8,528 349,826 1,706 2,588,162 2,509,868 167,805 -
2. BIMPEIE 2 OTC dervative
25 fransactions 2,090,567 1,474,688 615,679 549,999 508,774 11487738 - 25,464
WEAERIA  Exposures deducted
LEREE from captal base 1827318
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(CABREFThz5I7R)

7. BREEm@m)
(T) EERK @
() 1EEEBAE )

(1) AEBEXEESEHHEER - MR
&R FF AR EER)
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RIS EBITRI AR 2 BB AL - BER
EARRANERZ BB INEEDSZERTE
BARBRBAEZERFEEEBETA
BRlEE A YN e S A R R
BERIT R -

@) ABFRMEBE T RS RR
I o

(i) XRBHFEEEREE

AEBEBREENERTERXEERAN LS
SN D ITER 5 ~ BB AR S RE
ENTERSENERRFRIFHMRE
HHRENHEE - BRFA0FRZERER
SEREEESEQFEMANASEZT
BEELERE)  %EERRAEERRAT
LR EBERRAEREAR TR Y
FOEBRBEEREZ —MHMER - hF
EERBAE - REERRIEMER -

&

FERRBEXNREARKESFIBRL
FHRAUOERERESKELFIBERE
Ee AEESZRZUTF—HHEER
BREBRGEEREAREEERRE o K
SENRDFRGERY  RRNEERIZ
WHR R EEEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7.
(d)

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Credit risk exposures (Continued)

Note:

(1) principal amount or credit equivalent amount, as applicable, net of
individually assessed impairment allowances.

2) including exposures with ECAI issue-specific rating and
exposures which have an inferred rating (i.e. exposures which
do not have an issue-specific rating but whose risk-weights are
determined under the Capital Rules by reference to an ECAI issuer
rating assigned to the obligor of the exposure or to an ECAI issue
rating of any other exposures of the obligor).

(3) exposures which do not have ECAI issue-specific rating, nor
inferred rating.

(i)  Counterparty credit risk exposures

The Group exercises strict control limits in tenor and
outstanding amounts on net open positions arising from
over-the-counter (“OTC”) derivative transactions, repo-
style transactions and credit derivative contracts booked in
its banking book or trading book. The credit risk exposures
associated with these contracts are predominantly their fair
values (i.e. the positive marked-to-market values favourable to
the Group). These credit risk exposures together with potential
exposures from market movements are managed as part of
the overall lending limits allowed to counterparties. Collateral
or other security is generally not obtained for such credit risk
exposures.

Settlement risk arises in situations where a payment in cash
or a delivery of securities or equities is made in expectation
of a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. To
mitigate settlement risk, daily settlement limits are established
for individual counterparty on the aggregate of all settlements
on a day. The Group will also enter into netting arrangements
and make settlement on the basis of delivery against payment
as appropriate.
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7. BREEm@m)
(T) EERK @
(i)  XKBHFzERERFRIEE)

TERBAAEBREBIMIERDZEE
EERBAE -

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(d) Credit risk (Continued)
(i)  Counterparty credit risk exposures (Continued)

The following table summarises the Group’s main credit
exposures arising from OTC derivative transactions.

2013 2012 4%

12H31H 12 A31H

At At

31 December 31 December

BIMTERS OTC derivative transactions 2013 2012

L] Group

N EIESELTE Gross total positive fair value 760,123 639,631

EESEHE Credit equivalent amounts 2,301,193 2,090,569
RAEHmEE - &85 Value of recognised collateral by type

—FR - Deposits 52,737 21,244

[R\Be2 I 2 KR Risk weighted amounts 1,388,573 1,148,773
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AEELHIEI T M EMER
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(LABEEF T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
7. BEBEE@m 7. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(T) EERK @ (d) Credit risk (Continued)
(i)  XKBHFzERERFRIEE) (i) Counterparty credit risk exposures (Continued)
TRELCEESESESAEERRFHEKL An analysis of the credit equivalent amounts or net credit
2Bz INFE BN RR 2 AT o exposures, and the risk-weighted amount is summarised as
follows.
20134 20124
12H31H 12AH31H
At At
31 December 31 December
BIMTER S OTC derivative transactions 2013 2012
£E Group
HEEE Notional amounts:
—3R1T - Banks 76,279,835 83,163,451
—=E — Corporates 33,038,898 22,387,850
—HA — Others 1,013,013 531,390

110,331,746 106,082,691

EEEEHE Credit equivalent amounts/
EERRFRE net credit exposures:
—R1T — Banks 1,416,017 1,457,597
— =8 — Corporates 762,823 508,710
— HAth - Others 122,353 129,262
2,301,193 2,090,569
[ Bz N BN ER Risk-weighted amounts:
—R1T - Banks 527,179 539,517
— =8 — Corporates 751,285 487,608
— HAth - Others 110,109 121,648
1,388,573 1,148,773
7K2013F12 A31H & 2012128318 - There were no credit exposures arising from repo-style
TEREEHBEFARSZREENTERZA transactions and credit derivatives contracts at 31 December
W2 EERR - 2013 and 31 December 2012.
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

7. BREEm@m)
(T) EERK @
(i) JRIEIEEEE

AEEFRAZREEERRIA -RA
CERTTE (BA) R AR LU & A g
BZAR - WBZERRERNEERRS
TR THENERHNTAINL)ELE
e MELBR 2 KPP ER - REBINME
BRNT  REBUREREIEXEETR
FEEEFBE R -

REEMR R 2 TNBEYEERHERH
®fhE - FBEEFPZEHNE  ARTS
EBEEHRIBEAMKE—R - FER@Z
MEE MR ARE 2R /LATER
THEREE -

() mismkE

AEBERETRER TS RR - FRAZER
EIEBR AR AL B SRR M RE 3.3 AR AL

(B) EEFEFHt
REBFRAZE (BH) T EEREZBRE
A REERBENERD BIFTE20134F12 A 31
HX&2012F 12 831 Bz FHLEEFERRE -
PELEREBEEERANEERSERNR2EE
Al 2 BHCRBRFEYEFTERA 2 1= A A HRE -

AEBEZEH AR OBEAEBIEAREEL
HE=FRECEBAMBEEZAHBERETA -
ZREDEAREBRITREFIECUAEEFE
BHEHTABZNSEEE - I H 2007 F £
WEEE AT EIE - 2013412 A 31 B 1 #&
BB ANERZRE  ZIREUEAEZ5.50%
(2012 : 2.30% ) M FEIRBEETIER -

REFRITAERAR | 20135F F

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Credit risk (Continued)
(iii)  Credit risk mitigation

The credit risk mitigation techniques used by the Group are
generally those recognised by the Banking (Capital) Rules for
reduced capital weighting. Common types of collateral obtained
are cash deposits, real estate properties, as well as taxi and
public light bus medallion. For certain types of advances to
customers, the Group also places reliance on guarantees issued
by governments, public sector entities and corporates with
acceptable credit rating.

Real estate properties taken as collateral are evaluated before
the loan can be drawn. For property collateral supporting
problem accounts, their open market values are appraised at
least every six months. For property collateral that has been
repossessed, the Group’s policy is to arrange for realisation as
soon as practicable.

(e) Market risk

The Group is exposed to various types of market risk. Details of the
risk management policies and procedures adopted are set out in Note
3.3 to the financial statements.

() Asset securitisation

The Group uses the standardised (securitisation) approach to
calculate the credit risk for securitisation exposures as at 31
December 2013 and 31 December 2012 on Basel Il and Basel Il basis
respectively. Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s are the ECAls that the
Group has used in relation to each and all classes of the securitisation
exposures below.

The asset securitisation exposures of the Group represented
investment in structured investment vehicles managed by third
party portfolio managers and in which the Group is an investor. The
investment is classified as a financial asset designated at fair value
through profit or loss in the Group’s banking book and has been
assessed as impaired since 2007. It is carried at a residual value of
5.50% (2012: 2.30%) of the par value as at 31 December 2013 based
on price quote obtained from the investment manager.



AEELHIEI T M EMER
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(AT TTAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
7. BEREE@m 7. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(B) EEZH @ ()  Asset securitisation (Continued)
2013 % 2013
£F Group
BB
L
i F 1250%
AREE BB AR B
AME  Risk-weighted Exposures deducted from
EH Securitisation 73 amount - EARE SRRE-RER —HEX
EBAE exposures Outstanding at 1250% Capital Common Equity Tier 2
BERBENER Basel lll basis amounts risk weight  requirements  Tier 1 Capital Capital
FEHILAEK Synthetic securitisations
—BRMHERETA - Structured investment
vehicles 4,247 53,088 4,247 - -
20124 2012
5B Group
Nl [ AR B
KEE L Exposures deducted from
EH Securitisation X Risk- BARHE BLEAR Bis &
Bl exposures Outstanding weighted Capital Core  Supplementary
BER BT AR Basel Il basis amounts amount  requirements Capital Capital
HHRLAK Synthetic securitisations
—ERMEERETA - Structured investment
vehicles 23,524 - - 11,762 11,762
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. BBREEG@ 7. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(BR) SRITER 2 PR FE R Bax (9) Equity exposures in banking book
REBEPIEBIRRE D ERRE RFIEREE The Group distinguishes its equity holdings between those taken for
e EENIRER R - R AEIEERNIEER strategic reasons and those taken for capital appreciation purposes
M2 RN E B BREZIED T R AKBRE at inception of the acquisition. Equity holdings identified for capital
Pk - mBSRBEME - HE FERBENERET appreciation purpose is evaluated based on rigorous investment
FE R EAE 2 ANEBHEE| © R E B R F MR analysis and is subject to internal guidelines on stock selection,
BR 2 B SR BEIEHE S 1EFTAh  PTIFERIRE IR marketability, valuation, position limit, management action trigger,
i B EE%EME - and various other control guidelines specified in the Treasury Policy

Manual. Listed equity holdings are valued on the basis of market bid

prices.
£8 Group 2013 2012
HE ERMER IR Realised gains from sales/liquidations 64,497 12,950
REIHR 2 S Unrealised revaluation gains
—BEBsEREEERERNKER — Amount included in reserves but not
2 through income statement 79,128 80,117
(¥) SBRITRZFIZRA M (h) Interest rate risk exposures in banking book
E%
Currency
B in Br it &t
2013 % 2013 HK$ Us$ EUR Others Total
FERBREE L2005 T Interest rate risk shock +200 pips
—BH ()& - (Decline)/Increase
in earnings (12,000) (182,000) 1,000 (120,000 (313,000)
Currency
BT e BT Hith =
20124 2012 HK$ USs$ EUR Others Total
FIREREE L2008 F Interest rate risk shock +200 pips
—BH R,/ & - (Decline)/Increase
in eamings (112,000) 32,000 (1,000) (143,000) (224,000)
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(i) Operational risk

The Group manages its operational risk through a management
structure comprising members of senior management and an
independent risk management team, and operational risk officers
from each business and support function, and operating through a
set of operational risk policies, risk tool-kits, operational risk incident
reporting and tracking system, and control self assessment and key
risk indicator tools. Together with a well established internal control
system, operational risk can be adequately identified, assessed,
monitored and mitigated. To allow the operational risk framework to
be clearly communicated to all levels within the Group, awareness and
training programs are conducted from time to time.

To minimise the impact on the Group’s business in the event of
system failure or disasters, back-up sites and operation recovery
policies and plans have been established and tested for all critical
business and operations functions.

Operational risk framework is also supported by periodic independent
reviews of internal control systems by external and internal auditors.
The Group’s Risk Management and Compliance Committee have an
overall oversight of the performance and effectiveness of operational
risk management.

() Reputation risk

The Group manages reputation risk through upholding a high
standard of corporate governance and management oversight,
maintenance of effective policies and procedures with emphasis
on internal control, risk management and compliance; proper staff
training and supervision; proper handling of customer complaints
or dissatisfaction; and adherence to sound business practices.
Standards are set and policies and procedures are established by the
Group in all areas, which operate to reduce vulnerability to reputation
risk.
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7. BREEm@m)
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(k) Strategic risk

The Board of Directors, assisted by senior management, is directly
responsible for the management of strategic risk. Directors formulate
the strategic goals and key direction of the Group in line with the
Group’s corporate mission, ensure business strategies are developed
to achieve these goals, oversee the strategic development and
implementation to secure compatibility with the Group’s strategic
goals, review business performance, deploy proper resources to
achieve the Group’s objectives, and authorise management to take
appropriate actions to mitigate risks.

() Compliance with the Basel Ill Capital and Liquidity
Standards

Since the revised capital adequacy framework known as Basel Il
has become effective from January 2007, the Bank has adopted
the standardised approach for credit risk and market risk, and the
basic indicator approach for operational risk. These are the default
approaches as specified in the Banking (Capital) Rules. Accordingly,
the Bank has overhauled its systems and controls in order to meet the
standards required for these approaches.

To implement the revised international capital standards commonly
referred to as the “Basel lll” rules, the HKMA has published in April
2013 the Banking (Capital) (Amendment) Rules 2013 and revised
Supervisory Policy Manual (“SPM”) CA-G-5 on “Supervisory Review
Process” in December 2012. The revised capital standards and
related regulatory requirements have come into force for all locally
incorporated authorized institutions in Hong Kong starting from 1
January 2013. The Bank has enhanced its capital management and
reporting framework as well as disclosures for meeting the new

requirements.

Also forthcoming is the implementation of Basel Il liquidity standards
in Hong Kong from 1 January 2015. In this regard, the Group has
been keeping track closely with the development in the regulatory

framework to ensure readiness to comply with the new requirements.
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7. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(m) Launch of new product or service

The launch of every new product or service is governed by the
New Product Approval process stipulated under the Group Risk
Policy which requires the relevant business and supporting units,
including Group Risk Division, to review the critical requirements,
risk assessment and resources plan before the launch. New products
or services which could have a significant impact on the Group’s
risk profile should be brought to the attention of the Board or its
designated committee(s) before the launch. The Group’s Internal
Audit function performs regular independent review and testing to
ensure compliance by the relevant units in the new product approval
process.

(n) The role of Internal Audit

The Group’s Internal Audit Division is an independent, objective
assurance and consulting unit which is designed to focus on
enhancing and sustaining sound internal control in all business and
operational units of the Group. The Division reports functionally to the
Group Audit Committee, which is chaired by an Independent Non-
Executive Director. The Division conducts a wide variety of internal
control activities such as compliance audits and operations and
systems reviews to ensure the integrity, efficiency and effectiveness
of the systems of control of the Group.

8. REMUNERATION SYSTEM
(@) Remuneration Principles

The Group adopts the following remuneration principles:

o Pay for performance is the guiding principle to reward individual
performance and contribution, which are measured through the
performance management process.

o The remuneration structure is based on various factors such
as business needs, market situations and the principles set
out in relevant legal and regulatory requirements applicable to
employees’ remuneration.

o The Group Remuneration Policy (“GRP”) is to align with the
Group’s risk management framework, and to support the
achievement of long-term financial soundness of the Group,
including its key subsidiary banks.
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8.
(a)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Remuneration Principles (Continued)

Variable remuneration is designed to align employees’ incentive
awards with their performance and contributions in the long
term, and the time horizons of risk.

Generally, the proportion of variable remuneration to
total remuneration increases in line with the seniority and
responsibilities of an employee.

The appropriate proportion of variable remuneration to be
deferred depends on a number of factors, including an
employee’s seniority, role, responsibilities and activities
within the Group, the time horizons of the risks incurred by
the employee’s activities and the overall level of their variable
remuneration both in absolute terms and as a proportion of his/
her fixed pay.

Decision of individual remuneration package will depend on
market pay levels, individual performance and contribution,
principles set out in the GRP, and performance and affordability
of the Group, and consideration of regulatory guidelines.

The Group’s remuneration strategy is to position itself at market

median to upper quartile level, and offers to its employees

remuneration packages, which normally consist of guaranteed

cash and variable remuneration largely in the form of discretionary

performance incentive bonus, that as a whole will properly reward

individual performance and are competitive relative to market pay

levels.
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8.
(b)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (Continued)

Governance of the Remuneration System

(i) Oversight by the Group’s Board of Directors and the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Group’s Board of Directors approves the GRP and assumes
the ultimate responsibility for overseeing the formulation,
implementation and update of the GRP. The Board of the Bank’s
parent company, Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”),
has in place the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(“NRC”), which is a committee of the Board of DSBG having
oversight responsibilities and authority on remuneration system
and practices over DSBG and its subsidiaries, including the
Bank. Members of the NRC are appointed by the DSBG Board.
The majority of the members of NRC are independent non-
executive directors of DSBG and of the Bank. The committee
is responsible, among other things, for the review of the
nomination of new directors, approval of the remuneration of
directors and senior management. The Board delegates the
following responsibilities and authorities to the NRC:

° Assists the Board in discharging its responsibility for
the design and operation of the Group’s remuneration
system;

. Reviews, and makes recommendations to the Board
in respect of the Group’s remuneration policy and
practices and ensures that these are determined based
on appropriate factors such as business needs, market
practices and the principles set out in relevant legal and
regulatory requirements;

o Determines the specific remuneration packages of
members of senior management of the Group;

o Evaluates any practices or recommendation by which
remuneration is paid for potential future revenues or
benefits whose timing and likelihood remain uncertain;
and

o Ensures that regular review of the Group’s remuneration
system and its operation is sustained.

The NRC held three meetings in 2013. No director’s fee was
payable to the Bank’s Independent Non-Executive Directors, as
they were remunerated by the Bank’s holding company, DSBG
or ultimate holding company, DSFH.
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8.
(b)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Governance of the Remuneration System (Continued)
(i)  Review of the Remuneration System

Internal Audit Division (“IAD”) of the Group is responsible to
conduct internal monitoring of the remuneration system and
its operation to ensure compliance with the GRP. As required
by the Group’s remuneration framework, a review, at least on
an annual basis, of the Group’s remuneration system and its
operation, which includes an assessment of consistency with
the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by
the HKMA, is conducted independently of the management and
the result is submitted to the NRC and to the HKMA if required.
The independent review can be conducted by an external
party, or by the Group’s internal audit, legal and compliance or
human resources functions, or a combination of these parties as
directed by the NRC. The NRC will report any material issues in
relation to the Group’s remuneration system or practices to the
Board of the Group and the Bank.

IAD conducted the review in April 2013 and noted that the
Group’s remuneration system was in compliance with the GRP
and consistent with the HKMA’s guideline in this connection.

(iii)  Roles of the Risk Control Functions

Risk control functions, including Group Risk Division (“GRD”),
Legal and Compliance Division (“LCD”) and Financial Control
Division (“FCD”), are involved in the process of design and
implementation of the GRP. They will play a continuing role in
the operation of the remuneration system in relation to matters
such as risks measures and risk judgements. They will also be
consulted by the NRC, where appropriate and independent
of business divisions, on their view and advice as to how
compensation relates to risk at various levels within the Group
or specific business division, including the proper alignment of
risk and reward, and the time horizon on risk and performance
measurement, changes in the risk profile of the Bank in general,
or of a particular business division or major business strategy,
and the considerations as regards remuneration to properly
align with risks taken, with the need to balance the time horizon
for longer term business performance and risk realisation.
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8.
(b)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Governance of the Remuneration System (Continued)
(iii)  Roles of the Risk Control Functions (Continued)

FCD together with GRD are responsible for the proper
disclosure of the Group’s remuneration system and practices,
and specific features relating to actual remuneration to comply
with the HKMA remuneration guideline. The heads of each of
the risk control functions report administratively to the Chief
Executive, and most have a functional reporting line to relevant
board-level committees chaired by independent non-executive
directors. All risk control functions specified above have direct
and independent access to the NRC on matters relating to the
Group’s remuneration system and practices. In addition, both
GRD and LCD have direct access to the Bank’s board-level Risk
Management & Compliance Committee.

The Group’s banking and financial services business model
is a risk underwriting and risk management business. With
risk management as a key function and control process of
the Group, a key purpose of GRD is to assist the Group to
maximise the probability of achieving the Group’s long-term
objectives while ensuring that the Group, its business and
risk control units, in pursuing various business strategies and
managing risk taking activities, will have proper regard to short-
term constraints, limits and regulatory guidelines, and with the
general sense and appropriate process on striking a proper
balance of risk and reward for the long-term success and
soundness of the Group.

(iv)  Roles of the Human Resources Division

One of the key roles of Human Resources Division is to support
the Group to attract quality candidates and retain and motivate
existing employees. To achieve these objectives, Human
Resources Division regularly reviews the Group’s human
resources policies and employees’ compensation and benefits
with reference to market practices to ensure competitiveness.
Human Resources Division also provides support to the design
and implementation of remuneration policy and measures to
meet regulatory requirements and align with market practices.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. REMUNERATION SYSTEM (Continued)

(c) Application of the Group Remuneration Policy to the
Staff of the Group

The GRP is established to provide the key remuneration principles
and practices covering all employees of the Group, and the key risk
management requirements relating to remuneration, performance and
risk control. Specific regards are on the remuneration and the roles of
the following personnel:

(1)  Senior Management are senior executives with accountability
to the Board, and are responsible for executing the firm-
wide strategies, guiding the development of the Group, and
overseeing business activities, risk management and internal
control of the Group. These mainly include the Chairman, Vice
Chairmen, Chief Executive and Executive Directors of the Bank.

(2) “Key Personnel”, i.e. individual employees whose duties
or activities in the course of their employment involve the
assumption of material risk or the taking on of material
exposures on behalf of the Group. The Group currently does
not have any employees classified as Key Personnel under its
existing remuneration system.

(8) Groups of employees whose activities in the aggregate may
expose the Group to material amounts of risk, and who
are subject to the same or similar incentive arrangements
(including employees who are incentivised to meet certain
quotas or targets by payment of meaningful amount of
variable remuneration). The Group currently does not have
any employees classified in this category under its existing
remuneration system.

(4) Employees within risk control functions (including group risk
management, legal and compliance, internal audit, and financial
control).

Remuneration packages of the Chairman, Vice Chairmen, Chief
Executive and individual Executive Directors are determined solely
by the NRC, after considering the view or any comment of the Risk
Management & Compliance Committee, a Board level committee of
the Bank. Remuneration packages of Senior Management members
including the Chairman, Vice Chairmen, Chief Executive and individual
Executive Directors are subject to the approval of the NRC, with
recommendations from the Chairman, Vice Chairmen and/or the Chief

Executive.
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8. REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
(d) Structure of Remuneration

Remuneration of all employees in risk control functions is independent
of the performance of the business units which they exercise control
or oversight. Generally, the remuneration of these employees is
determined by their respective Divisions, and Top Management will
be involved in the determination of remuneration of the respective
senior personnel. Management of business units are not allowed to
determine the remuneration of employees in the risk control functions.

Subsidiaries in overseas location broadly follow the principles and
guidelines set out in the GRP, and may customise the relevant
parts where appropriate to address their local legal/regulatory
requirements, market situations and business needs.

() Components

The structure of remuneration is generally composed of the
following components:

° Fixed remuneration including basic salary, allowances and
retirement benefits, and

° Variable incentives-based remuneration including
discretionary performance incentive bonus, and for some
front-line sales and services staff, incentive payment

based on business and sales performance.

In determining an appropriate balance between fixed and
variable remuneration, the Group takes into consideration the
seniority, role, responsibilities and activities of its employees,
the need to promote appropriate behaviour amongst employees
that supports the Group’s risk management framework and
long-term financial soundness, as well as market pay practices.
The proportion of variable remuneration to total remuneration
generally increases in line with the seniority and responsibilities
of an employee.

For Senior Management, a fair to substantial proportion of
the remuneration is paid in the form of variable remuneration,
which is mainly granted in the form of performance incentive
bonus. Starting from 2010 performance year, a portion of the
bonus is deferred in the form of deferred bonus and subject to
vesting over a period of at least three years. This practice is to
achieve an effective alignment of incentive awards with the time
horizons of risks.
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8.
(d)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Structure of Remuneration (Continued)
(i) Components (Continued)

DSBG, the Bank’s holding company, and Dah Sing Financial
Holdings Limited (“DSFH”), the Group’s ultimate holding
company, have established executive share option schemes
under which, and subject to proper approval process and
vesting conditions, share options can be granted to senior
executives and other employees of the Bank to reward their
performance and contribution, and as a means to retain relevant

senior executives or employees.

(i)  Criteria Used for Performance Measurement and Risk
Adjustment

The Group’s performance is evaluated based on the
achievement against a set of pre-determined business or
financial targets that are decided at the beginning of the
performance year. The business performance of a division in a
year is determined by the Vice Chairmen and Chief Executive
based on the actual performance and achievement against a
set of pre-determined objectives or targets of the division for
the year set at the beginning of the year, and other factors
considered relevant for assessing performance.

GRD has the responsibilities of managing different types of
risk and maintaining a sound risk management system to
enable the Group to achieve its objectives, which include
achieving proper risk and return balance for the Group and its
major lines of business. The Head of GRD has access to the
Executive Committee and reports functionally to the board-level
RMCC chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director and
administratively to the Chief Executive.

Based on the Group’s performance against the pre-determined
targets set at the beginning of the year, long-term performance
and affordability of the Group as well as other relevant internal
and external factors, the Chief Executive proposes a preliminary
amount of total performance bonus for the year and allocation
considerations.
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

8. HENFE @
(T) FENERE 3
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8.
(d)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Structure of Remuneration (Continued)

(i)  Criteria Used for Performance Measurement and Risk

Adjustment (Continued)

GRD provides an annual report to the RMCC, or on a more
frequent basis as appropriate, on the risk management
performance of the Group and for the purpose of remuneration
review. The GRD report will include but is not limited to the
following:

o any significant changes in the risk profile of the Group
during the year;

o any significant improvement or deterioration in the system
of internal controls;

° any significant deterioration or concerns about the
external economic environment that could have potential
adverse impact to the Bank’s businesses and financial
performance;

° any significant concerns raised by regulatory authorities;

o any events that caused significant damage to the
reputation of the Group; and

o specific business or risk actions taken to help mitigate risk
or improve revenue (risk adjusted or justified), or actions
which are considered to have contributed to the long-term
success or values of the Group.

On the basis of its review, the Head of GRD can provide
comment or recommendation to RMCC if any specific
factor or adjustment needs to be considered in determining
the performance bonus pool for the year. The Chairman of
the Group, in consultation with the NRC if necessary, has
the discretion and flexibility to withhold all or part of the
provisionally accrued bonus amount when circumstances
warrant.

I DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2013

269



270

N

A

P

EIZ TR M E AR
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(CABREFThz5I7R)
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3 B I BE ()

(T) FENERE 3

RFRITAERAR | 2013FF

(i) BEALER R A 2R
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8.
(d)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (Continued)
Structure of Remuneration (Continued)
(iii)  Deferral Policy and Vesting Criteria

The appropriate proportion of variable remuneration to be
deferred will vary from employee to employee depending upon
a number of factors, including an employee’s seniority, role,
responsibilities and activities within the Group, the time horizons
of the risks incurred by the employee’s activities and the overall
level of their variable remuneration both in absolute terms and
as a proportion of their fixed pay.

Starting the 2010 performance year, a minimum vesting period
for any deferred variable remuneration for the Bank’s Senior
Management is adopted so that the deferred remuneration
will only be vested and released to the awardees with due
consideration of fulfilling vesting conditions. These pre-defined
vesting conditions, depending on the level of the seniority of the
Senior Management and key roles assumed by each, normally
include factors such as the nature of the business outcomes
and risk arising from the activities undertaken by relevant
Senior Management in the past, the timeframe during which
the risks from these activities are likely to be realised, and the
assessment from risk control functions on the Bank’s internal
control, risk management and compliance performance. The
vesting of the deferred bonus over a period of years is gradual
and no faster than on a pro rata basis, subject to fulfiiment and
validation of the pre-defined performance conditions. For the
deferred cash bonus under the 2013 performance incentive
bonus to be awarded to Senior Management in March 2014,
the maximum deferment period is no less than three years from
March 2014.



AEEZHEIT M EMER
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(LABEEF Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. FEMFIE @ 8. REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)

(T) HM%EE @ (d) Structure of Remuneration (Continued)
(i) BEREBE KA TR (&) (iii)  Deferral Policy and Vesting Criteria (Continued)
ETHERT  @REhriEF2IELTF A “claw-back” mechanism is applied in respect of any unvested
EEEMER A [0S | 4l (i) AR T deferred variable remuneration if (i) the vesting conditions
B (NVRIBASEMREBEZBEEREE S are not fulfilled; (i) performance measurement was based on
PR SR SRR ¢ (iii) fE B B TS BrEF SRk data which is later proven to have been manifestly misstated;
TEMEETTA ¢ 2(iv) B THEEERRNI (iii) fraud or other malfeasance on the part of the individual
BEVEBUR o employee; or (iv) major violations by the employee of internal

control policies.

BrBIAME R (N ERBMEBR) I ETHE Departure of employees will not trigger early payout of deferred
ELEEAN B T S IR R T SRIEHEN - remuneration that is still within the deferment period other than
in exceptional cases, such as on compassionate grounds.

(R) EEEEAE () Remuneration for the Senior Management

TREHIZEBREFEALSE REMZES B EFM The tables below summarise the aggregate quantitative information
CG-5[REFMTIE ! | FIRE 2 ARRITEE on the remuneration for the Bank’s Senior Management as defined in
ERABHMREERE - accordance with the Supervisory Policy Manual CG-5 “Guideline on a

Sound Remuneration System” issued by the HKMA.

(1) Foh4Ew (1) Remuneration Structure
2013 2012
ZHABE X AEE
EZ12A31H For the year ended -] Number of T Number of
LHEE 31 December Amount Beneficiaries Amount  Beneficiaries
(& 7 % B Fixed remuneration 40,462 9 42264 10
FBHM (BT (2) Variable remuneration
PR 2 EEST B (including deferred remuneration

as shown in (2) below) 56,450 9 44,700 10
B EFHMEZBF M AR S E N RERMR The fixed and variable remuneration were paid and payable in
F o NI f8 i B DA RR 19 SR B (D A8 B 2 T A2 cash. No remuneration in the form of shares and share-linked
i o instruments were given.
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. FEMFIE @ 8. REMUNERATION SYSTEM (Continued)

(R) BBEBAEZ2HM @) (e) Remuneration for the Senior Management (Continued)
2) EEEBY (2) Deferred Remuneration
H20105#E - IRE ) F B — 28 (BN Starting 2010, a portion of the cash variable remuneration,
SEEEBAERFRZREAMGE T ZRER being the performance incentive bonus awarded to members
B2E)) RUAREEAL 2 AR AT o IRIEFEAL of Senior Management for their performance in the year, is paid
B 32 AN 52 BR A Bl T 4 o e 3 R B AR TR T or payable in the form of deferred cash bonus. The payment
A2 FEEIFANKIB2EZ - BT H of deferred bonus is subject to vesting and performance
EREREBEERI T WEAGFAEEIRS review in the 3 years immediately following the year when the
RFMNEZESBH RIEZRTAEE - & deferred bonus is awarded. Vesting factors and terms are pre-
JETEALR T2 8RN 3FHARIA A EEE 2 determined, and are subject to the review and approval of the
FELREI - Group’s Nomination and Remuneration Committee. If vested,

the deferred bonus will be paid by 3 equal annual installments
over the 3-year period.

I 7 557 B
Deferred
Remuneration

R2012%12 A31 H X Balance at 31 December 2012
RK2013F1 A1 B2 &8 and at 1 January 2013 28,085
HZE2013F12 A31 BILEFE ¢ For the year ended 31 December 2013:
BT za8 Awarded 15,405
BT REAT Vested and paid (6,347)
HREEETEABRBMEUEZ &8 Cancelled due to resignation of

members of Senior Management -

M 2013412 A 31 H z 48k Balance at 31 December 2013 37,143

MN2014FE3 AT RS ZIBEEIEL (ZRE The total value of the deferred cash bonus to be vested and
RmERBEEZNTKIELERTEZE TIE payable in March 2014, subject to satisfying performance
4) - H48%8/510,370,00078 T3 2 BIEE review and fulfilment of pre-determined vesting conditions,
EBIR2013F 12 A 31 B 2484 amounts to HK$10,370,000, which is included in the above

balance as at 31 December 2013.
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RERATERZ  UABRERASUBBRERES
PEEEFAEARHEREL -

B\ 2 BEN RS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DAH SING BANK, LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dah Sing
Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
set out on pages 13 to 228, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2013,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank and of the Group as at
31 December 2013, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014



DT HR
LISTS OF BRANCHES

41T Branch

ik Address

TEE Tel

fHE Fax

BEBED1T
Hong Kong Island Branches

BRI 20 5%

20 Wu Pak Street, Aberdeen
EREB18EE TS 1 10585

Shop No. 10, 1st Floor of the Podium, Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road

BRI
Aberdeen
SEEBEP VDT
Admiralty Centre

SR D 1T

Causeway Bay

FES T
Central

BaILDTT
Fortress Hill

ELITERT
Gloucester Road

BEBDIT
Happy Valley

BIREWH 1T
Heng Fa Chuen

HTBEDT
Johnston Road
AT

North Point
BEEDT
Shaukiwan
REBS1T
Shek Tong Tsui

ERA1T
Sheung Wan

AERHDT
Taikoo Shing

SRR A ST B 258 482 57

482 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay
EEBET19REBERAE

Worldwide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central
278 293-299 R = A EH T 15-22 5% i M s

Shop No.15-22, G/F and basement, Empire Apartments,
Nos. 293-299 King’s Road

HTITE 108 AT &R A O T
G/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road

S RS A 13 5 2 FAEH T ASRE

Shop A, G/F, Kam Yuk Mansion, No. 13 Yuk Sau Street,
Happy Valley

LETE B T 100 SE AR A TEFT I T G59 57

Unit G59, G/F, Heng Fa Chuen Paradise Mall, 100 Shing
Tai Road, Chaiwan

BT 2B 164 5%

164, Johnston Road, Wanchai

HEE433-437 KKK E

Chu Kee Building, 433-437 King’s Road

LHEEE 57-87 FALIEH T G8 I H
Shop G8, G/F, Tai On Building, 57-87 Shaukiwan Road

SfaAET 443-453 5730 T 15-16 57 4
Shop No. 15-16, G/F, 443-453 Queen’s Road West

FIREEIET 288 HIBE A AR M T B2 SR HE B =
G/F & 1/F, No. 288 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan

REPAEE 1 582288 BT 501 554
Shop No. G501, On Shing Terrace, No. 28 Taikoo Shing
Road & No. 1-9 Tai Yue Avenue, Taikoo Shing

2554 5463

3110 1886

2891 2201

2521 8134

2922 3389

2507 8866

2572 0708

2558 7485

2572 8849

2561 8241

2568 5271

2857 7473

2851 6281

2884 4802

2554 0843

3110 2818

2591 6037

2526 9427

2887 7604

2507 8654

2572 0718

2889 2520

2891 3743

2811 4474

2567 5904

2108 4539

2581 2216

2884 3151
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LISTS OF BRANCHES

41T Branch

ik Address

TEE Tel

fHE Fax

hEESTT
Kowloon Branches

FIRE D 1T

Hoi Yuen Road

AW 1T
Hunghom

EB DT
Jordan
BES1T

Kwun Tong

HEDT
Lok Fu
EFZHWAT

Mei Foo Sun
Chuen

HAST
Mongkok
K 4T
Shamshuipo
EREEDT
Telford Gardens

TES{T

Tokwawan

EERDIT
Tseung Kwan O
HER
A O DIT
Tseung Kwan O
Metro City Plaza

RDE LT
Tsimshatsui

BUEFTIRIE 62 SRBRSER AN EE — B T A2
Portion 2 of Factory A, G/F, Block 1, Camelpaint Buildings,
62 Hoi Yuen Road, Kwun Tong

AMENE 28 EEMM T 3 R4 H —E 25 R 12 35
Shop No. 3 and 4 on G/F, Shop No. 2 on 1/F and Shop

No. 3 on 2/F, Cheron Court, 28 Wuhu Street, Hunghom
{EZRFE 335 5%

335 Nathan Road, Jordan

BIERSEAFTELR LM T 7-9554

Shop Nos. 7-9, G/F, Yee On Centre, 45 Hong Ning Road,
Kwun Tong

EEAMALE F5— 121101 21102554
Shop Nos. 1101 and 1102, 1/F, Lok Fu Plaza, Wang Tau Hom

EZHU N EARI A8 10A H T N26E & F 548
Shop No. N26E & F, G/F, 10A Nassau Street, Stage V
Mei Foo Sun Chuen

RE A B 208 697 57
697 Nathan Road, Mongkok

OB IRESAT 124 5730 T
G/F, 124 Fuk Wing Street, Shamshuipo

NEEBfEIEES —H] — 12 F5A-FEA R
Units F5A-F6A, Level 2, Telford Plaza I, Kowloon Bay

T IVEE 237A R E K E
I-Feng Mansion, 237A Tokwawan Road

#5 R E (&5 9 9% PopCorn B35 T B G58 5 i 44
Shop G58, G/F, PopCorn, Tong Chun Street, Tseung Kwan O

7S R E R O = H 12 127 SR AR

Shop 127, Level 1, Metro City Plaza Ill, Tseung Kwan O

RV IE N E 66-70 5K & EAE
Golden Crown Court, 66-70 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui

2191 8103

2365 8110

2385 0161

2389 3911

2337 6300

2370 2660

2394 4261

2361 0951

2927 4130

2365 9035

2752 1223

2927 2101

2366 9121

2191 8723

2363 5917

2782 0993

2389 8239

2337 6922

2370 2006

2391 9104

2958 0985

2755 4967

2363 5696

2752 1098

2702 2305

2311 1491
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DITIHR
LISTS OF BRANCHES

41T Branch ik Address T Tel fHE Fax

hEESIT

Kowloon Branches

BERLDIT =AU IEEET 103 SR E AL 03 T G3C 5k

Wong Tai Sin Shop No. G3C, Ground Floor, Wong Tai Sin Plaza, Wong Tai Sin 2326 5165 2350 0894

SR i 3t 53 4T B8 b S 28 561 55

Yaumatei 561 Nathan Road, Yaumatei 2782 1339 2385 9285

HREDT

New Territories Branches

REAT FRIEATILFE 6 5% R 3 5 =12 302A [ 302B 57 f

Cheung Fat Shop Nos. 302A-302B, Level 3, Cheung Fat Plaza, 6 Tam Kon 2436 1866 2436 1505
Shan Road, Tsing Yi

BEDT BB AT RS EIS —1E 1165

Kwai Fong Shop No. 116, First Floor, Kwai Fong Plaza, Kwai Fong Estate, 2487 8033 2489 1253
177 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung

BRLESDT TS8R ILI7R ) 5K 608 5% 55 #2111 &35 =1 335 55t

Ma On Shan Plaza Shop 335 on Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, 608 Sai Sha Road, 2929 4137 2633 3432
Ma On Shan

BRED AT FREAIE 3357 5 K 108 D-E R4

Maritime Square Shop 108 D-E, Maritime Square, 33 Tsing King Road, Tsing Yi 2435 1368 2435 1582

BB BT 71 P9 2R 75 168-236 57 37 93-95 5 4

Ocean Walk Shop 93-95, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road, Tuen Mun 2404 6931 2404 7130

PHEAT W BB R LT 9574

Shatin Shop 9, G/F, Lucky Plaza, Shatin 2606 3533 2601 2413

WRES AT S0 IH 8 288 S T

Sha Tsui Road G/F, No. 288 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan 2615 1510 2615 1099

Exp4T G & K 55-59 SR IKRNIEHE T B SR AR

Sheung Shui Shop B, G/F, Siu Kai House, 55-59 San Fung Avenue, Sheung Shui 26715030 2672 1533

RFEHAT RNIBL TR A SR E ST 53 5% & 54 576

Tai Po Units 53-54 on Level 1, Tai Po Plaza, No.1 On Tai Road, Tai Po 2667 2588 2664 3637

RKESTT YO H K B 55-56 SETEIE T 14-18 SRS EEM T~ 1 R 2548

Tai Wai Shops 1 and 2 on Ground Floor, Grandeur Garden, 2691 1272 2606 1531
14-18 Chik Fai Street, 55-56 Tai Wai Road, Shatin
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DITHIER

LISTS OF BRANCHES

41T Branch

ik Address

TEE Tel

fHE Fax

HREDT
New Territories Branches

RKBEEE DT
Tin Shui Wai
Chung Fu
BT
Tsuen Wan

B S1T
Tuen Mun

RBDIT
Tung Chung

EHE DT
Wah Ming Estate

B WLEDT

Yuen Long Castle

Peak Road

RKEMEERS — 132558
Shop No. 132, Chung Fu Shopping Centre Stage 2, Tin Shui Wai

EEATE14-16 5B AE
Dang Fat Mansion, 14-16 Tai Ho Road, Tsuen Wan
B EEE52-62 S BFEH T 455 & 555

Shops 4 and 5 on G/F, Man Cheung Mansion,
52-62 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road

RIR BB E R 1 SR RE R T 23 554
Shop 23, G/F, Tung Chung Crescent,1 Hing Tung Street,
Tung Chung, Lantau Island

Fyea =B UREE AR 35 201 SR 4

Shop 201, Wah Ming Shopping Centre, Wah Ming Estate, Fanling
TCEAS LA RS TTBAER 162-168 SREG S &M T C iR

Shop C, G/F, Len Shing Mansion, 162-168 Castle Peak Road,
Yuen Long

2448 9008

2492 8102

2441 6218

2109 3484

2677 8830

2479 4555

2448 9112

24150984

2441 6613

2109 4353

2669 9950

2479 4522
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LISTS OF BRANCHES @ankiNG sussiDIARIES)

41T Branch

ik Address B Tel

BRAEXRRTROBRAA

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

B2 1T

Macau Branches

[h-EX

Main Branch
REDT
Almirante Lacerda
EDBRHIT

Areia Preta
STEST

Horta e Costa

BEST
Kin Wa

S 1T
Mercadores
BT
Nape

BHEi 1T

Palha

;TORTT

Ponte e Horta
WRES T
Ribeira do Patane
Ao 1T

Toi San

FE RSB 572 5%
Avenida da Praia Grande, No. 572

LRI E KSR 43978

Avenida Almirante Lacerda, No. 43B

(853) 8791 0000

(853) 2831 6191

BIIR 55512 K5 30-30E 5%

Estrada Marginal do Hipédromo, Nos. 30-30E (853) 2837 8262

P E LK BB 53-59 3k T im )+ 52 8T A,B,D £
Avenida Horta e Costa, Nos. 53-59, R/C,
Edf. Grand Oceania, Lojas A,B,D.

ELIRGEBKEENWE 13 BH A
Estrada Marginal da Areia Preta, S/N,
Edif. Kin Wa, Bloco 13, R/C, Loja A

(853) 2821 6523

(853) 2845 0759

LKA 40-42 58 AT

Rua dos Mercadores, Nos. 40-42, R/C A (853) 2857 2610

R E 4 B35 315-363 57/ 2 IR0 T O 4
Alameda Dr. Carlos D’ Assumpc¢éao, Nos. 315-363,
Edificio “Hot Line”, R/C, Loja “O”

(853) 2872 2515

o ket

EEMH4-65%

Rua da Palha, Nos. 4-6 (853) 2837 3762

470 29 5%

Praca Ponte e Horta, No. 29 (853) 2837 8704

EE=ITR S 4025

Rua do Visconde Paco d’Arcos, No. 402, R/C (853) 2895 2942

BILERAPHE +— R m/EEE 18 &£ “CC” 4
Rua Onze Bairro Tamagnini Barbosa, S/N,
Jardim Cidade Nova, Bloco 18, R/C Loja “CC”

(853) 2823 8483

wE ST

Taipa Branches

RFEHBDIT
Prince Flower City

EEDT
Tak Fok

BRERDIT

Coloane Branch

RN ERFER — BEEM T 14
Rua de Evora, Prince Flower City, Lai San Kok, R/C |

ERAGREESSTEFH
Avenida de Kwong Tung, S/N, Edificio Tak Fok Seaview Garden,
R/C, Loja F

(853) 2884 2788

(853) 2882 1308

BIRD1T
Coloane

B35 Al 9 5% D

Largo do Matadouro, No. 9-D (853) 2888 2374
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41T Branch

ik Address ELE Tel

1T
Head Office

FYIEILZT
Shenzhen Nanshan
Sub-Branch

BEMND T

Guangzhou

EBH1T
Shanghai
MEZTT
Nanchang

HIDAT
Zhenjiang

AT

Foshan Sub-Branch

SR T 78 A2 R R SRS 5047 SR Y R ARTT A E 1612
16/F, Shenzhen Development Bank Building,
5047 Shennan Dong Road, Luo Hu District, Shenzhen

YR ILE SO BERIINEER 2136 5E F BB £ oot B il
2136 Zhong Xing Road (Shenzhen Bay Part), Nan Shan District,

(86-755) 2519 9033

(86-755) 2238 5500

Shenzhen
BRAEMNTBEEARILE604-2 5 RFIRITAE—EM
“EOo1ET

Unit 01, 1/F-2/F, Dah Sing Bank Building,
604-2, North Renmin Road, Yue Xiu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong

(86-20) 8116 0888

EETREREZILKSHE1EBE
Room B, 1/F, 86 North Cao Xi Road, Xu Hui District, Shanghai

B mEEmANEEILE 13658 1-2 /8
1/F-2/F, 136 Dieshan Road, East Lake District, Nanchang, Jiangxi

(86-21) 2411 3388

(86-791) 8688 7333

TTARA ST T R O [ AR AR 59 5%

59 Jiefang Road, Jing Kou District, Zhenjiang, Jiangsu
FEER & 5 L1 T R A K B B B 8 SR B B SR S B S
181114 - 1204/

Shop 111, Shop 120, No. 1 Bauhinia Building,
Starcrest, 8 Jinyuan Road, Guicheng,

(86-511) 8530 9999

(86-757) 8513 3555

Nanhai District, Foshan, Guangdong

REFIRITARAR | 2013F F



Dah Sing Bank, Limited X#R{THRAF)

36/F., Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
EEETITE— S N\FAFEeRPOL="1T7"E&

Telephone E & - (852) 2507 8866

Facsimile 5 : (852) 2598 5052

Website ~ #81E : www.dahsing.com
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